STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

* SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD *
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated (A.R.S.) §38-431.02, notice is hereby
given to the members of the School Facilities Board and to the general public that the
Board will hold a meeting open to the public at the date, time and place set forth below.
The Board will consider the items listed on the agenda and will take action when
necessary and appropriate. The Board reserves the right to change the order of items
on the agenda, with the exception of public hearings.

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3), (4) and (7) the Board may vote to go into
Executive Session, which is not open to the public to receive legal advice from the
Board's attorney on any matter listed on the agenda.

One or more members of the School Facilities Board may attend either in person or by
telephone, video or internet conferencing.

DATED AND POSTED this E@@day of V:WV] , 2015.

February 4, 2015
10:00am MST
Arizona State Archives Building
1901 W. Madison St.
1% floor meeting room
Phoenix, Agizona 85009

ublic Information Officer

School Facilities Board

1700 W. Washington St., Ste. 104
Executive Tower, 1st Floor
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

Persons vyith a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign
language interpreter, by contacting Kerry Campbell at 602-542-6504. Requests should
be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation.

Page 1



AGENDA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD
February 4, 2015
10:00AM

Arizona State Archives Building
1901 W. Madison St.
1% floor meeting room
Phoenix, Arizona 85009

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3), the Board may vote to go into Executive Session,
which is not open to the public for discussion or consultation for legal advice with the
Board's attorney.

|. Callto Order

Il.  Roll Call

lll.  Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify the Minutes of
January 7, 2015

IV.  Director's Report
a. Paperless Board Packets
b. Policy Review — IIl. SFB Capital Plans
c. Legislative/Budget Update

V. New Construction Requests

Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify the FY 2015 Capital
Plan New Construction Requests

. Agua Fria Union

Casa Grande Elementary
Chandler Unified
“Florence Unified
- |gley rifog
Kirkland Elementary

Liberty Elementary

Litchfield Elementary
Queen Creek Unified
Sahuarita Unified

e e o o o * e o

Page 2



VI.

VII.

- ¢ Vail Unified

Reduction of Square Footage Requests
Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Requests for
Reduction of Square Footage

0 Yuma Elementary

Building Renewal Grant Requests

a. Consideration and possible vote to ratify the Executive Director's awards of
Building Renewal Grant funds as authorized in the Building Renewal Grant
Policy IX.C. (up to $50,000 for deficiencies correction)

¢ _Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary
| ¢ Safford Unified
.+ Valley Union

b. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal
Grant Requests

Supplemental Awards

. ¢ Ganado Unified (2 requests)

' ¢ Mobile Elementary

- ¢ Mohave Valley Elementary

c. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal
Grant Requests

Construction Awards

| ¢ Benson Unified

Bullhead City Elementary (2 requests)
“Cave Creek Unified
Colorado River Union =
Mayer Unified

Saddle Mountain Unified (3 requests)

Scottsdale Unified (2 requests)

Tuba City Unified

Willcon Dnified e

* e 0 0 o s o0,

Page 3



d. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal

Grant Requests
Design Awards

~+ Duncan Unified

' ¢ Mesa Unified

' ¢ Mohave Valley Elementary

¢ Scottsdale Unified

e. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal

Grant Requests
Design Awards

. ¢ Round Valley Unified

f. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal

Grant Requests
Denial

N Florence Unified

"+ Show Low Unified

VIll.  Emergency Deficiencies Correction Requests

a. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal

Grant Requests
Construction Awards

~+ Bullhead City Elementary

SN "5}

§5

b. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal

Grant Requests
Design Awards

’ Gt ot Ui

%

c. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal

Grant Requests
Denial

"o Tolteo Elementary

faaiiie v

IX.  Preventative Maintenance Inspection Reports

a. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify the Preventative

Maintenance Inspection Reports

Page 4



¢ Skull Valley Elementary

b. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify the random
selection of districts for a Preventative Maintenance Inspection

¢ DeerValley Unified | %

X. Future Agenda ltems

Xl. Public Comment
Members of the Board may not discuss items that are not specifically identified
on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.01(H), action taken as a
result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter,
responding to the criticism or scheduling the matter for further consideration and
decision at a later date.

XIl.  Adjournment

Page 5



Board Minutes
01.07.15 UNOFFICIAL

SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD
January 7, 2015
Phoenix, Arizona

The School Facilities Board held a Board Meeting at the Arizona State Archives Building
in Phoenix, Arizona. The meeting began at approximately 10:06 A.M.

Members Present

Guests Present

Jennifer Stielow, Chair

Chris Tosh, APS

Tom Rushin, Vice-Chair

Dennis Edwards, CST

Dru Barisich

Craig Edwards, CST

Traci Sawyer-Sinkbeil

Nate Bowler, Buckeye ESD

Dr. Jeff Smith

Allison Suriano, FMG

Ward Simpson

Carlos Monreal, Scottsdale USD

Bryan Peltzer

Mark Rafferty, FMG

Robert Jacobson, Laveen ESD

Members Absent

Terry Worcester, Scottsdale USD

Vern Crow

Roy Sucanick, Creighton ESD

Edward Boot

John Muir, Cave Creek USD

Stacey Morley (non-voting) Fred Garnett, Yarnell ESD

Staff Present

Dean Gray, Executive Director

Phil Williams, Deputy Director

Kerry Campbell, Public Information Officer

Amber Peterson, School Finance Specialist

Debra Sterling, Attorney General’'s Office

Dan Demland, School Facilities Liaison

Yujun Mei, Demographer

I. Callto Order
Chairman Jennifer Stielow called the meeting to order at approximately 10:06
A.M.

II. Roll Call
There were six (6) voting Board Members present at the start of the meeting. Dr.
Jeff Smith joined the meeting during agenda item 1V.a.

Ill.  Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify the Minutes and
Executive Session Minutes of December 10, 2014 and the Minutes of December
12, 2014
Traci Sawyer-Sinkbeil made a motion for Board approval of the Minutes and
Executive Session Minutes of December 10, 2014 and the Minutes of December
12, 2014. Tom Rushin seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 6-0.

IV.  New School Construction
a. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify the FY 2015
Capital Plan New Construction Requests
Amber Peterson provided a brief explanation of the staff recommendations as
presented in the Board packet. The Board voted on the Union Elementary
request separately.

1 01.07.15 Board Minutes.docx



Board Minutes
01.07.15

UNOFFICIAL

Traci Sawyer-Sinkbeil made a motion for Board approval of the following staff
recommendations:

1. Avondale Elementary (K-8): Conceptually approve 001N (K-8 for 850
students) to be approved in FY 22.

2. Buckeye Elementary (K-8): Conceptually approve 011N (K-8 for 800
students) to be approved in FY 21.

3. Laveen Elementary (K-8): Conceptually approve 009N (K-8 for 1,000
students) to be approved in FY 17. Conceptually approve 010N (K-8 for
1,000 students) to be approved in FY 20.

4. Littleton Elementary (K-8): Conceptually approve a K-8 school for 950
students to be approved in FY 22.

5. Nadaburg Unified (9-12): Conceptually approve 007N (geographic
exception high school for 1,000 students) to be approved in FY 20.

6. Riverside Elementary (K-8): Deny conceptual approval.

7. This item was voted on separately.

Tom Rushin seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 6-0.
Dr. Jeff Smith joined the Board at this time.

Dru Barisich recused herself from the Board at this time.

Ward Simpson made a motion for Board approval of the following staff
recommendation:

Union Elementary (K-8): Conceptually approve 007N (K-8 for 800
students) to open in FY 20.

Tom Rushin seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 6-0.
Dru Barisich rejoined the Board at this time.

The Board amended the original motion to deny Riverside Elementary’s
request and re-voted. Ward Simpson made the motion and Tom Rushin
seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 7-0.

Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify New Construction
Project Review

Amber Peterson provided a brief explanation of the staff recommendation as
presented in the Board packet.

Ward Simpson made a motion for Board approval of the following staff
recommendations:

2 01.07.15 Board Minutes.docx



Board Minutes
01.07.15

UNOFFICIAL

1. Board approval of the revised December 10, 2014 motion as follows:

Benson Unified (K-4): Approve a K-4 school for 191 students. NOTE:
FUNDING WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE UNTIL SUFFICIENT FUNDS
ARE AVAILABLE IN THE NEW SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND.

2. Board approval to award Benson USD $825,000 for estimated land costs.
Note: Funding will not be available until sufficient funds are
available in the New School Facilities Fund.

3. Board approval to award Benson USD $250,000 for excess site
conditions. Note: Funding will not be available until sufficient funds
are available in the New School Facilities Fund.

Dru Barisich seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 7-0.

Building Renewal Grant Requests

Dean Gray reviewed the balance of the Building Renewal Grant fund. If today’s
recommendations are approved by the Board the remaining balance would be
$5,280,607. Staff continues working to close projects and make recognized
savings and unspent monies available for new projects.

a. Consideration and possible vote to ratify the Executive Director’'s awards of
Building Renewal Grant funds as authorized by the Building Renewal Grant
Policy IX.C. (up to $50,000 for project award)

Dean Gray provided a brief explanation of the requests as presented in the
Board packet. The Board discussed various aspects of the projects.

Dr. Jeff Smith made a motion for Board approval of the following staff
recommendations:

1. Board ratification that Colorado River Union be awarded $10,278 in
Building Renewal Grant funding to replace the water heater in the
gymnasium Building 1009 at River Valley High School (project number
080502002-1009-019BRG). This includes $500 in contingency that will
only be used with SFB staff approval.

2. Board ratification that Coolidge Unified be awarded $6,742 in Building
Renewal Grant funding to replace the two HVAC unit heating strips
serving the gymnasium Building 1004 at Mountain Vista Elementary
School (project number 110221009-1004-014BRG). This includes $500 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

3. Board ratification that Lake Havasu Unified be awarded $4,679 in
Building Renewal Grant funding to replace a fan coil unit in Building 1003
at Lake Havasu High School (project number 080201207-1003-011BRG).
This includes $1,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval.

4. Board ratification that Palo Verde Elementary be awarded $8,758 in

Building Renewal Grant funding to replace the two septic lift station
pumps at Palo Verde Elementary School (project number 070449101-

3 01.07.15 Board Minutes.docx



Board Minutes
01.07.15

UNOFFICIAL

9999-008BRG). This includes $500 in contingency that will only be used
with SFB staff approval.

5. Board ratification that Scottsdale Unified be awarded $4,198 in Building
Renewal Grant funding for the replacement of a 30-gallon commercial
water heater in Building 1018 at Supai Middle School (project number
070248161-1018-027BRG). This includes $500 in contingency that will
only be used with SFB staff approval.

6. Board ratification that Show Low Unified be awarded $6,723 in Building
Renewal Grant funding to repair the fire sprinkler system in Building 1006
at White Mountain Institute (project number 090210012-1006-003BRG).
This includes $500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval.

7. Board ratification that St. David Unified be awarded $1,000 in Building
Renewal Grant funding to repair a HVAC unit in Building 1011 at St.
David High School (project number 020221202-1011-010BRG). This
includes $166 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval.

8. Board ratification that Superior Unified be awarded $10,840 in Building
Renewal Grant funding to replace the intercom system in Building 1002 at
Superior High School (project number 110215205-9999-008BRG). This
includes $1,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval.

Ward Simpson seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 7-0.

Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal
Grant Requests (supplemental awards)

Dean Gray provided a brief explanation of the requests as presented in the
Board packet.

Fred Garnett, Superintendent of Yarnell Elementary, requested the Board’s
support for their Building Renewal Grant request.

Tom Rushin made a motion for Board approval of the following staff
recommendations:

1. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Scottsdale Unified be
awarded an additional $443,300 in Building Renewal Grant funding for
construction bid documents and the estimated construction cost to reseal
the exterior of all buildings at Copper Ridge Middle School (project
number 070248170-9999-022BRG). This includes $39,000 in contingency
that will only be used with SFB staff approval and brings the total project
cost to $451,300.

2. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Show Low Unified be
awarded an additional $249,947 in Building Renewal Grant funding to
replace the fire alarm system at Nicklaus Homestead Elementary School
(project number 090210120-9999-002BRG). This includes $1,200 for

4 01.07.15 Board Minutes.docx



Board Minutes
01.07.15

UNOFFICIAL

permits and $22,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval and brings the total project cost to $268,247.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Yarnell Elementary be
awarded an additional $97,820 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the
engineering design, construction administration and construction costs for
repairs to the domestic water pumps and alarm system at Yarnell
Elementary School (project number 130352101-9999-001BRG). This
includes $5,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval and brings the total project cost to $105,320.

Dru Barisich seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 7-0.

Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal

Grant Requests (construction awards)

Dean Gray provided a brief explanation of the requests as presented in the
Board packet. The Board discussed various aspects of the projects.

Traci Sawyer-Sinkbeil made a motion for Board approval of the following staff
recommendations:

1.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Bullhead City
Elementary be awarded $1,800 in Building Renewal Grant funding to
repair the water softener serving the kitchen Building 1006 at Desert
Valley Elementary School. This includes $380 in contingency that will only
be used with SFB staff approval.\

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Catalina Foothills
Unified be awarded $338,402 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the
design and replacement of two 450-ton cooling towers at Catalina
Foothills High School. This includes $25,612 in contingency that will only
be used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Gilbert Unified be
awarded $212,894 in Building Renewal Grant funding for replacement of
the roofs on Buildings 1004, 1005 and 1007 at Gilbert Junior High School.
This includes $5,000 for an asbestos survey, $5,000 for a structural
analysis and $18,500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Scottsdale Unified be
awarded $4,397 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the repair of the
cooling tower piping at Arcadia High School. This includes $500 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Scottsdale Unified be
awarded $9,998 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the repair of the
cooling tower at Hohokam Elementary School. This includes $2,000 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Scottsdale Unified be
awarded $3,975 in Building Renewal Grant funding to replace the

5 01.07.15 Board Minutes.docx



Board Minutes
01.07.15

UNOFFICIAL

domestic water line serving Building 1005 at Hohokam Elementary
School. This includes $1,000 in contingency that will only be used with
SFB staff approval.

Ward Simpson seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 7-0.

d. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal

Grant Requests (design awards)

Dean Gray provided a brief explanation of the requests as presented in the
Board packet. The Board discussed various aspects of the projects.

Ward Simpson made a motion for Board approval of the following staff
recommendations:

1.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Ash Creek Elementary
be awarded $40,590 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the
assessment of the septic system at Ash Creek Elementary School.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Cave Creek Unified be
awarded $24,200 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the structural
engineering and construction documents for the replacement of multiple
roofs at Cactus Shadows High School.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Creighton Elementary
be awarded $3,905 in Building Renewal Grant funding for professional
services to assess the current roofs at Creighton Elementary School.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Kirkland Elementary
be awarded $3,350 in Building Renew Grant funding for the engineering
design fee for the MDF room in Building 1001 at Kirkland Elementary
School.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Kirkland Elementary
be awarded $2,400 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the structural
roof analysis of Building 1001 at Kirkland Elementary School.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Mesa Unified be
awarded $2,300 in Building Renewal Grant funding for design services for
the replacement of the sewage ejector station at Red Mountain High
School.  The district will contribute $18,000 towards the cost of
construction.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Scottsdale Unified be
awarded $8,115 in Building Renewal Grant funding for construction bid
documents to replace the roofs on Buildings 1012 and 1021 at Tavan
Elementary School.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Show Low Unified be
awarded $4,158 in Building Renewal Grant funding for design services
and an asbestos survey for the roof repairs on Building 1001 at Show
Low Junior High School.

6 01.07.15 Board Minutes.docx



Board Minutes
01.07.15

VII.

10.

11.

UNOFFICIAL

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Show Low Unified be
awarded $4,158 in Building Renewal Grant funding for design services
and an asbestos survey for the roof replacement on Building 1004 at
Linden Elementary School.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Tolleson Union be
awarded $2,950 in Building Renewal Grant funding for an engineering
assessment and design for the repair of the sewer piping in Building 1004
at Tolleson Union High School. The district will contribute $5,000 to the
cost of construction.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Tolleson Union be
awarded $2,950 in Building Renewal Grant funding for an engineering
assessment, design and bid documents for the repair of the underground
sewer piping in Building 1027 at Tolleson Union High School. The district
will contribute $5,000 to the cost of construction.

Bryan Peltzer seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 7-0.

Traci Sawyer-Sinkbeil recused herself from the Board at this time.

Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Building Renewal

Grant Requests (denial)

Dean Gray provided a brief explanation of the requests as presented in the
Board packet. The Board discussed various aspects of the projects.

Ward Simpson made a motion for Board approval of the following staff
recommendations:

1.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Dysart Unified’s
request for Building Renewal Grant funding to restore the roofs at Dysart
Elementary School be denied because it appears the current roofs are
still under warranty till May 2017.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Dysart Unified’s
request for Building Renewal Grant funding to restore the roofs at
Mountain View Elementary School be denied because it appears the
current roofs are still under warranty till 2017.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Dysart Unified’s
request for Building Renewal Grant funding to repair the roofs at Surprise
Elementary School be denied because it appears the current roofs are
still under warranty.

Jennifer Stielow seconded. The motion passed with a voice vote of 6-0.

Traci Sawyer-Sinkbeil rejoined the Board at this time.

Future Agenda ltems

Dr. Jeff Smith requested calendar invites for future Board meetings. He also
suggested electronic Board packets which help save time and paper, and aid in
transparency.

7 01.07.15 Board Minutes.docx



Board Minutes
01.07.15 UNOFFICIAL

VIIl.  Public Comment
Nate Bowler, Business Manager for Buckeye Elementary, expressed his concern
for the growth the district is experiencing and the future need for one new school
by 2018 and four new schools in the next ten years.

Dean Gray offered to provide an explanation of conceptual approvals at the next
Board meeting.

IX.  Adjournment
There being no further business, Jennifer Stielow adjourned the meeting at

approximately 10:52 A.M.

Approved by the School Facilities Board on , 2015

Chair

8 01.07.15 Board Minutes.docx



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item [V.a.

Subject: IV. Director’s Report (action of the Board may be requested)
a. Paperless Board Packets

At the request of the Board, staff researched the cost of paperless Board Packets versus the
cost of sending out the hard copies each month.

Attached is information on web-based services and the cost of hardware.

Board Action Requested: [ X ] information []action / described below

Attachments: Yes[X] No[ ]



Cost Analysis for Paper Board Packets

January 2015

Copier Paper

Average # of pages in board packets/month

240

Total # of printed board packets/month

19

Total # of pages/month

4560

Total # of reams/month (500 pgs/ream)

912

Cost of paper/box (10 reams/box) -

Color Paper

Total # of color reams/month (500 pgs/ream)

Cost of color paper/ream

$9.47

Other Supplies

Cost of indexing tabs/packet

$53.91

Cost of clips

$0.67

Cost of envelopes

$4.43

Shipping

FedEx delivery charges/month

$84.92

$182.18




Dell Tablets

Buy Online or Call 1-888-694-1402

@ Shop Premier

Order Status E-Guotes

Arizona State Store - NASPO | WSCA Contract# B27160

Dell Tablets

Narrow Your Selestion Products

Product Category
I el Tablets

Tablets
DDeI! Venue 11 Pro Tablet
[} pelt venue 11i Pro Tablet
et Venue 8 Pro Tablet
[ et venue 7 Android Tablet
1 Dell Venue 8 Android Tablet

Collapse All | Clear Al

Dell Tablets

Page 1 of 3

Arizona State Store - NASPO { WSCA Contract# B27160

Keyword or Service Tag Search

Search

Work where and how it's most advantageous for you. Dell tablets give you the freedom to be flexible.

Showing 1-20 of 30 Results

Compars

D Compare Selected

Dell Venue 8 3000
Series Tablet

Intel® Atom™
processor 23480 (up to
2.1GHz Dual-Core)
Dell Venue B (3840)
Android 4.4

16GB eMMC

¥ Customize

Price $181.59 Price

i D Compare Selected

Dell Venue 8 Pro 7000 Series

$392.79

Intei® Atom™ Processor 23580 (up
to 2.3GHz Quad Core)

Venue 8 7840

Android 4.4 (Kit Kat)

16GB eMMC

B Custamize

D Compare Selected

Dell Venue 11 Pro 5000 Series
Tablet

Price

Intel® Atom™ processor Z3775D
{2MB Cache, up to 2.41GHz Quad-
Core)

Venue 11 Pro 5130

Windows 8.1 (32Bit) English

32GB Mobility Solid State Drive

» Customize

$419.56

Page View: Grid | List
Sortpyy Price lowto high WV

12
- [ compare setected

Dell Venue 11 Pro 5000
Series Tablet

$549.99

Price

Intel® Atom™ processor
Z3775 (2MB Cache, up to
2.4GHz Quad-Core)
Venue 11 Pro 5130
Windows 8.1 Pro (32Bit)
English French MUI
Venue 11 Pro 5130, Atom
23775, 64GB, 2GB, HD

} Customize

D Compare Selected

Dell Yenue 11 Pro
5000 Series Tablet

Price

Intel® Atom™
processor 23775 (2MB
Cache, up to 2.4GHz
Quad-Core)

Venue 11 Pro 5130

$553-71 § Price

. D Compare Selected

i Dell Venue 11 Pro 5000 Series
| Tablet

$602.28

Intel® Atom™ processor 23795
(2M8B Cache, up to 2.4GHz Quad-
Core)

Tablet Venue 11 Pro 64-Bit

D Compare Selected

Dell Venue 11 Pro 5000 Series
Tablet

$631.41

Price

Intei® Atom™ processor Z3795 (2MB  :

Cache, up to 2.4GHz Quad-Core)

Tablet Venue 11 Pro 64-Bit
Windows 8.1 Pro (64Bit) English
French MUI

httne/fnramiar Asll Aam/nantant frendssntalantamm e, .- Jerl1 s OL 1N _s 10 n

0 Compare Selected

Delt Venue 11 Pro 5000
Series Tablet

$728.58

Price

Intel® Atom™ processor
23795 (2MB Cache, up to
2.4GHz Quad-Core)
Tablet Venue 11 Pro B4-
Bit




Dell Tablets

f Windows 8.1 Pro (32Bit)
English French MU}
Venue 11 Pro 5130,
Atom Z3775, 64GB,
2GB, FHD

Windows 8.1 Pro (64Bit) English
French MUI

Venue11Pro
{5130),X64,64GB,2GB,WiFi

g

# Customize Customize

MOD,ASSY,BASE,4G,X64, WIF,5130

¥ Customiza

D Compare Selected DCompare Belected

Dell Venue 11 Pro : Dell Venue 11 Pro 5000 Series
7000 Series Tablet ¢ Tablet

Price $743.12  price $757.70

Intel® Core™ M-5Y10C Intel® Atom™ processor Z3795

:  processor (2MB Cache, up to 2.4GHz Quad-

Y Venue 11 Pro Core)

| Windows 8.1 (64Bit) Tablet Venue 11 Pro 64-Bit
English/French Windows 8.1 Pro (64Bit) English
128GB* eMMC Solid French MUI

State Storage MOD,ASSY BASE 4G X64,LTE 5130

b Customize

» Customize

] Compare Selected -] Compare Selected

Dell Venue 11 Pro Dell Venue 11 Pro 7000 Series
7000 Series Tablet - Tablet

Smart Selection,

Great value & ready

. for shipping

Price $854.86  price $874.28

Intel® Core™ M-5Y71
vPro™ processor
Venue 11 Pro
Windows 8.1 Pro, 64-bit
English/French

128GB’ eMMC Solid

Intel® Core™ i5 4300Y processor
(3MB Cache, 1.6 GHz Dual -Core)
Dell Venue™ 11 Pro (7130/7139)
BTX

Windows 8.1 Pro, 64-bit
EnglishfFrench

128GB’ Mobility Solid State Drive

State Storage

¥ Customize ¥ Custormnize

: E}Compa}e" o "Dr' . e
Deil Venue 11 Pro Dell Venue 11 Pro 7000 Series
7000 Series Tablet - Tablet {non-TAA)

Smart Selection,
Great value & ready
for shipping

Prica 3922.38 Price 3990.85

intel® Core™ M-5Y71
vPro™ processor
Venue 11 Pro

Intel® Core™ i5 4300Y processor
(3MB Cache, 1.6 GHz Dual -Core)

I Compare Selected

E Compare Selected

Dell Venue 11 Pro 7000 Series
Tablet

Price $801.42

Intel® Core™ M-5Y71 processor
Venue 11 Pro

Windows 8.1 (64Bit) English/French
128GB' eMMC Solid State Storage

Dell Venue 11 Pro 7000 Series
Tablet

Price $874.28

Intel® Core™ i5 4300Y processor
(3MB Cache, 1.6 GHz Dual -Core)
Dell Venue™ 11 Pro (7130/7139)
BTX

Windows 8.1 Pro, 64-bit
English/iFrench

128GB’ Mobility Solid State Drive

¥ Cusiomize

D Compare Selected

Dell Venue 11 Pro 7000 Series
Tablet

Price $1,136.56

Intel® Core™ i5 4300Y processor
(3MB Cache, 1.6 GHz Dual -Core)

httn//nremier dell pam/onntantfnradvintolnntanam: nmmerlbaldl adn S MM 10 . 0

D Compare Selected

] Compare Selected

El Compare Selecled

Page 2 of 3

Windows 8.1 Pro (64Bit)
English French MUI
Venue 11 Pro
5130,X64,64G,2G LTE

p Customize

Dell Venue 11 Pro 7000
Series Tablet

Price $845.12

Intel® Core™ i3 4020Y
processor (3MB Cache,
1.5 GHz Dual -Core)
Dell Venue™ 11 Pra
{7130/7138) BTX
Windows 8.1 Pro, 64-bit
English/French

128GB* Mobility Solid

State Drive

b Customize

Dell Venue 11 Pro 7000
Series Tablet

Price $893.71

Intei® Core™ i5 4210Y
processor (3MB Cache,
1.5 GHz Dual-Core)
Dell Venue™ 11 Pro
{7130/7138) BTX
Windows 8.1 Pro, 64-bit
English/French

128GB* Mobility Solid
State Drive

¥ Customize

Dell Venue 11 Pro 7000
Series Tablet

Price $1 ,252.84

Intel® Core™ i5 4300Y
processor (3MB Cache,
1.6 GHz Duat -Core)

n1 4 i 4t -



Dell Tablets

Windows 8.1 Pro, 64-bit
English/French
128GB* eMMC Solid

State Storage

Dell Venue™ 11 Pro (7130/7139)
BTX

Windows 8.1 Pro (64Bit) English
128GB" Mability Solid State Drive

$ Customize ;. b Customizs

Dell Venue™ 11 Pro (7130/7139)
BTX

Windows 8.1 Pro, 64-bit
English/French

256GB Mobility Solid State Drive

b Customiza

Page 3 of 3

Deil Venue™ 11 Pro
{7130/7138) BTX
‘Windows 8.1 Pro, 64-bit
English/French

256GH Mobility Solid
State Drive

Customize

Comparg

Showing 1-20 of 30 Results

215 Detl Terms of Sale Privacy

Picture Is for illustrative purposes enly. Price may increase or decrease depending on options selected.

Ads & Emails Dell Recy

Products Products

* Orders with Custom Factory Integration might require additional processing time.

httn/faramiar Aall Ansalnasdb st famen docmdm i o Lot

51

Contact Site Man

12

Page View: Grid | List

Surt by Price lowto high Vv

United States

feedhack



Buy the 12-inch Surface Pro 3, the tablet that can replace your laptop. - Microsoft Store

(http://www.microsoftstore.com/store/msusa/en_US/home)

Page 1 of 10

(@tp://\ﬁﬂ/w.microsoftstore.com/store/msusa/en__US/DispIayThreePgCheckoutShoppingCartPage)

Surface Pro 3 - 64GB / Intel i3

® 00000000000
1. 8.8.0 ¢ S0

$799.00

Choose device: 64GB / Intel i3 - 1.5GHz

64GB / Intel i3 - 1.5GHz

128GB / Intel i5 - 1.9GHz

256GB / Intel i5 - 1.9GHz

256GB / Intel i7 - 1.7GHz

512GB / Intel i7 - 1.7GHz

Add to cart

(http://www.microsoftstore.com/store/msusa/en_US/buy/product!D.304047100/T heme!D.33363200/Currency.USD/mktp.US/)

Need help deciding? Call us at 877-345-2661 (tel:877-345-2661)

Save up to $179
Complete your experience with the Surface Pro 3 Bundle.
Shop now > (http://www.microsoftstore.com/store/msusa/en_US/pdp/Surface-Holiday-Bundle/product!D.305475700)

Save 10% at the Education Store

l!J This product is eligible for a discount if you are a student, parent, or faculty member.
Shop now > (http://www.microsoftstore.com/store/msusa/en_US/edu?lcid=EDU_pdp_offer text_082214)

Education
Stare

httn://arrw microsoftetore com/aare/mancealen TTR/ndn/Qurfana_Den_2 firadinadIT 2001 00E

1/11AMNNn1 ¢



Buy the 12-inch Surface Pro 3, the tablet that can replace your laptop. - Microsoft Store Page 5 0of 10

Software
Windows 8.1 Pro

Exterior
Casing: Magnesium » Color: Silver « Physical buttons: Volume, Power, Home

Dimensions
11.50x7.93 x 0.36 in (292.10 x 201.42 x 9.14 mm)

Weight
1.76 1bs (0.79 kg)

Hard drive size®
Solid state drive (SSD) options: 64GB, 128GB, 256GB, or 512GB

Memory
64GB or 128GB version with 4GB RAM
256GB or 512GB version with 8GB RAM

Display
Screen: 12" ClearType Full HD Display + Resolution: 2160 x 1440 = Aspect Ratio: 3:2 » Touch: Multitouch input

Processor
64GB/Intel i3 version:
4th generation Intel Core i3-4020Y 1.50 GHz with Intel HD Graphics 4200

128GB and 256GB/Intel i5 version:
4th generation Intel Core i5-4300U 1.90 GHz (with Turbo Boost Technology up to 2.9GHz) with Intel HD Graphics 4400

256GB and 512GB/Intel i7 version:
4th generation Intel Core i7-4650U 1.70 GHz (with Turbo Boost Technology up to 3.3 GHZ) with Intel HD Graphics 5000

TPM (Trusted Platform Module) chip for enterprise security

Wireless
802.11ac/802.11a/b/g/n

Bluetooth
Bluetooth 4.0 Low Energy technology

Battery Life
Up to 9 hours of web browsingS

Cameras and Video

5MP and 1080p HD front- and rear-facing cameras » Built-in front- and rear-facing microphones « Stereo speakers with
Dolby Audio-enhanced sound

Audio
Stereo speakers with Dolby Audio-enhanced sound

Ports
Full-size USB 3.0 + microSD card reader « Headphone jack « Mini DisplayPort » Cover port « Charging port

Sensors
Ambient light sensor « Accelerometer « Gyroscope + Magnetometer

httn+/fware micrnenftetnre cam/ctare/mancalen TTQ/ndn/Qurfana_Dra 2 lnradna+IT 20010NL 1M14/An1¢c



Buy the 12-inch Surface Pro 3, the tablet that can replace your laptop. - Microsoft Store Page 6 of 10

Warranty
1-year limited hardware warranty6

Surface Pen
Dimensions: 135mm (length), 9.5mm (diameter) + Weight: 20 grams

Pre-installed Apps
Flipboard « Skype Wi-Fi » Skype » OneNote MX » Solitaire « Mahjong « Sudoku/Microsoft Number Puzzle « Fresh Paint

In the box
Surface Pro 3 « Surface Pen + 36-watt power supply « Quick Start Guide » Safety and warranty documents

FAQ

Can Surface Pro 3 run the same programs that run on my laptop or desktop?

A: Yes, Surface Pro 3 is a full laptop replacement. It can run any program that runs on Windows, including Office, iTunes, and
Photoshop.'

Can Surface Pro 3 connect to a larger monitor for business presentations?

A: Yes, you can connect to most monitors via the Surface Pro 3 mini DisplayPort and an optional AV adapter
(http://www.microsoftstore.com/store/msusa/en_US/pdp/Surface-Mini-DisplayPort-HD-AV-Adapter/product!D.291878400) or
VGA adapter (http://www.microsoftstore.com/store/msusa/en_US/pdp/Surface-Mini-DisplayPort-to-VGA-
Adapter/productiD.291878500).

Which documents can | mark up with Surface Pen?
A: You can mark up any document in Word, Excel, and OneNote, and at any thickness you want. Office programs' appear with

a "Pen" tab on the ribbon which gives you all the options you need. There are also many Pen apps to markup PDFs and other
documents, such as Drawboard PDF.

Can | use the Surface Pro 3 for gaming?

A: Yes. Surface Pro 3 runs many of the most popular PC games, including League of Legends, Civilization V, and The Elder
Scrolls Online. You can also connect an Xbox 360 wireless controller for Windows
{http://www.microsoftstore.com/store/msusa/en_US/pdp/Xbox-360-Wireless-Controller-for-Windows-
Black/productlD.253707500) to your Surface and hook up to your big screen TV to play your favorite PC games.

How can | get help setting up or troubleshooting?

A: Download the Surface Pro 3 user guide (http://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-us/support/userguides?category=user-
guides) and make sure you've installed the latest updates (http://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-us/support/performance-
and-maintenance/install-software-updates-for-surface).

Ratings and reviews

httn/fararwr micrnenftetare cam/ctare/manealan T1IR/mAN/Qurfana_Dra_2 fnradua+IT 20010NL 111401 &



Apple - iPad - Compare iPad models.

Page 1 of 7

Compare iPad models.

Need more details?
Jump to the full comparison chart »

iPad Air

iPad Air puts all the computer you may ever need into a simple
piece of glass. Both versions of iPad Air are incredibly capable,
with desktop-class 64-bit architecture, gorgeous 9.7-inch Retina
displays, and all-day battery life.’ And the new iPad Air 2 takes
those capabilities even further with Touch ID, the fast A8X chip,
new cameras, and the versatile Apple SIM — in a design so thin
and light you have to hold one to believe it.

iPad Air 2 iPad Air

httn//lararar annla ram finad/nAmamnsead

iPad mini 3

iPad mini

Here's proof that good things really do come in small packages.
No matter which iPad mini you choose, you'll be treated to a
display that's sharp and vibrant, performance that's fast and
powerful, and much more. And with hundreds of thousands of
apps available, you can do more than you ever thought possible.

iPad mini 2 iPad mini



Apple - iPad - Compare iPad models.

Learn more »

Buy Now

Learn more >

Buy Now

Capacity and Price?

Wi-Fi
16GB  $499
64GB  $599

128GB $699

Wi-Fi + Cellular:
16GB  $629
64GB  $729

128GB $829

Display

Retina display

9.7-inch (diagonal)
LED-backlit
Multi-Touch display
with [PS technology

2048-by~1536
resolution at 264
pixels per inch (ppi)

Fingerprint-resistant
oleophobic coating

Fully laminated
display

Antireflective coating

Dimensions?

Height:
9.4 inches (240 mm)

Width:

Wi-Fi:
16GB  $399

32GB %449

Wi-Fi + Cellular:
16GB  $529

32GB  $579

Retina display

9.7~-inch (diagonal)
LED-backlit
Multi-Touch display
with [PS technology

2048-by-1536
resolution at 264
pixels per inch (ppi)

Fingerprint-resistant
oleophobic coating

Height:
9.4 inches (240 mm)

Width:

httn /hanxnar annla namlinad/lanmamnsal

Learn more »

Buy Now

Wi-Fi:
16GB  $399
64GB  $499

128GB $599

Wi-Fi + Cellular:
16GB  $529
64GB $629

128GB $729

Retina display

7.9-inch (diagonal)
LED~backlit
Multi~Touch display
with IPS technology

2048-by-1536
resolution at 326
pixels per inch (ppi)

Fingerprint-resistant
oleophabic coating

Height:
7.87 inches (200 mm)

Width:

Learn more »

Buy Now

Wi~Fi:
16GB  $299

32GB  $349

Wi-Fi + Cellular:
16GB  $429

32GB $479

Retina display

7.9-inch (diagonal)
LED-backlit
Multi-Touch display
with IPS technology

2048-by-1536
resolution at 326
pixels per inch (ppi)

Fingerprint-resistant
oleophobic coating

Height:
7.87 inches (200 mm)

Width:

Page 2 of 7

Learn more »

Buy Now

Wi-Fi:

16GB  $249

Wi-Fi + Cellular:

16GB  $379

7.9-inch (diagonal)
LED~backlit
Multi~Touch display
with IPS technology

1024-by-768
resolution at 163
pixels per inch {ppi)

Fingerprint-resistant
oleophobic coating

Height:
7.87 inches (200 mm)

Width:



Apple - iPad - Compare iPad models.

Learn more »

Buy Now

6.6 inches
(169.5 mm)

Depth:
0.24 inch (6.1 mm)

Weight?
Wi-Fi:
0.96 pound (437 g)

Wi-Fi + Cellular:
0.98 pound (444 g)

Chip

A8X chip with 64-bit
architecture and M8
motion coprocessor

Touch ID

Fingerprint identity
sensor

Cameras

FaceTime
HD camera:

1.2MP photos

720p HD video

Learn more >

Buy Now

6.6 inches
(169.5 mm)

Depth:
0.29 inch (7.5 mm)

Wi-Fi:
1 pound (469 g)

Wi-Fi + Cellular:
1.05 pounds (478 g)

A7 chip with 64-bit
architecture and M7
motion coprocessor

FaceTime
HD camera:

1.2MP photos

720p HD video

httne/ansrar annla fnams fimnd/ansmasmana/

Learn more »

Buy Now

5.3 inches
(134.7 mm)

Depth:
0.29 inch (7.5 mm)

Wi-Fi:
0.73 pound (331 g)

Wi-Fi + Cellular:
0.75 pound (341 g)

A7 chip with 64-bit
architecture and M7
motion coprocessor

Fingerprint identity
sensor

FaceTime
HD camera:

1.2MP photos

720p HD video

Learn more »

Buy Now

5.3 inches
(134.7 mm)

Depth:
0.29 inch (7.5 mm)

Wi-Fi:
0.73 pound (331 g)

Wi-Fi + Cellular:
0.75 pound (341 g)

A7 chip with 64-bit
architecture and M7
motion coprocessor

FaceTime
HD camera:

1.2MP photos

720p HD video

Page 3 of 7

Learn more >

Buy Now

5.3 inches
(134.7 mm)

Depth:
0.28 inch {7.2 mm)

Wi-Fi:
0.68 pound (308 g)

Wi-Fi + Cellular:
0.69 pound (312 g)

A5 chip

FaceTime
HD camera:

1.2MP photos

720p HD video

P PR



Apple - iPad - Compare iPad models.

Learn more »

Buy Now

FaceTime video
calling over
Wi-Fi or cellular®

Face detection

Backside illumination

iSight camera:

8MP photos
Autofocus

Face detection
Backside illumination
Five—element lens
Hybrid IR filter

/2.4 aperture

HDR photos
Panorama

Burst mode

Learn more »

Buy Now

FaceTime video
calling over
Wi-Fi or cellular®

Face detection

Backside illumination

iSight camera:

5MP photos
Autofocus

Face detection
Backside illumination
Five-element lens
Hybrid IR filter

/2.4 aperture

HDR photos

Panorama

Video Recording (1080p HD)

Tap to focus
while recording

Video stabilization
Face detection
Backside illumination
3x video zoom
Time-lapse video

Slo-mo video

Carriers

Tap to focus
while recording

Video stabilization
Face detection
Backside illumination
3x video zoom

Time-lapse video

httn://mrww annle com/inad/caomnarea/

Learn more »

Buy Now

FaceTime video
calling over
Wi~Fi or cellular®

Face detection

Backside illumination

iSight camera:

5MP photos
Autofocus

Face detection
Backside illumination
Five-element lens
Hybrid IR filter

/2.4 aperture

HDR photos

Panorama

Tap to focus
while recording

Video stabilization
Face detection
Backside illumination
3x video zoom

Time-lapse video

Learn more »

Buy Now

FaceTime video
calling over
Wi-Fi or cellular®

Face detection

Backside illumination

iSight camera:

5MP photos
Autofocus

Face detection
Backside illumination
Five-element lens
Hybrid IR filter

/2.4 aperture

HDR photos

Panorama

Tap to focus
while recording

Video stabilization
Face detection
Backside illumination
3x video zoom

Time-lapse video

Page 4 of 7

Learn more »

Buy Now

FaceTime video
calling over
Wi-Fi or cellular®

Face detection

Backside illumination

iSight camera:

5MP photos
Autofocus

Face detection
Backside illumination
Five—element lens
Hybrid IR filter

f/2.4 aperture

HDR photos

Tap to focus
while recording

Video stabilization
Face detection

Backside illumination

Time-lapse video

111 Aimnna ~



Apple - iPad - Compare iPad models.

Learn more »

Buy Now

Learn more »

Buy Now

Cellular and Wireless

Wi-Fi:

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n/ac); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)

MIMO

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

Wi-Fi + Cellular:

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n/ac); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)

MIMO

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

GSM/EDGE

CDMA EV-DO Rev. A
and Rev. B

UMTS/HSPA/HSPA+/
DC-HSDPA

LTE?

Data only®

Wi-Fi:

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz2)

MIMO

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

Wi-Fi + Cellular:

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)

MIMO

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

GSM/EDGE

CDMA EV-DO Rev. A
and Rev. B

UMTS/HSPA/HSPA+/
DC-HSDPA

LTE®

Data only®

httn/armansr annla Arnma fAmnd/anmasnaa /

Learn more »

Buy Now

Wi-Fi:

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)

MIMO

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

Wi~Fi + Cellular:

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)

MIMO

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

GSM/EDGE

CDMA EV-DO Rev. A
and Rev. B

UMTS/HSPA/HSPA+/
DC-HSDPA

LTE

Data only*

Learn more »

Buy Now

Wi-Fi:

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)

MIMO

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

Wi-Fi + Cellular:

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)

MIMO

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

GSM/EDGE

CDMA EV-DO Rev, A
and Rev. B

UMTS/HSPA/HSPA+/
DC-HSDPA

LTE

Data only*

Page 5 of 7

Learn more »

Buy Now

Wi-Fi:

Wi~Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

Wi~Fi + Cellular
(AT&T or T-Mobile);

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

GSM/EDGE

UMTS/HSPA/HSPA+/
DC-HSDPA

LTe

Data only®

Wi-Fi + Cellular
(Verizon or Sprint):

Wi-Fi (802.11a/b/g/
n); dual channel
(2.4GHz and 5GHz)



Apple - iPad - Compare iPad models.

Learn more »

Buy Now

SIM Card

Nano-SIM

Connector

Lightning

Battery Life’

Learn more »

Buy Now

Nano-SIM

Lightning

Learn more »

Buy Now

Nano~SIM

Lightning

Learn more »

Buy Now

Nano-SIM

Lightning

Up to 10 hours of surfing the web on Wi-Fi, watching video, or listening to music

Up to 9 hours of surfing the web using cellular data network

Charging via power adapter or USB to computer system

Sensors

Touch ID

Three-axis gyro
Accelerometer
Ambient light sensor

Barometer

Three-axis gyro
Accelerometer

Ambient light sensor

Tttt M eemamsr mmnala anan flaan A o mcmacs

Touch ID
Three-axis gyro
Accelerometer

Ambient light sensor

Three-axis gyro
Accelerometer

Ambient light sensor

Page 6 of 7

Learn more »

Buy Now

Bluetooth 4.0
technology

CDMA EV-DO Rev. A
and Rev. B

GSM/EDGE

UMTS/HSPA/HSPA+/
DC-HSDPA

LTE*

Data only*

Nano-SIM

Lightning

Three-axis gyro
Accelerometer

Ambient light sensor



Apple - iPad - Compare iPad models.

Learn more » Learn more »

Buy Now Buy Now

iPad Air
Tech Specs

View >

iPad Air 2
Tech Specs
View »

1 vaww.apple comibatia

4.

5 3 carness, Speeds will var
&

httn/hamansr annla anna fismn A/ anaamans !

e Is configured 16 work

Page 7 of 7

Learn more » Learn more » Learn more »

Buy Now Buy Now Buy Now

iPad mini
Tech Specs
View >

iPad mini 2
Tech Specs

iPad mini 3
Tech Specs

View » View

S over 2 celiudar notwork

seneds on carries po

)

¥ b

o0 W

S5E

3t CONTACE Yo G pplecomdipads

ata Chargos may

four carrier for compatibility and cellidar data

PRV



Chrome Laptops | HP® Official Store Page 1 of 3

™
ﬁ . For Home For Work Support I Search HP.com
M4

Getitalonfpaon 550

Chrome Laptops

Chromebook 14

4 Products (View all

14" HD diagonal displays

Store up to 100GB with Google cloud storage

intel(R) Ceteron(TM) processor

With the HP Chromebook running lightning-fast Chrome 0S, the best of Google is at hand on a...

Starting at

- $299.%

View Details

Chromebook 11
1 Product (View now)

Chrome operating system

httn://store.hp.com/webhann/wes/stores/serviet/ne/en/miIn/T antanc/ehrama-RQRAED __1 Vvt 1/14/901&



Chrome Laptops | HP® Official Store Page 2 of 3

§amsung Exyhbg-lardcés;or ’
With the HP Chromebook running lightning-fast Chrome 0S, the best of Google is at hand on a...

Starting at

%279.%

View Details

Need Help?

My shopping links Order status Manage subscriptions My Account Returns & Exchanges Contact us now

Get the latest deals

Stay connected with the latest updates and newsletters.

Get the latest deals

Stay connected with the latest updates and newsletters.

Propositlon 65
WARNING: This product contains a chemical known to the State of California to cause cancer. (California law requires this warning be provided to California customers)

Prices, specifications, availability and terms of offers may change without notice. Quantity limits may apply to orders, including orders for discounted and promoticnal items. Despite our best efforts, a
small number of items may contain pricing, typography, or photography errors. Correct prices and promotions are validated at the time your order is placed. These terms apply only to praducts sold by
the HP Home & Home Office Store; reseller offers may vary. Items sold by the HP Home & Home Office Store are not for immediate resale. Orders that do not comply with HP Home & Home Office Store
terms, conditions, and limitations may be cancelled.

In-home warranty is available only on setect customizable HP desktop PCs. Need for in-home service is determined by HP support representative. Customer may be required to run system self-test
programs or correct reported faults by following advice given over phone. On-site services provided only if issue can't be corrected remotely. Service not available holidays and weekends.

HP will transfer your name and address information, IP address, products ordered and assaciated costs and other personal Information related to processing your application to Bill Me Later®. Bill Me
Later will use that data under its privacy policy.

United States

About HP Social Media HP Partners Customer Support

Contact us Consumer support forum Become a partner Power cord replacement
Newsroom Enterprise business community Find areseller Download drivers

Investor relations Developer community PartnerQne Register your product

Living Progress Corporate blogs Authorized service providers
Accessibility Training & certification
Events Product recycling

HP Labs

Jobs

http://store.hp.com/webapn/wes/stores/serviet/ns/en/mIn/T antanc/ehrame R __1 Firrmani 111401



7 inch tablets | HP® Official Store Page 1 of 3

I Search HP.com

?@ For Home For Work Support

. o
szt stippart

Getitallonfpcom 8 g;ﬁw L o

=

L

7 inch tablets

HP 7 G2
2 Products (View all)

All winner A33 ARM Cortex&trade; A7 Quad Core processor
7" diagonal IPS multitouch-enabled screen

Up to 5 hour 30 minute battery life
Dual cameras

Starting at

$99 99

View Details

~ Stream 7
: 1 Product (View now)

Windows 8 operating system

httn+//stare hn com/wehann/wince/etnrec/camrdathic/an/mlnftahlatc lonraancima T inalan 1/1ARA1E



7 inch tablets | HP® Official Store Page 2 of 3

Work from happy place #WFHP. Live life untethered on the cloud-connected...
7-inch HD display ’
Do more with Office 365 Personal

Starting at

¥99.%

View Details

Need Help?

My shopping links Order status Manage subscriptions My Account Returns & Exchanges Contact us now

Get the latest deals

Stay connected with the latest updates and newsletters.

Get the latest deals

Stay connected with the latest updates and newsletters.

Proposltion 65
WARNING: This product contains a chemical known to the State of California to cause cancer. (California taw requires this warning be provided to California customers)

Prices, specifications, availability and terms of offers may change without notice. Quantity Umits may apply to orders, including orders for discounted and promotional items. Despite our best efforts, a
small number of iterns may contain pricing, typegraphy, or photography errors. Correct prices and promotions are validated at the time your order is placed. These terms apply only to products sold by

the HP Home & Home Office Store; reseller offers may vary. Items sold by the HP Home & Home Office Store are not for immediate resale. Orders that do not comply with HP Home & Home Office Store
terms, conditions, and limitations may be cancelled.

In-home warranty is available only on select customizable HP desktop PCs. Need for in-home service is determined by HP support representative. Customer may be required to run system self-test
programs or correct reported faults by following advice given over phone. On-site services provided only if issue can't be corrected remotely. Service not available holidays and weekends.

HP will transfer your name and address information, IP address, products ordered and associated costs and other personal information related to processing your application to Bill Me Later®. Bill Me
Later will use that data under its privacy poticy.

United States

About HP Social Media HP Partners Customer Support
Contactus Consumer support forum Become a partner Power cord replacement
Newsroom Enterprise business community Find a reseller Download drivers

Investor relations Developer community PartnerOne Register your product
Living Progress Corporate blogs Authorized service providers
Accessibility Training & certification
Events Product recycling

HP Labs

Jobs

http://store.hp.com/webapp/wes/stores/servlet/us/en/min/tablets/screensize-7-inches 1114M015



8 inch tablets | HP® Official Store Page 1 of 3

VL
ﬁ For Home For Work Support l Search HP.com
bt 4

8 inch tablets

HP 8 G2 Tablet
1 Product {View now)

Androld operating system
Thinner, lighter and designed for the way you move, the next generation HP 8 was precisely...

1t&#39;s got everything you want at a totally sweet price
25 GB BOX Cloud Storage

Starting at

$149.%

View Details

Stream 8
2 Products (View all)

Windows 8 operating system

httn://store hn.com/wehann/wes/stares/servlet/ne/en/minftahlete/erreenciza_f _inrhac 1/1401&



8 inch tablets | HP® Official Store Page 2 of 3

Work from happy place #WFHP. Live life untethered on the cloud-connected...
8-inch HD display
Do more with Office 365 Personal

Starting at

#149.%

View Details

Need Help?

My shopping links Order status Manage subscriptions My Account Returns & Exchanges Contact us now

Get the latest deals

Stay connected with the latest updates and newsletters.

Get the latest deals

Stay connected with the latest updates and newsletters.

Proposition 65
WARNING: This product contains a chemical known to the State of California to cause cancer. (Catifornia law requires this warning be provided to California customers)

Prices, specifications, availability and terms of offers may change without notice. Quantity limits may apply to orders, including orders for discounted and promotional items. Desplte our best efforts, a
smalt number of items may contain pricing, typography, or photography errars. Correct prices and promotions are validated at the time your order is placed. These terms apply only to products sold by
the HP Home & Home Office Store; reseller offers may vary. tems sold by the HP Home & Home Office Store are not for immediate resale. Orders that do not comply with HP Home & Home Office Store
terms, conditions, and limitations may be cancetled.

In-home warranty is available only on select customizable HP desktop PCs. Need for in-home service is determined by HP support representative. Customer may be required to run system self-test
programs or correct reported faults by following advice given over phone. On-site services provided only if issue can't be corrected remotely. Service not available holidays and weekends.

HP wil transfer your name and address information, IP address, products ordered and associated costs and other personat information related to processing your application te Bilt Me Later®. Bill Me
Later will use that data under its privacy policy.

United States

About HP Social Media HP Partners Customer Support

Contact us Consumer support forum Become a partner Power cord replacement
Newsroom Enterprise business community Find a reseller Download drivers

Investor relations Developer community PartnerOne Register your product

Living Progress Corporate blogs Authorized service providers
Accessibility Training & certification
Events Product recycling

HP Labs

Jobs

httn://store . hn.com/wehann/wes/stares/servlet/ma/en/min/tahlate/anreanciza_Q_innrhao 111 4Mn1E



10 inch tablets | HP® Official Store Page 1 of 2

C@ For Home For Work Support Ijearch HP.com

HP recommends Windows.

10 inch tablets

"HP10
2 Products (View all)

All winner A31s ARM Cortex&trade; A7 Quad Core Processor.
A 10-inch diagonal Full HD, display delivers a stunning picture from virtually any angle.

Run errands, travel and go about your day longer without having to worry about...

Everything you want. For less. Uncompromising performance in vivid HD.

Starting at

5249, %

View Details

Need Help?

My shopping links Order status Manage subscriptions My Account Returns & Exchanges Contact us now

Get the latest deals

Stay connected with the latest updates and newsletters.

Get the latest deals

httD://Store.hnACnm/Wehﬂnﬂ/W(‘.Q/QfﬁrRQ/QPﬂllPf/‘nQ/P‘h/m]ﬂ/fak]nfa/onvnana:na 1N jmakna 1/1 AiINn1



Kerry Campbell

From: noreply@salesforce.com on behalf of Bill Terry [bterry@boarddocs.com]
Sent: Tuesday, January 13, 2015 4:29 PM

To: Kerry Campbell

Subject: BoardDocs LT & BoardDocs Pro Information

Dear Kerry,

I'm sorry that | missed you by phone this afternoon. Thank you for requesting information on eGovernance solutions from
BoardDocs®.

As the pioneer of eGovernance, BoardDocs has unparalleled experience helping organizations like Arizona School
Facilities Board improve communications, reduce costs and ease the process of producing board meeting packets. Since
our national launch of BoardDocs in 2002, over 1,000 organizations have selected our technology for eAgenda, ePolicy,
MetaSearch, eGovernance document management and now, meeting video.

Because our staff members partner with each subscriber to ensure success, BoardDocs has been able to move
organizations of all sizes to our state-of-the-art paperless solutions. We help with every aspect of the implementation
through unsurpassed project management, user-friendly on-site training and 7 x 24, US-based, toll-free technical support
for all users. BoardDocs has two eGovernance solutions based on your needs and budget, which are BoardDocs LT and
BoardDocs Pro.

With respect to costs, BoardDocs LT has a one-time start-up fee of $1,000 that includes all expenses associated with on-
site training. There is a $3,000 recurring annual cost for the system that is paid in advance of each service year. For more
information about BoardDocs LT, please visit this link:

http://www. boarddocs.com/Home.nsf/%28WebContent%29/55F C61 58940CA36B852570EDOO769F76

With respect to costs, BoardDocs Pro also has a one-time start-up fee of $1,000 that includes all expenses associated
with on-site training. There is a $12,000 recurring annual cost for the system that is paid in advance of each service year.
For more information about BoardDocs Pro, please visit this link:

hitp://www.boarddocs.com/Home. nsf/%28WebContent%29/873FA28E2D88888E852570EBOO1 A3EEQ

To arrange a Web demonstration of our services or with any additional questions you may have, please contact me at
404-865-1278 ex. 3529 or at bterry@boarddocs.com.

I'look forward to hearing back from you.

Bill Terry
eGovernance Specialist
www.boarddocs.com

(800) 407-0141 x3529



BoardDocs Saves Money, Time and Helps Your Board Operate More Effectively

BoardDocs IT

The ideal solution for many organizations who need a reliable
agenda service with all of the power of BoardDocs Pro, without all of
the features that larger organizations often require,

£ VL BN S e e e B e brasdaesstom. . ¢ ©

Loposi il Schos! Bistrize
Lnpper Hills Schont Bosit of Educntion

Copper Hills School District

Meetings, Agendas ana Infermatian

BoardDocs [T includes all of the following, and more:

+ BoardDocs eAgenda Solution

» BoardDocs MetaSearch

* User-customizable, Cloud-based Publishing Interface

* Attach Virtually Any Type of Document to Agenda ltems

* Audio and Video Playback Indexed by Specific Agenda Item

= Granular Ability to Withhold Sensitive Information from the Public

* Support for Web-based Policy Solutions

* 7x24,Secure, Power-redundant Hosting with Daily Backups

» Search Functionality for Consolidated Searches on Any Content

» Create and Save Draft Meetings

» (reate and Publish Administrative-level Content

* Upto 10 Years of History with DVD Archiving beyond 10 Years

* User and Security Administration via People Manager

* XML Access to Public Data provides Dynamic Data for Existing Web sites
» Customized Printing of Agendas, Agenda Items and Meeting Packets
* Social Sharing via Twitter, Facebook and email

* On-site Training and 7 x 24, Toll-free, US-based Technical Support

New “Plus”functionality enables organizations with multiple public governing bodies to leverage
BoardDocs to provide a separate, distinct and comprehensive suite of services to each group.
For pricing and information about Plus, call us today!

BoardDocs Pro

BoardDocs Pro includes the most comprehensive suite of
eGovernance tools available and will dramatically improve the way
you manage packets, access information and conduct meetings,

s e e P s R e BOATOCH C0

Bteme - B hive s

City of Copper Hills

ity Councit

BoardDocs Pro indludes all IT features, in addition to:

* BoardDocs ePolicy Development and Publication Solution

» BoardDocs Library including Events, Strategic Goals and
Customized Board Member Pages

* Integrated Board Goals Management and Tracking

* Separate, Customizable Packets for Board Members,
the Administration and Public

* Private Document Annotations for Board Members

* Advanced Document Workflow with Support for Unlimited
Number of Document Submitters

* Customizable Approval Process for Agenda ltems

* Meeting Control Panel (MCP) to Display and Record all Board Actions
During the Meeting

» Online or Manual Voting with Support forVirtually Any Type of Vote

* Automated Minutes Generation and Release

* Automated Public Score Board with Voting Results and Speaker Timer

+ Customizable email Notifications

» "Follow Me"so Board Members Will Never Get Lost

visit www.boarddocs.com o




“The ability to search agenda items and add attachments and

supporting documentation on the fly, beats copying paper any

day. Do your county a favor and get on board with BoardDocs.”
JerryW.Derr

Commission Assistant/Human Resource Director, Meade County, 5D

“In the first year, our organization saved an estimated
$25,000in paper costs; the savings last year are believed to
be more than $30,000!"

Sandra Smith
Clerk of the Board of Trustees, Sweetwater Union High School District, CA

“The software is very easy to use and makes board packet time
so much easier and less stressful.”
Christy Knapp

Senior Executive Assistant, Community Hospital, CO

“Boarddocs has completely changed the way we do business
and has saved us thousands thus far!”

Teresa Johnson
Senior Office Administrator/Board Secretary, Mid-Continent Library, MO

“BoardDocs gives colleges and our own organization the chance
to develop comprehensive agendas and meetings in an easy,
transparent way. It's been a fantastic tool!”

Kimi de los Reyes
Director of District Services, Community College League of California

Abaut BoardDacs -

services give govem/ng bodres rum-key electronic
Solutions for processing virtually any type

of the~arr solunons also save money, reduce s aff
improve - board eﬁ‘e(f/veness Increase tmnsparency in
qovernance and have g posmve effecton

For more information or to arrange a demonstration,
call (800) 407-0141 or visit us at www.boarddocs.com

£ Fe

Board Docs

Your Paperless Governance Solution

This communication is printed on recycled paper, which contains post-consumer recycled material

R EmeraldDataSoluﬁuns’"‘f,'lncAlIrights,re‘sewed.B:oarqﬁocsi‘sa,‘rje,gistje‘r'ed,iradgmyarkandmaynu;be(opied

1e. Make a Difference.

,imitated or used, in whole o m part, with




Paperless Meetings - Agenda Software Cost for Meeting Management Page 1 of 2

NovusAGENDA Cost Demo Support Partners About Us Clients NovusHR Biogs

Agenda Software Cost for Meeting Management

Cost

Pilot Program

Check out our Pilot Program
How Do 1 Buy?

Low Cost, Great Software!

NovusAGENDA software cost includes an unlimited use license for as many users and meeting types as you need.

. . Al paperless meeting software costs are billed annually on one invoice for the year.
University Feedback hap 9 ¥ . ¥

NovusAGENDA saves us Meeting automation software costs are listed below. If your entity is not listed here please contact us for more
about $4,000 each meeting in information.

printing and distribution costs

alone! | will nevergobackto | Municipal Government - Counties, Cities and Towns

paper.

Meeting automation software pricing for Municipal Government is based on population.
Major Florida University

Organizations over 20,000 in population $663/Month
Organizations under 20,000 in population $413/Month

K-12 Education

Meeting automation software pricing for K-12 Education is based on number of Schools in the system,

Organizations 11 schools or over $663/Month
Organizations 10 schools or under $413/Month
Higher Education

Meeling automation software pricing for Higher Education is a flat rate for all organizations

All Higher Ed $413/Month

Special Districts, Commissions, Agencies - all others

Meeting automation software pricing for other organizations is a fiat rate for all organizations

All other organizations $413/Month

How much do we spend today?

We often ask our potential clients if they know how much it cosls today to manage their paper-based processes, and
without exception the answer is "I have no idea.” If you do not understand the costs of operating today, It will be hard
to understand the value of changing to a new method. Qur Cost Savings Analysis will give you a complete analysis
of how much you will save.

What do | need to do?

Click on the link below and answer the simple questions, making sure fo include your basic contact information. We
will send you a Cost Savings Analysis tallored to your organization. The answers to our questions help us tailor the
cost savings to your currenl process.

Armed with that information, you can quickly make an intelligent decision about whether or not NovusAGENDA will
add value to your organization. This will take you less than 3 minutes to complete, and the result will be your ability
to see the whole piclure and decide if you need to spend more time finding automated solutions. It is that simpie.

F
& NovusAGENDA

http://www.novusolutions.com/cost-.asnx \ e -



NovusAGENDA

PROVEN

Meeting Management Solution

Novms

10012 N. Dale Mabry Hwy
Suite 115
Tampa, FL 33618
Byron Gillin
bgillin@novusolutions.com
800-274-5624 Ext 703

Prepared For Arizona School Facilities Board

Date 1-14-15



&
NovusAGENDA

PROVEN
EXECULIVE SUMMATY ....cuiiiiiirieceiiirts ettt ettt e te et sas e s ese b e s s eaess et stese et ensasensssesenensesesensatsssasasesseensnesnens 3
PLOVEN SOIULION ...ttt ettt e e se bt e as st b ene b e b essassse s esessateseseeneseesasneesnanaes 3
INSEAIIALION. ....c.ciiiiiciitt ettt ettt et et ser stttk et senstese e e seae e e et eeaens 4
DEPIOYMENE SEIVICES ..viviviiiicieieieieirieteteeeee sttt te st se ettt ese et e se s srebessssss s st ssssassenesessesnsoeseneseseneaeaens 4
90 day Pilot PrOGIAIM ......ccvviiiiiiiiiiiceeiree ettt ettt bt s e s s s e sttt s e s assesnenesnanaes 5
PLICING o vttt sttt bbb et a e b te s e n b s e s ensaea et esese b e e s tet et s eneseneaeeee e e e neens 6
NOVUSAGENDA SOftWAre PLICING ....cvecviivieriririeirinieieeeie ettt ettt e re et s s s et st se e bt an e e enenens 6
NOVUSAGENDA Training PriCING .....cccceouvieririieiiriiiniieseieteieeet ettt esssseseesese st st sast st et seesseee e seneens 7
Optional Training Services.........coceeeverernnns L0 00O 7
Pricing Summary for NOVUSAGENDA ........cccoorirrriiesteete ettt sttt es e e s e ene 8
Video Streaming Services COnSIAEIations ..........oceceeeeieiriereiisieiicieeierere st erese et sessss e e seeseneseseaes 9
PROPOSAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS......cccottiiretsiereninisnnressessnesesssesessesssesseseseesesesssssssssesensssssesssesssnsnas 9
Limitation Of LIADIIILY ...cvcueuceeeieiecrtcetcretnsss sttt ettt es et sas s s oo se e a e e nene 9
OWNEISHIP 0T DALA ...ttt ettt bbb n st b s ae s ss s asssse s eesas 9
PIICE TBIMNS ...uveiiiiiici ettt ettt ettt ettt s s s ea st b et as b aeaesessasss e tstebsaesestsssonssssesenonnnns 9
PAYMENT TOIMIS ..viviiiiiiii ettt ettt sttt beb e s e s e e s es e st ebenssebenensnsssbens 9
INSUTANCE ..ttt ettt ettt et et e s et et e s e stesa st et s b sessnnebeseatesenseterensaeasereseneass 10
OThET TEIMNS c.u ittt sttt b ettt st b et eneseseeseretesessasas st ssesesesstas s staseeenesenen 10
HOW dO T OIEI? ...ttt sttt et b e sre s st sbesssessas s sasnonessassenetonan 10
APDPIOVAL PAZE......oviiiiiic ettt ettt e et et b et e b et s s se bt e bt sae st es st be et attenenen 11
Page 7 of 11



fos

NovusAGENDA

PROVEN

NovusAGENDA is a proven electronic solution designed to create, approve and track items for upcoming and past board

meetings. Whether your organization is adding an agenda item, like the approval for a new employee benefit offering or
the construction of a baseball field, NovusAGENDA will provide the controlled, well-organized systematic solution to
truly make your organization paperless. With the NovusAGENDA foundation in place internally, your board members
and public can now access the information they need on demand at any time from any device!

PROVEN SOLUTION

Proven Experience - NovusAGENDA has been serving hundreds of public sector clients for over 14 years with the same
stable ownership. Our team can offer you great insight in rolling out meeting automation. Expertise is the key to success
and no one has more experience than NovusAGENDA.

Proven Results - our free 90 day pilot program allows you to try NovusAGENDA before you buy it. Even though we are
confident NovusAGENDA will meet your needs, isn’t it nice to know we are happy to let your try it first, just to be sure?

Proven Technology - NovusAGENDA is built on Microsoft technology that is stable, reliable and widely used today by
all sectors. Our platform remains 100% web based as it always has been. Our Cloud hosting rests on the Amazon Web
Service backbone which is the most reliable platform available in the industry today.

Proven Features - NovusAGENDA has all the key functionality you need to automate your meeting process. We add
features based on client feedback not based on whether it looks good on a slick marketing campaign. All the features in
NovusAGENDA are proven to add value for our clients without adding unnecessary costs or complexity.

Proven Support - Our highly acclaimed support team is well trained and experienced in handling legislative management
issues and to respond quickly and politely. You will never be looked down upon by some grumpy geek when you talk to
our support team. They will listen and respond ...period.

Proven Future — Technology changes quickly. Another great flexible feature is that any device is supported. As nice as
the state of the art devices are such as the iPad, Galaxy Tab or Microsoft Surface there is no guarantee these devices will
still be state of the art five years from now. Taking advantage of NovusAGENDA’s browser-based, cloud-based platform
will enable you to take advantage of the “latest and greatest” right now without risking obsolescence in a few short years.

NovusAGENDA is Proven.

Tools for the board member include:

Logging in through a secure username and password on any device (i.e., iPads, PC, MAC etc)!
Viewing agendas and all materials well before the meeting

Viewing specific items along with support material including Closed Session items

Making secure personal private comments on any item for their own purposes

Researching past Agenda, Minutes and Personal Private Comments.

Real time analytics on spending patterns and goal tracking

Unique Dashboard designed to speed meeting preparation

NovusAGENDA has all the tools to automate the creation of your minutes, track and record voting, motions, and much
more, such as video streaming indexed for you and your public. NovusAGENDA'’s unique reporting module empowers



NovusAGENDA
PROVEN
your administrators with the data from your meetings to make data-driven decisions for the organization and track your

progress along the way.

Novusolutions award winning staff brings over 15 years of experience working with hundreds of government
NovusAGENDA clients across the country. Our support team will be an extension to your organization to offload all
software management, training, and support, so you can focus on providing the public and board the transparency they
demand. NovusAGENDA is the one comprehensive solution to make paperless meetings easy!

Our Cloud Computing partner is Amazon Cloud based Web Services, http:/aws.amazon.com/. They offer world class

cloud computing solutions with full 24 X 7 backup and reliable infrastructure designed for today’s complex computing
challenges.

Amazon Hosting
NovusAGENDA Application runs on EC2 servers.
http://aws.amazon.com/ec2/

Backups are run daily and stored on Amazon S3
http://aws.amazon.cony/s3/

This option allows you to outsource the hosting of the software to Novusolutions. This is by far the most popular option
in today’s environment.

Self Hosting is available if needed. Contact us for more information.

Standard services are required for deployment and included in the pricing and support.

Included Standard Deployment Services

Configured Item Details This screen is configured to add fields to our standard from required
by your organization. This form is used to create items and can vary
based on meeting type. YOU can have one item details page for
planning and another for council meetings.

Configured Public Agendas The public agenda is configured to mimic your current layouts.
Agenda layout can vary based on meeting type.

Configured Minutes Page Set The page set includes draft and final minutes layout. Minutes layout




S

@&
NovusAGENDA

PROVEN

can vary based on meeting type.

Custom Workflows Workflows can be pre-configured allowing users to simply submit
items to named workflows which are then built for them
automatically. Workflows can vary based on meeting type.

Solution Overview This session is with key staff including Board Clerk, IT staff
assigned to support the software and key Board Clerk staff. The
session involves a complete system overview and workflow
building session. This session is delivered prior to any other
training so key staff are very familiar with the solution and the
workflows are correct prior to staff training.

PDF converter Attachments and agenda packets are converted to one single PDF
file. PDF layout mimics the lay out of the minutes and agenda for
that meeting type. We can also add page tamping to the PDF
automatically.

Video Services Do you already video record your meetings? If so, NovusAGENDA
will offer you two meetings per month to be uploaded and streamed
to the public off our servers at no additional cost. You take your
existing video and simply upload it to our servers. Once it is
converted, you can link clients to that video stream off your
meeting. If you are looking for indexing or are starting from
scratch and would like to record your meetings, please see our
Video Service Considerations Section.

Novusolutions has agreed to offer you a 90 day pilot program of NovusAGENDA to confirm the cost and efficiency
savings. Novusolutions is confident that NovusAGENDA will exceed expectations, eliminate paper, and improve the
business process of agenda creation and meeting management. There will be no cost for the 90 day duration of this pilot.

Upon successful implementation of the pilot, you will then agree to continue using NovusAGENDA for the Pricing
outlined below. However unlikely, if NovusAGENDA does not satisfy your needs, then no commitment is required and
the service will be turned off.

The Approval Page of this document will need to be signed prior to beginning this agreement. This will allow
Novusolutions to dedicate the resources to begin the project.



Ho(v’l;;ﬁw(éENDA

e You provide us copies of Agenda, minutes and departments with staff listings within 5 days of project start. In
addition we can discuss your item review process as well in that first 5 days.

* We will fully deploy, train and test NovusAGENDA within 20 days of receiving your information.
e The Pilot will last a total of 90 days from project start to allow full testing of the software.

e Pilot program covers one meeting body but you can add others once you agree to move forward.

All pricing includes an unlimited use license enabling support for as many meeting types as you need at no added license
costs. There are no user licenses either. “Unlimited use” means unlimited use with NovusAGENDA.

NOVUSAGENDA SOFTWARE PRICING

Item Pricing (Annually)
NovusAGENDA $4,950
Minutes Module Included
Board Portal Included
Reporting Included
Board and Committee management Included
(Term Tracking)
Video Integration Included
Video Services See Video Services
Considerations
Total Annual Cost $4,950
Option In Meeting Tools (Voting, Additional $600 annually
etc.)

Pagebsof 11



e ——
e

NovusAGENDA

PROVEN

NOVUSAGENDA TRAINING PRICING

Standard training services are required for deployment.

Standard Remote Training Services Description

Administrator Training This is remote training to train one or two system
administrators on managing user rights in
NovusAGENDA. This class is delivered remotely using
web meeting technology managed by Novusolutions.

Board Clerk Training Training including meeting management, agenda
preparation, minutes and system oversight. Delivered
remotely using web meeting.

User Training Training includes creating items, copying old items to
new meeting and item submission and approval process.
Delivered remotely using web meeting.

Board Training Training includes viewing agendas, minutes, and all
documentation for upcoming meetings, making private
notes, researching past meeting information and notes,
and analyzing reports and meeting data. Voting can be
added if the voting module is in place.

Web Based Training Web-based training videos for all staff to view on
demand via Internet. Videos include:

User training

Board Clerk Training
Board Training
Admin Training

Total One Time Cost Waived for Pilot

OPTIONAL TRAINING SERVICES

Additional remote training — Included for new releases and refresher training. If retraining is needed due to turnover or
other issues we also include a Web-Based Training Portal and regularly scheduled Client Webinars.

Fage 7ol 11



NovusAGENDA
PROVEN
Optional Onsite training - $2,450 per day includes travel, 2-day minimum.

PRICING SUMMARY FOR NOVUSAGENDA

One Time Fee Annual Fee TOTAL

NovusAGENDA Waived for Pilot $4,950 $4,950

Add On Options:

In Meeting Tools $600
(Electronic Voting, Request

to Speak, In Meeting Public

Display, Item highlight for

board)

Laserfiche Integration $600
maintenance.

Onsite Installation (Only $3,450
needed if Active Directory
Integration is required)

Onsite Training (Not $2,450 per day including travel. 2 day
required as unlimited remote Minimum.
training options included)

TOTAL INVESTMENT $4,950
YEAR 1
NovusAGENDA Including:

e Remote Training
TOTAL INVESTMENT $4,950
YEAR 2

NovusAGENDA



NovusAGENDA
PROVEN
TOTAL INVESTMENT . ' $4,950
YEAR 3

NovusAGENDA

There are NO long term contracts to sign with NovusAGENDA.

Payment Terms — Payment is due at the end of the successful pilot term. You will be invoiced at the end of the 90 day
successful pilot.

VIDEO STREAMING SERVICES CONSIDERATIONS

The pricing above includes the option for clients to upload the existing video of their meetings to our servers and create a
link to those videos on their agendas and minutes in NovusAGENDA (limit of 2 meetings a month). However, many
clients require additional video services. NovusAGENDA provides state of the art video streaming technology and
services completely hands-free! Contact us for pricing on hardware and the video streaming services that best fit your
needs. These video services can be added at any time!

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER UNDER THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, LOSS OF DATA, LOSS OF BUSINESS PROFITS, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION
OR LOSS OF BUSINESS INFORMATION ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THE NOVUSAGENDA SOFTWARE, EVEN
IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE MAXIMUM LIABILITY UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT IS THE TOTAL VALUE OF THE ANNUAL CONTRACT.

OWNERSHIP OF DATA

The client owns all data stored in their NovusAGENDA data base from the instant you touch the keyboard. In the event
the client terminates service or NovusAGENDA ceases business operations the data will be sent to your organization
along with database schema to make the data accessible. All data is stored in an MSSQL database and also can be
accessible on demand anytime by using the included NovusAGENDA Reporting Module.

PRICE TERMS

The pricing in this proposal is set for three years. Even though there is no contract or commitment to sign with
NovusAGENDA, we want our clients to have budget security on this project. If a price increase is needed for any reason,
the client will be notified more than a budget year in advance of the increase and would be no more than the CPI
(Consumer Price Index) for the period.

Services are billed annually. All invoices are due within 30 days of issue date.

PAYMENT TERMS




NmNDA

PROVEN

NovusAGENDA is proud of our client retention rates. Therefore we do not require clients to sign long term contracts.
All projects are billed annually to eliminate the high cost of invoicing, processing, and collections from both the vendor
and the clients end every month. If the client cancels at any time, any unused funds would be returned. A 30 day notice
is required.

If monthly billing is attractive to the client, there will be no charge if a credit or procurement card is used. Automatic
electronic drafis or deposits are also fine. If traditional invoices and collections need to be instituted, a 5% fee will be
added to cover this expense.

INSURANCE

Novusolutions carries full insurance and can offer certificate of insurance with your organization named on it at no cost. If
your organization requires further insurance endorsements added costs may be charged to cover the cost of those
documents because carriers charge added fees for those services.

The COI we provide will cover General, Automotive, Umbrella and Technology Errors & Omissions & Privacy Security
Liability plus Workers Compensation coverage.

OTHER TERMS

NovusAGENDA is offered with a free pilot program so additional performance bonds or other such instruments are not
needed to insure successful delivery. No payments are required until clients complete the pilot cycle.

NovusAGENDA carries commercial general liability insurance of $1,000,000 that should be more than enough to cover
risk for this SaaS solution. The cost for any additional insurance or bonds required by a client will be passed onto the
client.

In lieu of escrow accounts NovusAGENDA will agree to provide a full unlimited use licensed copy of the software to any
client in the event NovusAGENDA ceases operations.

All data is backed up in our Amazon cloud daily and kept in redundant locations. If clients require copies of data backups
these can be provided quarterly at an additional fee. Contact NovusAGENDA sales team for costs.

We require your signature on the approval page listed below. Once that has been signed and sent back to Novusolutions
we will assign your project manager. If you choose to issue a purchase order you may attach it to these documents or send
it in under separate cover.

You can email to sales@novusoclutions.com or :

Mail to: Novusolutions, 10012 N Dale Mabry Hwy, Suite 115, Tampa, Florida 33618-4425

Fax to: 954-337-0761 Attn: Sales

Page 10 6f 11



NevusPQgENBA

Arizona School Facilities Board hereby agrees to proceed with the project, initiating with the Pilot project described
above and, following a successful Pilot cloud implementation, will move forward with NovusAGENDA. Ifthe pilot is
not successful, there is no cost or obligation.

In order to proceed with the Pilot implementation, this Authorization must be signed, which will initiate assignment of
personnel to begin the Pilot project. After the successful pilot, please choose which option you will prefer to deploy (not
binding as you can change your mind).

OPTIONAL COMPONENTS: Please check any options to be included.

[ NovusAGENDA in Meeting Tools (Voting, request to speak, etc.)
[0 NovusAGENDA Video (Hardware may need to be purchased based on Package chosen)

The Pilot duration will be 90 days and will include the deployment, training, consultation and test meetings. At the
end of 90 days you will be invoiced for the cost listed above and then decide if you want to proceed.

Signature Date

Printed Signature

Purchase Order Number (optional)

Invoice Address:

Accounts payable contact:

Phone

E-mail

Page 11 of 11



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item IV.b.

Subject: IV. Director’s Report (action of the Board may be requested)
b. Policy Review - lll. SFB Capital Plans

The proposed changes below are due to legislative changes to statute and the requirement
to review SFB policies every four years. They will be posted on the SFB website for public
comment and will be brought back to the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

Proposed changes
1. Removal of two and three year funding window language
2. Update various website/exhibit references and links
3. Removal of all references to specific school districts
4. Addition of statutory reference regarding Accommodation Districts (Section L)

Board Action Requested: [ X ] information []1action / described below

Attachments: Yes [X] No[ ]



~ Il.SFBCapitalPlans

Per A.R.S.841-1091.B: This substantive policy statement is advisory only. A substantive policy
statement does not include internal procedural documents that only affect the internal procedures
of the agency and does not impose additional requirements or penalties on regulated parties or
include confidential information or rules made in accordance with the Arizona Administrative
Procedure Act. If you believe that this substantive policy statement does impose additional
requirements or penalties on regulated parties, you may petition the agency under A.R.S.841-
1033 for a review of the statement.

Per A.R.S. 815-2041, a district is eligible for new construction if ADM projections indicate
that the district will fall below minimum square footage gwdellnes within—twein the current
. The SFB-may-size
of the award is based on the amount of square footage needed within one to five years for an
elementary school, and within four to eight years for a middle or high school.

New Construction Process (Modified September 6, 2007 and August 14, 2008)

District submits SFB staff reviews Staff recommendation Optional: District may
Capital Plan district’s capacity and is provided to district request meeting with staff
September 1 ADM projections for review to discuss

recommendation

[ Boarddenial __| OR [ Boardapproval |

@ District and SFB liaison
have kick-off meeting,

| Conceptual approval | OR | Denial | where district receives

Terms and Conditions for

@ @ signature

SFB must review again District may apply again
in next Capital Plan in next Capital Plan

cycle

District returns Terms

and Conditions with
signature within 60 days

1l

| Yes | OR | No |
5% of project’s budget | Project expires |

becomes available to
district for A&E




A. Process and Procedures for Reviewing New Construction

Requests Received Through Capital Plans (Adopted February 2000, Modified
August 14, 2008)

A.R.S. 815-2041 provides for district governing boards to develop and annually update a capital

plan.

If the capital plan indicates a need for a new school or an addition to an existing school

within the next four years, the district is to submit the plan to the School Facilities Board (See
| SFB website, www-azsfb-gevhttps://sfb.az.gov, District #fermatienAccess, Annual Reporting ).

District Submittal: Districts submit Capital Plans on September 1 with
ADM/enrollment information, a description of the projects requested, a description of
projects planned with local funds, and information regarding parcels of land owned by
the district. This packet is the basis for staff consideration and recommendations to the

Board for new school and/or additional space fundlng—M%Mﬂ—ﬂqe—e%Fen{—fundmg

Staff Review: Staff reviews and-verifies-the district’s student population projections e¢
and develops a separate set of ADM projections. Staff verifies residential development

via sie—visis—aerialphetes,—andfer—discussions with development specialists_and

analysis of demographic data- to Staff-prepares a New Construction Analysis for each
district submitting an appheationrequest.

Board Approval: Staff recommendations are presented to the Board for
approvalconsideration. At the time the Board is making its decision, the New
Construction Analysis is available to the Board members and the applicant district.
The applicant district may address the Board.

District Notification: Upon approval by the Board, staff notifies the applicant district of
the action. A kick-off meeting is scheduled with the district’s liaison at which the
Terms and Conditions are provided to the district. The district has 60 days from the
date of netification—receipt to officially accept, in writing, funding for the square
footage approved by the Board or the approval expires. Acceptance of the funding is

signaled by agreement with the Terms and Conditions—{see-Exhibit—\-—-A—forFerms
friond e

B. Calculation of Student Capacity (Modified September 6, 2007, August 14,
2008, and November 4, 2009, November 2, 2011)

Abbreviations:

ADM = Average Daily Membership

SF = Square Footage

MAGSFPP = Minimum Adequacy Guidelines Square Footage per Pupil
DSFPP = Design Square Footage per Pupil

SFB = School Facilities Board



ADE = Arizona Department of Education

To calculate student capacity, the building’s square footage is divided by the minimum square
footage per pupil established in A.R.S. §15-2011, or the square footage divisor established in the
Working Definition of Student Capacity (outlined in B.1. below, Pre-SFB schools). As the table
below shows, these factors vary based on district size and configuration. The factor used to
calculate capacity of a building remains unchanged into the future unless the building’s use or
configuration changes. Capacity of a building does not change based on changes in ADM.

Configuration SF Divisor | MAGSFPP | DSFPP®

P-6 85 80 90
7-8 <= 800 100 84 100
7-8 > 800 100 80 100
9-12 <= 400 129.5 125 134
9-12 (401-1000) 127 120 134
9-12 (1001-1800) 123 112 134
9-12 > 1800 109.5 94 125
K-8 w/ 7-8<=800 88.5 80.9 92.4
K-8 w/ 7-8>800 88.5 80 92.4
6-8 w/ 7-8>800 95 80 96.67
6-8 w/ 7-8 <= 800 95 82.7 96.67

2 For K-8 schools awarded in FY 2009, the DSFPP was 92.2 (the calculation treated a
kindergarten student as one whole student for ADM purposes vs. one-half). In FY 2010,
the law reverted the methodology back to recognizing kindergarten students as one-half,
thereby changing the calculation again.

1. Pre-SFB schools

Capacity of a pre-SFB school is determined by dividing the square footage by the square footage
divisor established in the SFB Working Definition of Student Capacity (outlined below). The
district’s FY 98 ADM as provided by ADE is used to determine which divisor is appropriate.

Working Definition of Student Capacity (Adopted February 1999)

Elementary Grades P-6
FORMULA: (TGSF - ES - .1ICB) / ((MAGSFPP + DSFPP) / 2)

Middle Grades 7-8
FORMULA: (TGSF - ES - .1ICB) / 100

High School Grades 9-12
FORMULA: (TGSF - ES - .1ICB) / ((MAGSFPP + DSFPP) / 2)

e TGSF - total gross square footage

e ES - excludable spaces

e ICB - interior corridor buildings

e MAGSFPP - minimum adequate gross square footage per pupil
e DSFPP - design square footage per pupil



Staff may prorate the mathematical formula to account for differing grade configurations.
Districts have the option to reject the mathematical calculation and request to be placed on the
agenda for consideration of student capacity based on atypical space adjustment or atypical
school analysis. Generally, atypical spaces are unusual spaces for the size and type of school that
have a permanent impact on the ability of the physical school to serve the mathematically
derived student capacity. Examples of atypical spaces are excessive interior circulation or an
elementary school gymnasium. If the school district rejects the mathematical calculation of
student capacity, staff will work with the district to prepare a recommendation for the Board
using the atypical space adjustment methodology or atypical school analysis. The Board may
consider remodeling of these spaces. The Board may accept, reject, or modify the staff
recommendation.

2. Square Footage Funded with Class B Bonds or Unrestricted Capital Outlay Funds
(Adopted October 1999. Modified February 3, 2000 by adding unrestricted capital outlay
monies. Modified August 14, 2008)

a. When a district adds square footage with the use of Class B bonds or unrestricted
capital outlay monies, the square footage is not included in the capacity calculation,
unless it exceeds 25% of the minimum square footage requirements per A.R.S.
815-2011.E.6., but the Board does consider additions to existing schools for purposes
of determining adequacy of the functional components of the school as specified in
the Minimum School Facility Guidelines. If total square footage added to a district
with the use of Class B bonds or unrestricted capital outlay monies exceeds 25% of
the minimum square footage requirements per A.R.S. §15-2011.E.6., the student
capacity of the square footage is based on the statutorily prescribed minimum
guidelines square footage per pupil.

b. Replacement square footage constructed with Class B bonds or unrestricted capital
outlay monies is included in the capacity calculation. If Class B bonds or unrestricted
capital outlay monies are used to replace part of an existing school, the student
capacity of the facility is determined in the same manner as it would have been
determined prior to the replacement. If Class B bonds or unrestricted capital outlay
monies are used to construct a complete replacement school, the student capacity of
the facility is based on the statutorily prescribed minimum guidelines square footage

per pupil.

Staff note (3/17/00) regarding Unrestricted Capital Outlay: Unrestricted Capital Outlay became
a part of the capital outlay section of a district’s budget beginning with FY 2000. Therefore,
square footage constructed with Unrestricted Capital Outlay will apply only to those projects
begun on or after July 1, 1999.

3. Square Footage Funded with Class A Bonds (Adopted September 1999)
When-a-district-replaces-eradds-sSquare footage built using Class A bonds;-the-Schoel-FacHities
Beoard-dees is included in the new square footage in the capacity calculation for the district.
Capacity of the square footage is calculated based on the SFB Working Definition of Student
Capacity (outlined in B.1. above)



4. SEB-funded Replacement Schools:

SFB-funded replacement schools that were built under the Deficiency Corrections Program or
the rush program are treated the same as pre-SFB schools. The square footage is divided by the
appropriate square footage divisor.

5. SFB-funded Growth Schools:

Capacity of a SFB-funded growth school is determined by dividing the square footage by the
MAGSFPP as prescribed in A.R.S. §15-2011. MAGSFPP is based on the capacity of the district
at the time the school opens.

For example:

| Fhe- Balsz-An Elementary District had four K-8 schools prior to Students FIRST, and received
an SFB award for a core K-8 school in FY 02. At the time of the award, the district already had
capacity for more than 800 7-8" graders (347,768 SF * 2 / 8.5/ 100 = 818). Even though the
district’s 7-8 population still had not crossed the 800-student threshold at the time the core
school opened, the district had capacity for more than 800 7-8" graders. So the capaC|ty of the
core school is based on the MAGSFPP that applies to districts with more than 800 7-8" graders
(80) versus that which is used for a district with less than 800 7-8" graders (80.9).

Schools that Span Multiple Grade Configurations
To determine capacity of a school that spans grade levels, an even distribution among grade
| levels is assumed (unless otherwise noted)._Kindergarten counts as one-half.

For example:,

tetal—ef—LZ%g%es—Square footage of a K- 12 faC|I|ty ina dlstrlct that is qenerallv conflqured K-

6, 7-8 and 9-12 is pro-rated as follows:

K-6 =6.5/12.5
7-89 = 23/12.5
910-12 = 43/12.5

The resulting square footages are then divided by the appropriate divisors for the different grade
levels.



C. Capacity of a Core Facility

Even though the district is funded to build 65% of the entire school, staff only uses 50% of the
square footage against the district in the capacity analysis. Another way to explain this method
is to multiply one-half of the number of students by the design square footage for that grade
level.

Note: In August 2003, the board voted to discontinue approval of core schools.

D. Build-out of Core Schools (Adopted April 2003)

A district must be approved to build out a core school prior to the Board approval of a new
school for the same grade configuration.

E. Excludable Spaces (Adopted December 1998, Modified August 14, 2008)

For purposes of determining student capacity, the square footage at a school site used solely for
district administrative purposes may be excluded from the gross square footage.

F. Reduction of Square Footage (Adopted November 4, 2009, November 2, 2011)
Statute provides two ways to remove square footage from the database:
1. School Building that has outlived its useful life (A.R.S. §15-2041.G)

The district requests staff to review the space to see if it is no longer functional because it has
outlived its useful life. If staff agrees with the district that the space is no longer functional, that
recommendation will be presented to the Board for apprevatconsideration. If the Board approves
the staff recommendation, the space is removed from the database. The district’s capital plan is
then analyzed without the removed space. Additional square footage is only approved if the
district falls below minimum square footage guidelines within the current funding-windowyear.
This is not considered replacement space.

If staff does not agree with the district that the space is no longer functional, staff shall inform
the district of its determination. Staff shall inform the district that the final decision rests with
the Board. Therefore, the district may request that staff present the district’s request and its
recommendation to deny such request to the Board for its decision.

2. District reduction of square footage (A.R.S. 815-341.G)



The statute requires the district governing board to obtain Board approval prior to taking any
action that would reduce pupil square footage. A reduction of pupil square footage includes
demolishing or selling a school building or school site, or changing a building’s grade
configuration. Pupil square footage is defined as space that generates student capacity for a
district. Excluded space does not generate capacity, and therefore Board approval is not required
for the reduction of excluded space.

To request a reduction of square footage, the district submits a letter to is-Seheol-FacHities
Board-Liaison—TFhe-letter-must-the SFB identifying the building(s) using the four-digit building
number(s) as assigned in the Districtwide Building Preview-Report_(Building Inventory), and
explains why the district wishes to remove or reconfigure the space. This letter must be
accompanied by a district governing board resolution requesting the change.

An analysis and recommendation will be presented to the Board. Some criteria that staff and the
Board may consider when making its decision include:

Long-term cost benefit to the State

Shifting demographics within the district

Age of the building(s)

Effect of the reduction of square footage on the district’s ability to meet the minimum
guidelines within the analysis timeframe

e Any other circumstances specific to the district

Staff will notify the district of the Board’s decision in writing.

G. Definition of Administrative Purposes (Adopted August 1999, Modified
August 14, 2008)

This section applies to the publicity pamphlet for Class B Bond, Impact Aid Revenue Bond, and
Capital Override elections. A.R.S. 815-481 and 815-491 require the publicity pamphlet to be
mailed to each qualified elector in the district no later than thirty-five days before the election,
and to contain:

e  An executive summary of the district's most recent capital plan submitted to the School
Facilities Board. {SeeExhibit-H-A-forthe Capital Plan-Executive-Summary format):

e A complete list of each proposed capital improvement that will be funded with the
budget increase or bonds and a description of the proposed cost of each improvement,
including a separate aggregation of capital improvements for administrative purposes as
defined by the School Facilities Board.

For the purposes of A.R.S. 8§15-481.B.12.(b), 8§15-491.H.6.(b), and 8§15-491.1.4.(d)
"administrative purposes” means solely district administrative purposes.



H. Districts included in Rural Area (Adopted March 1999, Modified August 14,
2008, November 2, 2011)

The Students FIRST legislation provides a square footage per pupil and a base cost per square
foot for new construction. The base cost per square foot was originally established in A.R.S.
815-2041.D.3.c at the following levels:

Grade Level Cost per Square Foot
Pre-school w/ disabilities;
K-6 $90
7-8 $95
0-12 $110

These costs are to be adjusted for inflation by the JLBC at least once per year.

The statute then states, "The school facilities board shall multiply the cost per square foot by
1.05 for any school district located in a rural area. The school facilities board may only modify
the base cost per square foot prescribed in this subdivision for particular schools based on
geographic conditions or site conditions. For the purposes of this subdivision, "rural area” means
an area outside a thirty-five mile radius of a boundary of a municipality with a population of

more than fifty thousand persons.”-aceerding-to-the-mostrecent-United-States-decennial-census™

Staff worked with the State Land Department to determine which districts would be categorized
as rural. Based on the 2010 census (the most recent United States decennial census), sixteen
Arizona cities had populations in excess of this threshold: Avondale, Buckeye, Chandler,
Flagstaff, Gilbert, Glendale, Goodyear, Lake Havasu, Mesa, Peoria, Phoenix, Scottsdale,
Surprise, Tempe, Tucson and Yuma. City boundaries were determined as of 2011 and radii were
plotted from these boundaries. If a district's boundary was outside the radius, it was deemed to be
located in a rural area. Districts near Arizona’s borders may be affected by municipalities in
bordering states. A table of Rural vs. Urban districts is provided in-ExhibitH-—B-on the SFB
website.

I. Geographic Exception (Adopted December 2000, Expanded January 2006)

In those public districts where students are transported one hour or more via the most reasonable
and direct route or where students reside 45 miles or more from the closest school via the most
reasonable and direct route, and where 100 or more students are affected by these conditions
within the same region, the School Facilities Board will provide additional school space to the
district to accommodate the educational needs of the affected students. However, the educational
space provided may be modified as the Board sees fit in making a conscientious effort to meet
the Minimum School Facility Guidelines without requiring extraordinary expenditures of public
funds.



If an elementary district that is not in a high school district unifies after June 30, 2005, the
resulting unified district may qualify for high school space under A.R.S. §15-2041, if it meets the
following criteria:

e  The elementary district unifies after June 30, 2005, and

e  The resulting unified district is projected to have more than 350 resident high school
students being served in districts other than the student’s resident district within the
three-years following the current fiscal year, and

e  One of the following is true:

At least 350 of the high school students would travel for at least 20 miles to the
receiving school facility,

Or

The district that is expected to receive the majority of the projected resident high
school students is projected to need additional high school space within seven years.
For purposes of this analysis, the projected ADM of the receiving district should
include the high school students of both the receiving and sending districts.

J. New Construction Award Cancellations (Adopted February 2005, Modified
August 14, 2008, Modified March 7, 2012)

This policy allows districts the opportunity to cancel a project if a district becomes aware that an
approved new construction project will not be constructed for some time. The recommended
cancellation process is as follows:

e The district may request the cancellation of that project in their annual capital plan.
Staff will review the request and make a recommendation to the Board.

e If the cancellation of the project will leave the district below the minimum square

footage guidelines within—the—statutory—2-—or—3-year—windowin the current year, the

project will not be eligible for cancellation.

e The district can request the reestablishment of the project in any capital plan subsequent
to the cancellation. Districts may not seek to cancel and reestablish the same project in
the same capital plan.

e If the project is reestablished, it will be awarded at the current cost per square foot.




K. Conceptual Approval of New Construction Projects (Modified August
14, 2008)

Staff’s new construction analysis covers an eight-year window. If the analysis indicates that the
district will need additional square footage within the eight-year window, but beyond the current
funding-windewfiscal year, staff recommends conceptual approval for additional square footage.
There is no commitment of funding for a conceptually approved project. Conceptual approval is
simply an acknowledgement by the Board of anticipated new construction needs based on
current assumptions regarding future enrollment in each district, and gives districts a basis for
beginning the land acquisition process.

Each year the prior year’s conceptual approvals become the basis for updating new construction
requests from the district as part of the new capital plan cycle. The forms are made available to
districts in late summer, with instructions to update new construction requests based on the latest
enrollment  information, and  other  pertinent data (See SFB  website,
www-azsth-gevhttps://sfb.az.gov, District #aformatienAccess, Annual RepertsReporting).

L. Accommodation Districts (Adopted November 9, 2005, Modified August 14,
2008)

Effective September 12, 2013 (2013 Ariz. Sess. Laws, 1% Spec. Sess., Ch. 3, § 42 (House
Engrossed HB 2003), Accommodation Districts are not eligible for monies from the New School
Facilities fund.

M. Dissolution or Consolidation of a District with a SFB Project
(Adopted September 4, 2008)

If a district that either dissolves or consolidates with another district has a SFB project that has
not started construction, that project terminates on the date of dissolution or consolidation. Staff
will provide a report to the Board of any expenditures made on the project prior to termination.
If the succeeding district that governs the geographical space previously governed by the
dissolved or consolidated district is awarded a project of the same grade configuration within 24
months of project cancellation, any expenditures on the cancelled project shat-may be deducted
from the dollars awarded for the new project.



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item IV.c.

Subject: IV. Director’s Report (action of the Board may be requested)
c. Legislative/Budget Update

The first regular session of the 52nd Legislature opened on January 12, 2015. Staff is
tracking a number of bills and will provide information to the Board throughout the session.

Board Action Requested: [ X ] information []action / described below

Attachments: Yes [X] No[]



School Facilities Board
2015 Arizona Legislative Regular Session

Bill Tracking List
This update / printing: 1/28/2015

15t TIER PRIORITIES 4 Bills

1065 School Facilities: Guidelines; Projects

Provisions:

The School Facilities Board is required to review and update the minimum school facility adequacy guidelines at least one
every three years and must consider any recommendations submitted by a group of at least ten school districts that may be
organized to advise the Board on these guidelines. Project submitted by school districts that do not meet the requirements of a
primary building renewal project must be placed on a Board meeting agenda with a recommendation to deny the project and
the reasons for the recommendation. The Board is required to include denial information in its annual report to the Governor
and the Legislature and to post the information on its website.

Legislative Staff Fact Sheet Excerpt(s):
Purpose

Modifies the timeline and review of School Facilities Board (SFB) rules regarding minimum school facility
adequacy guidelines. Establishes new requirements for prioritizing and denying Building Renewal Grant Fund (Fund) project
requests....

There is no anticipated fiscal impact to the state General Fund associated with this legislation.

Provisions

1. Requires the SFB to review and update minimum school facility adequacy guidelines at least once every three years.

2. Requires the SFB to consider any recommendations on minimum school facility adequacy guidelines that are submitted
by a group of at least 10 school districts that may be organized to advise the SFB.

3. Eliminates the requirement that a school district provide matching funds in order for a building renewal grant project
request to be prioritized. :

4. Requires the SFB to place project requests submitted by school districts that do not meet the requirements of a primary
building renewal grant on a meeting agenda with a recommendation to deny the project and reasons for the
recommendation.

5. Requires the SFB to annually post, no later than October 13, a list of proposed project requests that were denied because
the projects did not meet the requirements of a primary building renewal project.

6. Requires the SFB to include a summary of primary building renewal project request denials in its annual report.
7. Makes technical and conforming changes.

8. Becomes effective on the general effective date.
Prepared by Senate Research / January 20, 2015 / MS/Is

Introducing Sponsor: Senator Dial
Staff Comments:; See attachment A.) Briefing Paper on SB1065.

Progress: 1/15 assigned to Senate Education Committee
1722 Senate Education Committee recommended Do Pass

Page 1 0of 9



School Facilities Board
2015 Arizona Legislative Regular Session

Bill Tracking List
This update / printing: 1/28/2015

1074 Unused School Facilities: Sale: Lease

Provisions:

If a school district decides to sell or lease a vacant and unused building or portion of a building, the district cannot prohibit a
charter school from negotiating to buy or lease the property in the same manner as other potential buyers or lessees. School
districts are required to attempt to obtain the highest possible value under current market conditions for the sale or lease of the
building or portion of the building.

Legislative Staff Fact Sheet Excerpt(s):
Purpose
Prohibits school districts from restricting a charter school from negotiating to buy or lease vacant and unused
buildings or portions of buildings in the same manner as other potential buyers.
Provisions
1. Prohibits a school district, if that district decides to sell or lease a vacant and unused building or portion of a building,
from restricting a charter school from negotiating to buy or lease the unused property in the same manner as other
potential buyers or lessees. '
2. Requires school districts to attempt to obtain the highest possible value under current market conditions for the sale or
lease of the vacant and unused building or portion of a building.
3. Becomes effective on the general effective date.
Prepared by Senate Research / January 26, 2015 / MS/BP/Is

Introducing Sponsor: Senator Ward

Staff Comments: SFB will be following the legislative progress of this Bill because it could have
implications on a school district’s ability to absorb projected student growth. SFB Staff is developing
an analysis of the magnitude of the numbers of unused facilities and their geographic distribution.

Progress: 1720 assigned to Senate Education Committee

Page 2 of 9



School Facilities Board
2015 Arizona Legislative Regular Session

Bill Tracking List
This update / printing: 1/28/2015

1077 Child Care Facilities: SFB Guidelines

Provisions:

Child care facilities that provide services utilizing the practice of a documented educational philosophy including least
restrictive environment are no longer permitted to incorporate the minimum school facility adequacy guidelines when selecting
a facility.

Legislative Staff Fact Sheet Excerpt(s):

Purpose
Removes language from statute added last year to build a bridge between two bills.

Provisions

1. Eliminates the ability of certain child care facilities to incorporate SFB guidelines when selecting facilities.
2. Makes technical and conforming changes.

3. Becomes effective on the general effective date.

Prepared by Senate Research / January 23,2015 / AW/ls

2181

Introducing Sponsor: Senator Yee

Staff Comments: SFB approached Senator Yee to run this Bill, after discussing its need with
Sormer Senator John McComish, the sponsor of the McComish Amendment to Senator Yee’s SB1102
during last year’s Session. See the attached Background Paper for details, prepared in advance of the
Senate Staff’s Fact Sheet.

Progress: 1/20 assigned to Senate Health & Human Services Committee
1/28 on Committee Hearing Agenda

Schools: Omnibus Statutory Repeals

Provisions:
Repeals numerous statutes relating to schools, including repealing statutes requiring school district governing boards to adopt
policies to promote parental involvement in schools, policies governing requirements for student participation in extracurricular

activities, policies to provide notice to students and employees before pesticides are applied on school property, and to develop
a vehicle fleet plan.

Legislative Staff Fact Sheet Excerpt (s):
Fact Sheet not yet published as of 1/28/2015

Introducing sponsor: Rep. Boyer

Staff Comments: SFB primary concern is with provision to repeal §15-342.01 School Districts: roof
inspection protocol. This provision was passed into Law in the aftermath of two catastrophic roof collapses at
schools caused by over-loading by replacement air conditioning units that did not have clearance from a
registered structural engineer that the additional loading could be supported by the existing roof structure. The
school districts involved, and the State of Arizona, were lucky that these collapses did not occur while the spaces
under those roofs were occupied by students and teachers.

This is a grave safety issue. Repealing this provision does admittedly add some cost to the equipment
replacement project, but it is money well spent, if it prevents future catastrophic structural collapse. Staff also is
concerned with the potential health liability risk to the districts and the State of not providing existing notification
of pesticide applications at or near schools. The existing Statutes affected are: $15-132. Pest management at
schools; notice; §32-2307. Pesticide applications at schools and child care facilities: notifications; exemptions;
and Environmental Protection Agency standards for health and safety related to pesticide applications.
Progress: 122 assigned to House Education

Page 30f 9



School Facilities Board
2015 Arizona Legislative Regular Session

Bill Tracking List
This update / printing: 1/28/2015

2nd TIER PRIORITIES 5 Bills

2077 Study Committee: School District Funding

Introducing sponsor: Rep. Petersen

The SFB will monitor the progress of this Bill for any indication that it might have implications for
Jacility expansion and / or maintenance.

Progress: 121 HELD in House Education

2199 Schools; Class Size Reduction Grants

Introducing sponsor: Rep. Sherwood
The SFB will monitor the development of this Bill for any indication that additional classroom space

might be required in some instances.
Progress: no action

2297 State Agency Rulemaking: Restrictions
Introducing sponsor: Rep. Farnsworth
On the SFB Watch List because of possible effect on our 5 Year Rule Review requirements
Progress: 1727 assigned to Government & Higher Education | House 1* Read

2390 Schools: Expenses: Classroom Funding
Introducing sponsor: Rep. Lawrence
“Nonclassroom expenses” are not defined at the ARS citation quoted §41-1279.03. A clear definition is
necessary in statute. If it is contained in the Rules, Policies, or Procedures promulgated by the Office of
the Auditor General, the statutory definition ought to be in conformity and readily retrieved.
$41-1279.03. Powers and duties
A. The auditor general shall:

9. Beginning on July 1, 2001, establish a school-wide audit team in the office of the auditor general to
conduct performance audits and monitor school districts to determine the percentage of every dollar
spent in the classroom by a school district. The performance audits shall determine whether school
districts that receive monies from the Arizona structured English immersion fund established by
section 15-756.04 and the statewide compensatory instruction fund established by section 15-756.11
are in compliance with title 15, chapter 7, article 3.1. The auditor general shall determine, through
random selection, the school districts to be audited each year, subject to review by the joint legislative
audit committee. A school district that is subject to an audit pursuant to this paragraph shall notify the
auditor general in writing as to whether the school district agrees or disagrees with the findings and
recommendations of the audit and whether the school district will implement the findings and
recommendations, implement modifications to the findings and recommendations or refuse to
implement the findings and recommendations. The school district shall submit to the auditor general a
written status report on the implementation of the audit findings and recommendations every six
months for two years after an audit conducted pursuant to this paragraph. The auditor general shall
review the school district's progress toward implementing the findings and recommendations of the
audit every six months after receipt of the district's status report for two years. The auditor general
may review a school district's progress beyond this two-year period for recommendations that have not
yet been implemented by the school district. The auditor general shall provide a status report of these
reviews to the joint legislative audit committee. The school district shall participate in any hearing

Page 4 of 9



School Facilities Board
2015 Arizona Legislative Regular Session

Bill Tracking List
This update / printing: 1/28/2015
scheduled during this review period by the joint legislative audit committee or by any other legislative
committee designated by the joint legislative andit committee.
Progress: no action

2483 School Tax Credit: Classroom Expenses

Introducing sponsor: Rep. Livingston
Same note as above

Progress: no action

3rd TIER PRIORITIES 2 Bills

2353 School Districts: Unification

Introducing sponsor: Rep. Lawrence
The SFB will monitor the progress of this Bill and analyze possible implications for facilities

management
Progress: 1/26  assigned to Education
1/27  House 2" Read

2424 Schools: Regional Service Centers

Introducing sponsor: Rep. Coleman
The SFB will monitor the progress of this Bill and analyze possible application for facilities

management and maintenance benefits to smaller school districts, especially in rural counties.
Progress: no action

Page 50of 9



School Facilities Board

2015 Arizona Legislative Regular Session

Bill Tracking List
This update / printing: 1/28/2015

Watch List of Possible Sirike Everything Vehicles

1043
2017
2018
2055

Tech Correction: State Lands
Tech Correction: State Land
Tech Correction: State Facilities
Tech Correction: School Bonds

2191 Tech Correction: Private Schools

2192
2193
2194
2195
2196
2226
2447

Tech Correction: Student Status Guidelines
Tech Correction: Common School Districts

Tech Correction: School District Boards

Tech Correction: County School Superintendent
Tech Correction: Environmental Education

Tech Correction: Budget Estimates

Tech Correction: Bond Election

Digest of Bills on SFB Watch List

1st Tier Priorities

2nd Tier Priorities

3rd Tier Priorities

Possible Striker Vehicles

Other Bills relating to “schools”

TOTAL COUNT OF BILLS

Count of Bills Introduced
as of Jan. 28, 2015

4 Bills
5 Bills
2 Bills
12 Bills
26 Bills

49

828

12 Bills

Page 6 of 9



School Facilities Board
2015 Arizona Legislative Regular Session

Bill Tracking List
This update / printing: 1/28/2015

ATTACHMENTS

A) Briefing Points -- SB1065 -- Introducing Sponsors: Senators Dial & Ward
B) Background Paper -- SB1077 -- Introducing Sponsor: Senator Yee

ATTACHMENT A.)
Briefing Points -- SB1065 -- prime sponsors: Senators Dial & Ward
Reference Title: school facilities: guidelines : projects

Amending ARS §15-2011.1 and ARS §15-2032. relating to The School Facilities Board

This Bill:

¢ makes minor technical corrections to conform to Legislative Council style;
O SFB has no objection to these technical corrections.

e implies that the Minimum School Facilities Adequacy Guidelines could be subject to change as
often as every three years;
O  The SFB is currently required to file a 5 Year Rule Review with the Governor’s Regulatory Review
Council (GRRC) that includes specific requirements for posting of proposed rulemaking, including
repeals, allowing for public comment and recommendations. This existing process does not preclude
individual school districts, or any number of districts in collective league, to comment on existing SFB
Statutes, Rule, Substantive Policy Statements, or procedures at any time.

©  Moreover, the SFB has always made itself available for direct one-on-one meetings with individual
districts or groups of districts about concerns or suggestions. The SFB has always honored invitations to
speak at gatherings of the various Arizona school district associations with formats allowing for
questions and answers and substantive discussion.

e does not appear to take Governor Ducey’s Executive Order 2015-01 into account. It related to
A Moratorium on Administrative Rulemaking by state agencies;

» does not appear to be aware of the provision in the Arizona Administrative Code at R7-6-285.
Guideline Exception. {See following excerpt from AFB Rules.} |

R7-6-285. Guidelines Exception
The Board may grant an exception from any of the guidelines requirements, upon agreement between the Board and
the school district. The Board shall grant an exception if it determines that the intent of the guideline is capable of
being met by the school district in an alternate manner. If the Board grants the exception, the school district shall be
deemed to meet the guideline and is not eligible for state funding to meet the guideline.
Historical Note
New Section made by exempt rulemaking at 8 A.A.R. 287, effective June 7, 2001 (Supp. 01-4).

Page 7 of 9



School Facilities Board
2015 Arizona Legislative Regular Session

Bill Tracking List
This update / printing; 1/28/2015

Page 2: ATTACHMENT A.)

e strikes language giving priority to building renewal grant fund awards “to school districts that
can provide a match of monies provided by the fund.”;

O SFBwould support, this provision because this language presumed state support for facility preventative
maintenance and capital replacement through the Building Renewal Formula Fund that was repealed by
the Legislature in 2013 in Special Session.

e sets out administrative requirements for documenting a.) recommendations for denial of
requests for building renewal grant awards for primary projects and b.) reasons for the

recommendation of denial;
o SFB currently reports these facts monthly in the Minutes of each Board Meeting and posts them to its

website www, (JZSZZg. g0V .

e requires the SFB to post on its website by September 15 of each year the list of proposed
building renewal grant projects that were submitted during the prior fiscal year but denied;

O SFB does currently list all the Building Renewal Grant Applications awarded and those denied on its
website www.azsfb.gov at the District Access tab. {????

e requires the SFB to include a summary of these denials in its Annual Report per ARS§15-
2002.A.9.;

O SFB does currently provides a summary report on the Building Renewal Grants awarded each fiscal year
in its Annual Report, which is posted on its website www.azsfb.gov {albeit by individual district}). The SFB
could augment that summary with a complete list of the Building Renewal Grant Applications awarded
and those denied in future Annual Reports, if the Board deems it appropriate.

The Senate Staff Fact Sheet states:

“There is no anticipated fiscal impact to the state General Fund associated with this
legislation.”

O  The SFB takes exception with that analysis because, should any suggestion to increase the unit square
Jootage allocations for the various grade levels set out in §15-2011.B. be adopted, the cost of the
resulting increased floor area per pupil would most certainly have a fiscal impact on the budget for
future projects.

O Moreover, the SFB is concerned that such a change to the guidelines might create a new minimum
adequacy threshold that all existing school facilities would have to be brought up to those minimum
guideline thresholds, compounding the potential fiscal impact of such changes.

Background / History:

The SFB attempts to process web based Building Renewal Grant Applications received from school districts
within the month before each School Facilities Board Meeting, as long as the application is administratively
complete and within the statutory requirements for eligibility. The SFB staff makes every effort to work with
the school district applicant to produce the necessary backup documentation to support the validity of the
request with respect to these requirements.

Page 8 of 9



School Facilities Board
2015 Arizona Legislative Regular Session

Bill Tracking List
This update / printing: 1/28/2015

Page 3: ATTACHMENT A.)

Occasionally a district is frustrated by these requirements and insists the application be placed on the Board’s
Agenda, in spite of the Staff’s recommendation to correct any non-compliant or non-existent documentation.
Other times, the SFB staff will recommend that the district voluntarily withdraw the application, and work with
the SFB staff to bring the application into proper form and completeness, at which time the district can submit a
new application.

If it is a matter of critical emergency, and if the project as described by the district meets the requirements of,
and if there is sufficient balance in, the SFB Emergency Deficiencies Correction Fund, the SFB works with the
applying district to change their application to one seeking Emergency Project Funding, which is from a
different funding source than are Building Renewal Grants. The SFB responds immediately to any life/safety
issue. Period.

ATTACHMENT B.)

Background Paper -- SB1077 -- prime sponsor: Senator Yee
Reference Title: child care facilities; SFB guidelines
Amending ARS §15-2011.1 & ARS §36-883.05.G. relating to Child Care Facilities
This Bill repeals §15-2011. L. {as published} and §36-883.05.G. These sub-sections were passed as the
McComish amendment to SB1102 during the 2014 Session.

Background/History: §15-2011 was used by Senator McComish as a legislative “bridge” to attach language in
support of a Montessori School in his district that had been introduced by Senator Pancrazi in SB1321.
However, that Bill was retained on the Committee Of the Whole Calendar and it moved no further during that
Session.

These two sub-sections were necessary in order to achieve germane standing, relative to Senator Yee’s
SB1102 last year.

Statutes Affected: §15-2011. Minimum school facility adequacy requirements: definition

And §36-883.05. Child care facilities: infants: floor bedding: requirements; emergency evacuation: notice:
definitions.

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact to the State by this repeal.

Policy Impact on Agencies: The School Facilities Board has requested this specific repeal.

The SFB has no statutory obligation to, or authority over, child care facilities. This reference in its statutes
could be misconstrued to mean that it does.

The Department of Health Services, through its Legislative Liaison, Colby Bower
(Colby.Bower@azdhs.gov), indicated that it has no objection to the repeal of sub-section §36-883.05.G. of its
statute. These repeals do not adversely affect the balance of the language in §36-883.05.

Former Senator McComish was approached last fall about the proposed repeal of these specific sub-

sections of his amendment. He informed Senator Yee and Senate Staff that he had no objection to these specific
repeals.

Page 9 of 9



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item V.a.

Subject: V.a. New School Construction

Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify the FY
2015 Capital Plan New Construction Requests, including projects from:

Agua Fria Union
Casa Grande Elementary
Chandler Unified
Florence Unified
Higley Unified
Kirkiand Elementary
Liberty Elementary
Litchfield Elementary
Queen Creek Unified
Sahuarita Unified
Vail Unified

Board Action Requested: [ ] information [ X] action / described below

Board approval of staff recommendations as listed below.

1.

10.

Agua Fria Union (9-12): Conceptually approve 008N (9-12 for 1,600 students) to be
approved in FY 16.

Casa Grande Elementary (K-5): Conceptually approve 007N (K-5 for 750 students) to be
approved in FY 23.

Chandler Unified (K-6): No conceptual approval.

Chandler Unified (K-12): Conceptually approve a K-12 for 150 students to be approved
in FY 16.

Florence Unified (9-12): Conceptually approve 017N (9-12 for 1,200 students) to be
approved in FY 18.

Higley Unified (K-8): No conceptual approval.
Kirkland Elementary (K-8): No conceptual approval.

Liberty Elementary (K-8): Conceptually approve a K-8 for 800 students to be approved
in FY 20.

Litchfield Elementary (K-5): Conceptually approve a K-5 for 956 students to be
approved in FY 19.

Queen Creek Unified (K-5): Conceptually approve 005N (K-5 for 700 students) to be
approved in FY 19.

O:\SFB Board Agenda\2015 Agendas\February\'15 February Board Va New Construction.docx
1/29/15



11. Queen Creek Unified (9-12): Conceptually approve 009N (9-12 for 867 students) to be
approved in FY 17.

12. Sahuarita Unified (K-8): Conceptually approve 005N (K-8 school for 800 students) to be
approved in FY 19 and 006N (K-8 school for 600 students) to be approved in FY 22.

13. Vail Unified (9-12): Conceptually approve a 9-12 for 1,000 students to be approved in FY
18.

Attachments:Yes [ X ] No[ ]

O:ASFB Board Agenda\2015 Agendas\February\'15 February Board Va New Construction.docx
1/29/15



School Districts in Maricopa, Pima, Pinal and Yavapai Counties
February 4, 2015 Board Meeting

1. Agua Fria UH$D
2. Casa Grande
3. Chandler USD
4. Florence USD
5. Higley USD
6
7
8
9

. Kirkland ESD

. Liberty ESD

. Litchfield ESD

. Queen Creek USD
10. Sahuarita USD
11. Vail USD




School Districts in Maricopa, Pima, Pinal and Yavapai Counties

Capital plans considered on this agenda are from eleven school districts in the central and
eastern parts of Maricopa County, Pima County, Pinal County and Yavapai County, the
four most populous counties in the state. The county and state population information is
presented in Table 1.

Table 1: Population growth in Maricopa, Pima, Pinal and Yavapai Counties 2010-2014

Annualized

Census July 1, July 1, July 1, July 1, July 1, Growth
County 2010 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Rate*
Maricopa 3,817,117 | 3,824,058 | 3,843,370 | 3,884,705 | 3,944,859 | 4,008,651 1.19%
Pima 980,263 981,168 986,081 990,380 ‘ 996,046 | 1,007,162 66%
Pinal 375,770 376,369 384,231 389,192 393,813 k 396,237 1.29%
Yavapai 211,033 210,899 211,247 211,583 213,294 | 215,357 52%
Arizona 6,392,017 | 6,401,569 | 6,438,178 | 6,498,569 | 6,581,054 | 6,667,241 1.02%

Sources: Census 2010 from U.S. Census Bureau. July 1 estimates from Arizona State Demographer’s
Office.

* From July 1, 2010 to July 1, 2014.

Between the two decennial censuses of 2000 and 2010, Maricopa County experienced
considerable population growth at an annualized growth rate of 2.19% compared to
2.22% and 0.93% at the state and national levels, respectively (U.S. Census Bureau).
From 2010 to 2014, the rate declined to 1.19% (Arizona State Demographer’s Olffice)
compared to 1.02% for the state (Arizona State Demographer’s Office) and 0.76% for the
nation (U.S. Census Bureau: Population Estimates) during the same period. Maricopa
County accounts for 60% of the state’s population. Currently, there are 16 unified school
districts, 33 elementary school districts and six union high school districts in the county.
Located in Central Maricopa County are some of the nation’s fastest growing cities and
towns during the 2000-2010 decade, including Avondale, Buckeye and Goodyear. Three
school districts from this area are on the current agenda for new construction; they are
Agua Fria Union, Liberty Elementary and Litchfield Elementary School Districts. The
other three school districts on the agenda from Maricopa County are from the East Valley
which has been one of the fastest growing areas in the county; they are Chandler Unified,
Higley Unified and Queen Creek Unified School Districts.

Pima County, located in the south central region of the state, is the second most populous
county in Arizona. During 2000-2010, Pima County experienced considerable population
growth with an annualized growth rate of 1.51% (U.S. Census Bureau 2000 and 2010).
From 2010 to 2014, the annual growth rate declined to 0.66% (Arizona State
Demographer’s Office). Currently, there are 11 unified school districts and three
elementary school districts in the county. Of these, Sahuarita Unified and Vail Unified
submitted capital plan requests this year.



Pinal County is located between Maricopa and Pima Counties along Interstate 10. It is
designated by the U.S. Census Bureau as one part of the Phoenix Metropolitan Area.
Between 2000 and 2010, Pinal was one of the two fastest growing counties in the nation
with an annualized population growth rate of 7.65%, more than three times the rate at the
state level. From 2010 to 2014, the growth rate declined to 1.29% (Arizona State
Demographer’s Office), yet still considerably higher than those of the state and the
nation. It is the third most populous county in the state behind Maricopa and Pima
Counties. Currently, there are eight unified schools districts, eight elementary school
districts and two union high school districts in the county. Two school districts submitted
capital plan requests this year, and they are Casa Grande Elementary and Florence
Unified School Districts.

Yavapai County is located near the center of the state, between Maricopa and Coconino
Counties. It was among the fastest growing counties in the state between the two
decennial censuses with an annualized growth rate of 2.34% (U.S. Census Bureau 2000
and 2010). During the last four years from 2010 to 2014, the annual growth rate
decreased to .52%, and the population currently continues to rank fourth in the state
(Arizona State Demographer’s Office). There are ten elementary school districts, one
union high school district and nine unified school districts in the county. Kirkland
Elementary is the only district from the county that is on the agenda for FY 15.

Table 2: ADM growth in six districts, Maricopa County and Arizona FY 2005-2015*

6-District* 6-12:;;:;t* Maricopa M:‘il);)[pa Arizona A:S%za
Fiscal Year 100-day 100-day , 100-day o
aoM | et | aem | SR | aow | SRR
a
2005 50,045 544,043 869,738
2006 55,487 10.9% 562,860 3.5% 896,174 3.0%
2007 60,411 8.9% 574,469 2.1% 916,418 2.3%
2008 65,698 8.8% 583,970 1.7% 927,847 1.2%
2009 68,568 4.4% 579,557 -0.8% 922,150 | -0.6%
2010 69,785 1.8% 574,872 -0.8% 913,808 -0.9%
2011 71,200 2.0% 566,835 -1.4% 898,031 -1.7%
2012 71,886 1.0% 568,374 0.3% 892,268 -0.6%
2013 73,240 1.9% 568,146 0.0% 888,298 | -0.4%
2014 68,517 -6.4% 548,567 -3.4% 856,732 -3.6%
Annualized
Growth Rate
2005-2014 3.6% 0.1% -0.2%
2015 Projection 70,511 3.0% '

Source: Arizona Department of Education LEA information website:
http://www.ade.az.gov/schoolfinance/forms/LEAQuery/InformationRequest.aspx

* Six school districts: Agua Fria Union, Chandler Unified, Higley Unified, Liberty Elementary, Litchfield
Elementary and Queen Creek Unified




Table 3: ADM growth in two districts, Pima County and Arizona FY 2005-2015*

2-District* 2-Dist11;1;lc t* Pima Pima .| . ona Arizona
Fiscal Year 100-day GAD 100-day ADM 100-day ADM
ADM rowth ADM Growth ADM Growth
Rate Rate Rate
2005 8,941 125,007 869,738
2006 10,268 14.8% 126,657 1.3% 896,174 3.0%
2007 11,486 11.9% 127,783 0.9% 916,418 2.3%
2008 12,760 11.1% 127,207 -0.5% 927.847 1.2%
2009 13,621 6.8% 126,341 -0.7% 922,150 -0.6%
2010 14,214 4.3% 125,080 -1.0% 913,808 -0.9%
2011 14,625 2.9% 122,366 -2.2% 898,031 -1.7%
2012 13,737 -6.1% 119,646 -2.2% 802,268 | -0.6%
2013 14,377 4.7% 119,499 -0.1% 888,298 -0.4%
2014 12,815 -10.9% 115,915 -3.0% 856,732 -3.6%
Annualized ‘
Growth Rate
2005-2014 4.1% -8% -0.2%
2015 Projection 13,468 5.1%
Source: Arizona Department of Education LEA information website:
http://www.ade.az.gov/schoolfinance/forms/LEAQuery/InformationRequest.aspx
* Two school districts: Sahuarita Unified and Vail Unified.
Table 4: ADM growth in two districts, Pinal County and Arizona FY 2005-2015*
2-District* 2-11):;;;; t* Pinal 11;111)1;{1[ Arizona - Ariztl)\za
Fiscal Year 100-day Growt 100-day 100-day | |, AD
ADM ’rowth ADM Growth ADM Growth
Rate ‘ ‘ Rate e Rate
2005 8,980 29,866 869,738
2006 10,733 19.5% 34,084 14.1% 896,174 3.0%
2007 12,543 16.9% 39,339 15.4% 916,418 2.3%
2008 13,707 9.3% 42,949 9.2% 927,847 1.2%
2009 14,414 5.2% 44,465 3.5% 922,150 -0.6%
2010 14,976 3.9% 44,938 1.1% 913,808 | -0.9%
2011 14,971 0.0% 43,280 -3.7% 898,031 -1.7%
2012 15,030 0.4% 42,181 -2.5% 892,268 -0.6%
2013 14,808 -1.5% 41,888 -0.7% 888,298 -0.4%
2014 14,456 -2.4% 38,199 -8.8% 856,732 -3.6%
Annualized
Growth Rate
2005-2014 5.4% 2.8% -0.2%
2015 Projection 14,723 1.8%

Source: Arizona Department of Education LEA information website:

http://www.ade.az.gov/schoolfinance/forms/LEAQuery/InformationRequest.aspx

* Two school districts: Casa Grande Elementary and Florence Unified.




Table 5: ADM growth in Kirkland ESD, Yavapai County and Arizona FY 2005-2015

Kirkland F_I,élll;krll)ll(\l/[ Yavapai Yavapai | Arizona A;l;;;a
Fiscal Year ESD 100- Growth 100-day Growth 100-day Growth
day ADM Rate ADM Rate ADM Rate
2005 65 21,989 869,738
2006 70 7.6% 22,828 3.8% 896,174 | 3.0%
2007 65 -7.4% 23,383 2.4% 916,418 2.3%
2008 64 -1.8% 23,378 0.0% 927,847 1.2%
2009 54 -14.9% 22,941 -1.9% 922,150 -0.6%
2010 59 8.5% 22,278 -2.9% 913,808 -0.9%
2011 57 -3.4% 21,565 -3.2% 898,031 | -1.7%
2012 53 -6.5% 21,123 -2.0% 892,268 -0.6%
2013 59 10.6% 20,937 -0.9% 888,208 | -0.4%
2014 64 8.3% 18,110 -13.5% 856,732 | -3.6%
Annualized
Growth Rate
2005-2014 -2% -2.1% -0.2%
2015 Projection 72 13.1%

Source: Arizona Department of Education LEA information website:
htp://www.ade.az.cov/schoolfinance/forms/LEAQuery/InformationRequest.aspx

The six districts from Maricopa County, two from Pima County and another two from
Pinal County had annualized ADM growth rates of 3.6%, 4.1% and 5.4%, respectively
during the past decade (Tables 2, 3 & 4). Most of the growth took place during 2006-
2008 around the housing boom. The subsequent meltdowns of the real estate market and
economic recession affected these districts to varying degrees. As a result, many of these
school districts accumulated a large number of housing inventories, particularly in
Liberty Elementary, Queen Creek Unified, Sahuarita Unified and the two districts in
Pinal County. However, the housing market started recovering sooner and more quickly
than expected. By late 2012, the vast majority of the excess housing inventories had been
cleared out in Maricopa County. The eastern part of Maricopa County that includes
Chandler Unified, Higley Unified and Queen Creek Unified has the best performing real
estate market in the state. A few years ago even when the housing market in the state
appeared bleak, Chandler Unified which covers the majority of the City of Chandler and
the southern part of the Town of Gilbert, had a considerable amount of new housing units
being constructed and sold every year due to its high-tech industry, high income and
highly performing schools. Queen Creek Unified and Higley Unified, located east of
Chandler Unified, each had more than 850 houses built during FY 14. In the City of
Goodyear and Litchfield Park where Agua Fria Union, Liberty Elementary and Litchfield
Elementary are located, the total sales as well as new housing sales lag behind those in
the year prior. However, the number of investor flips has decreased.

In Pima and Pinal Counties, the housing market on a whole lagged behind that of
Maricopa County in its pace of absorbing excess housing units and increasing new
housing construction. However, areas adjacent to East Maricopa County, such as the
northeast part of Florence Unified (San Tan Valley) are among the most active housing




markets in the state. Florence Unified had nearly 400 new homes built during FY 14, and
the number of new housing permits issued in 2013 in Vail Unified was just shy of 300.
Developers have begun to contact school districts in both counties regarding their
development plans in the future.

Even though the housing market has given mixed signals during the past year and the
charter sector continues to expand in Queen Creek Unified, Liberty Elementary and Casa
Grande Elementary, all ten school districts on this agenda from Maricopa, Pima and Pinal
Counties are expected to experience ADM growth this year. Liberty Elementary,
Litchfield Elementary and Vail Unified converted a total of ten district schools to charter
schools in FY 14, resulting in a significant decrease of district ADM in FY 14. However,
these converted charters will convert back to district schools next year (FY 16) per Laws
2014, Second Regular Session, Ch. 16, § 22 (HB 2711). Therefore in FY 16, ADM for
these ten schools will be counted again as district ADM.

Barring unforeseen conditions in the future, we expect most of the ten districts in the
three counties will grow in the current projection cycle as the economy continues to
improve and new housing construction increases.

Of the eleven school districts on the current agenda, Kirkland Elementary is the only one
from outside the three most populous counties. Located in the central part of Yavapai
County, it is small in student enrollment size and the population in the area has a much
older median age than the state average. Currently there is no information to indicate that
the district will likely experience a dramatic increase in ADM in the near future.



Agua Fria Union High School District

District Overview

Agua Fria Union High School District is located in the west valley of the Phoenix metro
area, serving parts of the communities of Avondale, Buckeye, Goodyear and Litchfield
Park. It is about 15 to 20 miles west of downtown Phoenix. Interstate 10 bisects the
district. The District currently has four high schools, serving approximately 7,500 ADM.

District ADM History , ,
For the past five years, the District’s ADM grew in a moderate range of 2.2 - 4.2%. The
annualized growth rate for the past five years was 2.9%.

8,000
6,000 | =
L0100 O —
000 I e ——— — . S -
3,000 Ao o e e o
2,000 e o e e e e
1,000 A e oo e e
FYOS FY10 FY1l FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15* Fyie*
*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections

District Qutlook

Between FY 03 and FY 07, an average of more than 3,200 new housing units were added
to the District each year, fueling tremendous ADM growth during the period. While the
housing market appears to have gone through a cycle of boom, bust and rebound, this
district’s ADM has never dropped during the past decade, an impressive feat rarely seen
in other school districts. In FY 15, the District’s ADM is forecasted to register another
increase of 5.3%. As new housing construction is picking up in the area, SFB staff
expects that the District’s ADM will continue to grow in an approximate range of 1.5-
5.0% per year during the projection cycle.




oLL'EL LLE L Z0v'L 198" L ¥00°2 ov.'L 6ES'| 99€‘L 9201 008
jeyoL 22 Ad 12Ad | 02 Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9l Ad Sl Ad vl Ad
:a1e suoyjosloid “yels g4S Aq paisnipe sy (1)
22 Ad 12 Ad 02 Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9l Ad S A

¥l Ad

(1) seiouednaoQ BWOH MmaN

1ouIsIg j10oyos YbiH uoun el enby

00S

000+

005}

0002

005¢

O 3WOH MaN

salouednoo



Ges', Ges'. GeS'L Ges'. Ges'. Ges'L Ges' . Ges'. Ges' . Ges'. Ayoede)
996 [4445) 6916 £9/°8 ove's ZLL'8 161'L G6G'/ 68y, 0LL'Z WQayv g4S
19/'6 ovs'6 816 266'8 29’8 96e'g 590'8 1082 685/ oLLZ 228'0 nay ousig
€C Ad ¢ Ad L Ad 0c Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad L Ad 9l Ad SL Ad YL Ad €L Ad |2L-6
Ajoeden NQV 84S --==wu- Way wusiq — — —
€c Ad gc Ad Le Ad 0c Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 9L Ad GlL Ad 1 AW.N= el Ad
1 ) \ L ! | I ! ) 1 ooo.w
00S‘9
-
— ‘
= 000 L
o
7
e 00S°L
SR 000'8
- - -
\\\\\!\ - -
T _-"
\\\\ —= 005'8
\\\ e
\\\\\\ ~ - -
e 000‘6
- - -~
\\‘\\\||\ - -
e 005'6
000°0}

101381 |00yos YbiH uolun eli4 enby
ydeio z1-6

(R



G102 ‘6z Aienuer
o0p eL- eNBY G| UOIBPUSLILLIOIANUOILS) Bl BNBY\UOIONISU0D Mau G | \Buluueld [eldeo\:0

‘paljipow Jo ‘pajeulwd ‘yoeq paysnd aq 0} [enusjod sy} aaey pue ‘mairss uodn JONVYHO OL 103rdns
S103rodd TVNLdIONOD TV  "SLO3Arodd a3AOuddV-ATIVNLAIONOD Ol AILLININOD SI ONIANNd ON 90N

"S)USPN}S §Z1°Z 3 PINOM JOLSIP SIY} Ul |0OYIS Juapnys-009°‘} & jo Aj1oeden jenjoe ay| :8joN

(lemdasuo))
(N800)
sjuspnis 009'L
10} |o0Yos MBN

22-120C Ad

12-020C A4

02-610¢C Ad

61-8L0¢C Ad

81-210C A4 L1-910C A4 91-G10¢C A4 S1-v10C Ad

610Z ‘v A1eniqo4 10} uoiEpUBWIWIOIBY }BIS

"looyos aininy e 1o} AIOJuSAUI Ul 8IS e sey Ajuaiing 1ousiq 8yl "0z

Ad ul panoidde aq o} syuspnis 006 1o} 1eak ise| panoidde-Ajlenideouod sem NGOO 1000l :3senbay s jouysig Buipiebay sajoN

(N800)
sjuspnis 009°‘L
10} |ooyos MaN

22-120C Ad

12-020C Ad

02-610¢C A4

61-810¢C Ad

81-110¢C A4 L1-910C Ad 91-G10C Ad GL-¥10C Ad

3sanbay uononisuo MaN J}ou3sIq
(ZL-6)

9160.0 — LD

Jolysiq jooyos ybiH uotun eud enby

w_w>_mc< uonoNnI}suo) MmaN 102

aydvosd

S3AI1LITIOV I TOOHDOS




uolun eu4 enby Ayoede) G,

9l Ad gzl'z | 000002 gcl 009'L 216 N800 - [00y0s MaN
Ad Ayoede) 1994 juspmg | Ayoeded | Byuod
leaosddy | fenjoy alenbg Jad 48 ubseq apeis) uoydiasaq  JoquinN 393f0id
:anoidde Ajjen1deoudo 0} S UONEPUSLLLLIODSI els Byl
NOILVANIWNOI3Y J4V1S 5102 ‘v AMVNUE3d
-Ryoeden juspnis |ejo . pue suoioslold WAV usamiag sdusiafld (2
-abed jooyos Aq Ayoede)) pue abejood aienbg 88s (1)
6€1L'C 168'} yy9'L 8ez'tL Gl8 889 [AX4 0L - (2) paJinbai s 80BdS M3aU UdIym Joj Sjuspn}g JO JBqUINN
%8¢ %8¢ %9 %1 %8'C %0'¥ %L'C %G1 %€'S %Z'¥ aley ymolg Nav
$99'6 zZzv'e 691'6 £9.°8 ove'e 218 26L°L G6S'L s8v'L oLL‘L suojjosloid QY papudliwoddy g4
9gee'e GL0'C €6.L') 19Vl L0L°'L L€8 0vS 9.2 ¥9 (2) paainbal si 8oBdS MBU UdIym Joj SJUSpniS 40 JSqUINN
%E'¢C %V’ %9'€ %C¥ %E’'€ %9'€ %¥'E %8¢ %L'9 % ¥ ajey ymwoig Nav
196 0vs‘e 8LE'6 266'8 2£9's 95¢€‘8 S90°8 108, 685, 0LL'L suondefold WAv s.214s!a
G2S°'L GeS'L G2S'L G2S°‘L G2S°'L G2S'L S2S'L G2S°'L Ges'L GeS'L Ajioede9 Juapnis [ejol
Gzs'L Ges'sL Ges's Ges'L Ges's Ges'.s Ges'L G2s'L gzs'.s Ges'L (1) Ayoede bunsix3
£C Ad ¢ Ad L2 Ad 0C Ad 6l Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9L Ad Gl Ad ¥l Ad cl-6
Zi6
1013s1Q [ooyos ybiH uojun eugy enby
G10¢/L2/L sisAjeuy uooaNIISUO) MaN

pieog sai|ioed |00YdS




uolun eu4 enby Auoede) g,

wav

%8| %92 %8’ %6'E %0’ %S'E %2 %1 %G’ %SG abueyo %
886'8 ££8'8 £19'8 162'8 286'L 0S.'L LLG'L 9e8'L ve2'L 0EL'L G28'9 2L-6
€2 Ad 22 Ad k2 Ad 0z Ad 6L Ad 8L A Ll Ad 9l Ad GL AL vLAd gL A leaj jseT - sedalod WAV 84S
‘Juswidojenap [eluapisas pue |eAIAINS
HOYOo2 U0 paseq £¢ A4 Ubnoiyl g1 A4 JQV Wolj paAiedal uojjewlioju) uo paseq [enjoe ale ¢ A4 pue g A4 :suondwinssy
il
%92 %82 %9t %L'G %8'2 %0 %L %G1 %E"G %Gt abueyo %,
¥99'6 22h'6 691'6 £9.'8 0ve's ZLL's 161'L G6S'L g8v'L  OLL'. 228'9 2L-6
EZAd 22 Ad ke Ad 0z Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9l Ad GL A4 vL Ad gL Ad J)seoaiod NAY 84S
%E'2 %Y’ %9°E %SV %E'E %9'E %b'E %8'2 %L'9 %' abueyo %
192'6 0vS'6 81E'6 266'8 2E9'8 9ge's G908 108'L 6852  OLLZ 228'9 gL-6
€2 Ad 22 Ad L2 Ad 0c Ad 6L Ad 81 Ad LL Ad 9l Ad SL A vl Ad eL Ad 1sedai04 AV Papircid 1ouisig
Joulsig |ooyas ybiH uolun el enby
v10c/8L/2L suonosiold NQY



abelany
1BaA-G

%b'2 %b'e %22 %9'E abueyo 9,
2289 $99'9 0159 £/€9 ZL-6
PL Ad gL Ad 2L Ad LL Ad 0L Ad 60 Ad

JoussIg |Jooyas ybiH uolun eu4 enby
AoisiH way



"S10p11I0D JoLB]UI 10} paisnIpe Jou 8Je S|00yds Papunj-g4s :eloN|

!

alenbs Jo adA; ey} uo Bulpuad

op 110g-S)

‘SHVI0A

oede) UspnIS JO UOIU

~abejooy’
joq Buppiop g4S 8y} seyye uo peseq (1)

ges‘s goc‘Z8. |S6.°06  109e'gl8  |se8'évl  |S12'896 |0

L' 1¥6 1S8'002  |¥N 158'002  ilv¥'6l 26¢'022 |ooyos ybiy opeuap papunj-g4s

8zL'z  iv6 £00°002 _ |¥N £00'002  |96G'9lL  166S'9Lg looyas ybiH 8bp3 weseq pepunj-g4s

605°1 algeueA 1900'8LL 678l G8Y'961  (/¥.19  |288'%92 looyog ybiy winjuua|iy

LGL'L 9lgeMEA iG0/'802 (9LECI lg0‘tgez  1LL0'9Y 260292 |ooyas ybiH eud enby.

Ayoede) (1) OlJ0 19N [1onpe@ Jl| Baly 1oN | ealy ealy “looyos
Josinig popnjoxg | ssoly B

10L1SIQ 10023 YBIH uolun Bl enBy

|[ooyog Aq Aoeden pue abejoo4 aienbg




uolun el4 enby Ajoede) g, sjo8loid 41

‘9’3 LI0g-St "S'H'Y Jed (1)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abej00] arenbs ssaoxe Jo Ayoede)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) PIoysaiy) %Gz Jo ssaoxa ul Jing 8q o} abejood arenbs
860'/22 8l¥'1zZz 19v'Slg ¥26'soz  186'S6L  2v9'06L 92g'e8l Z/¥'8/L  L68'GLL  080°/91 ployselyl %52
%S¢ %52 %S¢ %52 %S¢ %52 %S¢ %52 %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ X
6 6 ¥6 ¥6 6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 Jojoe} Aoenbape winwiul X
¥99'6 zey's 6916 £9/'8 ove's 2LL'8 161'L G6S'L g8y, OkL'2 suonoslold WAV
I$9'0El  L¥9'0EL  LYO'OEL  L¥O'OEL  LPO0EL  LPO'OEL  L¥9'0SL  L¥9'0EL  LPLOZL  IpL'0ZL [e}0 8AleINWNY
005'G asnoy pjal} el4 enby

000‘S wooJ aouep abp3 weseq
000'S (71 Ad) grot "Bpig e6p3 weseQ
005'S (¥t Ad) 20t "Bpiq LS BNBY
GEL'vY (€L Ad) S0 ® veol sbp|q wnjuusiN
000‘8 (gL Ad) L0 *BpIq LS EBNBY
6cv N Bpig - SH wnuus|IN
661 1 bpig - SH wniuus|iy
168'8 S Bpig - SH wniuus|IN
¥28'9l OpellaA Je uonippe puoq g
96S‘L1 * uonippe wnuoypne abp3 wasa(
JAZAA" suolIppe SH Wniuua|iIN
£92°2 SH el enby 1e N buipjing
LLg'e (eoeds Juswaoe|dal jo Jou) SH eu4 enby je 4S puog g
£2 A4 22 Ad 1e Ad 02 A4 61 Ad 81 Ad LL A4 91 Ad Sl Ad SEENN abejood arenbs z1-6

Joud

10181 [00y2S ybiH uolun eud enby
¥10c/8L/gt uvoday spun4 |20



Casa Grande Elementary School District

District Overview

The District covers the town of Casa Grande and surrounding areas in Pinal County,
midway between Phoenix and Tucson. It currently has nine elementary schools (K-5)
and four middle schools (6-8), serving over 6,600 ADM.

District ADM History
Over the past five years, the District’s K-8 ADM declined at an annualized rate of -2.0%.
All five years experienced negative growth, ranging from -0.4% to -4.3%.

6,000
5,000 +—¢

4,000 M

3,000 e (-5
g——g—_——a—a——= -G-8

2,000

1,000

O T T ¥ T i T T 1
FY09 FY10 FYI11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15* FY1G6¥

*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections

District Qutlook

The District’s ADM has continued to decline since FY 10 while charter schools in the
area have continued to expand, which have a total enrollment of 1,146 in FY 15
according to a charter enrollment report from ADE. The District’s ADM in FY 15 is
expected to stay relatively level with last year. However, the significant loss of
kindergarten students in FY 14 appears to be repeated this year, which will affect the
District’s long-term ADM growth. Phoenix Mart, a global trade center designed to
connect thousands of North American manufacturers and distributers with domestic and
global buyers is slated to open in early 2016. It is forecasted to create several thousand
jobs upon its full operation. Barring unforeseen conditions, SFB staff projects that the
District’s ADM will stay flat next year followed by growth in the approximate range of
3.5-6.5% per year for the remainder of the projection cycle.



€209 008 816 080°L 2LO't L. G509 0¥ 062 V!
[elol 22 Ad 12Ad | 02Ad | 6LAd | 8LAd | ZLAd | 9LAd | SLAd | vLAd
:aJe suopoafoid "jels g4 Aq pajsnipe sy (1)
22 Ad 12 Ad 02 A4 61 Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 91 Ad SLAd 71 Ad

e

N —

o181 Aejuswie|3 apuelr) ese)
(1) sepuednaap swoH maN

00¢

. 00v

009

008

000°}k

002t

(9] SLUOH M3\ -

salouednod



8v8'S 8v8'S 878'S 8v8'S 878'S 8¥8'S 8¥8'S 8¥8'S 8v8°'S 8v8'S Ayoede)
6.6'S 20.'S 96E'S oLL's 908"y 985'y 6cv'y 192V 62y LEC'Y 0SE'Y Nav g4s
0EL'9 6€0°'9 0S6'S G6.'S 819°G LEV'S 9g¢e's 801L‘S €1L0's LEZ' Y 0Se'y  |IAgy dusig
€2 Ad ¢c Ad 12 Ad 0C Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9L Ad SL Ad Pl Ad €L Ad |SM
Ayoeded Wav g4 ------- WAy JousiQ — — —
€2 Ad gc Ad lc Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad AW 91 Ad S Ad Vi Ad €L Ad N
i ! L ) L . L ! 1 : 1 OOO..V.
\\\\\\\l\\\ ||\..|\ /// ]
L 008'y
P /
/
/ ,.
/
\\\\ \ §
— e 000'S
. o - -~
rde - - ,
v —= . 00G'S
-~ - -
\\\\\ - - -
< == 000'9
005'9

JoUSI(] AelusLug|g apuklr) BSED
ydein G-y




Ajoeden

S/¥'e S/¥'e G/¥'e S/¥'e SlV'S S/v'e S/¥'E S/v'e S/v'e S/y'e
/95'e 7ve'e 6.1'E 086'¢c ¢8/lc 9/5'e /6v'e 6cv'e 0Sv'e 8.v'e Nav g4s
0¥8'e 86.'2 152'2 989°2 £99°2 1£9°2 9£9'e £vG'e 1252 8.%¥'e Ses'e NV 1ou1sIg
€C Ad ¢c Ad L¢ Ad 0¢ Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad L Ad 9l Ad SL Ad YL Ad €ELAd |89
Ayoede) WQaV 848 ------- NQY PNSIq = — —
€¢ Ad ¢c Ad le Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad 91 Ad gL Ad 7L Ad €L Ad
! 1 I 5 L ! \\llllll._- 1 OO.V.N
\\\\\\\\. e .n\.UuuvIII/
—— 009°2
=TT 0082
000‘€
002'c
0ov'E
- 009'c
.
i

101381 AlBluswla|g apuelr) esen
ydesn g-9

008‘c



GLoe ‘4z Aenuep
X00p'G-y apuelb eseo G| UOHBPUBWILIOIaA[T apURIS) BSEI\UONONISUOI MaU G | \Buiuueld [eliden\:0

"‘Palypow Jo ‘pajeujwije ‘peAejep aq o} [enusiod sy} Ay pue ‘meias) uodn IONVHO OL 103rdns
S103roydd TVNLdIONOD 11V "S1OIrodd AIAOHddV-ATIVNLAIONOD OL AILLINNOD SI ONIANNA ON 90N

"SjUaPN}S Y8 aq PINOM |JoOYIS G-) JUapnys-0S/ & Jo Ajoedes [enjoe mm_ 1 :9)JON

(jenydasuo))

(N£00)
0S/ 10} G-)

€¢-220C Ad | 22-120C Ad | 12-020Z Ad| 02-61L0C Ad | 61-8L0Z Ad | 81-2102 Ad | Z1-9L0Z Ad | 9L-GL0Z Ad | SL-¥LOZ Ad

610Z ‘v Aleniqad 10} uoijepUBWILLOIBY JIE)S

"SHS G-) JUBDEA SUO SUMO JoulsI(
8yl "1Z Ad Ul panoidde aq 0} Jeah 1se| panosdde-Ajjenjdeouos sem joafoid siy| 3sanboay sjouysig buipieboay sajoN Hels

(N200)
0G/ 10} G-)

€2-220C Ad | 22-1202 Ad | 12-0202 Ad | 02-6L0C Ad | 61-8L0Z Ad | 8L-2102 Ad | 21L-9L02 Ad | 91-6L0Z Ad | SL-¥LOZ Ad

}sanbay uononisuon Mo 3913siq

(5-M)
¥ovoLL —ald
191181q AJejudwalg apuels) ese)
sisAjeuy uononI}suon maN S0z

ay¥dvoasd s3aILITI1OVA TOOHDOS




|3 spuelr) ese) Ayoede) G|,

S

gloc/ee/1

PUISI(] Alejuswia|g apuelr) ese)
sisAjeuy uononsuon maN

¢ Ad 78 00S°29 06 (0572 S-M [00Y3s MaN - N200
Ad Ajoeden 1994 wepmig | Aoedes | 'Byuo)

[enoiddy | [enjoy alenbg Jad 4g ubiseq apely uopdpasaq / saquiny Josfoid
ranoidde Ajlenydsouod 0} s| UolEpUBWILLODBI Je)S Bl |
NOILYANIWNOI3H 34V.LS 5102 ‘v AHYNHE3A
‘Ajoede) uepnig [ejo) pue suonosloid NQY usamiaq apuaiaylg (2)
‘abed |jooyog Ag Ajloeden pue abejoo4 aienbg aag (1)
LEL - - - - - - - - (2) paJinbal si 2oeds Mau Yolym 10} SUspn)S 1o Jaqunn
%61 %L'S %9'S %E9 %8V %S°E %8°E %0 %P0 %L aley yimoln NaY
66's | eos's |9ee's [oLl's 908‘'v | 98S'v |e2v'y | 192V | 6veh Lee'y suopasjoid Na@y papusawiwoddy g4s
¢8¢ 161 [40] 8 - - - - - - (2) palinbal si 8oeds mau Yoiym J0} SJUSPNIS JO JaquinN
%S} %5} %l'C %C'E %E’E %8°E %S¢ %6’k %S'8 L %l'C- 8ley ymoln NaY
0€L‘9 6€0°9 0S6's G6.'s 819‘s LEV'S 9ee's 80L‘s £10‘'s LES' suoijasiold way s.1dusia
8v8's 8v8‘s 8v8‘s 8v8‘'s 8v8‘s 8v8‘s 8v8‘s 818‘S 8v8'S 8¥8‘s Ajoede)) juapnig |ejo L
8v8‘s 8¥8'S 8¥8'‘s 8¥8'‘s 8v8's 8¥8's 8¥8‘s 8¥8‘s 8v8'S 8v8‘s (1) Awoede) Bunsixz
8¢ Ad ¢c Ad Le Ad 0C Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad 9l Ad SIAd V1 Ad ) S

G- :

pieog sani|ioed |00Yos




[3 epuelr) ese)) Alloede) G|,

%8V %lL'S %6°L %c'8 %8°L %69 %l'Y %6°0 %9°¢- %.'€-

nav

abueyo o,

eeL'ol 1296 €G1°6 o8y'8 Gy8'L 6/¢'L Z18‘9 6059 0s¥y'9 619'9 G/8'9 felol

%l L %8 L %6° L1 %¥'6 %06 %2 %0°€ %l %3'€- %9°¢- abueyo 9,

161°€ 9rs'e 88z'c ov6‘e 8892 991°‘¢ 06g‘e ges'e 2le'e 6S¥°‘e Ges'e 8-9

%V'E %V'v %.L'S %S L %LL %68 %9'S %L'¢C %0'g- %V - abueyo 9,

9e£'9 Sel'9 G98'S 9vs's /S5l'S £18'y v’y 881y 620% 091y 0SE'y G-

€2 Ad 22 Ad l2 Ad 02 A4 61 Ad 81 Ad LE AL 9l Ad S A4 I Ad gL Ad lea ) )seT - 1seoalod NAV 948

"JuswdojaAsp [BluUspISal pUe [BAIAINS
H0oYoo uo paseq g2 A Ubnoiul GL A4 "3y WOl paAIsaal UOBLIIOU| UC Paseq [eNjo. 8Je y| A PUB g1 Ad :suopduinssy

%SG'G %SG %09 %99 %09 %V'E %V'E %00 %¢ 0- %V'e- ebueyo %,

S¥S'6 S¥0‘6 .58 060'8 6852 291, 1¢6°9 169'9 6699 6029 G/8'9 [e104

%L9 %3e'S %.L9 %L %0°'8 %cC'E %8¢ %80~ %L - %8 |- sbueyo oy - "

/95'¢ yve'e 6.1 086°c 28l'e 9/5t l6¥'e 6cv'e 0s¥'e 8.2 ges‘e 8-9 ; !

%6 %.L'S %9°S %E9 %8V %S'E %8¢ %0 %v0 %l'C- abueyo o p

6/6'S 20.'S 96E'G oLL'S 908y 985y 6SV'y 19¢2'y 6v2'y LES'Y 0SE'y S-M

£¢ Ad cc Ad Le Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LL A4 9l Ad SL A4 YL Ad g1 Ad Isedalod WAV 94S
I-IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIM.IIIIIIII'
%S | %S" L %.L'C %V'e %9°C %9'C %6°C %9 L %ECl %be- abueyo 9, “
0/6°8 /€88 204'8 I8Y'8 I8e's ¥/0'8 c/8', 1592 yes'L 6049 G/8'9 [elol

%S| %S| %9C %60 %0 | %00 %€ %60 %L | %8 L- abueyo o,

ov8'e 86.°¢ 1G22 989‘¢ £99°¢ /€92 9e9'c evs'e les‘e 8/%'¢ Ges'e 8-9

%S L %S| %L'2 %C'E %E'E %8¢ %S¢ %6 | %581 %L abueyo 9,

0gl‘'9 6€0°9 0S6'S G6.'S 819G LEV'S 9e2'S 801‘S EL0‘S Lee'y 0SE'y G-M

€¢ Ad ¢ Ad 1S Ad 0¢ A4 6L Ad 8L Ad LLAd 9l Ad SLAd V1L Ad €L Ad Jsedaiod NQV pPapiacid 1vLsig

1oUIs1q Aejuewa|g apuelr) ese)
S10c/Ed/ suonoslold NQVY



% 0" %l'e- %€ P %80~ abueyo 9,
G/8'9 506'9 2s0', 89g'/ lelo]
%6" | %2’} %l - %l'e abueyo 9,
G25'e 8/v'e 8vy'e viv'e g8-9|
%, |- %8'€- %6°S- %2 2" abueyo 9,
0SE'V lev'y ¥09'v ¥68'vy S -
abesany €L Ad 2L Ad 1L Ad 0L Ad 60 Ad

Iea -G

10UIsIqQ AlBjusWwa|g apuelr) BSE)
AoisiH wav




"$10p11I00 Joalul 104 paisnipe jou aJe S|00yds papuny-g4s BIoN

| | ! * | ! W

Ing Aj[enjoe e1em 4S 22896 0 [e10) B Jey) sejealpul Lodsy abejoo] asenbs maN 80 A PeIIWANS-joLsI
ouisip ay) Aq papuny 4S Z/1L YuMm ‘/y8°96 8q PINOM HS [B10} 8y} eyl pamoys g4 O} pajuesaid Sem JOOYIS Sy} awil dy) Je sueld (g)

*Jaquinu [euly se 4S £G5°/9 uo paalbe pue ‘4S 89G°/9 1B J1ay1abo) painseswu Jjels 1011SI pue Jels g4S '4S £65°/9 [B10) SBM UOISN|OU0d
3y} pue ‘Malnal O} payse Sem Joulsig “Hing Ajjlenjoe alem 4S G/8'89 1Byl sajeolpul yoday abelooq asenbg maN g0 A4 PeRiWgns-joLIsIq

“Jouisip ayy Aq pepuny 4S Ly UM ‘LL6°Z9 89 PINom 4S |10} 8y} 1Byl pamoys g4S 0} pajuasald sem [00Uds sSIUY) Swil} auy) 1e sueld (2 v

-abejoo} arenbs o edA} ey} uo Bulpuadsp | 10g-G| 'S H'V J0 Aloede]y JuspnisS jo Uomulad BUBIOA g4S oyl Jauie U uuwm

Slb'e 696°LLE [2Se'Sl lee'les |see'9e 9vb'ese g-9 |ejol
80zZ'L |08 0/9'96 YN 0/9'96 ]! 228'96 (€) looyag a|ppIN oBE||IA papun}-g4S
G6 0 0 0 £20'92 £20'9¢ |ooyog Aiejuswia|3 0|00
GLE'L  |S6 1g6'vel 1268 gle'zel 1o 8182l (looyos ybiH Jounp Aliawlioy) |00YoS B|PPIA SpuelD Bse)
1S6 6 8/£'06 GSEL £82'/6 0 £6/°16 [00Y0S B|PPIN SNIOED!
818's sov‘ssy  |Z0L‘9E zls'ves  |ev6'sl Lov'ers S [eloL
vv8 08 00S°29 VN 00529 €5 £G65°'/9 (2) youey Asupenop papun-g4s;
¥¥8 08 00529 VN 00529 0l 015°'29 MO|I\\ LeseQ Papuni-g4s:
Ly 08 ¥62'S VN ¥62'S 0 ¥62'C oJenbeg 0} uolppe pepunj-g4s
805 g8 v12'Cy 28e'y 965°L¥ 0 965°LY jooyog Alejuswel3 osenbesg
¥S/ S8 9/0'v9 Lgk2 161} 0 161 |00ydg SpJaA ofed
08 g8 66289 685°/ 888G/ 0 888G/ |ooyog Arejuswia|g eunhsapy
LB6S g8 122'08 L8S‘S 808°GS 0 808°'GS |00YOS Uoos»cm:
8€5 g8 869'GYy 9682 ¥65'8y /28 ey '6v |ooyog Asejuswa|3 usaibleny
- 08 0 VN 0 896'8 896'8 Jajuag Bujuies pooyp|iyg Ajes
197 S8 66168 9GE‘Yy GS5'ey £59'c 802'L¥ |ooyos ArejusLus|g poomuoio)
y9v S8 86£'6E 28L'y 08S'ty 8EY'S 810'6¥ |ooyos Areyuaws|g e|jpyo
Ayoedeg | (1) | J14018N [1onpaQ Ji| ealy I8N | eauy ealy looyos
10SIAIg papn|oxg | ssolr) e !

101181q Aejuswa|g apuelr) BSE)
|ooyog Ag Ajloeden pue abejoo4 asenbg




|3 epueln) esen Ajoeden G|,

syo8foid 47

.
'9°'3 110g-5} 'SH'v ed (1)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo} aienbs ssaoxs jo Ayoeden

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) ploysaiyl %S¢ Jo ss8oxa Ul Jing aq o} abejoo4 aienbs

Gee'l. ¥/8'99 ¥/S'89 66565 E¥9'SS  62S'LS  8v6'6y  S8S'8y  LOO'6Y G956 ploysaly ] %Se

%S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ X

08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 lojoe} Aoenbape WNWIUIN X

195°c yve's 6LL'E 0862 Z8l'e 9.8 Lev'e 6ev'c 0sv'e 8.v'e . suoljoslold NAY

4] 41" 4] 4] 4] 4] [4°13 4] 41 41" [el0] 8Allejnwng

zstk SIN oBe|lIA 1e 4S [euolippy

€2 Ad 2c Ad L2 Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 8l Ad LL Ad 9l Ad SIL AL Sles A abejoo4 alenbg g-9
Joud

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo} asenbs ssaoxa jo Ajoeden

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) Ploysaiy} %SGz 4o sseoxa ul )|ing 8q 0} ebejoo sienbg

v/S'6LL  0E0'vLL ¥16°/0L 00220l 82L'96 GLL'L6 €85'88 6¥£'G8  2.6'V8 L19'%8 Ploysalyl %Se

%S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ X

08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 lojoe} Aoenbape wnWIUIA X

6/6'S 20.'s 96€'s OLL's 908‘Yy 98S'Yy 6er'y L92'v 6ve'y Leg'y suonosloid NAV

6v6'8L 6v6'8L  6¥6'8L 676'8L 6V6'8L 6¥6'8L 6¥6'8L 676'8L  676'8L 676'81 [e10 | SAlle|nwny

8968 18yuad pooyp|iyd Apes

£59'c Buip|ing asodindinpy |00YdS B(|oyD

£59'e Buipjing asodindijnpy |00Y9S POOMUONOD

€S youey AsuueDo

(o]} MO|IIM HBseg

/28 6001 Bulpiing - usaibiang

G8.'} €001 Buip|ing - Bjjloyn

g2 Ad 2c Ad I Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LI Ad 9l Ad SIAd SIes\ abejoo4 asenbg G-y
Joud

Sloe/ee/}

ouIsIg Aejusws|g apueln) ese)

yoday spun4 |80



Chandler Unified School District

District Overview

Chandler Unified School District mostly covers the City of Chandler. Currently, the
District has 28 elementary schools (K-6), six junior high schools (7-8), five high schools
and two facilities that span multiple grade levels, with its ADM reaching over 40,500. A
district-funded K-6 school and a 7-12 school are currently under construction and
expected to open in FY 2016.

District ADM History
Over the past five years, the District’s ADM grew at a moderate range of 1.5-3.0% per
year. The five-year annualized growth rate was 2.4%.

25,000

20,000 g0 B an. s 4

FYO9 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15* FY16*
*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections

District Qutlook

During FY 2001-2006, residential development took place with an average of more than
4,000 new homes built each year, adding more than 9,600 ADM to the district. The pace
has since slowed down. During FY12-FY14, the total of new housing units was 4,607.
This year’s ADM is forecasted to increase an estimated 2.5%. According to the City of
Chandler, the city is close to being built out with approximately 2,000 acres of vacant
land left. The City plans to add more than 15,000 housing units, among which multi-
family units will take up approximately 64% and single family units approximately 36%
to make full use of the available space. The District also has a part located in the Santan
Character Area of the Town of Gilbert where land is still available for new housing and
growth has been taking place. The birth number in the district was on a declining curve
from more than 3,500 in 2008 to below 3,000 in 2013 which impacts the growth outlook.
The District is forecasted to continue to grow, but the rate will be below 1.5% for most
years during the current projection cycle.




2Lo'0L | 2e8 8E0'L | ZvO'v | 06Lr | vvet | Zve't | 60etr | wiet | ieat
1oL | 22Ad | 1eAd | 02Ad | 6LAd | BEAd | ZEAd | OLAd | SEAd | vLAd
:aJe suoloeloid “iels g4s Aq paisnipe sy (1)
22 Ad 12 A4 02 A4 6+ Ad 8} Ad LL A4 91 Ad Sk A4

1 Ad

—

1ouIsig patiun J8pueyd
(1) selouednoo swoH maN

002
00
009
008
000°
002t
001

009°}

O QWOH MaN

salsuednoo



b_omamo

/6L'ke |61k |/6Lbe  |/6L°te  [/6L°te  [/6L'te  |/6L°Lg  |Z6L°Le [L6L'Le  |/6L'LC
¢8l'le  |e60‘te |/66'02 |2/6'02 L0 L2 L90‘te  |¥60°Le  |se0‘le  |oel'le  |ovs'0g  |evv'02  (NAV g4S
/8802 16602 |EEL'le |892'te |/19°t2 |se8‘le |s9g'ze |e0S‘ee  |ssv'ce  |ove'0e  |evb'0c WAV 1duIsIg
€¢ Ad ¢c Ad Le Ad 0¢ Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 9l Ad Gl Ad Vi Ad ELAd 19°M
Ayoeden Nav g4s ------- NQV 10MISIQ — = =
£2 Ad 22 Ad 12 Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LE Ad 9l Ad Sl Ad 71 Ad €1 Ad
i ' L L 1 1 i i " 1 OO0.0N
— L 00g'02
— \\\\
i — S e 000°12
P il . - - \
- ~ /
~ \ ¢
> / 7 005‘12
~S /
~ ~ \
~ ~ /
~Z i 000'22
~
~ /
S~ /
=~ / 00522
000'ce

10U1SIQ PAIYUN JajpUBYD
ydeis -y



GE9‘9 GE9'9 GE9'9 5E9'9 GE9‘9 GE9'9 GE9'9 GE9'9 529'9 GE9'9 Ayoeded
259'9 192'9 96'9 £10°'2 8E6'9 6989 G9/'9 G89°9 S6¥'9 GLE'Q WAV g4S
9099 0069 LOL'L eLL'L 8602 LEO'Z 2069 mom.m L09'9 GLE'9 5%0'9 NQav 1xusig
€CAd ZCAd LeAd 0CAd 6LAd 8LAd LLAd 9LAd SLAd vLAd €LAd  |8-L
Ayoeden Wav g4s ------- QY 10UISIJ — ~— =
€2Ad ¢cAd FCAd OcAd 61LAd 8LAd LIAd 9LAd SLAd VEAd €LAd
1 1 L H I i 1 1 i i ooonm
\\
\~ 0029
/
S
7 .
7 00t'9
7
\\\\ \
- Y 009°9
.zu// \\\\ P P 4
AN T,
\ llll \\\\\\ pa \ §
T — 0089
\ //' \\\\\\\\\ - -
/ lll |\\\\\l P P
\ v, Pl -
\ Iilllllll \l\\!\ ~ - i
< S — 000'L
\ -
N\ -
\ —
N -
00c'.L

JouIsig payiun Jajpueyn
ydei g-2




Li82L  [Li82F  |ri82k  |L+8%er  |ki82F |L182F  |LL8%2L  [Li82F  |Li82L  [LI8TL Ayoede)
ov8¥L  |0/8%L |gelvh |209%L |ezewlk |vibvh  |B2L€L  |ISE€k |lesel  |/6ETL NaV g4S
Zre'st  |oo¥'st  |ese'st  |+Zb'SE  |168%L  |¥/SE  |OZLTLE  |269'€l  leet'eh  [Z68%2F  [¥96'kL  |INAV 1oMIsIa
€2Ad | 22 Ad 12Ad | 02Ad | 6LAd | 8LAd | ZLAd | 9LAd | SLAd | vLAd | €L Ad [eiL-6
Ayoedeg Nav g4s ------- WAV 10UISIJ = —e e
€¢Ad 2CAd  12Ad  02Ad  BLAd  8BLAd  ZLAd  9FAd  SEAd  VEAd €L Ad
L i L I ! 1 L 1 r Oom.—.—.
e 0002t
e
~ .
— 00521
s 000‘€t
e /s
i Ve
4 00S‘€t
g Ve
L 7
Lo Ve
\\\\ - 5
e 000' 1
\\l\l\.l\\\ \\
T \\\
e ‘
— 00S'v1
||||||| - -
lllllllllll \|||||l||||| - -
- \\ I
= 000°Gt
- 005‘S1

RsIq psiyiun Je|pueyn

ydeis z1-6




SLog ‘Lz Aienuer

XD0P 9~} JBIPURYY G| UOHBPUSWILIOIANDSHIUS JB[PUBYD\UOHONISUOD MaU G L\Buluueld [ejded\:0

[enoidde

|enydasuod

ON
22-120T Ad | 12-0202 Ad 02-610C Ad 61-8102 Ad 81L-210C Ad 21-910C Ad 9L-G10C Ad | SI-¥1L0C Ad
G1L0Z ‘v Alenigad 10} uoijepuawiwoddy jjeis
"108loud sy
10} a)Is B sumo Jouisip 8yl ‘panocidde Ajjenydeouoo usaq 1eA jou sey joafoid siy| 3senbay s,jouysiqg Buipiebay sajoN yels

sjuspnis

066 10} O-M
¢¢-120C Ad 12-02¢0¢C Ad 0¢-610C Ad 61-8102C Ad 81-210¢C Ad L1-91L02 Ad 9L-GL0C Ad | SL-¥1L0C Ad
}sonbay uononisuon map 1ou1siqg

(9-M)
082020 - ALD

Jo13SIQ PayiunN Jajpueyo

sisfjeuy uononIsuon MaN §L0Z

a¥dvosd

s3alll

110V 4d

TOOHDOIS




payiun Jajpuey) Anoede) G,

m ‘rencidde jenidasuos oN

NOILYANIWWOO3Y 44V.1S 5102 ‘¥ AHYNHE3A

‘Rioede) apnig |ejo] pue suoiosfoid NQY Usamiaq souaiapla (2)
‘abed jooyog Aq Aloeden pue abejoo4 aienbg eag (})

- - - - - - - - - (2) paainbai s| @oeds mau yalym 10} sjuspmis Jo Jaquinn
%¥'0 %50 %0 %€ 0- %0 %¢ 0~ %00 %} 0- %E" 1 %6’ L g aley Ymoiy NavY
cgl'ie | 660°'Le | 266°02 | 2l6'02 | Lvo‘le | L90‘te | v60‘te | seo‘le | oZLle | ovs‘oe suoposfold gy papuawwoday g4s
- - - L. 0cy 869 890°} GOE') 88¢°} (2) padinbai s| aoeds mau Yolym 10} SJUSPNIS Jo JaquinN
%50~ %10~ %9 0~ %9’ |- %€}~ Yol L= %l |- %10 %6°L %61 81y YImaolH NAY
/8802 | 166'02 | €€lle [892°le | L9l | <se8le | S9zee |eos‘ee | ssv'ez | ovsoe suojjoalold Nav s,1314asia
L6L'le | Z6L°Le | 261°Le | Z6L'Le | Z6Lle | Z6L°1e | 261°te | Z6L'te | Z6L'te | Z6L°le Ajoede) juapnig |ejoL
L6l°le | /61 te | /61be [ /6Ll | /61l | 6L ke [ /6112 | Z6L'le | /6L 1e [ /6112 (1) AuoedeD bunsix3
¢ Ad ¢ Ad lc Ad 0C Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad 91 Ad SILAd VI Ad 9-)
9-M
wigsIg payiun 1epueyn
SLoc/Lc/t sisA|euy uonoNISUOD MapN pieog salijioe |ooyas




sloz ‘2z Aenuep

X20P°'ZL-M JBIPUBYD) G UONEPUSLILLIOISNDSHILL JOIPUBYD\LOIONSUOD mau g \Buiuueld [eudeoy:o

‘paljipow Jo ‘pajeulwfe “joeq paysnd aq o} [euslod ey} eAey pue ‘Maiaal uodn JONVHO OL 1O3rdns
SLO3rodd IVNLdIONOD TV 'S1O3rOodHd A3IAOHddV-ATIVNLdIONOD OL Q3LLINNOD SI DNIANNA ON :8I0N

"SJUSpPNIS g8L 9q PINOM JOLISIP SIY} Ul |00YIS g|-) Juapnis-G| e jo Ayoedes |enjoe sy :210N

(lemdaouon)
sjuspnis
0G1 10} S1-M

¢

¢c-12¢0C Ad

1¢-0¢0¢C Ad

02¢-610C Ad

61-810C Ad

81-210C Ad

L1-910¢C Ad

91-G10C Ad

Sl-¥102 Ad

G102 ‘v Adeniqad 10} UOIIEPUSWIWOD3Y Hels

‘108l01d SIY} 10} BYS B SUMO JOLISIP 8y “siuspnis 0G| 40} Ayjioe) gL-) € 104 SI 1senbal
WaLuno 8yl -ebejoo} asenbs g|-6 pue g-/ Jo} sisenbal umelpyym sey louisig oy} ‘elojaisyl "LL0Z A4 ul uado 0} peloedxe
s1 Ajjloe) eyl "eAlUE Sluspnls 8yl Usym ajgejieAe aq pjnom adeds ay} eyl 0S spuny [ed0] yum Ayjioe) g1-, e uo Uoljoniisuod
uebaq Ajjuenbasqgns 1ousip 8yl 91 A4 Ul paaoidde aq 0} (NGZ0) Siuepnis 900} 10} 21-6 & pue ‘/L A4 ul peroidde aq o}
(N920) siuspnis | 10} g-/ e 10} panoidde-A|jenideouoo sem jouisiqg ey} ‘Jeah jse :3sanbay s jouisiqg Buipiebay sajoN jels

sjuepnis
0G1 10} 2 1-M
C2-1202 Ad | 120202 Ad| 02-6L02Ad| 61-81L02 Ad 81-2102 Ad L1-9102 Ad | 91-6102 Ad | SL-¥102 A4
1sanbay uononisuo) ma| JoLisia
(2L-M)
08200 -4dlD

joLsiq paiiun 8jpueyn
sisAjeuy uononisuon msN 5102

advosd

s3IL1710Vd

TOOHJDS




paylun Jsjpueyy Ayoede) gi, %Y
9l Ad [4:]" 0Zr'GlL 8'¢olL 0S1 4% [00Y3S MaN
Ad Ajoede) 1994 wepnmig | Ajoeded | "byuo)
jeaoiddy |enjoy alenbg Jod 48 ubisaqg apei uopduosaq / sequinN 309fold
:anoidde Ajjlenidasucd 0} sI uonepusWWI0dal Jels oyt
NOILYANIWIWOI3Y 44V1S S10Z ‘v A¥vVNYg3d
‘Aoeden Juspnig |B10 pue suonoslosd QY usamiaqg aouaiaylg (2)
"abed |ooyog Aq Ajoeden pue sbejoo4 aienbg asg (1)
GGB'L 910'C €96} 198'L Z86'1L ¥2e'L 198 Ly - () paJinbai s| @oedS MU YoIYM 10} SJUSPNIS JO JOqUINN
%L 0- %Ll°0 %20 %40 %90 %l %L1 %S %S¢ %9°€ o9ley Yol INAVY
vi9'ey |gel'ey | €89'ey | 285y | zog'zy | cvo'zy | z8s'iy [ iel iy | zps‘or | zes'ee Suo1j99/0id WAV PapuUaLILIodIdy g-4S
9112 8/6'C 868'C £68'C 188'C 1812 €292 €82'C 067°L (¢) paiinbal sj aoeds mau yojym 10} SJUSPNIS JO JBGUINN
%1L1- %9°0- %L 0~ %00 %Z0 %¥0 %80 %6°L %.L'9 %9°¢ 8ley Yol NaY
seg'ey | lez'evy | L.S'ey | zZio'sy | 909'cy | oos‘ey | zve‘sy | zoo'er | 60Z'zy | ZS5'6€ suonoafold WaVY S.3014s1a
6120y | 6120y | 6LL'Ov | 6L2'0v [ 6LL'OF | 6LL'Ov [ 6L20v [6LLOv [eLlOv |6LLOV Ajjoede) juapnis jejol
6L20v [6L207 |6L2'0v | 6LL'OF | 6LZ'0F | 6L2'0v | 6L2'0F [6L20F [6L20F | 6LZOF (1) AnoedeQ bunsix3y
£C Ad Z¢ Ad LZ Ad 0C Ad B8l Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9l Ad SLAd 71 Ad (49}
(4%
1oUH3sIg payiun Jafpueyn
gLoc/ec/L sisAjeuy uonoNIISuU0yH MaN pieog salljioe [00Y2S




paiiun Jajpueyd Auoede) G,

nNav

%€"0~ %¢ 0" %¢c 0- %00 %c0 %¥0 %L0 %<’ b %V %V'€ abueyd %
790 LY 89L° Ly Lve' Ly eee’ Ly 8EE I 0Le' v 260°'L¥ L6L'Ov 06¢'0v 9e.'6E vEV'8€E [elol . !
%6°0- %00 %E€°0- %.0 %60 %9} %0'¢ %S'C %V'c b A abueyo %
ov9'el voLcl 69.'cl Li8'el 6LL'EL L6S‘EL L8E‘EL 6LLEL v6.LCL 96¥'Cl 996k cL-6
%3’ |- %l c- %.L°0- %} 0" %S°0- %S0 %L°0 %l'c %¥'c %'y abueyo %
6.£9 85¥‘9 ¥65°'9 6€9°'0 G¥9'9 9/9'9 2v9’e ¥65'9 L5¥'9 80¢'‘9 G¥0‘9 8-L
%10 %E°0 %00 %SG 0" %0 %€°0- %00 %20 %S0 %S¢ abueyd %
6£0°lc  9¥6'0c  €88°02 9/8'02 ¥/6'02 200'te  0/0°kg  2/0'le 6€0'ke  2e6'0e  €2v'0e  9-M
€2 Ad ¢d Ad IS Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LLAd 9L Ad S Ad VL Ad €L Ad Jea) ise - 1sedalod NAY g4S
"JuaLIdo|aASp |BHUSPISaI PUE [BAIAINS
HOY0o92 uo paseq €2 A4 UBnolyr G| Ad "IQVy WOl paAi0al UOITBULIOI UO PaskE(] [enjoe ale 7| A4 PUB €1 A4 :suopdwnssy

% 0" %0 %c’0 %L°0 %90 %L %L %S’} %S¢ %6°¢ abueyo %

v/92y  qel'ey  €89'er  /8G2y  20Eey  ev0eh  /8S'L¥ el 2pS'Or 2SS'ee  eSp'8E  |elol
%¢S0- %0’ | %8°0 %61 %S| %8¢ %8'¢ %E'E %E'v %9'€ abueyo %

ov8'vL  0/8'%L  2aL'vl 20971 geevl 1499 4" gelLel Lee‘el 262l L6gECt v96°' L1 cL-6
%L |- %8¢~ %L 0" % b %0 | %S’ | %<’ | %6°c %8¢ %SV abueyo %

2s9'9 19.'9 ¥96'9 €10, 8€6°0 6989 G9/'9 G89°9 G6¥‘9 sle'e G¥0'9 8-1
%0 %S0 %10 %€ 0" %0~ %¢c 0" %00 %0 %E" | %6" | abueyo %

28t'le  660'lc  /66°0¢  2.6°0¢ Ly0'L2 l90'te  ¥60‘Lle  S60'Le  O2L'Lg  O¥8'02  EvP02  9-M
€2 Ad ¢c Ad le Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LI Ad 91 Ad SLAd V1 Ad Bl Ad isedalod WAV 94S
%l L- %90~ % L°0- %00 %c'0 %¥'0 %80 %6’ L %.'9 %6°8 abueyo %, )

gesey  l62'ey  LlS'ey  2L9'ey  909'ty  Q0S'Er  eve'er 200y  60¢’chk ©GSS'6E  €Sv'8E [el0L J

%P0~ %80 %L0 %6’ 1 %C'S %6'¢ %S %E'¥ %6'S %9°€ abueyo %

ere'sl 90¥‘St €82Gl LLL'GE L68'v L vLS'YL 0LL'PL 269'cl gcl'el  /6ECH v96°L L cl-6

%E - %9°€- %<& 0" %L %0’ | %8’ %S’ L %L'E %SV %SV abueyod %

9099 006°9 L9L‘L ELL'L 860°L Le0‘L L06'9 808‘9 1099 GlLE'Q S¥0'9 8-1

%50~ %L0- %9°0- %9 |- %€’} %l L~ Y% b L- %0 %6°L %6° | abueyo %

/8802 I66'0c  EElLle  892'lg  Ll9'lg  Se8'lg  S92'¢e  20S‘'ge  S8F'ZZ  Ov8'02  EV¥'0Z  9-M

g¢ Ad ¢c¢ Ad le Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LI Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad Pl Ad ELAd }sedalo4 NQV Paplaoid lasia

PuIsIq psiiun i8|pueyd
S10¢/Le/t suoljosfoid INQY



mmm‘_m><

leaj-g

%l'e Pl %92 %9°¢ abueys 9,
2SG'6E | €Sp'8E | 8S9'LE | vIL0'ZE | G909E | lL9l'se 1Bejol
) %C' ¥ %' %9V %6°E abueyo <
268CL | ¥96°LL | S8¥'LL | 8Le'kE | ves'0L | 22e‘ol cL-6
: YAl %6°¢ %9°¢ %l'C , abueyd %
GlE'9 Gv0'9 ov6's 81L'G LE9'S L1S'S 8-
) %Ll %01 %91 %02 abueys 9,
0¥8'0c | evv'0c | 82202 | 61002 | OLL'6L | 2ee'6l 9-X
VL Ad €L Ad L Ad LE-Ad 0L Ad 60 Ad

Jouisig paiiun J8puey)
AoisiH wav

-2



L6112 £66°OVL'L |S82°Le  [82°89L°L iv69‘8le  |eli'l86°L R 9 e0L
0 08 0 VN 0 8/1'08 182108 Aiejuswa|] UojSIE] |0IBD PUB UYOP
0 08 0 VN 0 809'% 809'Y () 488D JYYO J8|puBy)
80°1 08 022'98 VN 022'98 8e 8G2'98 (60 Ad pauado) AsjeH papunj-g4s
190" L 08 006'v8 VN 006'78 0 006'v8 (60 AJ pauado) uosiajed ano|

ZLLL 08 026'88 VYN 026'88  |gal'lL €906 sBbiy papuny-g4s|
090} 08 08.'¥8  I¥N 08Lv8  |Lp¥'L 122'98 “uoyn4 papunj-g4s
882 08 LIO0'E9 VN LLO'E9 |0 LLO'E9 (9) sndweg souspuadapu| pspun-g4s
9G6 08 00592 VN 005'9Z 0 005'9Z (g) Arejuswa)3 uehy pspuni-g4s
882 08 ¥20'€9 VN ¥20'e9 0€6'0L ¥S6'CL (v) Arejuswa|3 ajsuieA_N pPapun)-g4s
882 08 ¥20'e9 VN ¥20'e9 0 ¥20'€9 () doooueH s|eq ‘1 papunj-g4S.
690°L 08 005's8  |¥N 00s's8 10 005's8 9-)| UBJUES PSpUN}-g4S!
090° L 08 128'¥8 VN leg'v8  |e/6'2 v6.'26 Aejuswia|g |INH "Q duer papunj-g4s;
LLO'L 08 LL2'sg YN Liz'sg 1o L12'S8 Arejuswaj3 eyseg papun)-g4s|
6LL 08 0vs'6 VN 0vS'6 0 0vS'6 (NE1g) Blaguiapp 0} uolippy papun)-g4s;
4 a8 ¥06'| VN ¥06'L 8vL'8s  1250'09 (Awapeoy |euonipes | Jajpuey) Ausuioy) sndwe) wopaaig
22 g8 9/8'L 0 9/8'L ov6'0r  |ges‘er  (g) sndwe) AueqT;
/82 G8 998'99  igeg'L  i861'89 |0 86189 jooyog Alejuswajg isjemie] ||sueq [ @ Wagoy
182 g8 998'09  igeg’L  is6L'89 10 86189 looyas Areyuswiajg euojog o Apny
/82 8 998'09  lgee‘t  186L'89 10 861'89 |ooyag Atejuswia|g As|uo) Y piemoH Id
£€9 a8 Geg'es  1610°L  [¥PBYS 10 vy8'vS looyog Arejuswia|g Aemwinyg
165 g8 £v.2'05 ¥80'c  |/e8'es 0 /28'2s Jooyas Atejuswalg |) Asiydwny |[eysiepy
819 a8 Ges'es  iv80'z  16L9'YS o 6L9vS Jooyag Alejuswiajg ussiapuy | uyor ]
965 g8 £/9'05 196 1ve9'es |0 ¥£9'2s looyag Areluswalg Biaquiop!
899 8 gvL'9s  1/9¢ 60L2G 10 60L2S Jooyog Alejuswia|g UBWPOOY) I PIOYIID
8Lz a8 £66'09  |¥9v S¥'19 10 L5V°19 |00y Atejuswia|g ulogues
092 8 895'v9  issy 9g0'sg |0 950'G9 |ooyog Alejuswa|g UOSQODE[ SUEB|N BUUY
(42 8 622'€9  I61L¥'9  i8Y9'69 |9V ¥60°0L looyog Arejuswaz shig
6£9 a8 ISE'PS  [ELP v9L'vS 10 v9.'vS Jooyas Arejuswialg Xxouy!
0 08 0 VN 0 2Lo's 2Lo'8 (80 Ad) piojuieH 0} UoIppE papuNn}-jouIsiq |
8.5 a8 OLL'6y 1692 686y |0 6.E'61 looyos Arejuswalg piojueH
689 a8 9e8G'8S  160E‘L  Isv8'6S  |Sve'w 06079 100yos Arejuswal3 uoisaneD
09 S8 6SE'LS (216 lZg'eS |0 1£2'2S looyos Arejuswisl3 (1aauaq) soaIe UeS
Ayoeden (1) Ol Jo 189N | 19npaQ | eaay 19N eaay ealy [ooyos

J0s1AQ o] papnjoxy | ssouy)
216 ‘8-L ‘9N

PuISIg paliiun J8|pueyd
jooyss Ag Ayoeden pue sbejoo aienbg



*S10p14100 JOLaIUI 10} pajsnipe Jou aJe S|ooyds pepuny-g4S :BloN

“sjoAe| epelb Buowe suonnqusip [enbe bullunsse ebejooy alenbs jooyas ybiy pue m_nu_E 01 pajes-oid (2)

"g4S Aq pepunj sem junowe abejoo} aienbs

allue ay) ‘alojalay| "spunj [eoo] yum abejoo) arenbs Aue ppe jou pip 10M1SIp @Yl "4S | L0‘E9 Sem }|ing abejoo) aienbs [enjoe Jnqg ‘4S '000°€9 104 paaosddy (9)
‘Aloedes s1o1sip jsulebe sjunod (4S 00S‘9/) JUNCWEe papunj-g4s alnua ayl ‘jing Ajjenioe 188} aienbs 26#°9/ nmtoam._ JolIsIp ubnouyy (g)

‘g4S Aq pepunj sem Junowe abejooj aienbs

aljus ay} ‘alo0e18Y) "spuny ool yum abejoo) asenbs Aue ppe Jou pip 10UISIp 84l “4S ¥20'c9 Sem )|ing abejooy asenbs |enjoe Inq ‘4S.91.0°e9 104 panoiddy (p)
‘Jley-auo se

sjunod |aAs| epe.b uspebiopury Bujwnsse sjeas| spelb Buowe suognquisip [enbe Bujwnsse abejooy asenbs jooyos ybiy pue ‘s|ppiw ‘Arejuswale o} pajel-oid (€);

"2002 ‘0 eunr o} Joud spuny Aejjno |ejideo pajoyisaiun Yim }jing Sem i 8sneasq 8|gepn|oxa s |ooyds sy} jo Ayuolew ay| (g)
"abe)oo} -a1enbs Jo adA} ay) uo Buipuadap | L0g-S| "S'H'Y 10 Ajoeden juapnigs jo uomua Buppoa m_n_w auy} Jayye uo paseg (1)

LI8CL 0£6°G0E‘L |689°69 |619'S/EL 16.6°202 |865°C8S°L

0 6 0 ¥N 0 £20°LL £20'L1L (2) (Ajuo uoiod z|-6) Awepeoy BuiuieaT (IH JoIyD uay|
0 ¥6 0 VN 0 9e8'e 9£8'e (€) 499U YYD Jopuey))
v2e's 76 00S'2le  IWN 00S'2LE  |686'LY 687'vSE ybiH Auad _popunj-g4s
926' 6 000'sZ2  IVN 000'622 iSl2'}¥ Gl2'9le [ooyos ybiH eyseq pepuny-g4s!
0 6 0 VYN 0 vE2'61 ¥E2'61 2LAd sndwe) aug je yjing soeds [eUONIPPY |
/GY G601 190°05 gov'z  199v¥‘es 0 99%'25 (L1/9/v 216 O} 9-) o} painblyucoal) sndwey sug - deid 868]|00 BUOZUY |
£00'E G'601  |698'82E  [592'9c IVEL'GOE  IE66'FE 121'06€ ~ |ooyos ybiH uojjiwen
00L‘e G'60L 100S'6E€  1610°LE  |ALS'0ZE  1689°09 802‘ LEY _|ooyas ybiH Jejpuey)
5£9°'9 1162219  |89/°LL |S90've9 |€.9'LY 8£/°G99

0 08 0 YN 0 LIS'8 LIS'8 (2) (Ajuo uoinod g-/) Awapeoy BuiulesT |IiH jo1yD Usy
0 08 0 VN 0 8Iv'L 8ly'lL () JouaD IYyD J9|puBy)
005'} 08 00002+ |¥N 000°02L (28 280'02

£90°} 08 000's8 YN ~ |000‘ss £9V'El £9v'86 ybiY Jounp cscmm _papunj-g4s;
929 001 G19'29 0 G19'29 0 G19'29 (Hr reuonipe. | ssjpueyg Aiawioy) snduwieg puepieQ - daid a69)j09 BUOZUY |
200°}t 00} 8G1°‘00F |LOZ'F  |6S8‘LOL  |66L'SL 850°02 |ooyos YBIH Jounr Sl
8LLL 001 222'2LL lg9s'y  lop9gel |0 ov9'zel |0oyos yBIH Jr uasiepuy | uyor
192°1 00}k Lvl'92l  |v0e's IS6'LEL |0 LS6'LEL _|0oyag ybiH Jolunp ajbog]

2L-6 ‘8-L ‘9-)

PpuIsIg paiiun 18Ipueyn
jooyos Aq Ayoede) pue abejoo aienbg



|[ooyosg Aq Ayoeden pue ebejoo aienbg

91561 £66°Ov.°L |S82°L2 (8/2°89/°L |b69'8le  |2l¥°l86°L 9 B0l
0 G'¥8 0 VYN 0 84108 8.1‘08 Arejuswa|3 uojsieQ |0JeQ pue uyor
0 g8 0 VN 0 809'y 809'v
020°L ) 0cz'os VYN 022'08 8g 852'08 (60 Ad peuado) AsjeH papunj-g4s
GOO'} S'v8 00618 VN 006't8 0 006'v8 (60 Ad pauado) uosiaped apojeyy papunig-4s
250°L sv8  |0e6'88  |VN 026'88  |e2/'l £79'06 __ sBBiy papuny-gs!|
£00°} S'v8 08.'v8 N 08.'%8 vl /22'98 uoynd pepunj-g45
9v. G'v8 LLO'E9 VN LLO'E9 0 LLO'E9 (9) sndweg souspuadapu| papunj-g4S
G06 S'v8 005°9Z VN 005'9Z 0 005'92 (g) Aejuaws|g uehy pspunj-g4s
b/ G'y8 #20'€9 VYN ¥20°'c9 0£6'0l ¥56'EL () Aejuswa|g eyouieABN Papun-g4s
o/ G'y8 ¥20'e9 VN ¥20'€9 0 ¥20'c9 (¥) oooueH sjeq " 1 pepunj-g4s
2oL ) 005°s8 VN 005°S8 0 005's8 9-)| UejUES Papun-g4s
¥00° | G'v8 128'¥8 VN 128'v8 £16'L ¥6.'26 Arejuswe(3 ||nH *@ auer papunj-g-4s
710} G'v8 LL2'S8 VN LL/'G8 0 LLLG8 Kiejuawa|3 eyseq papunj-g4s
gLl G'v8 ovs'e VN 0vS'6 0 05’6 (Ng12) Blaquisp 0} uonppy papun)-g4s!
0¢ 2'G6 $06°) VN Y06'L 8v 189 25009 (Awspeoy [euonipel] J9|pUBYD >__mE_£~sm:aEmo, wopaal4
02 256 9/8°1 0 9/8'L ov6'0v  |ges'ar ; (2) sndureg Aueqr|
20. 2'S6 998‘99 gee’l  I861'89 0 86189 [ooyog Alejuslal Jalemie] [lsue( [ g Hogqoy|
20 2'S6 998'99 2ee’l  i861'89 0 86189 [ooyog Arejusiue(3 eubojog © Apny;
20L 2'S6 998‘99 2ee’L  I861'89 0 86189 looyos Arejuswa|g As|uog Y piemOH Iq|
GG 2'S6 G28'ss 610°L  pP8'YS 0 vv8'pS |ooyog Atejuswalg Aeemwinys|
€65 2'S6 £v2'0S ¥80‘c  1/e8'2s 0 128'28 looyas Areyuswlg || Aesydwny Jeysie|y
255 2'S6 GEG'2S 802 1619'vS 0 619'vS |ooyog Apjusws|g ussiap
2es 2'S6 £/9'05 196°L  1¥E9'es 0 ¥£9'28 |ooyog Arejuswa| !
965 2'66 2rL'98 19€ 601'2G 0 601'2G |ooyos Alejuswus|g UBWPOOD) [ PIOYID
L9 2'S6 £66°'09 ¥9y 1519 0 /5¥'19 |ooyog Alejuswia|J uloques|
879 2'S6 895'19 88t 95059 0 950'G9 |ooyag Aejusws|g UOSQOOE( BLE| BUUY
799 2’56 62269 6LV'9  1879'69 oy ¥60'0L |ooyog Arejuswie|3 oAl
LS 2'S6 LSEPS Ely ¥92'vS 0 ¥9/'vS |ooyog Auejuswia|g xou;
0 G'v8 0 VN 0 2108 2108 (80 Ad) piojue o} uonippe papuny-joisiq
915 2's6 oLL'6Y 692 6.6V 0 6.E'6Y looyos Alejuswalg pJojueH
Gl9 2'S6 9£5'8S 60E‘L  |SpB'6S Sve'y 0609 |ooyos Alejuswis|g UoISeA[ED)!
6ES 2'S6 65E° LS 2Le 12225 0 L/2'2S |ooyog Alejusws|g (1eaus() sodle| ueg
Aoeden (1) D110 18N | 1onpaqg | ealy 18N ealy Baly [ooyas
l0SIAlQ 2l pepnjoxg i ssoly ]
2L

10U1SIQ PaIIUN J3lpUBYD



"$10p14109 JoliajuI 1o} pajsnipe Jou aJe S|00Yos papun)-g4S 810N

"Sjone| apelb Buolie suonnqulsip [enbs Buiwnsse abejoo; alrenbs [ooyas ybiy pue m_nn_E o1 nmwm._ o._n_ (2)

‘g4S Aq papun; sem junowe abejoo} alenbs

allua sy} ‘elojaiay] ‘spunyeoo| yim abejooy alenbs Aue ppe jou pip joMisip 8yl “4S | 10‘E9 Sem }jing abejoo) asenbs [enjoe Ing ‘48 000°‘c9 10} panoiddy (9)
‘Ayoedeo s jousip Jsulebe sjunod (45 005°9/) UnoLEe papunj-g4S aliua ayl ‘jing Ajjenjoe }aay aienbs /64°9/ nmtoau“_ 1014181p ybnouiy (s)

'g4s Aq papunj sem Junowe abejoo} alenbs

alljue ay) ‘aiojaiay | ‘spuny [eoo] yum sbejooy asenbs Aue ppe jou pIp JMISIP 8Y1 "dS $20°c9 Sem }ing abejooy asenbs [enjoe Ing ‘4S 910°€9 40} panolddy (1)
‘Jley-auo se

Sjunod [oAs| ape.b uspebiapury Bujwnsse sjaas| epell Buowe suognquisip [enbs Bujwnsse abejooy asenbs jooyos ybiy pue ‘s|ppiw ‘Alejuswale o} pajes-old (g)

"2002 ‘0g aunp 0} Joud spuny Aejino [ejdea pajoulsalun Yim }ing Sem )i 9sneoaq 2|qepn|oxa si [ooyds siy} Jo >H_‘_o_mE mc 1(2)

-abe)oo} alenbs jo adA} ey} uo Bulpuadsp | L0Z-S| ‘'S Y'Y Jo Aloeden juspnig jo uoulag Buppo m_n_w ay) ._mE_m co bmmmm_ (1)

e

66v'v1 0€6'S0E‘L 1689°69 [619°G/€°L |6/6°20C (86S°€8S‘L L m,rm;_m%ur
0 S'v8 0 VN 0 £20'L1L €20'LL IIH $814Q usH
0 S'v8 0 VN 0 9g8'e 9e8'e VO 18|pueyo
869'C G'v8 00S‘2lE  |¥N 00S‘2LE  |686°LY 68Y'PSE ybiH \Ema papun}-g4s;
¥G2'e G'v8 000's/2 (YN 000'622  iS12'}¥ G12'9lE |ooyos YBiH eyseg papunj-g4s!
0 G'v8 0 YN 0 vEZ'6L vE2'61 Z1Ad sndweg au3 1e )jinq 20kds [BUONIPPY |
925 256 190'0S  isob'z  199¥‘es |0 99¥'2g (L 1/9/¥ 21-6 0} 9-) WoJ} painbluooay) sndweg siug - deid 969)|07 BUOZUY|
GGY'S 2'S6 698'82c  |G92'0E IVEL'S9E  |£66'Ve 121068 |00yag YBIH uoyjieH|
99g‘e 2’56 00S'6EE  1610°'LE  I61S'0ZE  1689'09 80¢'LEY ~_|ooyag ybiH Jejpuey)
¥0L‘9 162CTL9  |89/°LL 1S90°V29 |€19°LY 8£/'599 ‘ g-Le1ol
0 978 0 VYN 0 LIS'8 L1S'8 (2) (Ajuo uoiod g-2) Awapeoy BuluieaT |IH joIyD usy
0 Sv8 0 VN 0 8L¥'L 8yl () J81uaD 3YyD Jo|pueyn
0zr'L G'v8 00002} YN 00002l |28 280021 auked Ao pue al|iIpM PapUN)-g4S|
900°L g'v8 000‘s8 VYN 000°s8 £9v'El £9v'86 YBiH Jojunp uejueS papun-g-4S
859 2'S6 G19'29 0 51929 0 G19'29 (Hr [euonipel] Jsjpueyg Apsuuo)) sndwe) puepieQ - deld a69]j00 euozuy |
250°L 2'G6 8S1°00L  [10Z'L  l6S8'LOL  l66L‘BL 850°'02t looyos yBiH Jolunp SijjI!
1821 2'S6 1/2'/1) £98'y  lov9zgzk 0 ov9‘gel |ooyas ybiH Jr usslepuy W uyor
LES'L 2'S6 vL'92L  |voe's IS6'LEL |0 LS6°LEL ~100Yos YBiH Jojunp ajbog

[4%7
uIsIg paiiun Is|pueyd
|jooyas Aq Ayoeden pue abejood alenbg



paun Jajpuey) Aloede g1,

sjosloid 47

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejooy alenbs ssaoxa Jo Ayoeden
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) ploysaiy} %Gz Jo sseoxe Ul )|ing aq 0} 8bejoo asenbg
8/6'leyr GE6'6LY 9v¥'6ly ¥I8'02y €le'ler ge/8'lgr 006'Ley 80V'gey E£6L°9Lv ploysalyl %S
%S¢ %S¢ %52 %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ X
08 08 08 - 08 08 08 08 08 08 lojoe} Aoenbape WU X

660°IC 16602  2.l6'0¢ L0'Le L90‘12  ¥60°te g60'te  0cl'ke  0O¥8‘0C
6£0'8/2  6£0'8/2 6E0'8/2  6£0'8/2 6E0'8/2 6E0'8/2 6£0'8/2 P6L°Z8L  ¥61°/281

suonoafoid NAY

[elol m>:m_:E:wu

G¥8'06 9-3 PepuNn}-olsIp MaN
oy (e Ad) uoieaoual ao10 / Ajus skl

82108 (21 Ad) Areluawa3 uospe) |oJe) pue uyor

809t (01 Ad) UoiseAleD je laus) ‘FHY' D

S¥e'y (60 Ad) uonIppE UOISaAR|D)

8g (80 Ad) uonppe AsjeH

zlo's (80 Ad) L1OL pue:0 Lol sbpig pJojeH

gel'l \ uonippe sbbiy

VAZ A : UolIPPE UoyN4

16¥'98 ‘ sjoafoid snouep

éc Ad IS Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LI Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad SIeaA abejoo4 alenbg g-)

loud :

Ui payiun Js|pueyd
S10¢/Le/t Hoday spund |e207]



pauyiun Jajpueyd Ajoede g,

sjoalold 41

SR

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejo0} a1enbs ssaoxa Jo Ajoede)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) ploysaiyl %Gz Jo ssaoxa Ul Jjing aq 0} abejoo alenbg
£ee'sel I82'6€L /S0Pl 89/'8El I8E'/EL €E€0E'SEL  669'EElL 968'62L E0E'9CL ployselyl %53
%S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ X
08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 lojoey Aoenbape wnWIUIA X

£92'9 ¥96'9 £10'2 8E6'0 698'9 G9.'9 G89'9 G61'9 GLE'9
vLL'ggl  vll'egl  vil'egl  vlb'Zel  vlL'gel  vll'ggl  vil'gel  EL9°ly  €L9°\Y

suoioslold WAV

[B]01 8AlE|INWwND

10508 (pejed-oud) g|-2 papunj-1ouisip maN

gLyl (01 Ad) uoisejen je Jajua) "I'H'Y'O

L1S'8 (01 Ad) IH 2D, usy

66181 £0 Ad uonippy ybiH e st

8G/Cl 20 Ad uonippy YbiH “Ir ueues

182 sjooalosd snouep

¢c Ad Lg Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LL A4 91 Ad SlL Ad SIESA abejoo asenbg g-/

Joud
s payiun J8puey)

Sl0e/Le/ Hoday spun4 [0



pauun Ja|puey) Aoeded gi,

syoelold 41

‘9’3 L102-G} "S'H'v 4ad (1)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 obejoo} aienbs ssaoxa Jo Ayoede)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) PIoysaiU} %SGz Jo ssedxa Ul Jing aq o} abejoo atenbs
Evv'6¥E  L96'SPE  JElL'ebE  L/G'9EE  2/9°LEE  0l9'gee  9vL'Ele  ¥8L'E0E  EZE'L6S Ploysalyl %Se
%S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ X
6 76 6 76 76 6 6 6 76 lojoeyAoenbape wnwiuiy X
0/8'%1 cel'vl 209'v1 gee'vl 141%4" geL'cl LGeel 1262l L6€'2L suonoslold NQY

v/v'88¢  v/¥'882 ¥.¥'88¢

v.v'882  ¥/p'882 V¥.¥'882  v/v'882 €/¥'l2l  €.4¥°/2L

[B10] 8Aljenwng

LOO' L9} (pejel-0id) 21~/ PopUN}IOLISIP MON
yee'6l (@l Ad) 110l "Bpig eug
9e8'2 (01 Ad) ucisealen je Jejued "I'Y'V'0
£20°L) (01 Ad) IMH 214D, ua)y
6150 60 Ad UbiH Ausd
89€'6 20 A UbiH Ausd
£6¥'29 sjoelold snouep

22 A 2 Ad 02 A4 61 Ad 81 Ad Ll Ad 91 Ad Gl Ad SEENN abejoo asenbg z1-6
loud
Jouisia payiun ls|pueyd
S10¢/L¢/} Hoday spun4 [e207]



palyiun 19|pueyn Anoeden g, (21-M) speloid 41

'9'3 1 102-G1 "'S'H'V 4ed (1)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo} asenbs ssaoxe jo Aoeden

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) pioysaly} %SGe Jo ss80xa Ul }jing eq o} abejoo alenbg

98/'206  699'L06 EV9'668 619'c68 /91888 225'8/8 688'898 vGY'0S8 925'SE8 ploysalyl %Se

%52 %52 %G2 %S2 %G¢2 %G2 %52 %52 %Ge %G2 X

G'¥8 S8 G'p8 G'v8 S'v8 G'v8 S'v8 Gy8 S8 l0joe} Aoenbape winwiuly X

geL'ey €892y  /8S‘ey goe'ey  evo'er  /8S'ly  LELLP  gPSOY  2S5'6E suolosfoid WAV

/89'889  /89'889 /89'889  /89'889 /89889 /89'889 /89'889 OVE'OSE OPE‘QSE [BJ0] ®AiBINWNY

LOO' L9 (pejes-0id) 2|~/ PapuN}-oUISIp MaN

AT (2t Ad) LLOL *Bpig Bug

9e8'e (01 Ad) uoisenlen je Jejue)d ‘YYD

£20°L} (0L Ad) I'H 42D, us)

6159 60 Ad YBIH Ausd

89E‘6t 20 A4 ubiH Ausd

e61'29 sjosloid snouep

105'08 (pejel-01d) 2|~/ POPUN}-IOUISIP MON

gLyt (0} Ad) uoiseaien je Jejus) "JHVY'D

LS8 (0L Ad) INH 41D, sy

6618l 20 Ad uonippy ybiH “Ir sl

86221 10 Ad uonippy ybiH ir uejueg

187 s10efold snouep

S¥8'06 9-) PapuUN}-1oUIsSIp MON

1A% (€1 Ad) uonenaousas a0 / Aus ahi4

8108 (2l Ad) Aejuswis|g uospie |oleD pue uyor

809'v (01 Ad) uoisenien je JBjusD "J'H'Y'D

S¥e'y (60 Ad) UolppE uoisane|D

8e (80 Ad) uonippe AsjeH

2Lo's (80 Ad) 110 pue 010} sbpig piojeH

g2}t uonppe sbbiy

v’ uonippe.uoynd

va.ow m«om.—o._a SNOLIEBA

22 Ad g Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 8l Ad Ll Ad 9l Ad Sl Ad slea abejoo asenbg g|-)
Joud

K

JouIsIqQ peyiun Je|pueyn ,
Slog/Le/L (21-)) uoday spun- [eo07 '



Florence Unified School District

District Overview

Florence Unified School District is located in the center of Pinal County along State
Highway 79. It is situated between the Phoenix and Tucson metro areas. The District
currently has seven K-8 elementary schools (Johnson Ranch Elementary and Walker
Butte Elementary have been combined and are counted as one school) and two high
schools serving approximately 8,000 ADM.

District ADM History
Over the past five years, the District’s ADM growth rate dropped from 8.9% in FY 10 to

-2.4% in FY 13 and FY 14. The annualized growth rate for the five-year period was
2.1%.

7.000
6.000 W
3.000
+4.000 e K-8
3.000 W ~8—9-12
2.000 4
1.000
0 T ; ‘ T T T T g
FYO9 FY10 FY11l FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15* FY16*
*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections
District Outlook

During the decade 2001-2010, more than 15,000 new housing units were added to the
District, fueling ADM growth from 1,408 in FY 01 to 7,608 in FY 10. Between FY 11
and FY 14, the total new housing units numbered approximately 1,100. The first charter
school (K-6) located inside the district boundary opened in FY 15 with an enrollment of
more than 230 students. However, nearby charter schools in neighboring Queen Creek
and Coolidge Unified Districts have experienced an overall decline in enrollment. With
the housing market continuing to improve in the area, the District’s ADM is expected to
slightly increase by 0.8% at the K-8 level, and to increase by 9.8% at the 9-12 level this
year. The District has a promising outlook in long-term new construction growth. SFB
staff projects that the District will experience continuous ADM growth in the
approximate range of 4.0-6.5% for most years in the analysis timeframe, barring
unforeseen conditions.



0672k | 000°F | vOS'L | 668+ | 896+ | 888+ | B9t | 6/t 166 ovy
B10L | 22Ad | L2Ad | 02Ad | 6LAd | 8LAd | ZLAd | O9LAd | SLAd | vEAS
;e suonosloid “yess g4s Aq paisnipe sy (1)
22 Ad 12 AL 02 Ad 6 Ad 81 Ad LL A4 9t Ad St Ad pLAd
/

2SI pajiun 8dualol4
(1) se1ouednoop swoH maN

00S

000°}

00S°}

0002

0052

O 9WOH MaN

salouednoo



98/'8 98/.'8 98/'8 08/'8 98/'8 98/°8 98/'8 98/'8 98.'8 98/'8 Aoede)
80.'. 861, leeg'. 1189 89%'9 L2L9 ¥8.'S 255'S 0/£'S 0Ee‘s SoY'S Nav g4s
2ee’'l v8L'L 126'9 0£9'9 $9€'9 080'9 6/9'G L7S'S L7e'S 0ee’'s Gov'S Wav ousig
€2 Ad 22 Ad 12 Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 8l Ad Ll Ad 9l Ad Sl Ad ¥L Ad ELAd [8)
&
Aoedeg WAV 84S ------- WaV 1ousIq - — — ‘
€2 Ad 22 Ad e Ad 02 A4 61 Ad 8l Ad LL A4 9l Ad Sl A4 v Ad el Ad
i 1 1 ‘ : | 1 L t 5 . y Ooo.m
e T B 005's
- \\\“\\u
\\W\\
— 0009
— \\ 00S°9
—_ - \\\\\\\\\
— ; 0002
0052
000'8
00S‘8
000'6

JOUISIQ PalIUn 80UBI0|4
ydei g-y|



Ajoeden

G96'C 596°C G96'2 G962 GO6'C G962 G96'2 G66'C ¥10'e £.0'e
9¢6'c £26'c 89/°€ 065°€ £1e'e eLI'e 2lé'e ¢ele GG59°e Liv'e Wav 94Ss
0LL's 089'v Gee'v £86'C G¥8'e 065‘e 08e'e £/6°'2 eEY'e L\v'e WQ@y 1ous1a
€C Ad ¢e Ad Le Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 91 Ad GlL Ad vl Ad €LAd |CL-6
Ayoeden Wav g4s ------- Way 1ousig - — — 2
€S Ad ¢ Ad kS Ad 0¢c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad Ll A4 91 Ad S Ad Tl Ad 9>n_
! L 1 L 1 1 ! OOO.N
— = 00S ¢
I
\\\\||\|| 7 4
— st — — ooo.m
\\\\ -
s -
\\\\\\ - - !
\\\\ == - = oom m
||\||||\ g - -
|||||||\||\| - -
............. et 0007
~
— ~
P ~
——= 00S'¥y
7~
P
~
P .
7 W .
e + 000°'S
005°s

JOLISIQ Peliun 8uaI0|4

ydelo z1-6




5102 ‘Lz Maenuer

X00p'Z -6 80UAIOY G| LOHEPUSLILIOIRNDSYILUL) 89UBIOJ\UORONISUOD MaU G L\BUILUE|d [BHDED\:O

-payipow 1o ‘pajeulwys ‘pakejep aq o} [enusiod sy} eAey pue ‘mairal uodn IONVHO OL 1LO3raNs
S193rodd WNLDIONOD 11V "S123rodd d3aAO¥ddV-ATIVNLAIONOD Ol a3LLINNOD SI ONIANNd ON :910N

‘SuapN}S 965°L 94 PINOM JOLISIP SIY} Ul [00YIS Z|-6 Juapn}s-00Z‘l € Jo Aioedes jenjoe oy :8j0N

(jlemdaouo?)

(NLLO) 002°L
104216

CC-120C Ad

12-020C Ad

02-610C Ad

61-810¢C Ad

- 81-210C Ad

L1-910C Ad_

91-§10C Ad

G102 Ad

GL0Z ‘v Adeniqod 10} UCIIEPUBWIWOI3Y JJels

‘s|00yos ainyny Joj Aiojuaaul ul pue| Aue aaey jou saop JouIsia

ayl ‘6l A4 ul pencidde aq o} Jeaf ise| panoidde-Ajjenideouod sem NLLO 100lo1q :3senbay sjouysig Buipiebay seloN yels

(NZ210)
002’1
10} 216
221202 A4 12-0202 Ad 0Z-6L0z Ad| 61-8L0Z Ad| 8L-2102 Ad| Z1-9102 Ad 91-6L0Z Ad | SL-¥10Z Ad
j}sonbay uononiysuo) MaN JoLgsia
(Z1L-6)
L0ZoLL—~Aald

Jouysiq payiun aouaiold

sisAjeuy uononisuo) maN §10¢

a¥dvosd

s3a1LI1T71D0Vd

TOOHDOJS




paiun @ouaio|4 Aoede) g,

c¢l-6

81 Ad 965k | 000051 gel 002'L gL-6 |00Y3s m8N - NLLO
Ad Ayioeden 1994 Juapnig | Auoeden | ‘byuod
lerouddy | jempoy atenbg Jod 48 ubisag apely uonduaseq / JequinN 108fold

:anoldde Ajjenidesuod 0} s uciiepuswWodal Hels sy |

NOILYANAWWOO3Y 44VLS §102 ‘v AHYNHE3A

‘Ajjoeden Juspnis [B10] pue suonosiold NQy ueamiaq aouaiaylq (g)
"abed spund 200 89S '9'3 1102-S| "S'H'Y Jod se sjuswalinbai abejoo} arenbs wnwiuiw s oLISIP 8Y) JO %62 Spasoxa ey} abejoo} aienbs jo Aoeden (g)

"abed |ooyos Aq Anoede) pue ebejoo arenbg s8g (1)

196 856 €08 Gc9 8ve 8t - - - () padinbal s| 8oeds MauU YoIyM 10} SJUBPNIS JO JaqUINN
%10 %Ly %0°G %¥'8 %¥'9 %69 %99 %62 %8°6 %L 2" ) ajey ymmoln Nay
926°C £26°C 89/‘c 065°C gle‘e eLL'e [x4 eelL'e 5692 LIv'e suoljoaloid IQy papuswiwiodsl g-4S
Sv1e GLL L 09€‘L 810} 088 629 GLE - - (€) paiinbai s| aoeds mau yoiym Joj mE%Ew JO 1aquuny
%26 %28 %9°'8 %9'E %L %SG°6 %E0L |%eege |%L0 %L'e- aley ymoln NV
0LL‘S 089t Gee'h £86°C Sb8‘c 065°E 082‘c £.6c eev'e Liv'e suonodaloid Wav siouisia
5962 G96‘2 5962 5962 596'C G962 596 5662 v1o0‘c £20°‘c Alioede) juapnis [ejol
- - - - - - - 08 [ 80} (2) Anoeded papunj-jousia
G96'2 G96'2 596'2 596'¢ G96'2 G962 596'2 596'¢ G96'2 G96'2 (1) Aioeden Bupsixa
£2 Ad 22 Ad le Ad 02 Ad 6l Ad 81 Ad Ll Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad ¥1 Ad clL-6
2L6
Jouysig paljiun asualol4
S10c/Ee/ | sisfAjeuy UoONIISUOD M3N pieog saljl|ioe |ooyos




pauiun sousaiold Ayoede) g1,

nav

%L'S %.'S %9'S %V'9 %9°S %0°S %V %S¢ %50 %8’ |- abueyo %

29511 GO0} 1 LIV OL 0986 192'6 €21'8 8se‘8 920's 828°',L 18/1°1 £e6°L [elo1

%c'c %6°S %9°E Yol'L %¥9 %S°S %E L %l %1€ %9°¢e- abueyo %

289'e ¥09'e eor'e €82 G90'e 1882 ceL'e o9vs‘e 8.¥'2 vov'e 89v'‘e ¢l-6

%59 %9°S %99 %19 %E'S %Ly %L’E %¥'e %90~ %SG 1~ abueyd % .

088°ZL Lov'L 600°L 1159 2029 268'S 929'G 08¥'G 0Se‘S £8€'S Gov's 8-

g2 Ad ¢c Ad L2 Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 AL 91 Ad S1Ad vi Ad el Ad Jea) }seq - }sedalod NAv 94S

.«Cman_m>mU |eljuspisal pue |BAIAINS
HOoY0o Uo paseq g¢ A4 cm_._ohcu S Ad '3V wiol} psAiedal uoljewlojul uo peseq [enjoe ale 7| A4 pue gl A4 “mCO_“—QE_._mm(

%6" | %6 %E’S %49 %6°S %29 %0°S %2t %9 %V'e- abueyo %

EEI' LI 4 AN G66°0 L LEVOL 18.2'6 vee2'6 G69'8 ¥82'8 ¥20'8 ovL'L £e6°'L [elol

%10 %Lv %0°'S %v'8 %¥°9 %6°9 %99 %6°¢ %86 %l'e- abueyo %

9¢6'e £26° 89/t 065 ELE'S ELL'E 216 geLe 659 L1¥2 89¥'2 ¢l-6

%8¢ %L'E %SG %6°S %L'S %8°S %SV %V'E %80 %S'¢- abueyo %

80L°L 86v°L Yx4A4A L¥8'9 89¥‘9 I2L'9 ¥8.'S gss'e 0/£°G 0ee's Goy'S 8-

€¢ Ad ¢ Ad ke Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad 9L Ad SI AL Vi Ad €l Ad jsedalod WAV 94S
%6'Y %V'S %09 %0'v %9'S %6°L %C'S %56 %¥'0 %V C- abueyo %

avv'el  vo8‘LL 2se' 1 £19°01L 6020} 0,9°6 6568 vis's v2L'L ovLL £e6°'L [ElO1
%26 %c'8 %9'8 %9 Yl'L %56 %E 0L %C’ce %L'0 %le- abueyd %

OLI'S 089t Gee'y £86°C S¥8'e 06S‘e 082'c €162 Eev'e Liv'e 892 cl-6
%le %lL'E %SV %Y %LV %l %S¢ %LE %S0 %S’¢e- abueyo %

gEE’L ¥81°L £26'9 0£9'9 ¥9e'9 0809 629'S pS's IPE'S 0Ee's gov's 8-
£¢ Ad ¢c Ad ke Ad 0¢ A4 6L Ad 8L A4 L1 Ad 9L Ad SEAd ¥IAd EFAd isedalod WAV papirold PUISIg

Rusiq payiun eduslold
S10e/ec/} suoposlold WAV



,mmmhm><
1A~

% - %9'C %Y %6'8 abueyo ¢,
£E6'L G2lL's 6162 809°Z lelot
%E0 %6°G %S’ 2 %6°0E abueyo o,
8972 09t'e geL'e 8yl cL-6
%S"€- %E'¢- AN %L’ abueyo 9,
Sov'S G99°G 96.'S 098°S 8-
vl Ad eL Ad ZL Ad LL Ad 0L Ad 60 Ad

J0LISIQ Paliun 9UaIo|4

AioisiH Nav




s s e A

"SI0pLIOD JOUBUI 10} PaISN[pe Jou S| Spuoq g 10 g4S 8yl Aq papuny momdw 910N

‘|ooyog Aejuswia|g

89ualol4 Je 100} Buip|ing 1o} eoeds jusweoe|del S| 4S 00S'0} "100YIS B|PPIN 8ousI0|4 Y £00) Buip|ing Joj eoeds juswaoe|dai si 4S 986'y "SPUO] g Yum Jing (2)

"abe)ooj asenbs Jo adA) sy} uo Bulpuadsp | L0g-G| "S'H'Y 40 Ailoede) Juspnig Jo uoniuljaq Bupliop g4s 8yl ‘_mcgm«co paseg (1) )

£L0‘c €EL'9SE 9191 |ebe‘sse  |08e‘8S  |eeloly o Zl-6 le1o] ]
8/ 6 162'L VN 162'L 0/0'8e  [/9€'sy (g) eung uojsod Je uopippe papuni-jousiq
S6.'1 gLl 000°L0Z _ |WN 000'L02_ |010'¥ 010'soe (01 Ad pauado) (NS00) @Hng uojsod papunj-g4S
LS 6 G68°2 VN G68'2 SOL'SH 000'8} (€) SH @du810}4 Je UonIppE PSpUN}-OUISI] |
4 L2l £2S'} 62 255‘l 0 2ss‘l (80 PUB 20 Ad) SH 99810} Je UolIPPE papunj-jousiq
(> 0ocl Ooo.m YN Ooo.m VN Ooo.m Suoljoalio) >ocm_ocm0 cm_._o._cu UmUSQQ aoeds .m:mumh.mo papuny- m“_m
09 0zl 0252, |¥N ozs'e. YN 02s‘el looyos ybly Bunsixe Je aoeds [euolippe papun}-g4s:
625 G'62k |86¥'89  [/8S‘L 1800  |S6L°L 082'LL - 100yog ybi 8ousio|
98.‘g vle'vlL 29l't  |9.5'8LL |60€'G9  |588°C8Z gl [0l
L2t 08 0v9'L0L  |¥N 0v9'LOL  iSe G/9°101 _Youey ewbepy papunj-g4s
L2t 08 Ov9‘'L0L YN ov9'L0L 10 0v9‘LOL yaliey §S0.1Q 8|21 papunj-g4s
122'] 08 0¥9'LoL  IUN ov9'Ll0L |0 0v9‘L0L ! LBYjuy papun}-g4s:
L2 L 08 0v9°'LOL YN 0v9'LoL 10 0v9‘LOL Yyouey auliAg pepuny-g4s
9sz'l 608 ov9'LoL  |WN ov9'LoL |0 ov9'LOL uiseq Jaddo) papunj-g4s
8¥ 608 £16'C VN £16'E 0 EL6'E Yyouey UOSUYOr Je 8eds [euojIppE papun)-g4s
0g2 '8 /6802 10 /6802 10006 /6€'62 (sung Je[eM Yim [00YDS BUO S Sajeado Lllym |00yos pajeuop) Youey UOSUYOP
0se'L 608 7101 |¥N L0110 L 1O aung Jay[e M papunj-g-4s
61 6708 ars't VYN Zvs’l VN Zrs't suopoa.o) Aousioljeq ybnouy) peppe "'\ 80usloj4 Je soeds Ateiq) pepuni-g4s;
80€ G'88 1/2'/2 0 1l2'12 0 1l2'12 (8- @ousi0|4 Se Aiejuswa|] 80us10|4 Yim sejesado) a|ppiyy 89ULI0|]
/S| G'88 LE6'EL 6vS'L  198v'SL  p/l'Sh 109219 (2) uoippe g- 8ousio||
vEY 588 0v'8e  |elg'e  l0g29'0r  100S'0L 0ZL'LS (8-) @oualo|4 SE e|ppIj\ 8ouBI0|4 Yiim Sejelado) Aejuswia|3 8ouslol]
Ayoeden (1) J1J0 18N [1onpaq | ealy 18N ealy ealy £ o looyds
losialqg ol papnjox3 | ssouy e

JouIsIq paljiun sduslol
|[ooyos Aq Auoedes pue sbejoo4 aienbg



psijiun soualol4 Anoede) g1,

sjosfoid 41

‘93 LL02-S| 'S'H'Y 4ad (1)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 oe 6V 801 abejooj asenbs ssaoxs Jo Ajoeden
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 98L'z  S09'v 2610l (1) PIoys@iu} %Gg 40 sS8X8 Ul Jinq 8q 03 sbejoo sienbg
0S2'26 98126 €¥S'88  /GE'Y8  6¥8°ZL 2SL'E. $e¥'89  S0ZY9 98829  66.'9S ploysaiyl %Se
%S2 %S2 %52 %G2 %Ge %Ge %S2 %52 %Se %SGe R %G2 X
v6 v6 6 6 6 6 ¥6 v6 6 6 " lojoe} Aoenbape winwiuly X
9g6'c €26t  89L'€ 065t  €le'e  ELL'E  gle'?  gel'ec  §59'C LIv'e suonoslold NV
16699  166'99  166'09  166'09  166'99  166'99 16699  166°99  166'99 166'99 . [BIOL SAlEINWNYD
/9E°Sy (0L A4) WAB aopoeid ang uosod

0008} (0LAd) wAD sonoeld SHA

v29'c (60Ad) Jueld [euB0 papunj-JoUsip aung uolsod

€2Ad 22 Ad lEAd 02Ad  6LAd  8LAd  ZLAd 9L Ad SL A SEEN abejoo alenbg z1-6

ioud ’

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo} arenbs ssaoxs Jo Aloeden
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) PIOYsaIU} %GZ JO SSE9X8 Ul Jing 8q 0} 8Bej004 sienbg
ESIPSL €S6'6VL  8YS'v¥L 6¥6'0EL  vOE'62l  £2h'@2l  LZ9'GLL E£E0°LLL 26640k 165904 PloysayL %Se
%SGe %S¢ %SGe %Ge %G2 %G2 %SGe %Ge %Ge %S¢ %S¢ X
08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 lojoe) Aoenbape wnwiuiy X
80LL  86Y'L  lgglL  L¥8'9  89¥9 L2’ ¥8L'G  gSS's  0LE'S 0EE’s suonoeloid INQY
608'YS  608'¥S  608'YS  608'YS  608'VS  608'YS 608‘vS 608'YS 608VS  608'YS [B101 SABINWNY
Ge (60 Ad) uonippe youey: ewbep

v22'Sy (L0 Ad) (eoeds Juswaoe|dal Jo Jou) UoHIPPE 8-) B2UBIO|

000°6 (#0 Ad) 61L01-G 101 "sBp|q Youey uosuyor

€2Ad 22 Ad lGAd  02Ad  6LAd  8LAd  LZLAd 9L Ad SLAd SN abejoo arenbg g-y

l0ld
loulsiq patjiun eouslo|4
S10¢/Ee/| Hoday spund (8007



Higley Unified School District

District Overview

Higley Unified School District is located about 35 miles southeast of downtown Phoenix.
The District is surrounded by the Chandler, Gilbert and Queen Creek School Districts. In
FY 14, the District leased and chartered the newly built Sossaman Middle School and
Cooley Middle School. The District currently has eight K-8 schools (which currently
only serve grades K through 6 as the District has moved all 7™ and 8% graders to the
leased charter schools) and two high schools serving nearly 9,000 ADM.

District ADM History

The District’s ADM went through a hyper growth mode during the first half of the
decade from 2000 to 2010, reaching 6,693 in FY 06 from 675 in FY 01. Growth rates
stayed below 5.0% from FY 10 to FY 13 and turned negative to -15.1% in FY 14 due to
the conversion of 7™ and 8" graders to charter students. The annualized growth rate for
the past five years was -0.8%.

9,000
8,000
7,000 W\ //
6,000 S 5
>,000 ——K-8
4,000
3,000 .____'_—.-—-P" 8 912
2,000 -
1,000
O T T T T H T 1 i
FYO9 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15* FY16*
*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections
District Qutlook

During the past decade, unlike many other school districts that experienced dramatic
growth and declines during the housing boom and bust years, this district’s ADM never
declined until the District chartered two newly built middle schools for 7™ and 8™ graders
in FY 14. This year, the overall ADM is forecasted to grow 2.4%. The non-district
sponsored charter schools inside the district boundary expanded in FY 15 with a total of
253 students added at the K-8 level and 361 at the 9-12 level according to a charter
enrollment report by ADE. As the two district sponsored charter schools convert to
district schools next year (FY 16), these schools’ ADM will be counted as district ADM.
Barring unforeseen charter expansion, the District’s ADM is projected to undergo
consistent growth with rates ranging between 1.5-3.5% per year during the projection
cycle thanks to its location in the Southeast Valley and higher birth numbers during the
last few years.



001

00¢

00g€

00V

00S

8069 S8S 819 G99 02l 082 006 968 968 L¥8
|ejol 2¢ Ad 12 Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 9L Ad SL Ad Pl Ad
:ale suonosfold “yeis g4s Aq paisnipe sy (})
¢c Ad le Ad 02 Ad 6} Ad 8} Ad Ll Ad 91 Ad Sk Ad ¥l Ad
’
——

1ouIsIq payiun As(Biy

(1) selouednooQ swo maN

009

004

008

006

000°}

O SWOH MaN

sajouednoo



£LE'6 YEY'6 06%'6 965'6 £65°'6 9v9'6 169'6 15/'6 666'8 6E0°6 |Auoeden
82’6 £66'8 89/'8 £85'8 85E‘8 evL'8 0v6‘L 00L°/2 €EL'S ¥.8'S Nav.g4ds
065'8 105’8 LO¥'8 8vE's 0ve'8 221’8 ¥¥0'8 028', 6£9°'/ ¥.5'S £82'L naveusia
€2 Ad ¢e Ad e Ad 02 Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 9L Ad SL Ad vl Ad ELAd [8M
Ayoeden WAV 84S ------- NaV 1oWsig — — —
€2 Ad 22 Ad L2 Ad 02 Ad 6} Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9l Ad S Ad ¥l Ad EL Ad
1 X i L L i ! L i L OOO.m
- 00S's
o \l\\>
7 / . 000'9
4 / /
\ N 005°9
/ /
7 AY 000'Z
/ \
a 0052
e 2= 000'8
. 005'8
\ 0006
——— — — 005'6
000'0L

1o1isig payiun AsiBiH
ydein g-y




A 2cey 2ce'y cee'y 2ce'y cee'y 2ce'y 2ee'y ¢ce'y 2ce'y b_om%o.,
G86'S 096°E /¥6'E 158 6/8'c 508 7v9'e S0S5'e 2’ 681'c 7E0'E NQv g4s
Sel'y /99y 009t LIy 068y 26e'y 2l0'Y L¥8'e 18¥'E 68L'E ¥€0°e NQy 1ou1s1g
€2 Ad ¢¢ Ad L¢ Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad VL Ad ELAd [CL-6
Anoeden Wav g4s ------- Wav 1usig - — —
€C Ad ¢c Ad 12 Ad 0c A4 6L Ad 81 Ad LL A4 9L Ad SL Ad 7L Ad €l Ad
! 1 1 ) ] ! L ! OOO.m
—
\\ I
o 002'e
\\\\ \
\\\ 7 < oo.v.m”
\\\\ \
\\\\\\ \ ¢
=" ~ 009t
\\\\\\\\\ \\
> 008°c
T ——— " e
T e
lllllllllllllllllllll - - 3
..... < 000'%
P :
”~ - .
—< 002y
. P
=" 00v'y
- - - -
— =" 009'¥
008'v
000‘s

louisiq payiun AsibiH
ydein g1-6




sioz ‘ez lenuer

x20p°g-M A8iBly G| uonepusLwooapayiur A8iBiH\UoonISUD mau G | \BuluuEld [BIden:O

[enocidde
[enjdaouoo
ON

¢c¢-1¢0cC Ad

12-020¢ Ad

02-610¢C Ad

61-810¢C Ad

81-210C Ad

L1-9102 Ad

91-G10¢C Ad

SL-¥102 Ad

G102 ‘v Atenigad Joj uoijepuswiwioday Hels

"Sjooyos aininy 1o} EoEgg ul seyis
8-M saiy sey jouisiq 8yl “leah ise| panoidde Ajjenidsouoo jou sem josfoid siy) 3senbay sjolsiq Buipiebay seloN Lel1S

sjuapnis
000°L 10} 9-) -
gc-120c Ad| 12-0202 Ad| 026102 Ad| 61-8102 Ad 81-2102 Ad| 21-9102 Ad | 91-G102 Ad S1-v102 Ad
]sanbay uojjoniisuo) MapN 1o13siq
(8-))
092010 - dlD

1oIsIa payiun AsiBiy

sisAjeuy uoljonisuon mapN 5102

advosd

s3at1LiI110vd

TOOHOS




payiun Ae|BiH Ayoede) g1,

8-

‘[eaoidde [enydaouod oy

NOILYONAWINOO3Y 44V1S 6102 ‘v AHYNHE3A

‘Anoede) Juspmis (10 pue suonosfold NQY usemiaq sdualeyid (€)
‘obed spund [eoco 8ag '9'g L1.0g-SL "S'H'V Jod se sjuswalinbai abejoo} aienbs wnwiuiw s10UISIP 8} JO %G Spesdxe jey) abejoo) sienbs Jo Ayoede) (g)

‘abed |ooyog Ag Auoeden pue abejoo4 alenbg aag (|)

- - - - - - - - - (g) pasinbal s| saoeds Mau Yoiym 1o} SJUSpNIS JO JISqLUNN
%.L'C %9'¢ %3'C %.'C %92 %9'¢ %L'E %E Ve %62 %G €2 8ley ymoin Nav
8€2'6 £66°Q 89/‘g £85°8 g6e‘s evL'g ov6°‘L 00.°L eel's v.lg's suonaslold NIAY papuswWiuioddy g-4S
- - - - - - - - - (e) paainbal s| eoeds mau yaiym 1o} SJUSPNLS jO JequinN
%0k %" | %90 %€ | %S’ | %0 | %6'C %¥'c %L'LE %S €c- 8ley yimoio Ndy
0658 2058 Lov‘s 8be's ove's 22L's vb0‘s 028'. 6892 b.S‘S suonposfold av s,01sia
£2£'6 vev'e 061'6 9e5‘6 £65°6 99’6 1696 1SL°'6 6668 606  Ajjoede) juspnis [ejo
gL V.. 0€8 118 ££6 /86 180°1 160"} ) 6.8 (¢) Aoeded papuny-joLisiq
099'8 099'8 099'8 099°8 099'8 099'8 099'8 099'8 099'8 099°8 ‘ (1) fuoeded Bunsixg
£¢ Ad 2c Ad kg Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LL A4 91 Ad Sl Ad VL Ad ; 8-M
8-
Jo10s1q paylun AslBiH
G10c/ee/ sisAjeuy uononIIsSuU0) MaN pieog sanjioe [ooyos




payun As|BiH Ayoeded g1,

nav

%S %V’ L %0°¢ %L’} %L} %V'E Ve %l'E %6°¢ YLV - abueyd %

6680 ovL'0lL ¢6s'0l 08E01 020t 8E0°01 cLL'e LBE'6 ¢s0'6 161'8 gLe‘Ok [EloL

%00 %80~ %80 %€°0 %0 | %C’S %0°G %8°L %E’'S %8V abueyo % ,
¥E0'Y 9e0'y 0.0t 6€0'Y 620y 686'C 06.'t L9'e 0se'e I8Le ¥€0‘e cl-6 ‘ ]
%V'e %8'¢ %62 %l'C %lC %le %S¢ %’ | %S | %6'ce- , abueyo % ;
G98‘9 £0.'9 £25‘9 ove‘9 GLL9 8¥0‘9 2c6's 08.°S 20.'s 919'G £8¢'L 8-

£€¢ Ad ¢ Ad L Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad AW 91 Ad SEAd VI Ad ELAd

"Juswdo|oAsp [eljuspIsal pue [eAIAINS

Jea) 1seT - }sedalod NAVY 94S

Hoyo9 uo paseq £2 A4 Ubnoiyl gL A4 "3Qv Wol} PBAISaI UOBLLIOI U0 paseq [en)oe ale ¢ A4 pue g1 Ad :suonpdwinssy

%le %6} %EC %9’ L %¥'e %LE %¥'E %8¢ %¥'e %G abueyo %

gee'el €56'cH SLL2L  veEVCL JATAAN 8v6 L1 €8S°LI S0e'LL 9/6'8 2oL’ 9LE0L [elol

%90 %E°0 %S¢ %10~ %6 | %' %0'¥ %8 %L1 %L'S abueyo % )

G86‘e 096°c LV6'E LS8‘e 6.8°c G08'‘e y¥9'e Gos‘e yve'e 68L°E veo'e -6 .

%l'C %92 YA %L.L'2 %9¢c %92 %L'E %E Ve %62 %S'ee- abueyo % s

8EC'6 £66'8 89.'8 £85'8 85€'8 EVL'8 ov6‘L 00.°L £EL'S v.5°G £82'L 8- n

g2 Ad éc Ad L Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad 91 Ad S Ad VI Ad E1 Ad }sedalod WAV 9-4S
%l %E" %Vt %5’} %l'} %S¢ %6°€ %6'v %6'9¢ % LG abueyd <,

gee'el  vil'el LOO‘EL Ge8'cl 0e9'eck  viv'el olLtel L99'LL 0gH Lt 29.'s 9Le0l felol

%S} %S’} %L'e %02 %E'C %V'S %09 %€ 0} %<6 %L'S abueyo %,

GEL'Y 199y 009'% LLv'Y 06e'y c6e'y 2.0y L8e I8v'e 68L'E ve0'e cl-6
%0} %€’} %90 %E" L %S} %0’} %6°¢ %¥'c %LE %S°ee- abueyo %

0658 L0S'8 LOv'8 8ve's ove's [44%:] ¥¥0'8 028°'L 6€9°'L v.S'G €8¢, 8-
£¢ Ad ¢ Ad le Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LL Ad 91 Ad S Ad VI Ad el Ad jsedalod AV Papliroid 1oisig
louisig payiun Asjbiy
Sloc/ed/t suonoslold INQY



%9 %Y %S'C %} abueyo <,
910l $98'6 2.¥'6 172’6 jejol
%69 %9’y %8'E %16 abueyo 9,
¥£0'S /€82 2LL'2 £19'¢ 2L-6
%9'E %0 %02 %/ |- abueys 9,
egg'l | 120'L 09.'9 829'9 8-
abesany £l Ad 2L Ad LL Ad 0l Ad 60 Ad

Jeajp-g

1oMs1q payiun Aelbiy
AosiH wav



| W m ! | "s10p1109 Jo181UI Jof paisnipe jou ale spuog g Yum 1o g4S auyy Aq umvm:hm_oocowm#mz

WAV uo paseq Jeak,
|oea SaleA Yolym eale s|gepn|oxe Joj abed spund [e00 89S “ploysaly adeds papnjoxe speaoxe Ayjioe) pepuni-jouisip siy} jo abejooy arenbg (g)
Wing Ajfenjoe 45 012'v6 peodel 10LISIA "dS 05/ %6 10} peublseq S 0126 0} penoidde Ajle 7)

"SpUog g Ulm 1011sIp Ag papunj JS |G Jo 9oualagiq "659%6 PePUN} g4S Ning Aj[enioe Js 01.2'ye perodal jouisiq (9)

“(osre 'g4s Aq papuny sem
alojalayl pue “18bpng Jepun ul awes abejoo} alenbs [euonippe) YIng Ajlenioe 45 088°0 1 | paxodal Joulsip INg ‘4S | £8°01 | paroidde >__mc_m_._o ga4s Am,v

‘sisAfeue Ayoeded Ul papnjoul sl (4S 088°01 |) Junowe papunj-g§4s aJiua ay} ing ‘ying Ajjenoe 8,801 | Aluo nmtoamh u,o_.:w_o )

‘(osje g4s Aq papun) sem
aloyalay) pue ‘1ebpng Jepun ul swed abejooy aienbs [euolppe) ying Ajlenioe 48 ¥G/'v6 peHodal 1PIsIp Ing ‘4S 01L'v6 paacidde Ajjeulbuo g4s (€)

‘siskjeue Ayoedes Ul papnjoul s (S OEL‘ES) JUNOWE pepunj-g4s aJius ayl 1ng ‘}ing Ajlemoe 80‘es Ajuo pauodal Jolisid (2)
"suoijoalio) Aousiolya@ ybnoay; papiroid sbejoo; asenbs juswaoeldal jo 001 | L sepnjoul (1);

(4484 009'ss¥ |0 009'sst  gLZ'6h 818‘v0S abejoog atenbg z1-6 [e10L
£2r'e 76 008222 YN 008'2¢g |0 008°‘.2¢ SH PIayswel||Ip\ papunj-g4s:
0 6 0 VN 0 0011 00L kI ybiH As|BIH 0} uolippe papunj-loLsiq
868°L 0zl 00822z |¥N 008'/2Z _ 1815'/8 81£'s92 (4B1H As|BiH) |00yos papuny-g4S
6€0°6 v20‘06L  |909°L 089°'1EL  lov8ellL  |925‘hPe abejo04 asenbg g-y jejoL
6.8 008 lgle‘oe VN glLe'og 179'28 LS6°CL (8) Aejuswa|3 [ejuusiua)
0 008 |0 VN 0 6919l 69191 [elledeyQ o} uolippe papun)-jolisiq
8Ll 008 |0LL'¥6 VN 0LL'v6 0 0LL'V6 (£) lededeyg papunj-g4s|
98g’ | 008 |088'0LL  I¥N 088'0LL |0 088'0L | "BUIHOQ papun)-g4s;
€8L°L 008  |659'v6 YN 6S9'76 LS 0LL'v6 (9) siulod Aemalen papun)-g4s
L2E'L 608  1088°0LL  IVN 088‘0LL 10 088‘0Lk L () youey Jamod papunj-g4s;
LLE L 608 1088°0LL  |WN 088°0LF  |¥S9'E PES'VLL (v) ue| ues pepunj-g4s
LLL'E 608 [¥S.'¥6 YN ¥S.'v6 ¥S9'E 80%'86 (€) opeuoiog pepunj-g4s
159 608 loel'es VN oEl'es 0 oglL‘es (2) AMeyusws|3 As(biH ye aoeds [euolppPE PSpUN)-g4S
LEE G588  |598'62 9091 LV LE 2799 8v|'8E (1) Areuswa|3 AejbiH,
Auoedeg | (L) | J1J018N [1Onpaqg J|| eaiy 19N ea1y ealy jooyas
10S1A1Q papnjoxyg SS045) i

lolisig paiun AsibiH
jooyag Aq Aloeden pue abejoo alenbg



payiun AelbiH Anoede) g1,

syoafold 41

'9'3 L1L02-G} "Sd'v 4ed (1)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo} arenbs ssaoxa Jo Ajloeden
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) ploysalus %5z Jo sseoxa Ul }ing 8q o} abejoo sienbs
0v9'e6  G90'66 29.'26  /6V'06  GSL'L6  2gp'68  L29'G8  0/E'28 G229  6E6'WL ploysaiy L %Se
%G2 %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %52 %G2 %S¢ %G2 %G2 %Gg X
6 6 v6 - V6 6 6 6 6 6 6 103084 Aoenbape wnWIUI X
G86'E 096'c  LP6'E 1S8‘e 6.8'c sog'e  vv9'e S05'e yve'e 681'c ‘suonosloid WAV
1IoL'sy  191'8y  19L'8y  19L'8y  19L'8y  19l'8y  l9L'8y  19L'8y  l9L'8y  L9l'8¥ [BIOL ®AIRINWNY
ev9'0l 006 Buiping ybiH As|BIH
81G6'/¢ suy Buiwiopay Joy 1sjuan) AsibiH
g2Ad 22 Ad l2Ad 02Ad  6LAd  8LAd  LZLAd 9L Ad GLAd siea ) abejoo asenbg z1-6
10U 4
ELL V.. 0es8 1/8 €6 /86 LE0‘L 160°L 6€€ 6.8 abe)ooj atenbs sseoxs Jo Aloeden
/20'/S 8269 O0E¥'99  vZL'0L 0E9'V. ¥E6'8. 06628 88.°/8 €8lZg 91808 (1) ployseiyl %Gg Jo sseoxe Ul )jing aq o0} abejood alenbg
6SL'78l 8G8'6LL 958'GLL 299'LLL  9SL/91 gS8'29L 96/'85L 866'€SL ES9'WLL  OLP'LLL , ploysaiyl %Se
%52 %S¢ %52 %S¢ %52 %52 %G2 %G2 %G2 %G2 %52 X
08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 lojoey Aoenbape WnNWIUIA X
8£2'6 £66'8 89/'g £85‘8 8ge'8 SANC ov6‘L 00L‘L £6.'S v.G's suonosfold NAY
98/°L¥e  98/°Lve  98/'\ve  98/'\¥e 98L'\¥e 98/°\¥e 98/°\¥e  98L°L¥e  98L'LYvL  98L'L¥I [eJ0L BAEINWNYD
000001 .Sobpug ay1, ul |ooyos maN
69191 (01 Ad) (Buipjing g 00¥) [esredEYD O} UOHIPPE pUO] g
1S6°CL) (01 Ad) looyos Arejuswisjg eluugjue) MoN
Log's (90 Ad) Arejuswiajg As|BiH o) uonippe puog g
IS (90 Ad) 8lulod Aemares) 0} uolppE puoq g
¥59'e (S0 Ad) ue ueg o} uonippe puoq g
¥59'S (50 Ad) opeuoiog 0} UolppPE puoq g
€2Ad 22 Ad leAd  0Z2Ad  6LAd  8LAd  LZLAd 9L Ad GEAd Sleap abejoo4 alenbg g-)
10old :
Jouisiq payiun As|BiH
S10c/ed/| Hoday spun4 [eo0]



Kirkland Elementary School District

District Overview

Kirkland Elementary School District is located in central Yavapai County, serving the
community of Wilhoit and surrounding areas. The District currently has one elementary
school serving approximately 70 ADM.

District ADM History
Over the past five years, the District’s ADM fluctuated between declining 6.5% and
growing 10.8%, resulting in an annualized growth rate of 3.2%.

80

70 B e
e

GO M
50

40
30
20
10
0 ; T ( | T 7 T i
FY0O9 FY10 FYI11 FY12 FY13 FYL14 FY15* FY16*

*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections

e K-8

District Qutlook

Over the past decade, the District’s ADM fluctuated widely between declining as much
as 14.9% and growing as much as 10.8%, mostly due to its small size. The District added
the 7™ grade in FY 13 and 8™ grade in FY14, which accounted for the growth during the
last two years. For the current year, ADM is expected to increase by 13.8%. However,
the number of births since 2008 has decreased significantly, and the District has a much
higher median age (53.2) than the state average (35.9). The District did not provide any
information about projected residential development. At this point, there is no
information that suggests there will be a significant shift in future enrollment. Staff
projects that the ADM will continue to fluctuate with growth and declines.



LS L L L 9 9 S S 14 ¥
jelol ¢C Ad g Ad 02 Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad LE AL 9L Ad SEAd L Ad
:ale suonosfold "Hels g4s Ag paisnipe sy (1)
éc Ad 1e Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad 91 Ad SI Ad

10Is1q Areyuswie|g puepiiy
(1) seouednoaa swoH maN

O SWOH MaN

salouednosd



Sl

St

Sl

gl

Sl

Sl

Sil

Git

Sl

Sl

61

08

8/

64

9.

gL

€L

174

cl

¥9

Ayoeden

Nayv g4s

gcl

G2l

611

cgll

SOl

66

£6

/8

8

9

Nay 1ouisig

€2 Ad

¢C Ad

L Ad

0C Ad

6L Ad

8L Ad

LL Ad

9L Ad

SL Ad

vl Ad

€L Ad

8-

g€¢ Ad

gc Ad

Ayoeden

WQav g4s

Qv 1PUIsIg = — —

L Ad

0¢ Ad

6L Ad

81 Ad

LLAd

91 Ad

SLAd

Vi Ad

el Ad

1ouIsIg Aejuswia|g pueply

ydein g-y

0S

09

0L

08

06

0o}

oLl

0cl

oel




gLog ‘ee Menuer

X00p PUBPUDY G| UONBPUSLULLIODSN IS PUBIDALONONIISUCD MaU G \Bujuueld [eldesy:0

P d

jenosdde
[enidesuod

ON

¢¢-1¢0¢C Ad

L¢-020¢ Ad

02-610¢C Ad

61-8L0¢C Ad

81-210¢C Ad

L1-910C Ad

91-G10¢C Ad

Sl-v10¢C Ad

5102 7 Atenigaq 1o} UOIEPUSWIWIOD3Y Hels

"108lo4d siy} Joj pue| sumo Jouisiq eyl :3sanbay s jouisiq buipiebay saloN jjels

sjuapnis
28 Joj} jooyos
Bunsixa

e aoeds

8- [euolippy

¢c-1c0c Ad

1¢-020¢ Ad

02¢-610C Ad

61-810C Ad

81-210C Ad

L1-9102 Ad

91-G10C Ad

SL-¥10C Ad

(8-M)

€Ce0€L —al1d

JoulsIq Atejuawiajg pueary
sisAjeuy uononiisuon maN 5102

1senbay uonon.nisuo) maN 1o1sia

advosd

S31LIT1D0Vd 1

OOHDOIOS




13 puepury Ayoede) Gi, 8-

‘leaocidde jenidasuco oN

NOILVANIWWOOIH 44V1S §10Z ‘P AHYNHE3A

‘Aloeden uspnis jeio] pue suonasiold gy usemiaqg aouatayiq (2)
-abed jooyog Aq Auoeden pue abejoo4 alenbg sag (1)

- - - - - - - - - (2) padinbal s| @2eds mau yalym 10} SJUapn]S Jo JoquinN
%0 |- %V’ %60~ %8°E %L'E %¥0 %2 0 %’ L %L'El %E°'8 aled ymoln NQY
6. 08 8. 6L 9. €L €L €L (44 9 suoj}9afold Ay papuswwoday g-1s
oL ol v - - - - - - (2) paanbai s| aoeds mau Yalym 1o} SJUSPNIS JO Jaquinp
%00 %0°'S %E°9 %19 %19 %59 %6°9 %L9 %6'8¢ %E'8 aley yimoln) NaQY
143 gcl 6LL CLL SOL 66 £6 .8 28 9 suopndslold Wav s,1oLsia
SEL SEL SEL SLL SLE SLL SEL SLL SEL SEL : Anoeded uspms [e101
GlLL Gl Gl GlLL GlL GLI GlLL Gl GLL GLL (1) Ayoede) bupsix3y
¢ Ad ¢ Ad Lg Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad Bl Ad L1 Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad 7L Ad _ . 8-
8-

1o1ys1q Arejuswiajg pueppny
G10¢/ee/| sisfjeuy uoljoniisuony maN preog salj|ioe jooyds




13 puepiiy Ajoede) gi,

nav
"Juswdo|anap [eljuapisal pue [BAIAINS
MO0 Uo paseq £2 A4 Ubnoiyl 6| A4 IV WO} paaiedal uoljewliojul uo paseq [enjoe ale | A4 PUe € Ad :suonduwnssy
%0’ - %¥'c %6°0- %8'€ %Lt %0 %¢c'0 %V} %€k %E'8 abueyo %
64 08 8L 6. 9 574 EL €L ¢l ¥9 65 8-
€2 Ad ¢c Ad ke Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 8l A4 AW 9L Ad SLAd L Ad L Ad Isedalod NAVY °4S
%0°0 %0’ %E'9 %L'9 %}'9 %S9 %69 %19 %6°'8¢ %E’'8 abueyo %
Sel Scl 6Ll chl SOl 66 €6 JA: 4] ¥9 65 8-

€2 Ad ¢g Ad LS Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 8L A4 L1 AL 91 Ad Sl Ad L Ad ELAd isedalog NV pPaplaoid 101sIg

1usIq Arejuswiaig puepiiy
Gl0c/ee/ suooafoid INOVY



%C'E %E'8 %901 %59~ %V €- %58 abueys %
¥9 65 €5 LS 65 8-
abesany [ piL Ad EL Ad cl Ad Ll Ad O Ad 60 Ad

leap-g

10uIsIg Arejuswa|g puely
AioisiH wav



-abejoo} aienbs Jo edAy ey uo Buipuadep | L02-S1 ‘S'H"V Jo Ayoede) juspnis Jo uolua(] BUBMOA g4S 841 18y uo pasegq ( ry

abejoo4 aienbs g-) jejo .g_r.v

SLL gLL'01  |ose gsr'ol o gsr'ol |
GL1 688  g/L'0L _ |osg 2sv'0L 10 25¥'0lL |00yog Aejuswa|3 pueppiy |
Ayoeded | (1) | D1J018N (1Onpe@ D} By IaN | easy ealy Jooyas;

J0s1AId popnj|oxg ! ssouy

Jouisiq Arejuswia|g pueppiy
|jooyoas Ag Ayoeden pue sbejoo aienbg



Liberty Elementary School District

District Overview

Liberty Elementary District is located approximately 25 miles west-southwest of
downtown Phoenix. Interstate 10 passes through the north end of the District, which
primarily serves the Town of Goodyear, the southern part of Avondale and some
unincorporated areas. The residential development boom in the west valley during the
last decade brought fast growth to the District. In FY 14, the District converted three
schools into district-owned charter schools, which will return to be district schools in FY
16. The District has two other K-8 schools, serving approximately 1,150 ADM.

District ADM History ,

Over the past five years, the District’s ADM declined at an annualized rate of -21.1%.

Growth rates were all in the negative territory during FY 10 — FY 13, before decreasing

further by 63.7% in FY 14 when the District converted three schools to charter schools.
4,000 - —
3,500 - S
3,000
2,500 -
2,000 e
1,000

0 -

FYOS FY10 FY11l FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15* FY16*
*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections

District Qutlook

The District experienced declines in ADM between FY 10 and FY 13 when a charter
school opened and went through a significant expansion in the area. In FY 14, with the
conversion of three district schools to charter schools, the District lost nearly two-thirds
of its ADM. However, the District is forecasted to register an increase of 3.2% in its
ADM this year, and ADM for the three converted charter schools will be counted as
district ADM again starting in FY 16 as these schools convert back to district schools
next year. As new housing construction is gradually increasing, SFB staff projects that
the ADM growth rate will likely reach low double-digit levels in the second half of the
projection cycle, barring unforeseen expansion of charter schools in or near the area.




902'6 Ov6 cee't 0es‘1 025t 0ze't 600°} 19/ 6¥S ovy

lejoL ¢ Ad 12 Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 9L Ad SL Ad VI Ad

:ale suonoaslold ‘yeis g4S Aq peisnipe sy (1)

¢c Ad Le Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad L1 Ad 91 Ad SEAd VI AL e

00¢

00¥

\ 009

008

O SWOH MaN

N 000t

002’k

sajouednosd

oov't

NS

009't B

it
B

008t

u1s1q Aeuswalg Auaqi
(1) sajouednoop awoH meN



566'C 670y SEL'Y 8ve'y 298y ory'y L0S'Y YSy 2sl'y 091y Ayoede)
qov's 872'S  [906'% LGb'y 966'c 659'E 8l¥'S 0/2't EvLL 801°1 Wav g4s
118'9 052’9 VLS 661°S LY 192t Zl6'e ¥85°e ZIE'e 801‘L  [sroe Way omsig
€2Ad | ZeAd tgAd [ 0zAd | 6LAd | 8LAd | ZLAd | 9LAd | SLAd | ¥LAd | €LAd |8
Ayoeden NaY 84S ------- Wav jousig — — —
€2Ad 22 Ad 1IZAd 02Ad  6LAd BLAd  ZLAd  9LAd SEAd ¥LAd ELAd
1 5 L i i 1 1 L 1 1 O
............ 000‘t
\\\\ \“’/
J 0002
’ N\
4 \
- AN 000°€
— —mez == 000'%
Illll = = —"
e S 000'G
|||||||||| - —
———= 0009
- - - -
- 000°Z
000'8
1usig Aejuswe|g Aueqr

ydeto g-y

e

[



G0z ‘2z Aenuep

Xo0pP'8-M >t®n_.._ G| uonepuswwoodan3 >t®n_..=co_w03.;wcoo Mmou m_‘./mc_ccm_n_ _mu_QmO/”O

"Payipouw Jo ‘pajeulwiid yoeq paysnd aq o} [epusjod sy} eaey pue ‘mairal uodn IONVHO OL 103ArdNs
S103rodd TvNLd3ONOD 11V "S123rodd a3aAodddV-ATIVNLdIONOD OL A3 LLININOD S1 ONIGNNd ON 910N

"S)USPN]S $Z6 99 PINOM JOLIISIP SIY} Ul JoOY9S Juapn}s-g0g ue jo Ajioedeo jenjoe ay] :9)0N

(jemdaouo))

008 40} 8-)
22-1202 Ad 12-020Z Ad 02-610Z Ad 61-81L0Z Ad 81-210Z Ad | 21-9L0Z Ad | 91-S5L02 Ad | SL-¥L0Z Ad
G10Z ‘¥ Aleniga4 10} UOIIEPUBWILLOIDY JJeIS
"|looyos alniny e 1o} pue| JuedseA sey Ajjuaing jousiq syl 3senbay sjouysiqg Buipiebay ssjoN Yels
008 10} 8-Y ,
221202 Ad| 12-0202 Ad 02-6L0Z Ad| 61-8LOZ Ad| 812102 Ad| Z1-9L0Z Ad | 91-SL0Z Ad | SL-¥L0Z Ad
3senbay uononIsuoH MaN jouysiq
(8-))
§2¥020 — ALD
Jouysig Arejuswialg Ajaqiy

sisAjeuy uonoONIISUOD MON GLOZ

aydvosd

sa1L1I710Vd

TOOHDOS




13 Aueqr Ayoede) gi,

8-M
02 Ad <6 0ge'eL | ve6 008 8-) 10040 MaN
Ad Ajjoede) 1994 apmg | Aoedey [ ‘Byuo)
jeaolddy | |emjoy alenbg Jad 49 ubjsaq apelio uopduasaq | 18quInN 3030.d

‘anoidde Ajlendaouos 0} s UOIEPUSLULLIODR) YIS oY |

NOILVANIWWOI3Y 44V1S §10Z ‘¥ AdVNNE34

‘Aoede) Juspms |ejo]. pue suoposfold gy usamiag aoualaylg (g)
‘abed spun |e007 885 ‘93 L 102-Gl "S'M'V Jad se sjuswainbal abejoo; aienbs winwiUIW SOLISIP 8y} JO %§¢ Spasaxa Jey} abejoo} alenbs jo Ajoede) (2)

"abed jooyos Aq Ayoeden pue ebejoo aienbg sag (1)

Liv'L 861'L VL €02 - - - - - (g) paiinbal s| 9oBds MaU Yolym IO} SJUSPNIS 1O JaquinN
%Z %0’/ %20l [%¥LlL  |%Z6 %LL %S’ %198l |%C€E %L €9 ajey ymoio NAay
S9¥'s 8vZ's 906‘y Lsv'y 966'C 659'¢ giv'e 022°¢ evLL 801°L su0j28/0id WAV PapusWlodDy F4S
2882|1027 |626') |1G6 BvE - - - - (€) pasinbay st 90BdS MU YDIUM 4O} SJUSPMIS 4O JBqUINN
%00l |%¥'6 %66 %Y 0L [%90L [%68 %Z6 %Z'8 %0661 |%/L'€9- ajey ymol Nav|
118'9 052'9 pLL'S 661°G LY 192t Zle'e ¥85'¢ Zie'e 80L°L suondsfold WAy s.1ouisiq
S66°C 6v0'v SeL'y | sve'y 2oty | ovb'y L0S'y 14404 eSL'Y 09Lv Ajisede) juapnjs jejoj.
[4d) 861 82 L6E LLS G6S 959 £69 00¢€ 60€ (¢) Ayoeded papunj-ousig
168'¢ 168'¢ 168'¢c 1G8'¢ 1G8'E 1G8'E 1G8'E 168'c 1G8'E 1G8'E (1) Auoeded Bunsixg
€ZAd | 22 Ad lCAd | 0ZAd | 6LAd [ 8LAd | 2L Ad | 9l Ad GLAd | ¥LAd , M
8-
JosIg Aejuswalg Aueqin
§10¢/L¢e/L sisAjeuy uoponIISuoD ManN pieog saljjioe |ooyog




13 Auaqr Awoede) g, nav

-ajoAo uonoafold ayy inoybnolyy sjooyas Jspeyo
urewas pinom 1 A4 Ul S|ooy9s Jalleyd 0] PaLBAU0D S|00yds Joulsip 8yl fey) uondwnsse auy) uo paseq sem Jeak 1se| pejonpuod uonosfoid NAY 8y L.

%09 %08 %L'8 %c' 0l %2l %lLEL %V EL %lL'Ch %89 %C'v9- abueyd %
265'e Siv'e ¥92'2 £80°C 068°L G89‘lL 06¥'1 vLE L GOl 160} 8¥0‘c 8-
g2C Ad ¢c Ad Le Ad 0C Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad LL AL 91 Ad SEAd 71 Ad EL Ad »IB3A 1SET - Isedalod WAV g4S

"JuewdojaAap [eRuUSpISal pUe [BAIAINS

H0Y09 Uo paseq £2 A4 Ubnolyi G| A4 "IQV WOIy paAIeoal UoeLIIOUl U pased [ENjo. a1 4| A4 PUB €] A4 :suopdwnssy
Yo %0°L %c 0l %y L %¢C'6 Y% l'L %SV %198  %C'E SoL'E9- abueyod %
SOv'S 8¥2'S 906'y LGPy 966 659°'c 8LY'e 0/2°€ erLl 80L°I 8v0'c 8-
€¢ Ad ¢c Ad le Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LL Ad 9l Ad- SLAd vEAD el Ad 1sed9104 NQV g94S
%001 %t'6 %66 %y 0L %901 %68 %<6 %<8 %066L %LE9- abueyo %,

1789 0529 y1L'S 661°S LY 192'y gl6'E ¥8G'E CIE'E 80L°} 8¥0'c 8-M
£¢ A4 ¢c Ad LS Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LLAL 91 Ad SEAL I Ad gk A4 jsedalog NAVY Paplroid oLisig

1ous1q Aeyuswialg Aueqi
vioe/8lL/el suonosloid INQY



m,mﬂ_m><
Ieap-G

%L'€Y WLl |%bL- %G'E- %ol - abueyo 9,
801} 80'c 00L'E 6VE'E 2iy'e 8-
JLAd | ELAd CLAd LL Ad 0L Ad 60 Ad
ousig Arejuswialg Auag

AoisiH way



] ” ) SJOpLLI0O JoLiB) _ﬁ{umﬁivm Jou a1 sjooyos pepuny-g4s &ozw

u_._:n »:mBo,m 4s ovr.vm popodal Ho_bm_u ‘94s m£, Aq vmvcE E:oEm Ecmm@_a& junowe mmmuoov, alenbg Amy

“-Buipjing sitj 0} seijdde Mou pjousail} 3deds PapNoXa au} 0S ‘spuny [BO0] UM 80 Ad Ul 30BdS Woolsse|o ojul Buipjing auy;
pejeAcual PPUIsI] "So1Jo SjuspusjuLIedng Sy} SBM )i 9Sneoaq PapN|oxe Ing ‘.61 Ul JIiNg Sem yolym 8oL Bulpiing sapnjoul ()i

mmﬂo& mhm:vm,v,o mab 3y} uo mc_ucmamu LL0Z-S1 w m v lo b_omamo EmUBw jo uonuyaq mc_xt_o>> a4s mE Jayye uo paseg E

85’y es¥'9yE 051 €09°9VE  6ST¥E  29808C ;

0 008 0 YN 0 80V 801'L )

vI6 608 0c6'e. YN  loge'e. O . ogeeL

¢5¢ 608 160¥'0c YN 60¥0C 0 60v'0C IEJS3\\ O} UOIPPE PEpUNILSIA
66L 1608 0¥9v9 YN ov9re 0 ovev9  (g) kejuswslg sejsom pepunj-g4s:
208 608 098+v9 WN 098v9 0 ) ﬁmm.mm . jooyos fajlep moquiey papl

629  S88 /69'6S 0 ./G9'SS 68y’  9vL'65 looyos Alejusws|3 UlBUNO ejaais3:
g 008 gze'y VN 182e'y '65Z'LL €85'6k . (2)Au=qr o) uonippe papuns-jouisiq
80/ 688 16£9'C9  0SL ,mE 29 .0beL  988%. . . looyds Aigjuswaig Ayaqr)
foeded (1) Oljo3eN ,ﬁ:uon BalyJaN = ealy | ealy _oo._ow
i loswgi .9l . :pepnpxg ssop | R

ousig Aeyuswa|g Aueqi]
jooyog Aq Ayoeden pue abejoo alenbg



3 Auaqi AyoedeD G, sjoefold 41

‘9’3 1102-G1 ‘S'H'Y 4ad (})

861 ¥82 L6€ LIS G695 959 £69 00¢€ 60€ abejoo} asenbs ssadxe jo AjoedeD

/S8'GL  969'c¢  68/'le  €68'0v  129'/¥  GS¥'eS  8I¥'SS  080've  lel've (1) ploysaiy} %6z Jo $s8dxa Ul }jing aq o0} 8bejoo aienbg

2S6'P0L  ELL'86 2068 9166, 88L'EL  ¥SE'89 16£'G9 6582 @25)'ee ployselyl %Se

%G2 %Gg %52 %Gg %G2 %S2 %S¢ %52 %S2 %G¢ X

08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 Jojoe} Aoenbape wnwiuipj X

8ve's 906'y ISPy 966'€ 659'c gLy'e 0/2'c EvLL  80L°) suoposfold WAy

608'02L 608'02L 608'02L 60802} 608'02F 608'02L 60802k 6889y 688'Op [e10] 8AlEInWNY

026'cl Spunj puoqg g yiim [00yas meN

659°01 (71 Ad) éé Bpig - jooyog Jeisa

0S.'6 (€L Ad) & Bpig - looyos Jeisapp

G512k (0t Ad) N Bpig - |ooyos Aueqr

0er'e (80 Ad) @snoyaiepn - jooyos Auaqi

800°1 (80 Ad) ®oeds woolsse|2 ojul pejeaousl [ Bplg - ooyos Auagn

wo#N Amo >n_v wopaal4 e sWooisse|d ajgelod

68Y'c UoHIppe SUY 8Ul4 UIBJUNOW B||J)sT

22 Ad 12 Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad 9LAd  SLAd  siesA abejood alenbg g-y
10lid :

1ousIq Areyuawialg Auagn
v10c/8L/gl Hoday spun4 |20



Litchfield Elementary School District

District Overview

Litchfield Elementary School District is located about 15 miles west of central Phoenix,
north of I-10. The District serves the City of Litchfield Park as well as parts of Glendale,
Avondale, Buckeye, Goodyear and some unincorporated areas. In FY 14, the District
converted four schools into district-owned charter schools. These schools will convert
back to district schools in FY 16. The District has six other elementary schools (K-5) and
three other middle schools (6-8) which serve approximately 7,350 ADM. A district-
funded K-8 school is currently under construction and expected to open in August 2015.

District ADM History
After significant growth between FY 03 and FY 08 with an annualized rate of 12.6%, the

ADM growth slowed down and turned negative to -1.0% in FY 12. Due to the
conversion of four district schools to charter schools in FY 14, ADM decreased by
27.9%, resulting in a negative annualized growth rate of -5.3% over a five-year period.

8,000
7,000 r
6,000 | @l

5,000 N\ /

4,000 /- Ll NON
3,000 | E—t—E—8—R -G-8
2,000
1,000
0 : : ‘ : . : : .
FY0S FY10 FY1l FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15* FY16*

*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections

District Qutlook

Unlike many other school districts that experienced dramatic growth and declines during
the housing boom and bust years, this district’s ADM growth was only negative once at
-1.0% in FY 12. In FY 14, the District converted four district schools to charter schools,
causing ADM to decrease by nearly 28%. This year, the ADM is forecasted to increase
3.5%. As the four charter schools convert back to district schools next year (FY 16),
these schools’ ADM will be counted again as district ADM. SFB staff projects that
annual ADM growth rates in the range of 2.0 — 3.5% will be the norm for most years in
the projection cycle as the housing market improves.



00¢c

00¥

009

008

000°tk

002'L

90v'8 LLL 208 " gee’lL 650°L 186 296 081 €9
jelol 2¢ Ad 12 Ad 0C Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9L Ad SEAd L Ad
:ale suonoslold "Hels g4s Aq paisnipe sy (1)
¢c Ad lg Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L Ad 91 Ad SIAd
/\

Jou3sIg Aejuswalg plalyoNT
(1) selouednooQ swoH msN

00v‘1

O 2WOH maN

solouednod



81, Gee'l 262'L £9g', 0E¥'L Sl¥'. 916, Rel=p] 8/¥'2 G162 Aloeden
1vb'8 Lve's LL0'8 8cl'L 8S1' L 082’/ yLL'L 1769 229’y viv'y Nav g4s
G98'8 109'8 095e'g gLi'g 9/8°/ 1¥9°2 yev'L 802, eLL'y v.v'y 09g‘9 NQYV 1ouisIg
€2 Ad ¢c Ad 1¢ Ad 0¢ Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 9l Ad SL Ad YL Ad €LAd |5
Ayoeden WAy g4S ------- wav omsig - — —
€¢ Ad ¢c Ad 12 Ad 0¢ Ad 6l Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 9L Ad Sl Ad Y1 Ad €l Ad .
) 1 ! i i L I 1 L 1 OOO..V
e 00S'y
77N
\ / $
. 000's
\
A \ 00S's
\
\ 000'9
Y/ \
4 0059
/ ,
P T / 0002
|||\|WM«III.||||I'D’ —— —— - e —— 00s'L
— — =T - 000'8
S 005'8
- 000'6

Joulsiq Auejuawalg pleyyolT
ydeio -




665’V 66S'V 66S'V 665y 665V 665V 665V 665V 665V 665V . |Anoeden
SLL'Y SS9y 679'v 695V [4A% 2ee'y 00l'y 8/8'€ 8e.'g L¥9'C Nav g4s
G/8'Y eel'y 56S'Y LOY'Y LEE'Y 502y 80'Y £96'C LE8'2 L¥9'e L0S‘E Wav 1ousig
€¢C Ad ¢c Ad e Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LL Ad 9L Ad SL Ad vl Ad €LAd (89
Ayoedeg Wav g4s ------- NGV PMsig — — —
€2 Ad ¢c Ad LS Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad Lt Ad 9L Ad Gl Ad PEAd €l Ad
L 1 l L t L ! OOO.N
0052
~||||\|\||“|.||//
7 _
"/ \ 000'€
~\ /
b N\
AN 005°c
-\\
7
! :
p— = 000t
Y Sl 00S‘v
......... e =
000°S
00S‘S

Jousiq Arejuswa|g plaiyoNT
ydein g-9




sLoz ‘Lz flienuer

20P"G-Y PIAYYON| G L UCHEBPUBLILLIOOANT PISYYIIT\UONINASUOT mau SiABuluueld [epded\:0

pelyIpo Jo ‘pajeulwi|d ‘yoeq paysnd aq o} [elusiod sy} eAey pue ‘MalAsl uodn IONVHO OL LO3raNs
S103roYd TWNLAIONOD TIV "SLO3rodd A3AONddV-ATIVNLIONOD OL QILLINNOD SI ONIANNL ON :IoN

-SJuBpPN}S 920} 24 PINOM JOL3SIp SIU} U] [00YDS Juspnys-9G6 & Jo Aj1oeded [enoe sy | 90N

(jemdaouo?)
sjuapnj}s
9G6 10} G-M
221202 Ad| 120202 Ad | 02-6L0Z Ad| 61-8L0C Ad 81-2102 Ad L1-91L0T Ad 91-G1L0C Ad SL-¥10C Ad
S10Z ‘v Arenigo 10} UOHEPUSWIWIOIY HEIS
"JoOY0s SIY} Jo} pajeuop aq pjnom a)is e pajedipul uisiq eyl senbay sjowsiqg Bulpiebay sojoN Hels
sjuapn}s
966 404 G-)
221202 Ad | 12-0202 Ad| 02-6L0Z Ad| 61-8L0CAd| 8L-210C Ad L1-9102C Ad 91-5102 A4 GL-v10C Ad
3senbay uoponisuo) MaN JoLIsI|
(S-M)
6.¥0L0 —ALD
JoLysig Adejuawialg ploly
sisfjeuy uononiIsuon MmaN 510¢
_. advoasd s3aILIT1OVd TOOHDOS




I3 pleyyou Aioeded G|,

G
61 Ad 9/0'L 0v0'98 06 956 S [00UOS MON
Ad Ajoede) Jood juepnmis” | Kyoede | “Byuod
[eaciddy | [emoy alenbg Jad 49 ubisaqg apelo uopdu2saq / Joquiny 19f01d

:anoldde Ajjenjdasuod o} s| uolepuswILIOdal Ye)s ay

NOILVANIWIWOITY 44V1S SL0Z ‘v A¥VNYE3

‘Rjioeden Juspn)g [e10] pue suonoafold gy usemiaqg aoualayia (g)
‘abed spund |eo0 888 '9'3 L102-S} 'S'H'V Jod se sjuswaiinbas 8bej00) aienbs WnWIUIW S10UISIP 81 JO %67 Spesoxs ley) abejooy asenbs jo Ajioeden (2)

‘abed |ooyog Aq Ajoeden pue abejoo sienbg 29g (1)

¥92Z'L 200'L 6L G9¢ 82 - - - - () pa1inbal s| oedS Mau YoIym Jo} sjuspnig Jo JaquinN
%S'2 %62 %.L'€ %9°C %S’ %E'T %02 %0°LS |%E'E %/ 62" ajey ymoio Nay
'8 LvZ's 110‘8 8z.', 8Sv'L 08Z'L viL‘L 1169 729y v.iv'y suondafoid WAV papuswiwoddy g4s
289'L 2. ¥90°'L 0S. ObP 2Ll - - - (¢) palinbai s| 80dS Mau Uojum Joj SJuapnig Jo JaquinN
%0°€ %0°'€ %0°€ %0°€ %0°E %0°€ %0°€ %625  |%¥'S %1 62- aley ymolo Wav
598'g 209°8 95¢'s eLL‘g 9.8°L Ly9°L yev'L 802°‘.L SLL'y y.iv'y suonaaloid Way s.}ousia
£81L°. 6eg'L Z62'L £9¢°L osy'L GlV'L 9162 LSS 8lV'L G516, Kyoedes Juopmis [€301
Z£6 £86 L¥0'L 2L 6L1'L ¥2Z'L GoZ'L 662'L 122'L $92'L (2) Awoeded pspunj-joLsia
152'9 152'9 162'9 162'9 L52'9 1G2'9 152’9 LG2'9 152'9 162'9 (1) Aoede) bupsixg
€2 Ad 2T Ad LZ Ad 0Z A4 6L Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9l Ad Gl Ad ¥l Ad G-
G-
Jouysig Aiejuswialg playyoN
§102/.2/L sisfAjeuy uoINIISUOD MaN

pleog saijjioe |00yds




13 preyyoN Aioede) G,

WNav

‘gjoAo uonosloid ay) Inoybnoay) s|ooyos Jaeyod
UIBWS] PINOM p| A- Ul S|00UDS JSLIELD O} P}BAUOD S|00LOS JOLISIP B} jey} uolldinsse ay) Uo paseq sem Jeal 1se| pajonpuod uonoafold NAY 2Y L«

%L %v'l %0’ %S} %61 %S¢ %S'C %lC %9l %6°L¢C- abueyo %
€9E'8 612’8 €olL'e 020'8 6682 062, 19G6°L 9L€'L TAA oLL'L 198'6 [Bjof

%v'L % 0" %80~ %C'0 %L'¢C %LV %LV %l %80 %E Ve abueyd %

Lv0'e 000°¢ G00'e 8z0'c RAVE 656'C ov8'c AN 2.9C 2s9'c L0S'E 8-9

%0°¢ %v'C %t'C %E'C %8’ %S’ %9’} %L'¢C %lC %6'6¢- abueyd %

2ze'S 0ce's 660'G 166V 8/8'v 6.7 Lel'y 819’y €SS’y BSY'v 089€'9 G-

€C Ad C¢C Ad LC Ad 0C Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad LLAd 9l Ad GLAd Yl Ad €L Ad JB9A JSeT - }sedalod WAV g4ds

.«C&EQO_m>mU |enuspisal pue |[BAIANS

J0Y02 uo paseq £Z Ad Ubnoiyy gL A4 "IQV Wol) paAie0al UoIjeLLLIojul Lo pased [BN]O. Ale | A4 PUE ¢ Ad :suondwnssy

%lC %6’} %0°¢ %'t %G'€ %9°¢ %E'€ %SGy %S€ %6, abueyo o

Z9L'€l  968'CL  099'CL  l6TCL 0LB'LL  CISHL  GLZTLL Gge'0L  09g'L 1292 1986 {elol

%E’L %10 %Ll %9°¢ %C'S - %eE %l'G %9'LY %l'E %9 v¢C- abueyd %

GLL'Y GGo'y 6¥9'y 69S 'Y Zsr'y ZeT'Y 00L'v 8/8'¢ 8€.LC 1¥9'C L0S°E 8-9

%G'C %6'¢ %L€ %9°€ %S¢ %EC %0°¢ %0°1LG %EE %.'6¢C" abueyo 9,

Ly’ Lve' LL0'8 82L'L 8S¥'L 082’ rhl'L 1169 44N 4 viv'y 09€'9 S-M

€CAd CC Ad L Ad 0¢ Ad 6l Ad 8L Ad AN 9l Ad SL A4 vl Ad €L Ad ysedsdlod NV g4S
%0°¢ %0°€ %0°€ %0 %0'€ %0°€ %0°¢ %\ 8V %09 %6°LC- abueyd %

ovl'el  OvE'ElL IG6'CTL  v.GCL L0z'CL zs8'llL  90G'LL LLL'LL ppSL 141V 198'6 fejoL

%0°€ %0°€ %0'€ %0°€ %0°¢E %0'€ %0°€ %0°0Y %C'L %8ve- abueyd o

G/8'v €eL'Y GBSV Lov'y LEEY G0C'y 280’ €96'¢ 1€8°C Lv9'C L0g'e 8-9

%0'€ %0°€ %0°€ %0°E %0°€ %0°€ %0'€ %6°¢S %¥'G %L6¢ abueyd %

G98'8 L09'8 9s€'s €ll'8 9.8'L Lv9'L vey'L 802’2 ELL'Y viv'y 09g'9 S-M

€C Ad ¢¢ Ad L¢ Ad 0¢ Ad 6l Ad 8l Ad Ll A4 9 Ad Gl Ad YL Ad el Ad }sedalo4 INQV Paplacld ol3sIg

§L0c/LellL

Joulsiq AJejuawwall piayyol

suondsfold AV



%G G %0’} %lL'E %90 abueyo %,
198°6 059'6 Gv.'6 Lov'6 |eloL
%L0 %< |- %b'S %8| abueyo %
Los‘e aLv'e 02s'e 6EE’E 8-9
%0°E %8 0- %lL'C %00 abueyod %
09€e'9 ¥/1'9 Gee'9 290'9 S-M
abesany €L Ad L Ad LLAd 0L Ad 60 Ad

Jeaj-g

s Aejuswalg pleyyoN
AoisiH wav



*SI0pLI0D J0oL8lu| S0} palsn[pe JoU aJe Sjo0yos papun)-g-+4s 910N
‘abejoo} atenbs jo adA} ay) uo bulpuadsp | L02-G| "S Y'Y J0 Aluoeden Ewuaw jo uoniuyaq Buop g4S 8y Jeyns uo paseg (1)
665V 6€0'V8E  1692'9 80£°06€ |08S°LL 888° L0V abejoo atenbg g-g |ejo
- 08 0 VN 0 ges's ges's 08H sewoy | o} uoliippe papunj-jouisiq
880°L 08 £00'28 VN £00°/8 0 £00°'/8 [00YOS 3[PPIN ¥O8H Sewoy | papunj-g4s
880°IL 08 £00/8 VYN £00'/8 GS0'9 850'c6 |00Y9g B|PPIN OpeUBA Papunj-g-4s
0se‘lL 08 000'80L _ |¥N 000'80L |0 00080} [00Y2S S|PPIN Y810 wembip papun)-g4s
¥20°'L S6 ££0'20L 16929 20e's0L |0 20e'801 [00yos 3|pPIN AS wisisam
9.¢'L 651°209 |606°61 890°229 |66V‘LLL  [29S'Vh. abejoog atenbg G-y jeloL
SO0} 08 S0+'08 VYN S0v°08 0 Sot'08 [ooyog Aelusws|3 yebped [aqe|y
0zl 08 109'6 VN 109'6 0/6'v. 1/S'¥8 Aejuswal] opeulap
8. g8 865°9 109 8612 0 861, Asqoy eieqieg o) uohippe papunj-joulsiqg
006 08 000'2.  I¥N 00022 10 0002 Aejuswa|3 Asqoy eieqleq papunj-g4s
006 08 00022 VN 0002, greel 2re'ss Alejuswa|3 Jwwng Bujweaiq papunj-g4s
06 68 0192 9v8 957’8 0 951’8 elalg ayog o} uollippe papunj-jouisiq
006 08 00022 I¥N 0002 0 0002 Aejuswa|3 euslg ayo) papunj-g4S
96/ Gg 9v9'/9 916, 29l's. 0 291's/ Aejuswa|g a4 ejueg oyouey
¥26 a8 925'8.  [68%'9 GL0's8 00L'g GLL'Z8 Aejuswalg As|ep wied
9L g8 126'G9 ove'lL 191°29 0v9'y 108°LL |ooyos Areyuswia|3 Aqqi 7 HooS
6EL 08 OEL‘LL VN OELLL 0 OSL'LL (eoeds [euoiyppy)
610L-2101 'sBpiq jooyog Aiejuswalg pjayyon
e G8 €96'sc  |8le'e I8L'ze |0 181'2e (eoeds juswaoe|day);
6L01-2101 'sBp|q |ooyog Atejuswia|g playyoN]
601 a8 6G.vE 0 6S.'vE LyS'ee 90€'/S |ooyag Alejuswia|g plRyyoH
Ayoedeg | (1) | O1JoIoN [Jonpa@ OI| ealylaN | eaay ealy looyos
losiAalg papnpoxg | ssoudy)

Jolysig Aejuswiajg playyol
jooyag Aq Ayoeden pue abejoo4 aienbg




13 piayyon Aoeded 61, spafoid 47

‘9’3 LL0Z-GL ‘SHYed(|)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo} a1enbs ssaoxe jo Ayoeded

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) PIoysaIL} %G JO SS39Xa Ui }jing aq o} abejood asenbs

J62'v6  160'C6  €/6'C6 vIE'L6  GE0'68  9€9'¥8  B800'28  G6SLL  L9/'VS  028'2ZS ploysaIyl %52

%52 %62 %62 %GC %GZ %S2 %S2 %62 %GZ %52 %GZ X

08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 Jojoey Aoenbape winwiuly X

SLL'Y G59'Y 6v9'y 69G'¥ zsr'y ZeT'P 00L'y 8./8'¢ 8€1'C 19'2 suonosfoid WAV

SLL'LP SLU'LY S SLLWY SEVAY SLUYW SLLLWY SLLLW Z2lE'zl el jejo L sAREINWND

£¥8'8C Pusia Ag papuny g-)-meN

GZG'S S [euonippe %08 sewoy ]

269 (uonuod g-9) Aqqr 1 HO2S

5509 |O0Y2S B|PPI OpelaA

€2 Ad ZZ Ad LZ Ad 02 A4 6L Ad 8L Ad L1 Ad 9l Ad Sl Ad SEEYN « abejyoo asenbg g-9
lold

z€6 £86 Lo'L L 6LLL vze'L goz'L 662’1l 1221 ¥oz'L abejooy asenbs sseoxe Jo Aoede)

655'v.  119'8/  GlZ'S8  O¥6'88  ZSE've  L06'.6 202101 BG6'E0L 08L'86  9EL'LOL (1) Plouseiu} %G JO SS80Xe Ul liing 8q 0} sbejoo asenbg

/€6'80L SzZ8'¥OlL  1ZZ'09L /SS'WSL  ¥OL'6yL  S6S'SpL 682yl LEG'BEL  9EP'TE  08¥'68 - ploysaiyl %S2

%GC %Ge %Ge %G2 %S¢ %52 %62 %G2 %Ge %G2 %GT X

08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 Jojoey Aoenbape wNWILIN X

rv'8 Lr2's LL0'8 82, 81, 082'. PLL'L 116'9 z29'v viv'y suojosloid Wav

9BY'ChZ  9BY'EYC O6V'EPZ  9BVP'EYC  OBV'CYZ  96V'EPZ  9BP'EVC  96V'EPZ .91L9'06L  919'06) [E}OL dAlRINWNY

088'2S PUSIg Aq papuny 8- MeN

20y (e1Ad) 610L-8101 "sBpiq Aejuawa|a playYRHT

gLL'L (ZLAL) 2101 Bpiq Aejuawalg playyon

S0v'08 (11 Ad) nebped |aqen

Gol's (01 Ad) (11 eseUd) |ooyoS Aiejusius|g opeuap

£26'6¢ (60 Ad) (il @sBYd) j00YDS AsejuaiuSi] OpeLIdA

£81'06 4 (80 Ad) (1 eseyd) 100yog Alejuswa|] opeLaA

89C'L (uontod g-)) Aqqi 1 ROOS

rAZAN jwuwing Buiwealg

€T Ad 2T A4 12 Ad 0Z Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad LL A4 9l Ad Gl Ad SIBBA abejood a.enbg G-
ioud

Pusig Aigjuawie|3 pIRYUNT
GL0¢/L2/) yoday spun4 |eoon



Queen Creek Unified School District

District Overview

Queen Creek Unified School District is located at the southeast corner of Maricopa
County, covering most of the Town of Queen Creek, the southeast corner of Mesa, and
some unincorporated areas. Currently, the District has four elementary schools (K-5),
two middle schools (6-8) and one high school, serving approximately 5,050 ADM.

District ADM History

Over the past five years, the District’s ADM declined at an annualized rate of -1.1%. The
growth was on a decelerating path during FY10 - FY13 dropping from 1.8% to -4.2%. It
came back to the positive territory at 2.8% in FY14.

e (-5

sl (3-8

e g-12

() T H ¥ T T ] H
FY39 FYL10 FY1l FY12 =Y13 FYI14 FY1E* “Y16*

*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections

District Outlook

The Town of Queen Creek was traditionally an agricultural community. Between the two
decennial censuses, its population more than sextupled from 4,316 at Census 2000 to
26,361 at Census 2010. Although the town leaders and residents expressed the desire to
preserve some of their equestrian quality of life and to require new developments to be
low-density, developments of higher density have been granted approval. During FY 13
and FY 14, nearly 1,650 new houses were added to the area. However, it has only
brought an increase of approximately 305 ADM to the District. For the current year,
ADM is expected to increase 3.6%. There is a large presence of the charter sector both
inside and around the school district. In FY 15, the total enrollment of the charter schools
inside the district boundary reached nearly 4,500, an increase of more than 1,100 over
last year, according to a charter school enrollment report by ADE. Noticeably, at the 9-
12 level, the charter sector has added more than 400 students. Due to its proximity to the
City of Chandler and Town of Gilbert, the District’s new housing construction is expected
to continue its growth pattern. Barring unforeseen expansion of charter schools or large
scale out-migration, SFB staff projects that the District’s total ADM will experience
significant growth for most years in the current projection timeframe with rates in the
approximate range of 5 - 8%.



00¢

0[0)4

009

008

g6L'LL | 002t ¥Ge‘L 1G8'L 10G°1 889°L LSl 112') 9GL‘L GS6-
el 22 Ad 12Ad | 0ZAd [ 6LAd | 8LAd | ZLAd | 9LAd | SLAd | ¥LAd
:are suoposlold “yels g4S Aq paisnipe sy (1)
22 Ad 2 Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad Ll A4 9l Ad G A4 71 Ad
-

ousIg peiiun Xesl) usanpd
(1) seouednoop awoHy maN

000°}

002}

oov't

009°t

008°L

O SWOH MaN

solouednos



/99 /992 199 1992 199 1992 199 /99 1992 199 |Awoeden
8/9'€ 2sh'e 922’ ¥20'e G8.°¢ 1952 198‘e Leg'e 8LLe 210'e Wayv g4s
esy'y 002y 296°c £0.'e /68'E 090°c ¢el'e ovv'e 8€2'C 210e Nav ousid
€¢ Ad cc Ad 1¢ Ad 0C Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad L Ad 9l Ad SL Ad YL Ad €LAd |G :
Ayoede) NQY g4S =-eeees WAy 1pmsiq - — —
€2 Ad ¢c Ad le Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 8k Ad LI AL 9l Ad S Ad 1 Ad €L Ad
L . i { i ! L 5 i : OO@. F
e
e
PO -
\l\\\ll - -
= oov'g
Pl P
e -
- P
- “ Pl
\\\\ P
" e
e — 0062
s ~
\\\\ ~
LT e
" e
P e
\\\\\\ e
e — oov'e
- e
T e
" -
7~
~ - -
- 006°€
- -
- ~
- -
~ - ‘
_ - 00¥ v

ouIsIq patjiun ea1) usanp
ydein g-y

P



€612 €612 €6l £61°2 502'2 2e2'e 952'2 822 962'2 90e'g |Auoede)
8v8‘L 8G/°L ¥69'1 265'|L LIG L 90v‘| 80€°| 222’ | 8yLL 60L°L 060°L nav g4s
£02'C 8112 2102 £06'1 29.°L 209°1L e’ 00E‘L ¥02'L 60L°1 060°L nay 1oumsig
£€¢ Ad ¢C Ad L Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LL Ad 9] Ad SL Ad vl Ad €LAd [8-9
Ayoeden Wav g4s ------- Wav ousig - — —
£€¢ Ad ¢é Ad le Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 91 Ad Gl Ad v Ad el Ad
1 i ! ! ! 1 - OOOn P
..... T
\ll\\\ll - - ¢
e = 002'L
\\\\\\\\ - -
o 00V‘1
- -~
ptag s
e P
g P
\\\l\\ - <
—= 009't
\\\\\ -
e -
e pad ‘
P 008‘t
P
P -
~ - 1
= 000¢c
— -
— -
-
. — 0022

JoLISIQ PaliuN Ye8iD usenp

ydein 8-9

0]0] A




956" 1

956' | 956° L 956'| 956° L 956‘ | 956'L 956° | 956° L 956t Ayoede)
£0.L'e /€92 8152 L6EC 6v2'c 9802 8G6°| 808°| YA Shl'L L9’ | WAy g-4s
962'¢ 69l°c 810’ 818'c /€92 16£'C 65L'c Si6°|L 108°}L SvL'L L79'L WAy ousig
€2 Ad 22 Ad L2 Ad 02 Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad LE Ad 9L Ad SL Ad L Ad €LAd |2L-6
Ayoeden Wav g4s ------- wav ousiq - — —
€2 Ad ¢c Ad be Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LL Ad 91 Ad SlL Ad L Ad €L Ad
! L i L 1 1 I | I 1 Oom— —.
\\ | :
S . i‘\\ ) OON. _.V.
=T .
D 006°L
e s i
\\\\\\ - ¢
s = o0L‘2
gl -~
\\\\\ < 5
pradai v 00€ ¢
P 7
POl 7
POt ~ <
= < 0052
Pt 7
I i .
— e 00.L7¢
P -~
- - 1
— 006‘C
- -~
-~ - 1
= 00}'e
— 00e‘e
00S‘e

1ousIg paijiun yeeu) usenp
ydeio g1-6




glog ‘ez Menuer,

X00p'G-3 X88J0 usanb G| UOREPUBLILLIODIBI\DSYIUST Y88ir) UsanpD\UCHINISUod mau G L \Bujuueld fendesy.o

"palyipow Jo ‘pajeulwlje ‘pakejap aq o} [enusiod ey} aney pue ‘malrsi uodn IHNVYHO OL 1O3rdns
S103arodd 1vN1ld3ONOD 71V 'SL1O3rodd a3AOHddV-ATIVNLdIONOD OL A3LLININOD Si ONIANNd ON 910N

‘SJULapNls gg/ 3 PINOM [00YOS G- Juapnis-00. & jo Ajroedeo jenjoe ay] :8JON

(jemdaouon)

(NS00)
00L 10} G-)

L)

¢c-120C Ad

12-020¢ Ad

02-610C Ad

61-81L0C Ad

81-21L0C Ad

L1-910¢C Ad

91-G10C Ad

. SL-v10C Ad

G102 ‘v Adeniqad 10} uonEpPUAWILIOIY JJelS

‘Aojuanul ul ays jooyos m-z auo
sey Ajjuauno jouisig eyl “Jesh yoee pamalnal aq jsnw sposfoid jenjdesuos 61 A4 Ul uado o} deaA ise| pancidde Ajjenideouod
sem NS00 10eloid Inq ‘ueld [ended G A4 S Hwgns jou pip ouisiQ 8yl

‘1sanbay s.jolisiqg Buipiebay sajoN Hels

(NS00)
00/ 40} G-)
¢c-120c Ad| 120202 Ad| 02-6L0ZAd| 61-8102 Ad 8l-2102 Ad | Z1-9102 Ad 91-GL0Z Ad | GI-bL0C Ad
1sanbay uononIIsuo) mapN 1ouisiq
(G-M)
66200~ 4ALD

1oUISIQ PaKiuN Y9919 U2aNP
sisAjeuy UoRONIISUOD M3N 5102

advosd

Ss311L1710Vd

TOOHDOIOS




payiun ealo usenp Aloeden g,

61 Ad 881 000°‘c9 06 004 S-M [00U3s MeN - NSOO
Ad Ajioeden 1994 Wiapnis | Auoeden | ‘bByuo) :
jeroaddy | [enjoy alenbg Jad 48 ubiseqg apely uopdiiasaq / Jequin 12sfoid
:anoidde Ajjenidesuod 0} s co_ﬁmncmEEooH yeis ayl
NOILLYONIWWNO0O3Y 44V.LS 5102 ‘v AHYNHEAS
"Ajoede) Juspnig |10 pue suonosiold NAY usemiaq sousiayld (2)
-abed |ooyog Ag Auoedeq pue sbejoo aienbg sag (|)
LLO'L g8/ 655 LGE 8Ll - - - - (2) paiinbai si 80eds MaU YIYM Joj SJUSpPNIS Jo JaquuinN
%99 1%0°2L %.L'9 %9'8 %.'8 %58 %8°S %E'S %0°S %0 8ley ymoloH NAY
8.9'¢ esh'e 9ze'e v20'e S8.'¢ 1952 L9e‘c Le2'e 8LL'e 1102 suonosfold gy papuswiwodsy g4s
G8.°}t gE5°1 562 | 9e0‘} 0€L £6€ 59 - - (2) paiinbau s1 @oeds mau Uyolym 10} sjuapms %m Jsquinpy
%09 %09 %0'L %06 %0 L} %02t %02l %06 %0° L} %P0 aley yimoin WAy
est'y 002'Y 296°€ €0.L°E L6€°‘€ 090°‘ celL'e ovv'e 8€2°C 110 suopnasjoid Nagy s10141s1a
1992 2992 1992 299 2992 299 1992 1992 299 199C faioeded 1uspms [e10L
£99'¢ | /9927 |/99'c [/99%¢ |/99'c (/9927 |/99'c |/99'C |/99'27 | .199'C (1) Ayoedeq Bunsixg
EC Ad ¢ Ad Le Ad 0C Ad 61 Ad 8l Ad Ll Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad 71 Ad S
S-M
RUISIg payiun Yaaly usanp
Sloc/eel/t sisAjeuy uononNJIsuon MaN pieogd sap|ioe4 |ooyss




5102 ‘12 Aienuer

X00p'g -6 38843 Usanb G| UOHEPUSWIWOIBNPAYIUN YaaulD USaNID\UORINISU0D MaU G L \Buluueld jendenn:o

‘payipow Jo ‘pajeulwjo ‘pakejsp aq o} [enusiod sy} aAey pue ‘Maaal uodn IONVHO OL 1D3rans
S1O3roMd TWNLdIONOD TIV "SLOAFO¥d QIAOUddV-ATIVNLIIONOD OL GILLINNOD SI ONIANNS ON :eIoN

'SJUSpPN}S £G1°| 9q PINOM JOLISIP SIY} Ul |0OYIS Z|-6 JUapn}s-298 e jo Ajioedes [enjoe ay| :9JoN

(lemdaouo9)
(N600)
sjuapnis

/98 10} Z1-6

22-1202 Ad

12-0202 Ad

02-610C Ad| 61-8L02 Ad 81-2102 Ad

L1-9102 Ad

91-G102 Ad

SL-¥L0C Ad

G102 ‘v Aleniqo4 10} UOIIEPUSWILLIODIDY HELS

'salls jooyos ybiy ainyny Joy Alojuaaul ul pue| Aue aney
Jou sa0p Jousig 8yl Jeah yoesa pamalnal aq jsnw sjosfosd [enideouoy 2L A4 ul uado 0} Jeah ise| panoidde-Ajjenydeosuod
sem N600 103loid Ing ‘ueld [eyded Gl A4 SP Nwns jou pip ouIsIQ oyl

3senbay sjouysig Buipieboy sojoN Hels

(N600)
sjuapnjs
‘ /98 10} 21-6
C2-120C Ad| 1Z-020Z Ad| 0Z-610Z Ad 6L-8L0Z Ad| 8L-210Z Ad L1-910Z Ad 9L-GL0Z Ad | SL-¥1L0Z Ad
j3sanbay uononisuo Mo 1oL3siIqg
(Z1-6)
662020 - ALD £

JoLSIq Payiun yee1) usenp
sisfjeuy uopoNIISUOD MaN §L0Z

ag¥dvosd s311L1710Vd

TOOHDOS




payiun yeal) usanp Ayoede) g,

¢l-6

LI Ad ES1°1 G/£'801 Gcl 298 ¢l-6 . [00428 M3N - N60D
Ad Ayoeded 1994 spnis | Aioeded | °byuo)
leaoiddy | [enjoy alenbg Jed 45 ubisaq apeiy uonduaseq / 4equinN waloid
:onoidde A|jenidaouod 0} si uoljepuswILIodal Jels syl
NOILYANIWNOI3Y 44V1S SL02 ‘v AHYNHE3d
‘Aioeden Juspms 10 pue suonosioid Wy usemiaq asusiaid (2)
-abed |ooyog Aq Aloede) pue abeloo4 alenbg sag (|)
ov. 089 295 Gey £6¢ 0El I - - (2) paiinbal si 8oeds mau YaIym 1o} sjuspnig Jo JaquinN
%S¢ %LV %E’'S %E'9 %8°L %99 %8y %0'S %0°¢ %E'9 aley uimoln NaY
£0.LC 1£9'2 8LSe L6EC 6v2'e 9802 8G6°L 898‘L 6LL°L Shl'L suoyjosloid gy pspuswiwoddy g4s
ove'l e1z'l 290°} 268 189 Ly €02 - - (2) paiinbau s| adeds mau YoIym 1o} ﬂc%am_o JaquinN
%0t %0'S %09 %0'8 %001 %0+ %0 L} %08 %3G '€ %E'9 ; 8ley Yyimoly INAY
962 69L°E 8L0‘E 8v8‘c L€9C 16€°C 6512 Sv6‘L L08‘L ShL'L suonosfold Nav s.1011s1d
956°1L 956°L 956'L 956°L 956°L 956°'L 956°'L 956°L 956°L 956°L foede) yuspnis [E101
956°L 956} 9561 956'L 9661 9G6' L 956'L 9661 9G6°L 956°L (1) Ayioede] bunsix3
£¢ Ad ¢ Ad Le Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad Ll Ad 91 Ad Gl Ad 1 Ad cl-6
26
1olISIq paiun }8a1g usanp
SlLoc/ee/t sisAjeuy uojonIsuo) MmaN pleog saljjioe4 |ooyog




paijun dea1p usanp Ayoede) Gi,

nav

%0 %Ly %2C'S %S9 %E'8 %8 %S°L %8V %c¢ %L'e abueyo %

GG6°L 1692 0se'L 0669 1959 4509 009's olg‘s gL6'Y 908'y ovL'y el i

%E0 YA %9°€ %S'v %8 %06 %8'8 %E'9 %¥'S %¥'9 abueyo % ¢

ShLC lel'e G0.°2 2Loe 00S‘e oce'e l2l'e GG6°L ov8‘t Syt L't cl-6 7

%Y %c’€ %0°¢ %S°€ %c't %0’S %8G %9 %.L°0 %0¢ abueyo % , )
¥SS‘1 g6v'lL ovy'L yov'L L5¢°L 2oe’t ove't LU 021} gL'} 060} 8-9

%89 %0°L %9 L %66 %L L %06 %c’L %S°€ %¢c0 %00 abueyo %

959°c 2er'e 861°¢ €162 G0.'e SEV'C £€2'C £80°C €102 6002 6002 G- ,

€¢ Ad ¢d Ad le Ad 0C Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L} Ad 91 Ad SILAd Y1 Ad g€l Ad lea) ise - isedalod WAV g4S

"JuSWdo|oAsp [BlUSPISa) PUB [BAIAINS
Hoyoo uo paseq £¢ A4 UBnoiyl 1 A4 "3V WO} PaAIgoal ULl U paseq [enloe ale ¢ A4 PUB €1 A4 :suondwnssy

%67 %S’S %2 9 %L %18 %9°L %.L'S %SG %9°E %8¢ abueyo %

622'8 Ly8°L 8ev'L £00'L G¥S‘9 €509 929's L2e‘s S¥0'S L8V ovL'y [eloL
%S'C %Ly %€E'S %E"9 - %8'L %99 %8'¥ %0'S %0'¢ %E"9 abueyo %

€0.'2 /€9'2 81s'e L6EC 6v2'c 9802 856°} 898°lL 6L} ShL'L L9t cl-6
%S %8'€ %9 %V'S %S L %S'L %0°L %S9 %¥'E %8’} abueyo 9
8v8‘l 8G.'} ¥69°L 265'!L LIS o0v't 80€'} gec'l avLl 60L°L 060°}L 8-9
%99 %0°L %.'9 %9'8 %.L'8 %S'8 %8°S %E'S %0°S %10 abueyo %
8.9°€ 2SP'e 922’ ¥20‘E S8.°'2 1952 L9e‘e LES'C 8LLg 102 6002 S-M
€2 Ad ¢é Ad 1S Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LI Ad 9l Ad Sl Ad vl Ad gL Ad }sedalod NAY 84S
%6V %V'S %¥'9 %¥'8 %¥ 0l %V L %V L1 %¥'8 %9°L %8¢ abueyo %
1S6°6 L8V'6 1668 yav's 96.°'L 650°L Y89 G89°'s gve's L8 ovL'y [eloL
%0'v %0°S %09 %08 %00} %01} %01 %08 YA %E°9 abueyo %
962 691°e 8L0‘c 8¥8'c LE9'C 1622 6512 S¥6'L L08°L Sv.L') L9t ¢l -6 Jeah jse| woud
%0V %0°S %09 %0'8 %00} %011 %0} %0'8 %58 %8’ L abueyo 9
€022 8LLe 10 €06°L 2Lt 209°L 547 00g‘L v02'L 60L°} 060°} 8-9, Jeak yse| woi4
%09 %09 %0°L %06 %0 L1 %0°C} %0¢cl %06 %0 L1 %¥0 abueyo %
2sv'y 002'y 296’ £0L°€ L6E'E 090°c geLe ovv'e 8ec'e Ll0'e 6002 S-M Jeah 1se| woi
EC Ad ¢C Ad 1 Ad 0c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LI Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad VI Ad €1 Ad jsedalod NAY Paplrold JoLasIg
ulsIg paiiun ¥ealp ussnp
Gl0c/ee/!t suoposold INaY



, abelany
§1:-) -

%3 V- %3 €- %V'2- %8" | abueyo o,
ov.L'y 8Y6'Y 0LL'S £e2's jelol
%S’ %E - %9°¢- % '€- abueyo 9,
L't 009'L 2/9'L LV 2cL-6
%¢ G- %9’ %8’ L~ %¢ &- abueyo 9,
060°L 0S1°L LEL'L 2511 8-9
%9'8- %L - %V ¢- %6°L abueyo o,
1102 6002 6612 L0€'e v9e'e S-)
bl Ad €L Ad CL A4 LLAd 0L Ad 60 Ad

1ouIsIg payiun yeel) usenp

AoisiH Nav




"SIOpILI0D JOLIB}UI 10} PISN[pE JOU BJe S|00YS pepuny-g4S :8loN

|

196pnqg g4S Ulyum IS 2v8°0v 1o} paublseg "4S 002 0¥ 1o} panoidde Ajleutbu (g)

“JeaA yoea papn|oxa aq 0} pajosfoid abejooy atenbs jo junowe
loj abed spun4 2007 885 "INQY UO paseq JeaA yoea saueA Yolym ‘pjoysaly} 8oeds papn|oxe spasoxe uolpod papuny-jousiq (2)

“abejooy} aienbs jo adA} ayy uo Bulpuadap | 10g-G| "S'H"Y 10 Auoede) Juapnig jo uoniuyaqg Bupuop g4S 8y Jayue uo paseg (1)

956°L 068‘2€C |02Le 010°s€2 (0.€°C 08¢g‘.€2 ZL-6 lejol
59¢ 2Ll 2rs'or VN ere‘or 0 2r8‘or (€) ubiH e840 usanp o} uolippe papun-g4s
051 /21 9/0'61 0cl'e 961°12 0/£'2 995'ce ybIH Yesin usanp 0} uolippe papunj-1oulsic

Nad! 0cl 2/6'2.l  I¥N el6'2/L 10 2.6'CL) |ooyag ybiy Yes. usany papuni-g4s
90g‘e 882'c0z  !8VL‘6 oggv'ele ves'se 09Z'Lve 8-9 [e10]
el .28  |eee's YN eee's L18'E rL'El (2) Asuleg |lomaN 0} UonIppe papuN}-1oulsIg

6911 .28  10/9°96 VYN 0/9'96 0 0/9'96 Aouleg |lemaN pepunj-g4s
0 .28 10 0 0 82161 821'6l S0 Ad Ul peppe uollippe pepunj-jouisiq

¥20° L G6 582'/6 8v1'6 EEV'90L  |588°S gLEgLL |00yog S|PPIN ¥e8i) usenp
1992 0£s8‘slez  ivLE‘OL vvL‘62e 10.0°Se vie'vse G-) [e101
88/ 08 000°€9 VYN 000°€9 0 000‘€9 Hexdld-uopueig seduel pepuni-g4s
88/ 08 000'€9 VN 000'e9 0 000°'c9 Areyuswia|3 seuleq 3oer papunj-g4s
009 g8 £00°LS 199'S 0/9'95 0 0/9'95 Aejuswia|3 urelUNO L8seq
- 08 0 VN 0 0/0'se 0£0'Se Arejuswia|3 8810 usaNP 0} UolIpPe papunj-Jouisiq
26v g8 128°LY Ly9'Yy v.¥'9y 0 v.v'oy |ooyog Arejuswa|g yeei) ussnp
fuoede) | (1) | D11019N |1onpa@ J1| BaIY 18N | Ealy ealy ; jooyog

10SIAIg popnjoxg | ssoly

10L1SIA PaYIUN o8I0 UsaND

jooyos Ag Ayoeden pue abejoo4 aienbg




paliun 810 usenp Ayoede) g,

sjoefold 47

0 0 0 0 el 6e €9 g8 €0l gLl abejooy aenbs ssaoxe jo Ajoede)
0 0 0 0 Geo't  ele'e  see's LLO'L  9ps's £EE'6 (1) PlOYsaly) %Sz J0 SS8Xe Ul ing 8q 0} abejoo aienbs
202'8€  vPE'9E  BLO'GE  806°2e /€2l 650'62  [E£0'/2  L92'Se  92l'ce 68622 ploysaiy.L %Se
%G2 %SGe %Se %S¢ %G2 %52 %G2 %52 %Ge %G2 %S¢ X
Le8 128 128 128 L28 128 128 128 128 128 lojoey Aoenbape wnwiuly X
8v8'L 85/ v69'L  26S‘} FIS'L  90v'L 808l gee't  8yl'l 60L°L suonoslfold NAVY
2lg'2e gle'ee gle'ee  glz'ee ele're 2l2'ee  cle'ee  gle'ee  ele'ee  ele'ee [elo| sAljeInwng
vrlL'el Asuleg [jamaN 0} uoippe papunj-joulsig
82L'61 woos asodindyjnpy pepunj-puoq g
B2Ad 22Ad  lgAd  02Ad  6LAd  8LAd  LZLAd 9L Ad GLAd sleaj abejoo alenbg g-9
Joud
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo} asenbs sseoxa jo Aloeden
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) ploysaiur %Gz 4o sseoxa ul Jing aq 0} abejoo alenbg
/95'€/  I¥0'69  02S'v9  28P'09 €0L'SS  £22'lS  Llg'ly  /[29'vy £982y  8EEOp ploysaiy L %Se
%52 %G2 %S¢ %G2 %G2 %S¢ %52 %G2 %52 %52 %Ge X
08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 lojoe} Aoenbape wnwiuly X
8/9't  gs¥'e  9zee  ve0'c  S8.'C 1952 1982 leg'e  8ll'e 2102 suoposfold NaVY
0/0'Se¢  0/0'S2  0/0'Ge  0/0'Se  0/0'Ge  0/0'GSe  0/0'Ge 0062 0/0'Se  020'Se [ejo eAeNWND
0/5'v1 €001 Bpiq Aeyuswa|3 @810 usanp
0050l 2001 bpig |ooyog Arejuswalg Xeaig usanp
€2Ad 22Ad  12Ad  02Ad  6LAd  8LAd  ZEAd 9L AL GL A sieap abejoo alenbg G-y
Joud

Sloe/ee/ )

10UISIQ PaYIUN deslD Usenpd

Hoday spund [e007]



payiun o819 usenp Aoede) g,

sjoalold 41

93 LL0Z-SI 'S'HV Jed (1)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo} auenbs ssaoxe Jo Ajoeden
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) ploysaiyl e4Ge o ssaoxa ul Jjing aq o} abejoo4 asenbg
vIG'€9 29619 ZZL'6S L6L'9S 19825 2206y G009y  688Ey  vI8'Ly 166'0v ploysaiy ] %Se
%S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %S¢ %52 X
¥6 v6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 v6 v6 ¥6 ¥6 lojoey Aoenbape wnwiuly X

€0.'2 1892 8152 L6EC 6vee 9802 856'L 8981 6L} GyL'L
0.£'2 0LE'C 0.£'2 0.2 0.£2 0.2 0.£'C 0.E2 0/£2 0.£C

suofnosfold INAY

[e10] SAnREINWNYD

0/£°2 (g1 Ad) [0oyog ybiH Je asnoypjeld yinog
g€¢ Ad 22 Ad Ic Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad 9L Ad Sl Ad SIBaA abejoo4 aienbs g|-6
Jold

ouIsIqg peiiun xesI) ussnpy
SlLoe/ee/t Hoday spun4 [eoo7]



Sahuarita Unified School District

District Overview

Sahuarita Unified School District is located about 20 miles south of Tucson, along
Interstate 19. The District serves the City of Sahuarita and the surrounding
unincorporated areas. It currently has six elementary schools (K-8) and two high schools,
serving over 5,600 ADM.

District ADM

The ADM growth rate during the past five years takes a “V” shape, steadily declining
from 4.4% in FY 10 to 1.4% in FY 12, and rebounding to 4.4% in FY 13 and 5.8% in FY
14. The annualized five-year growth rate was 3.7%.

4’500 U S T— SS——

4'000 o et o oo e i ot 5 P i it it AN T 848 5 . S

3,000 —
2,500 -
2,000 -

1,500 -—g
1,000
500 e et vt e e e e o ] 43R R T S
T e R
FYO9 FY10 FY11l FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15*FY16*

*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections

District Outlook

Nearly 7,000 new residential housing permits were issued during 2001-2010, fueling the
District’s ADM growth from 1,939 in FY 01 to 4,760 in FY 10. With military, federal
agencies and defense companies offering relatively stable employment, the
unemployment rate in the area has been lower than the state and county averages. The
District has not experienced an ADM decline in the past decade, an impressive feat rarely
seen in other school districts. This year, the ADM is forecasted to grow by 2.7%. Witha
significant increase in the number of births in the last few years and resumed construction
of new housing units, SFB staff projects that ADM growth rates between 4.5-6.5% will
be the norm for most years in the projection cycle.




BELY 009 009 009 009 005 S8y 89€ ez 05t
1oL | 2eAd | 12Ad | 02Ad | 6LAd | 8LAd | ZLAd | 9t Ad | SEAd | vEAd

‘a4 suooslold “Jels g4s Aq paisnipe sy (1)
2z Ad 12 A4 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LL A4 9k A4 Sk AL

V1L Ad

PpuIsig peyiun ellenyes
(1) selouednasQ auwoH MaN

00}

00¢

00g

00v

00s

009

00L

i

O SWOH MaN

salouednod



GSl'y 62cc'y 062’y Gee'Y 6LY'Y LIV'Y 625V 185y 809'Y 819'v |Auoede) . .
G9G‘s 69¢'s 920°'S 99/% 805y 112 /90'v 198‘c £6/'€ 1 dVA WNav g4s
G8.'y 9y LOS'Y 99¢'y GES'Y L0y 86'€ $98°S 8y.'e LdVA /EG'E ANQy 10u181g
€¢ Ad CC Ad ¢ Ad 0¢ Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad L Ad mw_. Ad SL Ad YL Ad ELAd |8
¥
Ayoede) nav g4s ------- WAy 1omsIg - — —
€¢ Ad éc A le Ad Oc Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad LL Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad 7L Ad el Ad
. 1 L 1 L 2 L i ! L Ooo.m
00S'e
‘i‘\\\\\
e —
—— 000'%
———— - —— - \\\\\\\l\\
== == e — 00S'v
— et 000'
e 005'S
000'9

10141810 pauiun Blsenyes

ydess g-y




6ov'c  [eov'e  [eav'c  [eovr'e  [69r'c  [eov'e  [eov'z  [69r'c  [e9v'e  [69v'C Rioedes

698 8.z |ies'z  [evee  [e6L'e o6k |vor'z  [eeo'e  [ees't  [szz'L  [ev9l Nav 84s

lev'e  [zz8%2 |ooee  [zgee |69t [vOLC Iv0'c  |086°L 026t SLL°L 6v9' L Wav pusig

€2Ad | 22Ad | 1eAd | 02Ad | 6LAd [ 8LAd | ZLAd | oLAd | SLAd | vLAd | €LAd (216 .

Ayoeden Wav g4s ------- Wav ousig - — — _V
€2Ad 2Ad 12Ad 02Ad 6LAd  8LAd  LZLAd  9LAd  SLAd  YLAd  €LAd T
I t L L L 1 Oom. —.
e 002
\
e 4
\\\\\\ g 3

o 006't}

—— .
e T e 0012
— - - - \\\\\\\\ OOM.N
= 00S‘e

o ,#

002
006
00k

JOLISI PaLIUN BIIENYES

ydeio gi-6




sLoeg ‘g lenuer

X20p'g-) BIIBNYES G| UOHBPUSLLILIOISNDSIHIUS BIENYRS\UOHOMIISUOD Mau G \Buluueld eudeoy.o

‘paljipow Jo ‘pajeulwljs ‘pakejep aq o} [enusiod sy} aAey pue ‘malal uodn JONYHO OL LO3ArdNS
S103Arodd WNLdIONOD TIV °"SLO3rOHd A3AOHddV-ATIVNLdIONOD OL A3LLINWOD SI DNIANNd ON :S1oN

"SJUBpPN}S $26 99 PINOM 19LISIP SIY} Ul [ooyas g-) Juapnis-g0g Ue jo Ajoedeo |enjoe ay] :ajoN

(remdaouon) (remdesuo)) “
(N900) (NS00) |
009 10} 8-M 008 10} 8-M ;
€¢-¢C0C Ad | 2c-120C Ad | 12-0¢0C Ad | 0C-610C Ad | 61-8L0C Ad | 81-210C Ad | Z1-91L0C Ad | 91-S10C Ad | 'SI-¥10C Ad

G10g ‘v A1eniqad lo} uonepuswWoday Jels

«»,

*S8)IS J00YDS aIniny
loy Aojuanul ul pue| Aue eAey jou seop JoUIsSIP 8yl ‘Zg Ad Ul uedo o} JeeA ise| pencidde Ajlenideouco sem N90O joafoid 81
Ad ut uado o} sjuspnis 009 Jo} Jeah ise| panoidde Ajlenidecuos sem NSQ0 108lold :1senbay s ouisiq Bulpiebay sajoN Jels

(N900) (NS00)

009 10} 8-) 008 10} 8-)
€¢-2202 Ad | 22-1202 Ad | 12-0202 Ad | 02-6102 Ad | 61-8L0Z Ad | 81-2102 Ad | 21-9102 Ad | 91-G102 Ad | SL-¥LOZ Ad
1sanbay uooniisuo) map 1ouisia

(8-M)
0€200L ~Qqlo
JouIsIg payiun ellenyeg _
sisAjeuy uononnsuon maN SLOZ
_ advod S3I1LI11292vd TO0OO0OHODS




paljlun ewenyes Aloeden gi,

gc Ad 26 026°‘cL ¥'c6 008 8-M [00L3s MeN - N900

61 Ad c6 0c6‘cL V&) 008 8-Y C [00yos mMeN - NS00
Ad Ajtoede) 1994 Yuspnis | Audeden | ‘bBiuoy ,

[eroiddy | [enjoy alenbg Jad 4s ubisag apeln uonduasaq / JequinN 129fo.d

:onoidde Ajjenidesuod 01 S| UolEPUBLLIWODAI JE)S 8y |

NOLLYANIWWOO3H 44V.LS 6102 ‘v AHYNHE3A

, ‘Ayoeden juspnig [e10] pue suonosioid gy usamiaq asualaig (€)
‘ebed spund [e00 8858 ‘9'3 | 10Z-S| 'S'H'Y Jod se sjuswalnbal abeoo) aienbs winwiuiw s10U1SIp 84l JO 9% G2 Spaaoxa 1ey] abeloo) alenbs jo Aloede) (2)

abfed |ooyog Aq Aloede pue abejoo alenbg aag (1)

0Lyl 0v0'L 9E. 954 68 - - - - () paanbay s eoedS MaU YoIym o) SIUSPMIS 40 JequinN
%9’'G %8 %SG %l’SG %V'S %' %€ G %6°¢ %0’ %0°G ajey Yol NaVY
595'G 692'S 920°G 99y 805y 1l2'Y 190y L98‘c €6.'¢ viLL'e suonaaloid Ay papuswiuiodsy g4
0E9 rAN 4 L2 Ll - - - - - (g) padinbai s| eoeds msu Yolym Joj sjuspnis Jo JequinN
%€ %1€ %1€ %L'E %1€ %L'E %L'E %}'E %60 %09 aled ymoin Navy
8.y Ly9'p LOS'Y 99¢‘y See'Y 0Ly ¥86°C $98'c 8l vLL'E suonaaloid Wav sosia
SSL'Yy 622t 062V SSE'V 6LY'V LIv'Y 625ty 18S‘'Y 809'Y 819V Ayoede) juapnis [ejo ]
9l 06 LS 9lg 08¢ 8EE 062 344 69Y 6.y (2) Anoeded papunj-jousiq
6ELY 651y 6ELY 6EL'Y 6EL'Y 6EL'Y 6ELY 6ELy 6ELY 6ELY (1) Aioeded Bunsixg
€2 Ad ¢c Ad LS Ad 0c Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9l Ad Sl Ad 7L Ad 8-
8-
sIg payiun ejuenyes
Gl0c/Le/t sisAjeuy UoOONIISUOD MBN pJeog sell|jioed |[ooyos




peyun eenyes Ajoede) G|,

wav

%6’ %S'Y %1'S %6'Y %SV %SG %SV %6’V %L'E %V'S abueyd %

9618 888°L 85, G8lL 6v¥8'9 2ss'9 oke'e L6'S ¥99's Yov's 98l's [eloL

%l'E %V’ L %L %E'S %V'v %9'S %L %<’V %0V %C' L abueyd %

189 ¥85°¢ 90v'e Lve'e EEL2 40K GEB'I GL6'} 88"} 29/} 6v9°} ¢l-6

%0V %cC’E %y %LV %9V %SG %G9 %S %S %S abueyo %

Glg's ¥0e'G erl's 8E6'Y SLL'Y 805y G2y 120'y /28°'¢ 169 LES'E 8-M

£€¢ Ad ¢ Ad L Ad 0c Ad 6} Ad 8L Ad LI Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad YL AL ELAd Jed) 1se7 - 1sedadlod NAY g4S

‘Juswdojanap [enuspisal pue [eAlANs

Hoyoo uo paseq £2 A4 Ybnoiyl GL A4 IV WOJ) PaAIS0a) UOHEWIOI UO paseq [BNJO. 818 | AJ PUB €1 Ad :suondwnssy

%2’ %0°9 %E"9 %c’9 %9°E %8’ %LV %SV %.L'C %8'S abueyo 9,

gev's 9108 €962 SLL'L L0.9 999 2l1'9 £68‘S 8€9°G 68Y'S 981‘g jelol

%'V %E’8 %08 % b’L %c 0 %' %G°€ %8"L %¢’9 %l L abueyo 9,

698 8y, 1€5e 6ve2 £61°2 06L2 ¥0lLe 2e0‘e G88°‘| G/ 679°lL ¢l-6

%9°G %8’ %SG %L°S %V'S %1’ %E’S %6°¢ %0 L %0°S abueyo %,

G9G'G 692'S 920°'S 99/ 80S'v L/2'v 290'% 198°C £62°C y1LL'E 1E5'E 8-

€¢ Ad oc Ad le Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad LLAd 91 Ad SIEAd V1 Ad €1 Ad jsedalod NAv g4S
%lL'e %1€ %L'E %1€ %€ %L'E %1€ %L'E %E’E %8°S abueyo 9,
9ge’', 810°Z ,08‘9 £09'9 yov'9 1129 G209 vv8's 899'G 68v's o8l's [Blol
%LE %L'Ee %lE %€ %L'E %L€ %1€ %1€ %<8 %L'L abueyo %

LS¥'e L/€'2 90€¢ L€2'2 69l v0L'e L¥0'e 086°!l 02¢6'l Gl.'1 6¥9'L cL-6
%L'E %1€ %1€ %L'e %L'e %€ %1€ %1€ %6°0 %0°G abueyo 9%
G8.'Y LY9'y LOS‘Y 99¢g'y GeeZ'y L0L'Y ¥86'C ¥98'€ 8v/.'€ vLL'E LES'E 8-M
€2 Ad ¢c Ad e Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 8L Ad LI Ad 9L Ad SLAd L Ad €L Ad Isedalo AV papinoid 101Isig
10UISIQ PaIuN epienyes
Sl0c/Le/}

suopoefold NAY



%' %" | %62 %LV abueyo %,
981's 696'Y 006'v 09.'v [ejol
%32 L %2V %E'2 %0'E abueyo 9,
679" | 8ES' | LIV} vyl 2L-6
%1€ %2 0 %G S %SV abueyo 9,
[ES'E LEV'E £2r'e 9le'e 8-
abesany €L Ad 2L Ad LL Ad 0L Ad 60 Ad

1ea -G

Joulsiq payiun elsenyes
AioisiH nav




"SI0pHI02 JOUB}UI 10} pBISN[pe Jou Je S|o0yds pepun}-g4s 810N

yolym esle sjqepn[oxe 40} abed spund [es07] 985 ‘pjoysaly) aoeds papnjoxa spaaoxa Aljioe) papuni-1oUisIp siy} jo abeloo) alenbs ()

*Aluo salowoydos pue uswiysal} Yum | |0z [[ed ul pauado jooyss ‘60//L | percidde
8bej00) asenbs [euonippy ‘gOSD 0102 Selas Ag pepund ‘wnuojelow 0} anp pakejep ing ‘60 A4 uado 0} 90/s/1 peroidde Ajjeulbuo (g)

‘sisAjeue Ayoeded ul pspnjoul s}eb junowe

papunj-g4s ainug ‘1ebpng g4s uiyum Jjing Ajjenoe £90‘cg penodal 10u1sIp Ing ‘4S 840°cg 10} panoidde Ajjeuibiio sem 1oefoid siy] (2)

"abejoo) aenbs jo adA} ayi uo Buipuadap | 102Z-G| ‘S H'Y Jo Alloede) juspnig Jjo uonuleq Bupop g4S 8yl Jeyue uo peseq (|)

abejoo aienbg z1-6 €101

69t°2 8v5‘'982 690l |e6lL‘Z62 [8lLe‘s 0L¥'s0e

0 ¥6 0 VN 0 L02'E 102'S 9A0.5) USp[E A O} Uolippe papunj-Jolisiq
G6L L a|qeleA 198721 VN ¥98'/21 |0 ¥98°'/2! () anoin usplep pepuny-g4s
902 2Ll £90'c2 |¥N £90'cg 10 £90'c2 (2) 90 Ad ul perejdwod 1osfold aoeds [euonippe pspun-g4s
890°L l2) 129'GEL |S¥9‘0L  |S92'9vL |Z10°S 28z ISt jooyog ybiH-ejenyes
819y LL'v6E [19/°CL |££6°90V |668°96 2£8°€0S abejoo asenbg g-)| |elo L
617 08 90€'8E VN 90E'8E  IPPL'ZL  |0SY'SS () maip JeddoD:
LZE L 6°08 0880kl |V¥N 088°0LL IELS'Y £6S'SLL ezuy papunj-g4s
£66 G'88 ¥G8'/8  1£82'0  i/EL'v6  1699°02  |908‘vLlL [00Y3S 9IpPIN ElENYES
96/ G'88 80¥'0. |88€‘E 96/'€.  |¥E6'VE 0EL'80| [00YdS ajelpswlsiy| ejlienyeg:
£86 5’88 $S8'CE 10 ¥58'6E  |289°LL 98%'GY |ooyog Areyuswisig Wodog
165 g'88 0/8‘2S |060‘€  |096'GS |/00'8 /96'€9 |ooyog Arewid eyienyeg
Auoeden (1) D1 Jo 19N | 19npaq |ealy 19N ealy ealy jooyos

10SIAIQ ol pspnjox3 $S0.15) -

ouIsIg peijiun elenyeg
[ooyos Aq Ayoeden pue abejoo aienbg




payiun ewenyes Ayoeded G,

sjoeloid 41

'9'3 1102-G) 'SV Jed (1)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo} atenbs ssaoxa jo Ajloeden
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) ployselus %Sz Jo Ss30X8 Ul }ling &g 0} obejoo elenbg
LIP'Z9  0/S'Y9  G19'6S  802'SS  SES'LS  9SY'LS  9vb'ey  9S.°/¥ 862V 9Ly PIoysalyL %52
%62 %G2 %52 %S¢ %G8 %G2 %S¢ %S¢ %G2 %G2 %Gg X
¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 Jojoey Aoenbape wnwiuiy X
698'2 8v.'g 1852 6VE'S £61'2 0612 oL'g 2e0'e G88°L GLZ°L suonoslold NAV
gle's 812'8 gle's 8128 glLe's 812'8 812's 812's 812'8 812's [e101 8Aje[nwNY
log'e BA0JD) UBP|EA O] UOIIPPY

L10'S 0101 pue 6001 sBpig™ jooyog ybiH elenyeg

22 Ad 12 Ad 02 A4 6l Ad 81 Ad LLAd L1 A4 9l Ad Gl Ad SEEIN abejoog esenbs z1-6

loud :

91 06 LGL 912 082 8ee 06€ (4472 69% 6.Y abejo0) asenbs sseoxe Jo Ayoede)
16e't gL' 002t Kl2'ZL  l2v'ee  6v0'Z2 982 lE  E€9E'SE  0ES'/E 90€'8e (1) ploysaiys %Sg jo sseoxe ul }|ing aq o) ebejoo alenbg
¥62'LLL  2/€'S0L  GIS'00L VLE'se  8SL'06  98S's8 6vEl8 ggg'l.  SS0'S 6.2'vL ploysalyl %Se
%G2 %G2 %S¢ %52 %G2 %G2 %52 %462 %G2 %G2 » %52 X
08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 Jojoe} Aoenbape wWnWIui X
595°G 692'S 920's 99/t 80G'y Ll2'Y 190'p 198'c £6/'e yiL'e ,suonosloid NQY
G8S‘ZLL  68G'CLL S8S'ZLL G8S'ZlLlL GBS'CZLL G8S‘ZLL 685Gl G8S'2LL S8S‘2LL  S8S'ChL [eJ0 | @Ajejnwng
0SY'SS (€1 Ad) maip Jeddo)

699'02 (21 Ad) whn jooyos sIppIN

00S'6 (1 Ad) 48pue) pooypjiyo Apes

2E9°LL LLOL ‘0LOL ‘6001 sBpig - uodosg

02.'t 0101 Bpig - erelpauslv| BlENyES

1008 11O} Bpig - Arewud ewenyes

109'€ $001 Jo Ued pue ‘9001 ‘5001 SBpIg - 1.l L ezuy

22 Ad e Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad Ll A4 9l Ad Sl Ad SIBaA abejood aienbs 8-

Joud

Sloe/le/t

ousIg peliun elienyes
uodsy spund [e00]



Vail Unified School District

District Overview

Vail Unified School District is located a short distance southeast of Tucson in Pima
County. The District covers approximately 425 square miles, bisected by Interstate 10.
In FY 12, the District converted Acacia and Mesquite Elementary Schools (K-5) to
charter schools. In FY14, the District also converted Desert Willow Elementary, Old
Vail Middle and Rincon Vista Middle Schools to charter schools. The District currently
serves approximately 7,800 ADM in its seven elementary schools (K-5), five middle
schools (6-8) and four high schools.

District ADM

Over the past five years, the annualized growth rate of the District’s ADM was -4.1%.
The negative growth was due to two significant ADM declines in FY 12 and FY 14 after
the District converted some of its district schools to charter schools.

5,000
4,500
4,000
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000
500
0 T T T T ¥ T G 1
FYOS FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15% FY16®

*FY 15 and FY 16: ADM projections

District Outlook

At the peak of the housing market in 2005 and 2006, about 2,000 permits were issued in
the district each year and ADM was growing at an annualized rate of 12.3% between FY
05 and FY 08. The growth has since slowed down and declined by 9.8% in FY 12 after
the District converted two K-5 schools to charter schools. In FY 14, the District
converted three more schools to charter schools, causing ADM to decrease by 20.3%.
However, these three schools will convert back to district schools next year (FY 16) and
their ADM will be counted again as district ADM. This year, the District’s ADM is
forecasted to increase 6.9%. SFB staff projects that annual ADM growth rates in the
range of 2.0 — 3.5% will be the norm for most years in the projection cycle.




VI Ad

982'% 055 0SS 085 005 08¥ el Ob¥ Gl 82¢
el ZC Ad 12Ad | 02Ad | 6LAd | 8L Ad | 2L Ad | 9LAd | SLAd | vLAL
:a1e suonosfoid “yels g4s Aq pajsnipe sy (1)
22 Ad g Ad 02 Ad 6l Ad 8L Ad LL A4 9l Ad GLAd

\

wousIiq paiun llep
(1) selouednoo sWoKH maN

ool

00¢

00€

00v

00S

009

O SWOH MaN

sajouednad



y29'y 29y ye9'y ¥¢9'v y29'y ¥29'y ¥29'y 29y 729y #29'% Ayoeden
8LS'y Olv'y 60E'Y 002'¥ 9Ly 080y 00y £98‘S 10 GS/'e Sov'e Nav 94s
2089 085’9 929 8v19 ev6'S 612'S GlS's 8ve‘s 8LL‘S G612 Gov'e Wav ouisia
€¢ Ad ¢ Ad IS Ad 0¢ Ad 6L Ad 81 Ad LL Ad 91 Ad Sl Ad vl Ad €L Ad 16
Ayoeden nav a4s ------- NQV PUISIg — - —
€2 Ad 22 Ad L2 Ad 02 Ad 61 Ad 8l Ad LL Ad 91 Ad SL Ad ¥l Ad €1 Ad
I 1 L L Ll i 1 i i 1 . OOO.N
00s'2
\ /// 000'€
\\\\\ \ //
< / 00s'e
\
R —————— 7 000'v
.................. / _
/ 00S'y
7
/ ‘o
— 000 vm
— =TT 005's
Yt 000'9
=T 005'
000'2

pusIg psiun lea

ydeisn G-y




gel'e 8el'e /Sl gL' Gec'e 2se'e 159¢2'e G8¢'c 6£9'c 199'c Aoedep
ove'e ove‘'e 69¢2'c Lie‘e 866'2 0682 8£8°2 8G/°¢2 eye’l 0ge‘|l Wayv g4s
¢lP'e 882'c LLL'E S/0'E 800°¢ 6682 Sv8'e 7182 8E.'C 0ee't Nav 1u1sia
€C Ad ¢c Ad L Ad 0¢ Ad 6L Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9L Ad SL Ad YL Ad €L Ad [8-9
Auoeden nWav g4s ------- NQY 1PHISIQ = - —
€ Ad ¢d Ad 1 Ad 0¢ Ad 6L Ad 81 Ad L1 A4 91 Ad Gl Ad Pl Ad el Ad
! ! 1 1 L L i | 1 1 OOO. _.
POy |
/ /
3 / 00S‘tL
/\
I / \
/! \ /
-\ / \ %
7 7 \ 000¢
/ \
\. \ /
J / \
/ \ 00S‘e
\\ \
I|||l\ —— \
p— 000°E
= // 00S‘E
000y

ousIg payiun lep

ydern g-9




S 7K Ll Lv.'E Lvl'e Lw.'e 7 Lpl'e N7 Lv.L'E R 74 Ayoede)
629'v 807y Lge'y 9LL'y 8G0'p 6E6°E yeL'E GE9'e \ZA A LvEe /91'e nav d4s
280'v 616'€ 8y8'c (4K 679 609'c 625'€ 6vv'e G8p'c Lpe'S /91°€ Wav 1ousig
€2 Ad ¢c Ad 1S Ad 02 Ad 6L Ad 81 Ad L1 Ad 9l Ad Sl Ad vl Ad €L Ad |21-6
Ayoede) WQav g4s ------- Qv jomsiq — — —
€¢ Ad ¢c Ad 1S Ad 0¢c Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L Ad 91 Ad SI Ad Vi Ad €l Ad
! 1 L L I i Ooonm
\ 3
~ — 00ce
\\ 3
\\lIlIJ\\\\ oo¢m
D—— 009°€
_ -
P el
——— 008°€
_ —— - |\\|\\\\\ a
> ot 000
P - ||II||||!I|\\|
002"y
0¥y
009t -
008y

louisig payiun flep
ydein g1-6




sioe ‘Lg Lienuep

X00P'ZL-6 VA Gi UOHEPUSWILIOOSADBYILI) IEA\UORONISUOD MBU G L\BUILLE|d [BIITBD\:O

"payipow Jo ‘pajeulwjs ‘pakejep aq o} [enuajod sy} aAey pue ‘maiasl uodn IONVHO OL 1953rdans
8Ie §103rodd TVNLIIONOD TV "SLOArodd AIAONddV-ATIVNLIIONOD OL GILLININOD SI ONIGNNI ON :21oN

'SJUSpPN}S OEE‘L 99 PINOM JOLISIP SIY} U [0OYDS Z|-6 JUIPN}S-000°‘} € Jo Ajioedeo [enjoe ay| 930N

(lenydaouo9)

sjuapnys
| 000°L J0} ZL-6

¢C-LC0C Ad | 12-0202 Ad 02-6L0C Ad| 61-8L0C Ad 81-2L0C Ad] Z1-9102 Ad 91-GL0C Ad | SL-¥L0C Ad
G1L0Z ‘v Ateniqad 1o} UOIIEPUIWIWOIDY JJEIS
"1eak )sej panoidde Ajjenidasuoo jou sem joafoud siy| 3sanbay sjousiq Buipiebay sajopN Jels

sjuapnis

000°L 10} Z1-6
22-1202 Ad 12-020C Ad ]| 02-6L0ZAd| 61-8L02 Ad 81-210C Ad L1-91L0C Ad 9L-GL0C Ad | SL-vL02 Ad
3senbay uoljoniysuon Mo\ jousiq

(21-6)
02200} — AL

1oM3SIQ PayIun f1eA
sisfjeuy uonoNIsUOY MoN §L0Z

advosg

Ss3aILITIOVA

TOOHDOS




payiun [reA Ayoede) gi,

c¢l-6
81 Ad oee'l | 0oo‘sgl s2l 000°t 2l-6 |O0LDS MBN
Ad Myoeded | 1ea4 | wuepmis | Ayoeded | Byuod
leaciddy | jenjoy alenbg Jad 45 ubiseq apely) uogduaseq / lequiny 108foid
:anoidde Ajjenideouod 0] S| uoiepuUSLILLIOIaI Jels 8y |
NOILYONIWIWOO3H 44VLS §H0Z ‘¥ AHYNHE3S
‘Ayoeden juapnig [B)o | pue suonosiold WQY Usamiaq asuatayig (2)
‘abed |jooyog Aq Aloeden pue abejoo aienbg aag (1)
888 999 089 745 PARS 861 - - - (2) paanbal s| soeds mau yoiym 10} SJUBPNIS JO Jaquuinp
%0'S %0¢ %0°'S %b’ | %0 %S'S %L'C %9 %0t %S'S aley uimolin)y Nay
629'v 80ty Lee'y aLl'y 850'v 6£6'€ veL'S Ge9'e v.v'e Lye‘e suonasiold QY papudaWIWodIdY g4S
e 8.1 L0} 18 - - - - - (2) paiinbal si eoeds mau Yolym 10} SJUSPNIS JO JaquinN
%C' ¥ %8" %20 %LV %kt %E'2 %E'C %0 - %EV %S'S 8ley ymoln NaY
280V 616 8v8‘c 2e8’'e 6v9'c 609°C 625°C 6hY'e S8Y'e Lye‘e suofosiold way sioisiq
LvL'e 8 74 |8 78 Lv.'e Lvl'e LvL'e Lv.'e LL'e Lv.'e LvL'e Ajoede) juapnis jejol
LpL'e L' 1v.'e I.'e Lv.'e 1.'e L' L. Iv.'e 1.'E (1) Ayoede) bupsix3
£¢ Ad ¢ Ad L Ad 02 A 61 Ad 8L Ad Ll Ad 9L Ad SI AL 71 Ad cL-6
clL-6
oLISIqQ paljiun Jlep
Sloc/ec/

sisAjeuy uonoanIIsuog mapN

pJeog sall|ioe (0040




pauiun |reA Aoedes g1,

‘WueludojoAap [eNUSpISa) PUB [BAIAINS

wNav

LS

J0oYoo uo paseq g2 Ad cm_._o‘_cw G1 Ad '3QVy woJ} peAlsdal uoljewlojui Uo paseq jenjoe ale | A4 Pue gl A4 MCOZQE:W@Q
%Le %c’c %0t %l %8¢ %C'E %1€ %0°'LE %69 %€°0¢- abueyo %
vev'ch 9L 2L 868°L 1L 92S'tH 6L kL oLe‘0t G250 9se'ot 0€8°‘ZL 9ge'L L1616 [elol
%0'S %0'¢ %0°S PV’ L %0 %5°S %LC %9V %0V %S°S abueyo %
629t 80ty Lee'y 9LL'y 850'Y 6E6'C veL'e Ge9'e 1 ZAA (728> 291 cl-6
%00 %V'C %8’} %l L %L'E %6’ | %6°¢ %9'S0L %16 %6° 19~ abueyo %
ave'e ove'e 692'c Lie'e 866 0682 8e£8'¢C 86/ ere'l 0eeg’t 85S¢ 8-9
%S¢ %E¢ %9°¢ %6°0 %0°¢ %6 | %9°€ %¢'8¢ %V'6 %S°0¢- abueyo % :
81G'y OLv'y 60E'Y 002'v oLy 080‘v ¥00‘y £98°€ y1I0‘E GG.C gov'e G- o
€2 Ad éd Ad Le Ad 0¢ Ad 61 Ad 81 Ad L1 AL 9L Ad SILAd i Ad ELAd jsedalod NAVY 84S
%C'V %0°E %9'¢ %S°E %0°E %8¢ %V'e %V'e %8YS %8&°02- abueyo %
LOEY L 18L°cl €88°cl SyO‘El 665°CH YraAA 688 L1 FEO'HE IE'tE 9ge’L L61'6 [ejo]
%< %8 | %L0 b YAN4 %l L %E'¢ %E'¢ %0 - %E'v %S'S abueyo %
280y 616°'c 8v8'e ges'e 6¥9'c 609°c 62S'e 6vy'e g8v'e [R50 L91'e ¢l -6
%9°G %L'E %1€ %2C’¢ %8'€ %6’ 1 %l %8¢ %S'ect  %6°LS- abueyo %
eLv'e 882‘e AR G.0°€ 800 6682 S¥8°e v18e 8eL'2 0ezg’tL 8552 8-9
%V'E VA %S°€ %S°E %6°E %L°E %l’E %S’V %8°58 %S°0¢- abueyo %
£08'9 08S°9 ¥9€'9 8vL9 er6's 6LL'S GlLG's 8ve's gLL's GG.2 Sov'e S-M
g2 Ad éc Ad le Ad 02 Ad 6L Ad 81 Ad LE AL 91 Ad SE A4 I AL el Ad Isedalod NAVY Papiroid plasig

1ouIsIg payiun |lep
5102g/c2/} suonosfoid NaV



abelany
1Ba\-G

%8t %8'6- %6'2 %SV abueyo 9,
161'6 89/°8 G2l'6 £SV'6 jejol

%0°8 %8°0 %8'¥ %6'E abueyo 9,
/91°S £E6'C 606'C 9/.'g 2L-6

%2'E %E'9 %p'0- %Y’'S abueyo o,
8552 8/¥‘C 2ee'e LpEe 8-9

%2'E %1 'Ge- %p'E %b'v abueyo o,
S9v'e /GE°S a8Y'y 9EE'y G-
eL Ad 2L Ad LL Ad 0L Ad 60 Ad

10MISIq paliun lep

AoisiH way




199°c 261208 |Le9's cL8'2LE  |910°LY 628°65¢ g8-9 [ej0}
) 08 LE2 VN LE2 0 /E2 uoljels puowss o} uolippe papuny-jolsiq
0v9 08 891°LS VYN 89115 0 891°lS (01) uonels puows3 papunj-g4s
£¥9 08 YOv LS VN YOv' LS v¥8's 8ve'/s (1 1) 100Y9S SIPPIN BISIA UOOUIY
0 08 0 VN 0 S0L'V R (g) (uood g-g) #00} puUe £001 Sbp|q As|[eA BlIUSS pBpun)-g4S
0 08 0 ¥N 0 IS0V S0y () (8001 Bpja) Aejusws|g alowedAg pepunj-g4s
0 08 62 VN 62 0 62 $||Iy1004 BUOIOD O} UOHIPPE papun}-1aMIsidg
918 08 86z's9 YN ggz'sa 1o 852's9 (6) slliylood euOIO PapUNi-§4S
099 128  1G95'vS YN G95'vS 9l¥'ee 186'9/ (8) 100yos 8|ppIN AS Weseq papuni-g4S
2e S6 gelL'e 0 gel'e 0 8eL'e Arejuswie|g a)inbsa 1e g 0| bulpjing
azl .28  |06E0L VN 06E°01 0 06€E°0L (Z) 10040S 8|PPIN IIBA PIO 1B 910 PUB GO} Sbuipjing
85/ S6 £10'2L 129'S ¥£9'2/ 0 ¥£92/ (9) 100Y9S B|pPIA II_A PIO
ve9'v 8¥S‘6/E 6052l 150°26€  |S16'9§ zl6'shy S-Mieol
6.2 08 l0e'gz  I¥N 0g'zz 0 20€22 () (uoiod g-3) ¥00 | pue €001 sBp|q As|leA ellUBS papuny-g-4s
96€ 08 £69°1E VYN £69°'LE 2es'e Gee'se (¥001 pue 00| sbpiq Buipnjoxs) Asjje BllUSS papuni-g4S
G/9 08 000'pS VN 000'vS 190 190°/S abpiy 0|00 papuni-g4s
0 08 0 VN 0 8ey'L gev'L (¥) (8001 Bplq) Aeyuswa|g alowedhg papuni-g4s
G/9 08 000'¥S VN 000'¥S S0Lel S0/°29 () (8001 Bpiq Buipnjoxe) Alejuswe|g slowedAs papuni-g4s
G/9 08 000'vS VN 000'¥S 666°6 666'C9 Arejuswia|g poomuonoD pepun)-g-4s
0 ¥6 0 0 0 0S6‘v 0S6'y (looyog ealeuIs)Y ouejueRd AlIBWIO)) [00YISBId BAISN|OU] IBA
019 68 0L8'Ls GGh'S §92'sS 0 692'sS (2) Aeyuswa|3 synbsapy
g2l g8 068°19 £86'y £/8'99 0 £/8'99 looyag Alejuswia|g mo|lIp Haseq,
985 g8 8v8'6y LLO'Y 616'€S 008‘t 612'SS |]ooyog Alejuswia|g eloBoY
0 8 0 0 0 ver'el vEV'2L s80IMBS AJunwiwo) gsA
Apoeded | (1) | D1jo18N [19npag Ji| ealy 18N ealy ealy jooyoas
10S1AIQ pepn|ox3y | ssour) ) ]

ouIsig payiun JleA

[ooyag Ag Ajloeden pue abejoo4 aienbg




"Ajoedes sjouisip ayj 1surebe sjunoo Junowe alue siy] 1ebpng g4 uiyum 3ing Ajjenioe siem
4S 809201 Jey} jeolpul /00z Jeqwadaq Ul yels g4 Aq uaxe) sjuswelinsesw [en)oy °4S 005‘00} 40) panosdde Ajjeuibuio sem [ooyos syl (g1)
‘WY uo paseq JeaA

yoea saleA yolym eale o|gepn|oxs Joj abed spung [e00] 888 ‘ployssaiy) aoeds papnjoxa spaaoxa Alljioe} papunj-1ouisip syl jo abejooy atenbg (L 1)
‘anss! gOS0 Aq pepund "60/L/y pazisumop sem josfoid (01)

‘Ajioeden

sJolsIp sy} Jsurebe sjunod junowe aJius syt 186png g4s uiyum (Aiejuswe|g aiowedAs Je goo L Buipjing jo uoiod g-g sepnjoul) ying Ajfenjoe
2lam 48 GG 1 ‘g9 1.yl ejealpul /00g J8quiada( Ul Jels g4S Ag uaxel sjuswsinsesw |enoy 4 98/ °29 Jo} paacidde Ajjeuiblio sem jooyos siyl (g)
*8|qedl|dde Jou s| Uole|Nd[ed ploysalyl %SZ PUe d|qepn|oxe si 8bejoo} arenbs [euolippe! -

8y} ‘alojaleyl "200g ‘0€ aunp o} Joud sisjon Aq penosdde siem yoiym spuog g SSe|D Yim [ooyos siyy o} abejooy asenbs peppe jouisip eyl (8)
"suoioalio) Aousioyeq yim pepund “AjS Uese(

JO peslsul jooyds SIPPIN [1BA PO 01 peppe sem Ing ‘|ooyas s|ppIN ANS Hesa( se aull).awes ay} Je panoldde sem abejooj alsenbs jeuonippe siyl (2)
(9101 pue G101 sbp|g) suonosLio] Aousioleq Yum papuny 4S 06€°0 L dpn|aul Jou seoq (9)

("ebed spung 007 85s) pepnjoxe Ajaiue S| )| “Spunj [eoo| Yim |ooyas Alejusws|a siy} o} obeloo) arenbs g-g pappe Jouisip eyl (S)

“(ebed spun4 [eo07 88s)

8|gepn|oxa Ajainue si 1l pue ‘spunj [eoo] yum Buipjing siyi papuny 1oMsIp 8y “s|eas] spelb Buowe uonnguisip [enbs ue Bujwnsse pelesosd s abej00}
alenbg 'g-) sopeih sanles )| "|ooyoS |ppI S|IIYI004 BUCIOD Yim paleys S| pue sndwed s Auejusws|g aloweoAg uo pareso| st Buiping siyyL (v)
‘(ebed spung [eo0 @8s) ajgepn|oxa si }l Ing ‘spuny [B20] yim [00yds siy} o} abejooy asenbs pappe Jousip a8yl ()

| | "8-9 sepelb senles yolym 101 Bulpjing apnjou jou seoq (g)

"abejoo} asenbs jo adA) sy) uo Bulpuedep | 10g-GL ‘S Y'Y Jo Aoede) uspmg jo uopiuag Bupiopn g4S eyl Jeyue uo paseq (1)

Lvl'e £85°66€ |0 £8G°66€ |/L6'SY 00S‘Sh¥ clL-6lelol
0 6 0 VN 0 0LL'g OLL'e OUBJUEBY 0} UCHIPPE papuni-joLsiq
0Ll ¥6 9ze'0l VN gze‘ol 0 9280l |ooyog ybiH ouejued papun)-g4s
0 v6 0 YN 0 gee'el g6e'el EpPEIpUY O} UOIIPPE Papunj-1ouisig
/69 ¥6 6¥5'S9 VN 6+5'G9 0 675'G9 |ooyog YbiH aiuysihjod epelpuy pepuni-g4s
0 6 0 VN 0 000'€l  {000‘El (wnuoypny) a4dw3 0} uolpPE pepuny-JoLlsiq
260°L ¥6 809'20L IVN 809201 10 809'20} (21) ybiH eJidw3 pepun-g4s
evs’|l 0zl 00L‘tgz  |YN 00l‘lee  ISI¥'LL glg'gee (8) [ooyas ybiH ebsusiy pepuny-g4s

uIsIqg psyiun Jlep
[ooyos Ag Ajloedeq pue ebejoo aienbg



paliun reA Ayoede) gy,

s108lold 41

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abejoo) aienbs sseoxa Jo Ajoeden
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) ploysaiy} %Gg Jo ss8dxa Ul }ing aq 0} 8bejoo arenbg
/9E'06  S61'88  1/1'98 GEG'E8 0/2'€8 609°L8 S/0°08 992/ €/2'09  €60'SS ploysalyl %Gz
%SG2 %S¢ %52 %52 %52 %SG2 %52 %52 %S¢ %G2 %G2 X
08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 lojoey Aoenbape wnwiuiy x

8LS'y OLv'y 60E'Y 002'Yy oLy 080y ¥00'v £98°C v10'c 6G.'e
v8l'8€  ¥81'8C  ¥BIL'BE  ¥BL'BE  +BL'BE  +8L'8E  ¥8L'B8€  V8L'8E  ¥8L'SE ¥81'8€

suoposlold WAV

[e101 8AjgnwNg

2sl'e (L1 Ad) s@olnlag Ajunwiwio) asa
00S°C (80 Ad) 9001 Bpjg poomuonoy
2es'e (80 Ad) LOOL Bpiq jo uotuod As|eA BlUSS
0¥0°2 (20 Ad) 6001 Bpig aloweohs
290'e (20 Ad) €001 Bpia ebpiy 0]13000
ooL'z (20 Ad) 8001 Bpig poomuopod
00L'2 (50 Ad) L001 Bpjg poomuono
82y’ (Aluo uotod G-M) (OON yum pappe) (€0 Ad) 8001 Bpig @10wedhs
G99'LL (092N yum pappe) (€0 Ad) €001 Bpig aloweois
€2Ad 2CAd  1ZAd  02Ad  6LAd  8LAd  ZLAd 9L Ad Gl Ad SEEIN abe)j00 a/enbg G-y
10Ld

ouIsIg peuiun lep
Gloc/ee/t Hoday spun4 [go0T]



payun |lep Aioede) i,

syoeloid 41

‘93 LL0Z2-S| "S'H'V J8d (1)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 abelooy} asenbs ssaoxe jo Ayoeden

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) PlousaIy} %5z 40 $§89%a Ul }ing aq 0} eBejooS srenbs

164'80L 6/S'€0L SPS'LOL L1296 6SE'G6  S95'26  8¥.'/8  ZlL¥'S8  /E9l8 /0S8 ploysalyl %se

%G2 %52 %G¢e %52 %G2 %G2 %S¢ %52 %G2 %52 w %Gz X

6 6 ) 6 6 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 6 6 lojoe} Aoenbape wnwiuiy X

629'vy  8OV'Y IZEY 9Ly 8S0'P  6E6'E  vEL'E  SE9'C  wiv'E Iye'e "+ suoposfoid WAV

ZSY'EE  eSY'Ee  2SV'eE  gSK'Ee  2SY'EE  2SP'SE  2Sv'ee  gSy'ee  2SY'EE  gsp'ee [e10L BAIERINWNY

OLl'g (€1 Ad) 1004os yBIH oueued

z6e'et (g1 Ad) 100yos ybiH oluydelh|o4 BpERIpUY

000°€L (60 Ad) 100yos ybiH aaidw3 ye wnuoypny JoMsIq

0S6't SH 8AljBUla)|Y OuBjuBH

€2Ad 22Ad 1ZAd  02Ad 6LAd  8LAd  ZLAd 9L Ad GLAd Sleap abejoo4 arenbs z1-6
Joud

LLL LI gel IS 02 e2 444 ¥92 819 99 abejooy asenbs sseoxa Jo Aloeden

€GE'6  €¥E'6 8680l 0S0'ZL €le'9L  S9¥'8L 9I1G'6L  90L'IE e€g¥'ey  +99°lS (1) pIoysalul %6z 4o $s80X8 Ul J|Ing 8q 0} 8bejoo4 alenbg

L16'99 826'99 2/£'G9 1Z2'V9 8G6'65 908/S ¥SL'9S  YOL'SS  /p8'9¢  909'vE ploysaiyl %Ge

%G2 %52 %52 %52 %Ge %Ge %52 %52 %G2 %Ge ‘ , %Gg X

08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 lojoey Aoenbape wnwiuiy X

ove's  9ve'e 692t llg'e  866'c  068'C  8e8'c  8SL'C  Z¥E'L 0e2't suonosloid NAY

0/2'9. 0/2'9. 0/2'9. 0/2'9. 0/2'9. 0/2'9. 0/2'9. 0/2'9. 0/29. 0./2'9L [e101 BARRINWNYD

62 (e1 Ad) 0101 "Bpia siyloo BUOIOD

AT (g1 Ad) uonels puowss

8¥2'lS (01 Ad) ©isIA uoouly

SOL'vH (80 Ad) 001 pue £00 | SBpja Jo uomod AsifeA eluss

S0y (Ajuo uoiod g-9) (ODN Yum pappe) (€0 Ad) 8001 Bpjq alowedhs

€2Ad 2Ad IZAd  02Ad 6LAd  8LAd  ZLAd 9L Ad Gl Ad SIEEYN "~ obejoo] esenbs g-9
104

SL0¢/ee/

ousIa psyiun Ilep
uoday spund [8007]



STATE OF ARIZONA
L FACI

SCHOO A LITIES BOARD
Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item VI.
Subject: VI. Reduction of Square Footage Requests

Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify Requests for
Reduction of Square Footage

Yuma Elementary
Per A.R.S. §15-341, subsection G, school districts are required to obtain SFB permission prior to
taking any action that would reduce pupil square footage.

Background — Yuma Elementary (K-5)
The district has requested the removal of the following buildings from the district's inventory:

S Square | Student

K-5 School Burl‘llgmg Footage | Capacity

) Change | Change
Roosevelt School 1004 (1,120) (13)
Roosevelt School 1005 (1,440) (17)
Total K-5 (2,560) (30)

A reduction of 30 seats would yield a new K-5 capacity of 6,456 students. Based on the ADM
projections presented at the December 10, 2014 Board meeting, the district's K-5 ADM will not
reach 6,456 within the analysis timeframe (FY 23).

Staff Recommendation (K-5)

Staff recommends the Board approve Yuma Elementary’s request to remove Buildings 1004 and
1005 at Roosevelt School from the inventory.

Background — Yuma Elementary (6-8)
The district has requested the removal of the following building from the district’s inventory:

I Square | Student
6-8 School Burl‘}gmg Footage | Capacity
) Change | Change

Woodard Jr. High School 1010 (840) 9)

A reduction of 9 seats would yield a new 6-8 capacity of 3,595 students. Based on the ADM
projections presented at the December 10, 2014 Board meeting, the district's 6-8 ADM will not
reach 3,595 within the analysis timeframe (FY 23).

Staff Recommendation (6-8)

Staff recommends the Board approve Yuma Elementary’s request to remove Building 1010 at
Woodard Jr. High School from the inventory.




Board Action Requested: [ ] information [ X] action / described below

1. Board approval of the staff recommendation to approve Yuma Elementary’s request to
remove Buildings 1004 and 1005 at Roosevelt School from the inventory.

2. Board approval of the staff recommendation to approve Yuma Elementary’s request to
remove Building 1010 at Woodard Jr. High School from the inventory.

Attachments:Yes [ ] No[ X ]



Building Renewal Grants
January 30, 2015

FY 2009 Appropriation

FY 2009 Sweep

FY 2010 Appropriation

FY 2010 Sweep

FY 2011 Appropriation

FY 2012 Appropriation

FY 2012 Supplemental Appropriation
FY 2013 Appropriation

FY 2014 Appropriation

FY 2015 Appropriation

Total Available

Project Awards to Date *
Balance **

February 4, 2015 Awards
Balance **

The Board has awarded 685 projects.

55 projects are in design
219 projects are in construction
411 projects are complete

* Includes projects authorized by Executive Director and presented to Board for ratification 2/4/15.

$20,000,000
($13,000,000)
$3,000,000
($332,100)
$2,667,900
$2,667,900
$11,500,000
$2,667,900
$16,667,900
$16,667,900

$62,507,400

($56,633,743)
$5,873,657
($3,769,506)

$2,104,151

** Includes savings from projects closed out since last Board meeting (listed below).

Project
District No.
Ajo USD 001
Apache Junction USD 001
Bonita ESD 004
Bullhead City ESD 003
Bullhead City ESD 007
Bullhead City ESD 008
Bullhead City ESD 010
Bullhead City ESD 011
Casa Grande ESD 001
Casa Grande ESD 013
Casa Grande ESD 017
Casa Grande UHSD 009
Chandler USD 001
Colorado River UHSD 016
Cottonwood-Oak Creek ESD 003
Flagstaff USD 001
Flagstaff USD 004
Gila Bend USD 002
Gila Bend USD 003
Gila Bend USD 004
Gila Bend USD 005
Gila Bend USD 007
Gila Bend USD 009

Scope

Special Systems
Surfaces
General Renovation
HVAC
Special Systems
Special Systems
Plumbing
HVAC
HVAC
HVAC
Special Equipment
HVAC
Roof
Plumbing
HVAC
HVAC
HVAC
HVAC
HVAC
HVAC
HVAC
Special Equipment
HVAC

Award

$5,800
$33,600
$15,500
$464,848
$7,737
$7,673
$5,000
$7,125
$147,869
$175,501
$20,000
$28,753
$314,200
$10,194 .
$4,716
$298,750
$64,480
$2,500
$2,800
$2,500
$2,500
$23,000
$2,500

Amount
Expended

$4,809
$29,174
$12,486
$430,451
$6,421
$3,399
$378
$7,020
$137,524
$123,921
$16,071
$28,753
$155,170
$9,694
$4,200
$288,421
$59,692
$2,163
$2,373
$2,174
$2,063
$21,675
$2,019

Remaining
Balance

$991
$4,426
$3,014
$34,397
$1,316
$4,274
$4,622
$105
$10,345
$51,580
$3,929
$0
$159,030
$500
$516
$10,329
$4,788
$337
$427
$326
$437
$1,325
$481



Kingman USD
Kirkland ESD

Lake Havasu USD
Lake Havasu USD
Lake Havasu USD
Mayer USD

Mayer USD

Miami USD

Miami USD
Mohave Valley ESD
Mohave Valley ESD
Paloma ESD
Payson USD
Saddle Mountain USD
Saddle Mountain USD
Scottsdale USD
Scottsdale USD
Skull Valley ESD
Tolleson ESD
Wickenburg USD
Wickenburg USD
Wickenburg USD

006
005
008
009
010
005
006
002
003
016
017
008
003
004
005
023
026
003
010
001
002
003

HVAC
Plumbing
Special Systems
HVAC
HVAC
Special Systems
Special Systems
Special Systems
HVAC
HVAC
HVAC
Plumbing
Surfaces
HVAC
HVAC
HVAC
HVAC
Plumbing
Special Systems
Surfaces
HVAC
HVAC

$10,000
$3,600
$4,000
$6,885
$9,000
$2,613
$500
$8,500
$14,016
$14,500
$34,000
$4,274
$429,800
$13,590
$6,500
$6,200
$6,498
$12,000
$5,401
$165,000
$8,000
$2,942

$5,317
$2,963
$3,000
$5,635
$5,503
$1,759
$342
$8,208
$11,327
$12,083
$32,146
$3,765
$191,818
$12,903
$5,499
$5,859
$5,598
$8,521
$4,900
$127,449
$6,444
$375

$4,683
$637
$1,000
$1,250
$3,497
$854
$158
$292
$2,689
$2,417
$1,854
$509
$237,982
$687
$1,001
$341
$900
$3,479
$501
$37,551
$1,556
$2,567

$603,900



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item VIl.a.

Subject: VII. Building Renewal Grant Requests
a. Consideration and possible vote to ratify the Executive Director’s
awards of Building Renewal Grant funds as authorized by the
Building Renewal Grant Policy IX.C. (up to $50,000 for project
award)

Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary
Safford Unified
Valley Union

Background — Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary (Clarkdale-Jerome ES — repair grease trap)
Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request to repair the
grease trap in the cafeteria Building 1004 at Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary School (project
number 130403101-1004-005BRG).

Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary, located 106 miles north of Phoenix in the Verde River Valley,
has one school. Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary School is comprised of eleven buildings
constructed between 1984 and 2002, totaling 48,288 square feet. Building 1004 was built in
1984, totaling 11,657 square feet.

The district received a proposal for the repairs in the amount of $ 3,750.
Criteria for Eligibility

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary (Clarkdale Jerome ES - repair grease
trap)

Staff recommends that Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary be awarded $4,750 in Building Renewal
Grant funding for the repair of the grease trap in the cafeteria Building 1004 at Clarkdale-
Jerome Elementary School (project number 130403101-1004-005BRG). This includes $1,000
in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background - Safford Unified (Safford MS — replace 10-ton HVAC unit)
Safford Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request to replace a 10-ton gas

package unit because of a cracked heat exchanger in the school office Building 1003 at Safford
Middle School (project number 050201102-1 003-004BRG)

Safford Unified, located 165 miles southeast of Phoenix, has six schools. Safford Middle School
is comprised of fifteen buildings constructed between 1930 to 2000, totaling 97,597 square feet.
Building 1003 was built in 1961, totaling 12,749 square feet.

The district received a proposal to replace the unit in the amount of $9,290.



Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Safford Unified (Safford MS — replace 10-ton HVAC unit)

Staff recommends that Safford Unified be awarded $10,000 in Building Renewal Grant funding
for the replacement of 10-ton gas package unit on Building 1003 at Safford Middle School
(project number 050201102-1003-004BRG). This includes $710 in contingency that will only be
used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Valley Union (Valley Union HS — repair well pump)
Valley Union has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the repair of the well pump at
Valley Union High School (project number 020522201-9999-004BRG).

Valley Union, located 117 miles southeast of Tucson, has one school. Valley Union High
School is comprised of eleven buildings constructed between 1950 and 2007, totaling 59,812
square feet.

The district requested proposals; the lowest was $5,223.
Criteria for Eligibility

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Valley Union (Valley Union HS — repair well pump)

Staff recommends that Valley Union be awarded $6,100 in Building Renewal Grant funding to
repair the well pump at Valley Union High School (project number 020522201-9999-004BRG).
This includes $877 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Board Action Requested: [ ] information [ X ] action / described below

1. Board ratification that Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary be awarded $4,750 in Building
Renewal Grant funding for the repair of the grease trap in the cafeteria Building 1004 at
Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary School (project number 130403101-1 004-005BRG). This
includes $1,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

2. Board ratification that Safford Unified be awarded $10,000 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for the replacement of 10-ton gas package unit on Building 1003 at Safford
Middle School (project number 050201102-1003-004BRG). This includes $710 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

3. Board ratification that Valley Union be awarded $6,100 in Building Renewal Grant
funding to repair the well pump at Valley Union High School (project number 020522201-

9999-004BRG). This includes $877 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval.

Attachments: Yes [ X] No[ ]



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary
BRG Project Number:  130403101-1004-005BRG Yavapai County
Project Description: Repair grease trap
Architect of Record: n/a
Contractor: T.L. Plumbing, Inc. {928-282-9398)
Executive Authority: 1/14/2015
Board Ratification: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost $ 3,750
Contingency (1) $ 1,000

Architecture / Engineering (A&E)

Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc.

Testing & inspection

Total Additional Cost:

Total SFB Funded Project Cost:

District Share (Local Funds):
SFB Board Approved Amount:

w| |o|er] | (|||
ke
N
a
o

Total Project Cost:

(D Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Clarkdale-Jerome ESD 005BRG Vertical Sheet.xls




School Facilities Board | BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT
SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/9/2015 11:15:01 AM Application ID: 1749
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary District
Superintendent: Kathleen Fleenor
Contact Person: Kristy Aston

Contact Phone Numbetr: 928-634-5035

Contact Email: kristy.aston@cjsd.k12.az.us
School Site: Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary School
Buildings: 1004 Building D

Application Title: Grease Trap Repair

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

Grease trap is backed up and not draining. Baffles on both sides need to be replaced and cleanout
installed.

Project Category: Plumbing

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
l Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

[District does not have any money in the building renewal fund.

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name ‘ . Cia

Superintendent Signature Date

1/14/2015 12:26:07 PM 1 Application ID: 1749



T. L. Plumbing, INC.

Licensed & Bonded
Res/Com #136746
2155 Shelby Drive Suite E
Sedona, AZ 86336

Phone (928) 282-9398 Fax (928) 282-6521

Proposal for Clarkdale Jerome School Grease Trap Repair

The inlet and outlet of the grease trap need to be replaced this includes: saw cutting and
jack hammering the concrete, removal of concrete, digging up old lines, installing new baffles
on both the inlet and autlet sides of the grease trap inside of tank. Then install two way
cleanouts on both the inlet and outlet side of tank then back fill and pour new concrete. The
total for this work as described above with tax included is $3,750.00, then there may be other
issues going on with the outlet line to the sewer and may need to video camera the line, this
additional expense will be $150.00 plus whatever work may be discovered.

Larry Nevitt

(928)300-5389



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

e ]
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Safford Unified
Project Number: 050201102-1003-004BRG Graham County
Project Description: Replace 10-ton HVAC unit
Architect of Record: n/a
Contractor: Jon's Heating and Cooling (928-428-0753)
Executive Authority: 12/31/2014
Board ratification: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved

Base Cost $ 9,290
Contingency (1) $ 710
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ -
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ -
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 10,000
District Share (Local Funds): $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 10,000

Total Project Cost: $ 10,000

(D Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Safford USD 004BRG Vertical Sheat xlsx




School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 12/30/2014 2:40:23 PM Application ID: 1747
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Safford Unified District
Superintendent: Mark Tregaskes
Contact Person: Tim McHugh

Contact Phone Number: 928-348-6985

Contact Email: tmchugh@saffordusd.com
School Site: Safford Middle School
Buildings: 1003 Building A

Application Title: HVAC replacement for office.

Description of Problem
Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional

studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

HVAC unit over school office no longer safe to operate. Due to age and wear, heat exchanger has cracked
and carbon monoxide gas is leaking into the facility.

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding

| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Not covered by District insurance. The District has fully expended its building renewal funds and does not
have excess capital funds available for this critical project.

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature ‘ Date
1/6/2015 12:38:35 PM 1 Application ID: 1747




C

Jon's Heating and Cooling

Jon’s Heating and Cooling LLC E-mail: jonshc@yahoo.com
dba Jon’s Heating & Cooling Telephone (928)428-0753
P.O. Box 939 Fax (928) 478-R606
Thatcher, AZ 85552 Contractors License No. ROC263129 K-39
Safford Schools

RE: 10-ton unit on Middle School

Price to furnish and install one 10-ton RHEEM/RUUD 13 SEER system:

11.2 EER I-stage $6200
qv/j\/" . $334.60 tax

C $6534.60 total

13 EER 2-stage $8800

$489.10 tax
$9289.10 tax

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to quote on this job. To accept terms of this quote, sign
and return one copy to Jon’s Heating and Cooling, PO Box 939, Thatcher, AZ 85552,

kgl — 1)

Vemon Batty or Authorized Employee Date /(O'{vner or Authorized ﬁﬁxature) Date

Payment Policy: Payment due upon completion,

{Above quotc is good for 60 Days, Total Payment duc upon completc installation. We take VISA, Mastercard & Discover)



il

December 18,2014

Tim McHugh

Safford Unified School District
734 11" Street

Safford, AZ 85546

Re: Safford Middle School Office HVAC Unit Replacement Evaluation

Mr. McHugh:

We are pleased to submit this Proposal to provide Engineering services to the Safford Unified School
District. Upon verbal or written direction to proceed with the services, this Proposal will constitute a binding
agreement (the “Agreement”) between Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd. (“BCG™) and Safford Unified
School District (the “Client”).

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING
It is BCG’s understanding that the Safford Unified School District would like to replace the HVAC unit
located over the storage room directly to the south of the Middle School Office. As required by law in order
to replace this unit an analysis of the existing structure needs to be completed in order to determine if the
structure is capable of supporting the proposed HVAC unit.

SCOPE OF SERVICES
Since there are no existing design plans for this building BCG will make appropriate assumptions based on
visual inspection and industry practices. BCG will perform calculations in order to determine if the existing
roof structure is capable of supporting the new HVAC unit based on Level 1 — Alterations from Chapter 6
Section 606 of the International Existing Building Code (IEBC). BCG will submit our findings in letter
report format to the Client.

Level 1 — Alterations from Chapter 6 Section 606 of the IEBC allows for the load on the structure to be
increased by up to 5%. In the event the replacement of the HVAC unit increases the load by greater than
5% BCG will evaluate the load based on Chapter 7 Section 707 of the IEBC. Chapter 7 of Section 707 of
the IEBC allows for the stress of the structure to be increased by up to 5%. BCG will submit our findings
in letter report format to the Client.

//,/M P— \\
BCG will provide a Level 1 evaluation based on the IEBC for a lump suc/fee of $620. ,;‘}
M,,,./"’

In the event the load is greater than a Level 1 evaluation will allow, BCG will perform a Level 2 evaluation
based on the IEBC for an additional lump sum fee of $1,085.

7303 E. 4" Street, Satford, Arizona 85546
p: 928.428.3898 | 12 928.428.7395
www.bowmanconsulting.com



O

ﬂiﬂ W

We look forward to the opportunity to work with you on this project. Please indicate your acceptance of
this proposal by sending us one copy of this proposal with the appropriate authorizing signature in the

space below.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us at 928-428-3898.

Respectfully submitted,
Bowman Consulting Group

Chad M. Crockett, PE
Branch Manager

Accepted this day of , 2014,
By:
Title:

As Authorized Agent




SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Detail of Additional Cost and C-Zontingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Valley Union
BRG Project Number:  020522201-9999-004BRG Cochise County
Project Description: Repair well pump
Consultant: n/a
Contractor: Well Service
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 5,223
Contingency (1) $ 877
Additional Cost: .
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ -
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ -
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 6,100
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 6,100
Total Project Cost: $ 6,100

(D Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 230
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Valley UHSD 004BRG Vertical Sheet.xls




School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/23/2015 1:34:45 PM Application ID: 1777
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Valley Union High 5School District
Superintendent: Ron Aguallo
Contact Person: Ron Aguallo

Contact Phone Number:  520-642-3492

Contact Email: ron.aguallo@vuhs,net
School Site: Valley Union High School
Buildings: 9999 School Wide

Application Title: Well repair

Description of Problem
Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional

studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

Water well that supplies 1/2 the campus with potable water broke, The impellers on the bottom of the
pump were damaged no longer able to pump water to the surface, also the pipe casings had a severe holes
in them which also did not allow the water to reach the pressure tanks. These two issues caused the pump
motor to overwork and ultimately give out. Recommended solutions is to replace impellers, casing, and
pump motor. An estimate for these items is around $5,000.00

Project Category:  Plumbing

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
} Amount of Local funds planned for this project 50,00 !

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

[District insurance does not cover damaged items that are due to wear and tear,

Liaison: Demland ddemland@azsfb.gov 602-542-6567

Kon  Aausllo
Superintendent Printed Name

1/23/2015 4:16:11 PM 1 ' Application ID: 1777



Building Renewal Grant Application

A';;‘?ﬂ;f ‘ [-23-17
Superinféndent Signature Date

1/23/2015 4:16:11 PM 2 Application ID: 1777



B ae®

Custemaer's Ovder No Phicne Ne. {ate

Sold in

) § ’XQdmsrz o
!
s &?W y I i

i
:
i

" Al claims snd returned goods MUST ba acce pamud by Hhits 811

Fard,




STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item VIl.b.

Subject: VIl. Building Renewal Grant Requests
b. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
Building Renewal Grant Requests (supplemental awards)

Blue Ridge Unified

Ganado Unified (2 requests)
Mobile Elementary

Mohave Valley Elementary

Background - Blue Ridge Unified (Blue Ridge HS — partial roof replacement)

On May 7, 2014, the Board awarded Blue Ridge Unified $12,894 for the design and asbestos
survey to develop construction documents on Buildings 1001 and 1005 at Blue Ridge High
School (project number 090232102-9999-004BRG).

The roof surfaces and substrates are restorable and the district will receive an additional 20
year warranty on the existing roofs after the restoration. During construction only portions of the
roof will be removed and the rest of the roof will be restored.

Initial Award 5/7/2014

Design $9,124
Asbestos Survey $3.770
$12,894
Supplemental funding requested:
Construction Administration $10,059
Estimated Construction Cost $181,179
Abatement Oversight Cost $4,938
Abatement (Not To Exceed) $37,121
Contingency $20,000
Total $253,297
Total project cost: $266,191

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation— Blue Ridge Unified (Blue Ridge HS — partial roof replacement)

Staff recommends that Blue Ridge Unified be awarded an additional $253,297 in Building
Renewal Grant funding for the restoration of the roofs on Buildings 1001 and 1005 at Blue
Ridge High School (project number 090232102-9999-004BRG). This includes $20,000 in




contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval and brings the total project cost to
$266,191.

Background — Ganado Unified (Ganado HS — roof replacement) Request 1 of 2

On February 6, 2013 the Board awarded Ganado Unified $2,920 for evaluation into the roof
failure at Ganado High School. On May 5, 2014, the Board awarded an additional $59,401 for
professional services (includes $5,000 contingency) to provide construction bid documents to
replace/restore the roofing on Buildings 1001, 1002, 1003, 1004 and 1005 at Ganado High
School (project number 010220204-9999-005BRG).

The Trust paid the district $196,293 for hail damage to single ply roofing that has exceeded its
life (1987). The high school consists of 243,957 square feet; however, only a total of 80,000
square feet will be replaced with this project. Asbestos surveys and structural analysis have
been completed.

The construction was estimated at $1,835,106 due to the significant roof damage/age that has
allowed moisture into the insulation board which will required complete removal down to the
structure deck. In addition, the remote location of the school and subsequent high per diem
costs have a dramatic affect on the project cost.

Previous Awards

Evaluation 2/6/2013 $2,920
Design 5/7/2014 $54,401
Contingency $5,000
$62,321
Supplemental funding requested:
Construction Administration $34,751
Estimated Construction Cost $1,835,106
Contingency $200,000
District funding (insurance claim) ($196,293)
Total $1,873,564
Project cost (less insurance claim): $1,935,885
Total project cost: $2,132,178

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation— Ganado Unified (Ganado HS — roof replacement)

Staff recommends that Ganado Unified be awarded an additional $1 ,873,564 in Building
Renewal Grant funding for the replacement of the roofs on Buildings 1001, 1002, 1003, 1004
and 1005 at Ganado High School (project number 010220204-9999-005BRG). This includes
$200,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval. The district is
contributing $196,293 from the insurance claim to the project. This brings the total project cost
to $2,132,178.




Background — Ganado Unified (Ganado HS — stucco repair & reseal) Request 2 of 2

On February 6, 2013, the Board awarded Ganado Unified $7,000 for investigation into the
stucco failure at Ganado High School. On May 5, 2014, the Board awarded the district an
additional $33,374 for professional services (includes $3,000 contingency) to provide
construction bid documents to repair/replace the exterior stucco (project number 010220204-
9999-006BRG).

The stucco installation has failed twice. Upon further review of the investigation and completion
of the construction documents, it was determined that the district did not provide the necessary
maintenance to the stucco, that mold may be present behind the stucco, and that replacement
of the stucco is required.

The district received cost estimates from the Architect totaling $1,534,000 for total stucco
repair/replacement (not including the remediation of mold/mildew). Due to the insufficient
preventive maintenance performed by the district on the existing stucco, staff recommends
providing funding only for Task 3 Painting and Caulking of the new/replacement stucco
(estimate $307,349).

The district will be submitting a grant to the Federal Impact Aid Program to supplement the
remainder of this project to provide total correction of the stucco replacement and mold/mildew
remediation.

Previous awards:

Investigation 2/6/2013 $7,000
Design 5/7/2014 $30,374
Contingency $3,000
$40,374
Supplemental funding requested:
Construction Admin. for Task 3 $12,530
Task_3 - Painting and Caulking of new stucco $307,349
Contingency $32,000
Total additional funding requested $351,879
District contribution: $1,226,651
SFB funding: $392,253
Total project cost: $1,618,904

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Ganado Unified (Ganado HS — stucco repair & reseal)

Staff recommends that Ganado Unified be awarded an additional $351,879 in Building Renewal
Grant funding for the painting and caulking of the new stucco contingent upon funding from the
Federal Impact Aid Program ($1,226,651) to replace the stucco on all buildings at Ganado High
School (project number 010220204-9999-006BRG). This includes $32,000 in contingency that
will only be used with SFB staff approval and brings the total project cost to $1,618,904.




Background — Mobile Elementary (Mobile ES — replace well pump)

On August 6, 2014, the Board awarded Mobile Elementary $1,000 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for the repair of the wiring to the well pump at Mobile Elementary School (project
number 070386101-9999-002BRG).

Due to the cause of the failure, the Trust videoed the well casing. Failure of the wiring to the well
pump was caused both by age and the deterioration of the well casing. Staff asked the district to
procure a consultant to determine if the existing well can be repaired or if a new well will have to
be drilled.

The consultant has determined that the current well is beyond repair due both to age (at least
55 years old) and the falling water level in the local aquifer. The cost estimate for the new well is
as follows:

Initial award 8/16/2014 $1,000

Supplemental funding requested:
Engineering design and construction administration $74,283

Estimate for new well and pump $290,000
Contingency $35,000
Total $399,283
Total project cost $400,283

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative work.

Staff Recommendation — Mobile Elementary (Mobile ES - replace well pump)

Staff recommends that Mobile Elementary be awarded an additional $399,283 in Building
Renewal Grant funding for the engineering design, construction administration and construction
costs for a new well system at Mobile Elementary School (project number 070386101-9999-
002BRG). This includes $35,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Mohave Valley Elementary (Mohave Valley ES — replace HVAC system)

On December 10, 2014, the Board awarded Mohave Valley Elementary $5,000 in Building
Renewal Grant funding for the engineering design to replace two HVAC units on Building 1013
at Mohave Valley Elementary School (project number 080416101-1013-021 BRG).

The district has received an estimated construction cost of $18,900 and construction
administration of $2,500.

Initial award 12/10/2014
Engineering design $5,000

Supplemental funding requested:
Estimated construction cost $18,900
Construction administration $2,500



Contingency $4.000
Total additional funding requested: $25,400

Total project cost: $30,400

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Mohave Valley Elementary (Mohave Valley ES — replace HVAC
system)

Staff recommends that Mohave Valley Elementary be awarded an additional $25.400 in Building
Renewal Grant funding for the replacement of the HVAC system on Building 1013 at Mohave
Valley Elementary School (project number 080416101-1013-021BRG). This includes $4,000 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval and brings the project total to
$30,400.




Board Action Requested: [ ] information [ X] action / described below

1.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Blue Ridge Unified be awarded an
additional $253,297 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the restoration of the roofs on
Buildings 1001 and 1005 at Blue Ridge High School (project number 090232102-9999-
004BRG). This includes $20,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval and brings the total project cost to $266,191.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Ganado Unified be awarded an
additional $1,873,564 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the replacement of the roofs
on Buildings 1001, 1002, 1003, 1004 and 1005 at Ganado High School (project number
010220204-9999-005BRG). This includes $200,000 in contingency that will only be used
with SFB staff approval. The district is contributing $196,293 from the insurance claim to
the project. This brings the total project cost to $2,132,178.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Ganado Unified be awarded an
additional $351,879 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the painting and caulking of
the new stucco contingent upon funding from the Federal Impact Aid Program
($1,226,651) to replace the stucco on all buildings at Ganado High School (project
number 010220204-9999-006BRG). This includes $32,000 in contingency that will only
be used with SFB staff approval and brings the total project cost to $1,618,904.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Mobile Elementary be awarded an
additional $399,283 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the engineering design,
construction administration and construction costs for a new well system at Mobile
Elementary School (project number 070386101-9999-002BRG). This includes $35,000
in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Mohave Valley Elementary be
awarded an additional $25,400 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the replacement of
the HVAC system on Building 1013 at Mohave Valley Elementary School (project
number 080416101-1013-021BRG). This includes $4,000 in contingency that will only be
used with SFB staff approval and brings the project total to $30,400.

Attachments: Yes [ X ] No[ ]



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Y S St S5 e e ]
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Blue Ridge Unified
BRG Project Number: 090232102-9999-004BRG Navajo County
Project Description: Partial roof replacement on Bldgs. 1001 & 1005
Consultant: HDA Architects (Paul Holland)
Contractor: TBD
Board Approval; 5/712014
Supplemental award: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 218,300
Contingency (1) $ 20,000
Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees 3 19,183
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. 3 4,938
Testing & Inspection 3 3,770
Total Additional Cost: $ 27,891
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 266,191
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 266,191
Total Project Cost: $ 266,191

(O Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Blue Ridge USD 004BRG Vertical Sheet.xls



- : P-4
HDA ARCHITECTS, LLC

PRING PR
PHOLNRES

PLIL BARKLR
AREZONA
©ALITUHINEA

PALL HOLLAND January 20, 2015
AR ONA
O AL
SR CRROLINA

BRUCE R SCOIT Jeff Akins

AR

Blue Ridge Unified School District No. 32
1200 West White Mountain Boulevard
Lakeside, AZ 85929

Re:  Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Project: Re-Roofing at Blue Ridge High School
HDA Project No. 1427
SFB Project No. 090232102-9999-004-BRG

Dear Mr. Akins;

We have prepared an opinion of probable construction cost for the above
referenced project. The results of the estimate were $181,178.13. Because
this project will be dealing with existing conditions. we would also
recommend that the SFB retain a contingency for this project.

HDA Architects LI.C

Very Truly Yours

P e
e 2

Paul D. Hollan
Principal »

Cc: Pat Cruse - SFB

Attachments:  Spreadsheet Printout

459 N, GILBERT ROAD, SUITE C-200, GILBERT, A7 852344737 / PHONE 4805308800 / FAX 450-339-8608 / www hd-architeets.com



Spray Foam Coating Café. Roof 16,425 SF 5 SF $82,125.00
Seal Coating 22,567 SF $2.50 SF $56,417.50
Roof Accessoires $5,000.00 LS 1 EA $5,000.00
Extra sheets of plywood $70.00 EA 20 $1,400.00
Sub Total Construction Cost $144,942.50
Taxes, Bonds, Insurance, $144,942.50 LS 20.00% $28,988.50
Remote Site $144,942.50 LS 5.00% $7,247.13

Grand Total Construction Costs

$181,178.13



DOMINION

January 29, 2015

Mr. J.B. Akins
Director of Maintenance and Custodial Services
Blue Ridge Unified School District #32
1200 West White Mountain Boulevard
Lakeside, Arizona 85929
Re: Estimated Fee Proposal

Asbestos Abatement Oversight

Blue Ridge High School - Admin/Math & Cafeteria Roofs
Dear Mr. Akins :

Pursuant to your request, the following is an cstimated fee proposal to perfonn asbestos abatement oversight, ambicat air
monitoring and closeout documentation at the above referenced school. As outlined by Sagebrush Restoration, the abatement
conlractor working directly for the Blue Ridge Unified Schoo! District (BRUSD), the roofs are scheduled to be replaced
and will require abatement of the asbestos-containing material that was identified in the Dominion Report dated November
6, 2015, Dominion was instructed by the BRUSD to provide an cstimate for these services only.

The cstimated fee proposal, labor rates and sample costs are in accordnnce with Dominion’s State Contract Fee Schedule
(State of Arizona Contract #ADSPO12-033360). Bascd on the above referenced information, the scope of services and
estimated fee praposal ate as follows:

12 PCM Ambient Air Samples @ $24.00 persample (Rush) . oo inneninan.. $_288.00

37 Certificd Asbestos Contractor Supervisor Labor Hours @ $65.00 perhour .............. $2,405.00

3 Project Manager Labor Hours @ $85.00perhour ......ovi i, $ 255.00

400 Miles @ 30,45 PErmile ... uiirenrr o i i i e $ 180.00
~20-Certified-Asbestos-Gontraetor-Supervisor-Report-Hours-@-$65:00-per-hovt—vrrrrrrrvss +$-1;300:00

"2 Night Hotel @ $125.00 pernight . ... .. ... 0L 0L O Lo 8 7250.00

3 Days PerDiem @ $40.00perday .....vvriieiiii i e e $ 120.00

4 Clerical Labor Hours @ 35.00 perhour. ... couuinvi it iii i it cians $ 140,00
ESTIMATED FEE PROPOSAL . . ..o iivie i ivinineniasstssnsnnnosronscsncarss Cereeees o 54,938.00

While the above referenced labor bours and samples have been estimated, the client will only be invoiced for the labor hours
and samples needed to complete the project. If additionsl labor hours or ssmples are needed, Dominion will obtain verbal
or written approval [rom the client, prior to cxcecding the estimated fee proposal.

Thank you for allowing Dominion the opportunity to provide you with this fee proposal. If you should have any questions
or need any additional information, please contact e at anytime.

Sincerely,
Dowmipion Environmental Consultants, Inc.
'/J %A—/

Basilid™Marcos, AHERA Cert.
Vice President

DOMINION ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, INC.
20045 North 19® Avenuc, Building 7, Phoenix, Arizonn 85027
Tel: (623) 516-1415 + Pux: (623) 5160017
www.dominioncov.oet



PR A TER = WiND .

Jotely ?f’!ld‘/z'

RESTORATION, UG

Agreement
Between Contractor and Owner/Client

Sagebrush Restoration, LLC
2845 S 46t Street
Phoenix, AZ 85040
Office (602) 689-4907
Fax (602) 296-5921

Bid No: JC15-110, 111 & 112

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into on Friday, January 23, 2015 by and between Sagebrush Restoration,
LLC (“Sagebrush”) and:

Client Information:
Jeff Akins
Blue Ridge Unified School District # 32
1200 W White Mountain Blvd.
Lakeside, AZ 85929
928-368-8266 (0) 928-368-4008 (f)

Project is identified as: Blue Ridge High School Re Roof
Project Location: 1200 W White Mountain Blvd. Lakeside, AZ 85929

THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING:

1. Sagebrush agrees to the scope of work as noted below:

Sagebrush has reviewed the cafeteria and math/administration building roofs for the removal of asbestos
containing material (ACM) as a part of the HDA Re-Roof Project. The following proposal is based on the
removal of ACM pursuant to the CFR OSHA 1926.1101 Class 1l work. ACM is listed in the Dominion
Environmental Limited Asbestos Survey Report No. 1319.03 dated November 6, 2014. All ACM will be
disposed of at an EPA approved landfill that accepts asbestos waste.

Sagebrush has been asked to provide best case and worst case scenarios for the ACM removal process
using the HDA drawing files submitted to Sagebrush.

Page | 1



Cafeteria Roof Best Case:

Sagebrush will remove and dispose of ACM to include roof penetrations, exhaust vents, junction boxes,
ductwork, mechanical, abandoned equipment and curbs to the existing roof deck called out in the HDA
A202 roof plan. This work would not include any patching or below roof deck activities since they are not
called out in the drawing. Water tight or dry in would be the responsibility of others.

BID PRICE: $5,032.00
TAX: To be applied to materials used
BID TOTAL: To Be Determined

The estimated time frame will be _2 _shifts.

Cafeteria Roof Worst Case:

Sagebrush will remove and dispose of approx.. 16,000 sf or roofing material to include roof penetrations,
exhaust vents, junction boxes, ductwork, mechanical, abandoned equipment and curbs to the existing roof
deck called out in the HDA A202 roof plan. This work would not include any patching or below roof deck
activities since they are not called out in the drawing. Water tight or dry in would be the responsibility of
others. Sagebrush has based the removal on approx. 2500 sf per shift.

BID PRICE: $32,089.00

TAX: To be applied to materials used
BID TOTAL: To Be Determined

The estimated time frame will be _6_ Shifts.

Math Building Roof:

Sagebrush will remove and dispose of ACM to include roof penetrations, exhaust vents, junction boxes,
ductwork, mechanical, abandoned equipment and curbs to the existing roof deck called out in the HDA
A202 roof plan. This work would not include any patching or below roof deck activities since they are not
called out in the drawing. Water tight or dry in would be the responsibility of others. In the Dominion Limited
Asbestos Survey only the Black Roof Caulking and Gray Duct Caulking is Positive for asbestos and
therefore the roofing does not require abatement.

BID PRICE: $3,691.00
TAX: To be applied to materials used
BID TOTAL: To Be Determined

The estimated time frame will be _1_ shifts.
It is the responsibility of the owner to contract with a Third Party Industrial Hygienist for any
inspections, air monitoring and/or clearance sampling.
2, Price includes: Labor, materials, equipment and personal protection equipment in order to perform the
above mentioned scope of work in a safe and efficient manner. The estimated time frame will be TBD

day(s). This job will be performed Monday through Friday during the hours necessary to meet your
schedule.

Page | 2



NOTES:
A.  Compliance of all EPA and OSHA Regulations.
B. Per occurrence $5 million A+X rated insurance.
C. Arizona Contractors License - ROC 274599
D. Power and water provided by Owner.
E. 1GPA Contract # 14-154

Within 24 hours of project commencement, Owner/Consultant/Owner's Representative will identify in writing
any property damage associated with project setup. Within 48 hours of project completion,
Owner/Consultant/Owner's Representative will identify in writing any property damage associated with
project completion. Sagebrush will not be responsible for any damages identified beyond that 48-hour time
period. Consultant/Owner's Representative will be identified prior to commencement of project.

If post abatement monitoring is required, it will be performed by third party industrial hygienist contracted by
the Owner. Sagebrush is only responsible for passing clearance protocols within the above identified
contained work areas. Clearance protocol for asbestos abatement will be based on Phased Contract
Microscopy (PCM) sampling technique. When PCM results are less than .01 ficc, then the post abatement
clearance criteria has been meet. If Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM) is required then clearance
criteria will be less than 70 sS/mmz2

THe Owner agrees to pay Sagebrush the contract sum, based upon invoices for payment submitted by
Sagebrush. The owner shall make payments payable net 30 days.

Invoices are due net 30 days from invoice date. Interest shall accrue on past due invoices at 1.5% per
month no greater than 18% annually on all unpaid invoices.

Any alterations or deviations from the specified scope of work will be completed upon written consent from
authorized personnel. This proposal shall become part of the contract document and by signing, you agree
to all conditions listed within.

Bid price is good for 60 calendar days, at which time Owner and Sagebrush can confer with one another on
current market price.

* Due to health concerns and safety hazards related to the above project, NO ONE is permitted into a posted
regulated work area unless they have permission from Sagebrush. Should unauthorized entry be made,
Sagebrush is not liable for interference and failure to complete clearance testing standards.

Note: Closeout Documents will only be provided upon written request from client within 30 days of project
completion.

Jeft Cromer

Submitted by: Jeff Cromer Accepted by:
Owner Member

Name Printed:

Title:

Date:

Page | 3



Revised Proposal for Architectural Services In connection with
SFB Building Renewal Grant Funding

Date: January 22, 2014

District Name: Blue Ridge Unified School District #32

s ot s Superintendent  Greg Schalow

N Business Manager Brenda Thomas-Martinez, 928-368-6126. bthomas@brusd.ki2.az.us
i Contact Person:  Jeff Akins, (928) 205-9843, jakins@hrusd.k12.az.us

Project Site: Blue Ridge High School
1200 West White Iviountain Boulevard
Lakeside, AZ 85929
Project Reseal existing built up roofing
Description:

Probable Cost: To Be Determined

Architectural Prepare project specifications $1,500
Services Deslgn:  Inital survey (348 Miles Round Trip) $1,437
Roofing consuitant fees $1,000
Field survey existing conditions {348 Miles Round Trip) $1,437
Prepare Drawings S1,750
Structural Engineering 52,000
Architectural Services Design: $9,124
Architectural Pre Bid Conference (348 Miles Round Trip} $1,437
Services Bid & CA: Bid Opening (348 Miles Round Trip) $1,437
Progress Visit (348 Miles Round Trip) $1,437
Progress Visit {348 Miles Round Trip) 51,437
Progress Visit (348 Miles Round Trip) $1,437
Progress Visit {348 Miles Round Trip) 51,437
Final Inspection (348 Miles Round Trip} $1,437
Proposed Architectural Fees $10,059
Excluded The following items are specifically nat included as services provided:
Services: Asbestos testing, N.E.5.H.A.P.S. Applications, Mold Abatement,Permit

Applications,Special Structural Inspection & Testing

HDA Architects LLC

Very Jrily Yours

/ )
ry
O

Qe s

Paul D. H(;{Ial]d S
Principal ST PDH/pdh




SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

e ¥ i~ S T St ————
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Ganado Unified

BRG Project Number:  010220204-9999-005BRG Apache County
Project Description: Roof replacements on Bldgs. 1001 & 1003

Architect of Record: SPS+ Architects (William Pittenger)

Contractor: TBD

Board Approval Date: 2/6/2013
Supplemental award: 5/7/2014
Supplemental award: 2/4/2015

School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost (cost estimate provided by architect or contractor) $ 1,638,813
Contingency (1) $ 205,000
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ 52,278
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ 34,751
Testing & Inspection 3 5,043
Total Additional Cost: $ 92,072
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 1,935,885
District Share (Local Funds): $ 196,293
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 1,935,885
Total Project Cost: $ 2132178

(® Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 230
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Ganado USD 005BRG Vertical Sheet.xls




January 26, 2015

Robert L Pian, aia

William R Pittenger, ra, Cst
Mark A Davenport, AlA, LEED ap
Herb W Schneider, Faa
Howell Lewis Shay, aia

Lenny Alisbrooks
Superintendent

Ganado Unified School District
PO Box 1757

Ganado, AZ 86505

RE: GANADO HIGH SCHOOL ROOFING, STUCCO REPAIR
AND PAINTING CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION FEE PROPOSAL
SPS+ ARCHITECTS PROJECT NO. 1409

Dear Mr. Allsbrooks,

Design services for the above referenced project are nearly complete, with final completion anticipated
at the end of this week. These projects are going to the SFB Board for, request for funding. Anticipate
bidding to take place in March of this year and notice to proceed May 1, 2015. Construction is
scheduled for five months with final completion at the end of September 2015,

The following is SPS+ Architects fee for bidding and construction administration for the above
referenced projects. For accounting purposes | have itemized the fee based upon tasks to complete the
work and then have divided the cost into three categories, roofing, stucco and painting. Note that for
each category the fee is based upon all projects proceeding at the same time and within the same time
frame. There does exist an economy of scale for all projects to proceed at the same time since trip cost
and time on site are shared among the three projects.

Bidding and Construction Basic Services
General scope of services is as follows as well as outlined in the attached fee spread sheet.
1. Provide for electronic bidding documents distribution to plan holder rooms and SPS+ Architects
web site for bidder retrieval.
2. Provide addendums as required and upload to SPS+ Architects web site for bidder retrieval.
3. Provide for a pre-proposal meeting on site with all bidders. Distribute meeting minutes of pre-
proposal meeting along with any addendum clarifications.
4. Bid and award to lowest qualified bidder, including checking qualification of bid and bidder.
Make recommendations as appropriate for award of bid. Bids to be received at the office of
SPS+ Architects.
5. Weekly on site meetings will be held to review construction progress and adherence to the
contract documents. Field reports and meeting minutes will be prepared and distributed.

SPS+ Architects LLP | 8681 East Via de Negocio | Scofisdale, AZ 85258-3330

P: 480.991.0800 | F: 480.991.2623 | www.spsplusarchitects.com



10.

Shop drawing submittals from the General Contractor will be reviewed for conformance to the
contract documents,

Request for information from the General Contractor will be reviewed and answered. Architect
will prepare any clarifications as needed throughout the construction.

SPS+ will review and approve all pay applications for payment throughout the project.
Substantial and final completion along with detailed punch list will be prepared by SPS+
Architect.

Final closeout documents will be reviewed by SPS+ Architects.

Proposed Fee

SPS+ Architects proposed fee to complete the Bidding and Construction Administration is a lump sum
fee of $68,599.80 dollars. This fee includes all reimbursable and travel cost. See attached spread sheet
that itemizes the fee in its entirety.

Exclusions

The following items have been excluded from the scope of work and or fee. Items below may be added
as an additional service. Additional services are for items not specifically noted in the scope of work,
Bidding and Construction Administration Basic Service.

1.

PRI NOTE®WN

10.

Bidding documents beyond number of documents listed in the attached fee proposal.
Number of trips beyond that scheduled in the fee spread sheet.

Hazardous material analysis and abatement.

Forensic analysis

Design work for replacing existing structures

Mechanical, Plumbing, Electrical and Structural engineering design services are not included.
LEED design.

Post construction, building commissioning & warranty work.

Bid advertizing cost

Fire Marshal submittal and permit fees

Please review proposal and let me know if any modifications are needed. If this proposal meets your
acceptance, please sign below and we will work with you to procure our services via State Contract or

SAVE.

SPS+ Architects LLP | 8681 East Via de Negocio | Scottsdale, AZ 85258-3330

P: 480.991.0800 | F: 480.991.2623 | www.spsplusarchitects.com



We look forward to making this a successful project for you and the Ganado Unified School District.

Sincerely

SPS+ ARCHITECTS LLP
%/éxz/

William R. Pittenger RA G4l
Partner

ACCEPTANCE:

William Allsbrooks, Superintendent Ganado USD

Signature Date

SPSH Architects LLP | 8681 East Via de Negocio | Scottsdale, AZ 85258-3330

P: 480.991.0800 | F: 480.991.2623 | www.spsplusarchitects.com



Ti0T

08'840'T

a3ed Ajinoy ay jjey sug

00'SE 00°sE
00084 o'sL
08862 $95°0

dT1 SPaRYaLY +5dS
S1 T sjealy
4H or /¥ aun3 jeaely
N ogs duy punoljanesy
ucsiad suo 1503 dut

535} 1310 313 0] 53§ U asea.ol u aney ([ uopiod Aue JO uoia(EQ “BulEl BLI YUOW § sy Buoje pue Jay1aBo) Suipeedod vD) Buguied pue 03Ms g Suyooy Yiog O ARejUSsSIIdDl 5 994 ,

08°665'89 823 V) {RINPANIY PRUIGUIO) (8101
£9°62S7T «Buliljed 10394V [EINDBYYIIY [IDL
EV'BIETE « D3NS .10} 884 V) [RINDBYYIY {RI0L
¥ |ee0scE +BUD0Y 10} 991 V) {EneYLPIY [E10)
08°665'99 £V'625'CT  EV'6IEIT  E6OSLME
00°9LT'LS SOLTT'IT | 80°LS8'LL | ¥8°1I0C'SE
0070022 00022 00°099 00°02E'T 000022 00°S5 aH o uonEISIUWPE 83130
jsa/mJad siy §'p @ $438M 0Z| 0000S'ET 00°0SET 00'050t 000018 0D'00S'€T  00°0ST H 06 SIN0 8502 73 151] Yound ‘salnujw Bupeatu
3JUBPUOdsII00) 79 §,14H ‘MaIARL [BIUWGNS MY
1e303 sdi3 oz| 00°006'T 00'229 00°£29 00°9v9 00°008"T 00'S6 e3 (174 Buidpo) WBPA0
{e303 5d143 07| 00°9£5'TT 80°0ZTL 80°0ZT'L PBSEEL 00'948°TT  0R'8L0T CF) 0z Jaupied - Apjsam ‘a3is o3 janed ]
Jsuyied Joj ays uo siyg @ sdina 0z 00°000'sT 00°008'T 00'00t's 00°008'0T | 00'000'8T  00'0ST H ozt Jauyled
' - UD[IONJISUOD MBU JO Mainal pue Sujiaaw a3s ug
ST0Z 43qua3das - STOZ AR SUIUOW § - UORBAISIUILIPY UGHINASUO)
08'€2V'IT SETWT SETH'E 60°6V5'9
00°05T 00°ST 00°sy 00°06 00057 00'sL e3 z {anuemofje) saads = sBumesp ‘2301 s3as 7 Supupd
00055 00'sS 0059t 00°0gg 00055 00'SS IH or UO[esIS|UILIPE 80|40 +5dS
000021 000zt 00°09€ 0002 00°002°T 00°0ST H 8 sjeaosdde
._O_Ln 3 suwinpuappe :u.:oﬁmm:_u Pial - Jaulied
00'009°L 00°09L 00°082°2 00085y 00°009°L 00's6 H 08 senosdde
Jopid @ sutinpusppe ‘suoiisanb paly - safeueln Pafold
00'0SL 00°'sz oosee 00°05% 00°0SL 00'0ST H S 215 uo Bupaaw pig 814 Jouped
00'ss SE'IE SEIE 0geE 00's6 0056 eg3 T W81l auo BuyBpot
08'8L0°T 00'95E 00'9SE 6L'99€ 08'8£0'T 00°8L0°T e3 T dy 1 - Supgsaw axs uo pig aid
Buippig
Sa1ON feo) Bupued oS Bugooy mogns | aeM [ aun [ Apuenb | yopdussag i !

ST0Z ‘9z Aenuer

¥D Bunuied 020ms BulooY j00LS ySiH opeues

uopensiuiwpy uojdnsuo) pue Suippia Buuied B 0oams ‘Suyjooy opeuen

3Npayas 384 eIy



TASK 1: GANADO HIGH SCHOOL ROOF REPLACEMENT COST ESTIMATE

1/22/2015 Note: Add Bid 1A Modular Roofing Replace and Add Bid 1B Sealtite Flex Conduit are District

SPS #1409 funded and excluded from this estimate /\RCH ITECTS

ROOFING - MEMBRANE REPAIR
ROOF NO. SQFT LUMP SUM TOTAL COST NOTES

4 $1,200 l $1,200.00 | 30tineal FT membrane cuts
to be repaired

ROOFING - DEMO TO DECK - INCLUDES BLOCKING

ROOF NO. NEW SQ FT COST/SF SUBTOTAL TOTAL COST NOTES
2,032 $2 $4,064
5,758 $2 $11,516
635 $2 $1,270 not in WRECORP report
7,39 $2 $14,792
731 $2 $1,462 not in WRECORP report
8,661 $2 $17,322
6,711 $2 $13,422
10,896 $2 $21,792
7,820 $2 $15,640
7,661 $2 $15,322
1,820 $2 $3,640
1,175 S2 $2,350 not in WRECORP report
10,486 $2 $20,972
7,966 $2 $15,932
772 $2 $1,544 not in WRECORP report
SUBTOTAL 80,520 $161,040 | $161,040.00 |

ROOFING - 2" RIGID INSULATION-MATERIAL & INSTALL

ROOF NO. NEW SQFT COST/SF SUBTOTAL TOTAL COST NOTES

2,032 $2 $4,064
5,758 $2 $11,516

635 $2 $1,270 not in WRECORP report
7,396 $2 $14,792

. 731 $2 $1,462 not in WRECORP report
8,661 $2 $17,322
6,711 $2 $13,422
10,896 $2 $21,792
7,820 $2 $15,640
7,661 $2 $15,322
1,820 $2 $3,640

1,175 $2 $2,350 not in WRECORP report
10,486 $2 $20,972
7,966 s2 $15,932

772 S2 $1,544 not in WRECORP report

SUBTOTAL 80,520 $161,040 l $161,040.00 |




ROOFING - DERBIGUM XPS-ENTIRE SYSTEM, INCL FLASHING, NOT BLOCKING

ROOF NO. NEW SQFT COST/SF SUBTOTAL TOTAL COST NOTES
2,032 $3.50 $7,112
5,758 $3.50 $20,153
635 $3.50 $2,223 not in WRECORP report
7,39 $3.50 $25,886
731 $3.50 $2,559 not in WRECORP report
8,661 $3.50 $30,314
6,711 $3.50 $23,489
10,896 $3.50 $38,136
7,820 $3.50 $27,370
7,661 $3.50 $26,814
1,820 $3.50 $6,370
1,175 $3.50 $4,113 not in WRECORP report
10,486 $3.50 $36,701
17 7,966 $3.50 $27,881
19 772 $3.50 $2,702 not in WRECORP report
SUBTOTAL 80,520 $281,820 $281,820.00 |
ROOFING - TAPERED INSULATION, MATERIAL & LABOR
ROOF NO. NEW SQ FT LUMP SUM TOTAL COST NOTES
MOST* $520,000 $520,000.00 | *BldNotincd2,4,5,7,8
ROOFING - CARPENTRY FOR ROOF DECK BLOCKING
ROOF NO. BF MBE COST/MBF COST TOTAL COST NOTES
1000
1 272 0.272 $695 $189 (2) 2%6
3 . 540 0.54 $695 $375 (2) 2%6
5 165 0.165 $695 $115 {2) 2x6
6 597 0.597 $695 $415 (2) 2x6
249 0.249 $695 $173 (2) 2%6
1140 1.14 $695 $792 (2) 2x6
9w 1215 1.215 $695 $844 (2) 2x6
10 869 0.869 $695 $604 (2) 2%6
11 938 0.938 $695 $652 (2) 2x6
13 698 0.698 $695 $485 (2) 2x6
1 477 0.477 $695 $332 (2} 2%6
5 308 0.308 $695 $214 (2) 2x6
16 617 0.617 $695 $429 (2} 2%6
w7 573 0.573 $695 $398 (2) 26
19 o 276 0.276 $695 $192 (2} 2%6

SUBTOTAL

$6,209.13




ROOFING - CARPENTRY FOR ROOF DECK STUB WALL

ROOF NO. COST/MBF INSUL BF/EA TOTAL BF TOTAL COST NOTES
2150.
NO-2X
3 180 4 0.25 45 $49
8 83 7 0.44 37 $80
9E 380 7 0.44 167 $359
gw 405 7 0.44 178 $383
10 290 5.5 0.34 84 s181
11 313 75 0.47 147 $316
13 233 7.75 0.48 112 $241
15 103 3 0.19 20 $43
16 206 5.75 0.36 74 $159
17 191 7 0.44 84 $181
19 92 3 0.19 17 $37
SUBTOTAL | $2,027.45 |
ROOFING - EXPANSION JOINTS
ROOF NO. LF COST/LF SUBTOTAL TOTAL COST NOTES
1 East Side 47 $18.00 $846
4 East Side 70 $18.00 $1,260
17 East Side 112 $18.00 $2,016 2"El
SUBTOTAL 182 . $4,122.00 i $4,122.00 |
ROOFING - OVERALL TOTAL - NO ADDITIONS TO REPORT | $1,139,486.03 |

ADDITIONS AND UPGRADES TO WRECORP REPORT SCOPE

COPING - KYNAR 500, 12" INSTALLED, DOES NOT INCLUDE BLOCKING {2X RIPPED)

ROOF NO. LF COST/LF SUBTOTAL TOTAL COST
1 133 $10 $1,330
2 0 $10 $0
3 335 $10 $3,350
4 0 $10 $0
5 43 $10 $430
6 319 $10 $3,190
7 64 $10 $640
8 100 $10 $1,000
SE 549 $10 $5,490
5w 407 $10 $4,070
10 368 $10 $3,680
11 412 $10 $4,120
13 163 $10 $1,630
15 117 $10 $1,170
16 411 $10 $4,110
17 258 $10 $2,580
Mmtl Roof 837 $10 $8,370
19 70 $10 $700

SUBTOTAL 4586 $45,860 l $45,860.00




ROOFING - OVERFLOW ROOF DRAINS

DRAIN NO. COST/DR TOTAL COST TOTAL COST
Standpipe drains not per current
46 $400 $18,400 code - replace all
$18,400.00 |
ROOFING - PIPE SUPPORT BLOCKING
UNIT NO. COST/UNIT TOTAL COST TOTAL COST NOTES
Field Verify Existing not clamped down,
1000 Amount 330 $30,000 move when windy
$30,000.00 |
ROOFING - NEW HEAT CABLE AT ROOF DRAINS
UNIT NO. COST/UNIT TOTAL COST TOTAL COST NOTES
Field Verify District noted roof drains ice
50 Amount $750 $37,500 up and dam
Field Verify R .
50 Amount $250 $12,500 Unistrut stand at j-box
$50,000.00 |
ROQFING - REMIOVE SKYLIGHTS
UNIT NO. COST/UNIT TOTAL COST TOTAL COST NOTES
24 Lockers $850 $20,400 Plexiglass is broken through
12 Gym $650 $7,800 Old skylights
Remove and patch deck
$28,200.00 |
ROOFING - STEEL ANGLE SUPPORT AT NEW ROOF DRAINS
UNIT NO. COST/UNIT TOTAL COST TOTAL COST NOTES
46 $1,000 $46,000 Code mandated support
$46,000.00 |
ROOFING - NEW STEEL ROOF HATCHES 30" X 36"
UNIT NO. COST/UNIT TOTAL COST TOTAL COST NOTES
5 $892 54,460 Old units broken & unsafe
$4,460.00 |
ROOFING - NEW STEEL PARAPET LADDERS
UNIT NO, COST/UNIT TOTAL COST TOTAL COST NOTES
10 VLF $91 $910 Roof 15 Access
14 VLF $91 $1,274 Roof 19 Access
$910.00 |
ROOFING - NEW 3/4" TYPE M COPPER CONDENSATE LINES
UNIT NO. COST/UNIT TOTAL COST TOTAL COST NOTES
1060 LF $13.56 $14,374 PVC pipes failing
$14,373.60 |
ROOFING - WATER TEST METAL ROOFING TO REMAIN
UNIT NO. COST/UNIT TOTAL COST TOTAL COST NOTES
1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000 Verify No Leaks

$5,000.00




ROOFING - OVERALL TOTAL WITH ADDITIONS TO REPORT $1,382,689.63
ADDITIONAL COSTS
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS - OVERHEAD 5%, PROFIT 5% 10% $138,268.96
SUBTOTAL $1,520,958.59
GENERAL CONDITIONS 10% $138,268.96
SUBTOTAL $1,659,227.56
STATE TAX 6% $92,916.74
NAVAIO TAX 5% $82,961.38
ROOQOFING - OVERALL TOTAL {Incl'd Roof Areas 5, 8, 15, 19} $1,835,105.68
SUMMARY COMPARISON
ROOF NO. WRE SQ FT WRE COST SPS+ COST SPS+ SQ FT ADD/DEDUCT SF ADD UPGRADES
(wre sf) {wre sf) (add/deducts to wre sf)
1 2,089 $35,513 $39,219 2,032 -$1,070.13 $8,145.66
3 6,181 $105,077 $116,043 5,758 -$7,941.47 $23,082.04
4 0 $1,200 $1,200 0 0 0
5 0 $0 $0 635 $11,921.59 $2,545.52
6 7,563 $128,571 $141,989 7,396 -53,135.28 $29,648.28
P 0 $0 $0 731 $13,723.91 $2,930.35
9E 8,184 $139,128 $153,648 8,661 $8,385.66 $34,719.27
9w 8,184 $139,128 $153,648 6,711 -$27,654.34 $26,902.33
10 10,710 $182,070 $201,071 10,896 $3,491.99 $43,678.70
11 4,984 $84,728 $93,570 7,820 $53,243.52 $31,347.97
13 7,345 $124,865 $137,896 7,661 $5,932.64 $30,710.58
14 1,843 $31,331 $34,601 1,820 -$431.81 $7,295.82
15 0 $0 $0 1,175 $22,059.64 $4,710.21
16 9,692 $164,764 $181,959 10,486 $14,906.68 $42,035.14
17 5468 $92,956 $102,657 7,966 $46,897.86 $31,933.23
19 5 0 S0 S0 772 $14,493.65 $3,094.71
SUBTOTAL 72,243 $1,229,331.00 $1,357,501.74 80,520 $154,824.12 $322,779.82
SPS+ Cost per WRE SF $1,357,501.74
]|Base cost including GC Markups and Taxes Corrected SF per SPS+ $154,824.12
(add scope excluded): $1,512,325.86 Add Upgrades $322,779.82
Total with Upgrades $1,835,105.68




SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

S S 2 Sttt e
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Ganado Unified

BRG Project Number: 010220204-9999-006BRG Apache County
Project Description: Stucco repair and reseal of Bldgs. 1001, 1003 and 1004
Architect of Record: SPS+ Architects (William Pittenger)

Contractor: TBD

Board Approval Date: 2/6/2013
Supplemental award: 5/7/2014
Supplemental award: 2/4/2015

School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost (cost estimate provided by architect or contractor) $ 307,349
Contingency (1) $ 35,000
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees 3 33,466
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ 12,530
Testing & Inspection $ 3,908
Total Additional Cost: $ 49,904
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 392,253
District Share (Local Funds): $ 1,226,651
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 392,253
Total Project Cost: $ 1,618,904

(© Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 230
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Ganado USD 006BRG Vertical Sheet.xls




January 26, 2015 = . - B oeC
Robert L Pian, Aia
William R Pittenger, ra, cs!
Mark A Davenport, Ala, LEED AP
Herb W Schneider, raa

Lenny Allsbrooks ‘
Howell Lewis Shay, ala

Superintendent

Ganado Unified School District
PO Box 1757

Ganado, AZ 86505

RE: GANADO HIGH SCHOOL ROOFING, STUCCO REPAIR
AND PAINTING CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION FEE PROPOSAL
SPS+ ARCHITECTS PROJECT NO. 1409

Dear Mr. Allsbrooks,

Design services for the above referenced project are nearly complete, with final completion anticipated
at the end of this week. These projects are going to the SFB Board for, request for funding. Anticipate
bidding to take place in March of this year and notice to proceed May 1, 2015. Construction is
scheduled for five months with final completion at the end of September 2015.

The following is SPS+ Architects fee for bidding and construction administration for the above
referenced projects. For accounting purposes | have itemized the fee based upon tasks to complete the
work and then have divided the cost into three categories, roofing, stucco and painting. Note that for
each category the fee is based upon all projects proceeding at the same time and within the same time
frame. There does exist an economy of scale for all projects to proceed at the same time since trip cost
and time on site are shared among the three projects.

Bidding and Construction Basic Services
General scope of services is as follows as well as outlined in the attached fee spread sheet.
1. Provide for electronic bidding documents distribution to plan holder rooms and SPS+ Architects
web site for bidder retrieval.
2. Provide addendums as required and upload to SPS+ Architects web site for bidder retrieval.
3. Provide for a pre-proposal meeting on site with all bidders. Distribute meeting minutes of pre-
proposal meeting along with any addendum clarifications.
4, Bid and award to lowest qualified bidder, including checking qualification of bid and bidder.
Make recommendations as appropriate for award of bid. Bids to be received at the office of
SPS+ Architects.
5. Weekly on site meetings will be held to review construction progress and adherence to the
contract documents. Field reports and meeting minutes will be prepared and distributed.

SPS+ Architects LLP | 8681 East Via de Negocio | Scottsdale, AZ 85258-3330

P: 480.991.0800 | F: 480.991.2423 | www spsplusarchitects.com



Shop drawing submittals from the General Contractor will be reviewed for conformance to the
contract documents.

Request for information from the General Contractor will be reviewed and answered. Architect
will prepare any clarifications as needed throughout the construction.

SPS+ will review and approve all pay applications for payment throughout the project.
Substantial and final completion along with detailed punch list will be prepared by SPS+
Architect.

10. Final closeout documents will be reviewed by SPS+ Architects.

Proposed Fee

SPS+ Architects proposed fee to complete the Bidding and Construction Administration is a lump sum
fee of $68,599.80 dollars. This fee includes all reimbursable and travel cost. See attached spread sheet
that itemizes the fee in its entirety.

Exclusions
The following items have been excluded from the scope of work and or fee. Items below may be added
as an additional service. Additional services are for items not specifically noted in the scope of work,
Bidding and Construction Administration Basic Service.

1.

©P NS E W

Bidding documents beyond number of documents listed in the attached fee proposal.
Number of trips beyond that scheduled in the fee spread sheet.

Hazardous material analysis and abatement.

Forensic analysis

Design work for replacing existing structures

Mechanical, Plumbing, Electrical and Structural engineering design services are not included.
LEED design.

Post construction, building commissioning & warranty work.

Bid advertizing cost

10. Fire Marshal submittal and permit fees

Please review proposal and let me know if any modifications are needed. If this proposal meets your
acceptance, please sign below and we will work with you to procure our services via State Contract or
SAVE.

SPS+ Architects LLP | 8681 East Via de Negocio | Scottsdale, A7 85258-3330

P: 480.991.0800 | F: 480.991.2623 | www.spsplusarchitects.com



We look forward to making this a successful project for you and the Ganado Unified School District.

Sincerely
SPS+ ARCHITECTS LLP

V24,

William R. Pittenger RA G81
Partner

ACCEPTANCE:
William Allsbrooks, Superintendent Ganado USD

Signature Date

SPS+ Architects LLP | 8681 East Via de Negocio | Scottsdale, A 85258-3330

P: 480.991.0800 | 480.?91.2623 | www.spsplusarchitects.com



1401 dT1SPRNYIY +545

08'BL0'T
00'SE 00°'SE St T sieain
831 Anoy a3 jjey aug 00054 osL Moot 174 B janes)
08'€62 §95°0 W oes din punod jsaer)
uosiad suo 150 djiy

5894 43410 343 01 834 U} asealIL) B SARY [[M UoIOd Aue JO UojiBjBq "aulel) WK Yiuow § ayy Suoje pue JsyyaSos Sujpssa

— T o

01d ) Buuied pue 030ms B Suyooy Yo Jo salEIUBSaIdaL S 994 4
e 3 YT UIQL0) (101

08'665'99 E€V'62STT  EVGIETT  £6'0SLVE
00'9LTLS S0LTT'IT | 80°(SS'LT [ vETOZ'SE
00°002°2 00'0ze 007089 000ZE'T 00°002°¢ 00°S5 IH ov uopeJIsiulWpe 3140
joamad siy 5 @ SyB3m OZ{ 00'00S'ET 00°0SE'T 00050t 000018 00'00S'€T  000ST 4H 06 51N0 350{2 73 35)] yound ‘sanujw Bujaat
3U3PUOASI00) B 5,44 ‘MIiABL [RRIWGNS APfaam
{2103 sd143 0Z| 00°006'T 00°£29 00429 00'9v9 00'006°T 00's6 e3 (174 3udpoy Biano
{e303 sdia1 02} 00'9LS'TZ 80°0ZT'L 80°0ZT'L PR'SEE'L 00'9/8TZ  08'8L0T e3 (174 Jauyied - Apfasm ‘alis o1 jaAeaL
48ulied Joj Blis Uo sIyg @ sdil 0Z] 00°000°ST " 100008'T 00'00%'s 000080 | 00'000'8T  00°0ST aH 1148 Jauped
) ~ UCJIONIISUCD MBU JO MaIAad pue Bujlaaw aiis ug
ST0T 49qua3das - STOZ ARIA SUIUOW G - UORRASIUILPY UO[INIISUO))|
08'EVIT SETIV'T SETIE 60°6v5'9
00°0ST 00°ST oo'st 0008 00°0ST 00°sL €3 4 (sauemoyje} saads 7 sBuimesp 23103 5335 Z Sujzuid
00°05S 008§ 00's9T o0ogg 00055 00°sS i 114 uoiesIslujWpe 33140 +5dS
00'00Z°t 00021 00°09€ 00°02L 00002'% 00°0ST iH 8 sjeaosdde
Jopd g sulwnpuappe ‘suoiisanb piay - Jaupeq
00°009°L 00092 00'08ee 00095y 00°009°L 00'S6 H 08 sieaoidde
Jopd g suwinpuappe ‘suofsanb piay - safeuei Pafoid
00'0SL 00'sz 00'sze o0osy 00°0SL o0ost H S alis uo Bupaswl piq ald Jauied
00'ss SE'TE SE'TE og'ze 00'S6 00'56 eg T W8 suo SuiBpoq
08'8L0°T 00°'95€E 00'9S€E 6L99¢ 08'8L0'T 00'8L0°T e3 T du - Bu3sau ays uo pig axd
Buippg
SajoN 1e30), Supujed o2am§ Sugooy leiogns | stew | wun [ Aipuenb | uopdiasad | }

uofesIsjujlpy ucdnsuo) pue Suippig Supuied 1§ oaanis ‘Suyooy opeuer

S10T ‘9g Atenuer v Bunuied osoms Sujyooy [0oyds ysiH opeues |jNPayYas aa4 jeinidalLply



._.u\

23 Jan 2015

JEn——

Task 3 - Painting and Caulking

9:02:19AM

;
.‘\—.-———«-n-..-...—.—'-‘[‘

Task 3 - Painting and Caulking
ProjectNo. 1409

Estimated By:
William R. Pittenger/ Stacy White

Prepatation Date:  1/21/2015

Effective Date of Pricing: ~ 8/1/2014
Est Construction Time: 120 Days

BSD Costlink/AE - Copyright © 1999-2007

by Buflding Systems Design, Inc.

BSD Costlink/AE



e
|
|
b

i
23 Jan 2015 Task 3 ~ Painting and Caulking 9:02:10AM §
L Level 1 Direct Cost Summary 7 J
Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost
1409 Task 3 - Painting and Caulking
1 BUILDING $218,727
SUBTOTAL $218727
Contractor's Gen Requirements 10.0% $21,873
Contractor's Qverhead 5.0% $12,030
Contractor's Profit 10.0% $25,263
SUBTOTAL $277,893
Navajo & State Tax 10.6% $29,457
[ Task 3 - Painting and Caulking $307,349 ;
1409 BSD Costlink/AE Page 1 of 3



VRV £

23 Jan 2015 Task 3 - Painting and Caulking 9:02:19AM
L Level 6 Direct Cost Summary
Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost
1409 Task 3 ~ Painting and Caulking
1 BUILDING $218,727
SUBTOTAL $218727
Contractor's Gen Requirements 10.0% $21,873
Contractor’s Overhead 5.0% $12,030
Contractor's Profit 10.0% $25,263
SUBTOTAL $277,893
Navajo & State Tax 10.6% $29,457
[ Task 3 - Painting and Caulking $307,349 |

Y

1409

BSD Costlink/AE

Page 2 of 3



B

i
Svramcrnesns s it s

23 Jan 2015 Task 3 - Painting and Caulking 9:02:19AM
Estimate Detail
Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost
1409 Task 3 ~ Painting and Caulking
1 BUILDING
015423700200 Scaffolding, steel tubular, regular, labor only to 30.00 CSF $284.36 $8,531
erect & dismantle, bidg ext, wall face, 6'-4" x §'
frames, 6 to 12 storles, excl. planks
015626500100 Temporary Fencing, chain link, 6' high, 11 ga 500.00 LF $6.29 $3,146
070505100020 Selective demolition, thermal and maisture 12,406.00 LF $0.76 $9,399
protection, caulking / sealant, to 1" x 1" joint
079213203655 Joint sealants, caulking and sealants, polyurethane,  12,406.00 LF $2.30 $28,591
bulk, In place, 1 or 2 component, 1/2" x 1/4”"
099103300090 Surface Preparation, exterior, doors, per side, wire 1,071.00 SF $0.92 $985
brush, metal, detail, excl. frames or {rim
099103300520 Surface Preparation, exterior, windows, per side, 2,490.00 SF $0.12 $304
power wash, based on 2500 Ib operating pressure,
1-2 lite, excl. trim
099103300790 Surface Preparation, exterior, siding, stucco, 75,206.00 SF $0.17 $13,141
pressure wash, based on 2500 ib operating
pressure
099103301310 Surface Preparation, exterior, misc., wire brush, 300.00 SF $4.78 $1,435
metal, pedestrian gate
099113420130 Paints & Coatings, misc., exteror, railings, 75.00 \F $6.14 $461
decorative wood, w/cap & balusters, newels &
spindles @ 12" 0.C,,brushwork, staln, sand, seal &
varnish, first coat
099113420350 Paints & Coatings, misc. ext., trellis/lattice, spray, 300.00 SF $1.11 $332
latex, per side, each coat, 2" x 2" @ 3" O.C., w/2"
X 8" supports
099113700180 Paints & Coatings, ext. doors, flush, both sides, roli 51.00 EA $79.99 $4,079
& brush, 2 coats, exterior latex, incl. frame & trim
099113700560 Paints & Coatings, ext. windows, per ext. side, 12 166.00 EA $82.03 $13,616
lite, brushwork, 2 coats, exteriot latex, based on 15
SF
099113800220 Paints & Coatings, trim, ext., gutters, conduit, 300.00 LF $2.18 4654
nr‘aetal, zinc chromate palnt, first coat, brushwork,
5 l
099113900450 Paints & Coatings, walls, stucco, first coat spray 75,276.00 SF $0.49 $36,885
099113900460 Paints & Coatings, walls, stucco, second coat, latex,  75,276.00 SF $0.43 $32,369
spray
099113900610 Paints & Coatings, walls, stucco, primer, spray 75,276.00 SF $0.59 $44,413
Task00061 Painting 3 coats stucco soffits, trellls & collumns 13,500.00 $1.51 $20,385
SUBTOTAL BUILDING $218,727
SUBTOTAL 218,727
Contractor's Gen Requirements 10.0% $21,873
Contractor's Qverhead 5.0% $12,030
Contractor's Profit 10.0% $25,263
SUBTOTAL $2727,893
Navajo & State Tax 10.6% $29,457
\ Task 3 - Painting and Caulking $307,349 }
1409 BSD CostLink/AE Page 3of 3



23 Jan 2015
!\ Table of Contents

Task 3 - Painting and Caulking

9:02:19AM

L

Costlink Report Page Number
Level 1 Direct Cost Summary ~ wersememrrmmmm s 1
Level 6 Direct Cost Summiary ~ -rorrrrm e 2
Estimate Detail = oo 3

BSD CostLink/AE



22 Jan 2015 Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & R Above Roof 1:51:46PM

Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & R Above Roof
Project No. 1400

Estimated By:
William R. Pittenger/ Stacy White

Preparation Date:  1/21/2015

Effective Date of Pricing:  8/1/2014
Est Construction Time: 120 Days

BSD CostLink/AE - Copyright © 1999-2007

by Bullding Systems Design, Inc.

BSD CostLink/AE



22 Jan 2015

Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & R Above Roof

1:51:46PM
Level 3 Direct Cost Summary
Quantity Total Cost
1400 Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & R Above Roof
1 BUILDING $429,492
SUBTOTAL $429,492
Contractor's Gen Requirements 10.0% $42,949
Contractor's Overhead 5.0% $23,622
Contractor's Profit 10.0% $49,606
SUBTOTAL £545,669
Navajo and State Tax 10.6% $57,841
(Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & $603,510 )

1400 BSD CostLink/AE

Page 1 of 3



Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & R Above Roof

22 Jan 2015 1:51:46PM
Estimate Detail
} Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost
1400 Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & R Above
Roof
1 BUILDING
015423700200 Scaffolding, steel tubular, regular, labor only to 30.00 CSF $244.23 $7,327
erect & dismantle, bidg ext, wall face, 64" x 5'
frames, 6 to 12 stories, excl. planks
015626500100 Temporary Fencing, chain link, 6' high, 11 ga 500.00 LF $5.40 $2,702
024119180500 Selective demolition, disposal only, urban buildings 100.00 CY $20.00 $2,000
with salvage value allowed, wood frame, includes
loading and 5 mile haul to dump
024119230800 Rubbish handling, dumpster, 30 C.Y., 10 ton 8.00 WK $711.98 $5,696
capacity, weekly rental, includes one dump per
week, cost to be added to demalition cost.
024119252000 Selective demolition, saw cutting, stucco , per inch 2,857.00 LF $3.82 $10,909
of depth, w/hand held saw
024210200930 Deconstruction of exterior finishes, plaster, second 2,753.00 SF $1.32 $3,634
floor, up to 2 stories, excludes handling, packaging
or disposal costs
070505100220 Selective demolition, thermal and moisture 800.00 SF $1.35 $1,077
protection, flashing, sheet metal
070505100870 Selective demolition, thermal and moisture 4,000.00 BF $0.11 $453
protection, insulation removal, rigid board
070505105025 Selective demoilition, thermal and moisture 9,000.00 SF $3.25 $29,282
protection, siding, exterior insulation finish system,
remove
072413100095 Exterior Insulation Finish System, field applied, 1" 2,753.00 SF $7.51 $20,671
EPS insulation
072413100105 Exterior Insulation Finish System, field applied, 2" 11,600.00 SF $7.74 $89,743
EPS insulation
076510109320 Flexible Flashing, steel sheets, galvanized, 20 1,202.00 SF $4.73 $5,681
gauge @ sills
076510109600 Flexible Flashing, zinc and copper alloy (brass), 1,000.00 SF $11.09 $11,085
.020" thick
076523108200 Flexible Flashing, rubber, butyl, 1/16" thick @ 2,635.00 SF $4.08 $10,758
window
079210100070 Caulking & Sealants, backer rod, polyethylene, 3/4" 46.00 CLF $110.33 $5,075
dia
080505200620 Window demolition, glass, maximum 50.00 SF $2.60 $130
080505205080 Window demolition, window, remove and reset, 45.00 EA $1,132.00 $50,940
maximum
088130100400 Insulating Glass, double glazed, clear, 1/4" float, 50.00 SF $28.09 $1,405
for 1" thick unit, 30-70 SF
090505303020 Walls and partitions demolition, plaster, lime or 11,600.00 SF $1.17 $13,519
horsehair, on metal lath
Task00011 Stucco patching and repairs. 4,514.00 SF $2.25 $10,157
Task00035 EIFS-For higher than one story- Section 07 24 5,000.00 SF $1.00 45,000
13.10-0440 - Add 25% to Labor Cost
Task00041 Dryvit TAFS coating system 26,559.00 SF $5.00 $132,795
Task00042 Remove glass stops, clean and prep area and 3,782.00 LF $2.50 $9,455
reinstall w/ new fasteners and neoprene washers
SUBTOTAL BUILDING $429,492
SUBTOTAL $429,492
Contractor's Gen Requirements 10.0% $42,949
Contractor's Overhead 5.0% $23,622
Contractor's Profit 10.0% $49,606
1400 BSD CostLink/AE Page 2 of 3



22 Jan 2015 Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & R Above Roof 1:51:46PM
Estimate Detail
- Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost
SUBTOTAL $545,669
Navajo and State Tax 10.6% $57,841
[ Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & R $603,510 )

1400 BSD CostLink/AE

Page 3 of 3



22 Jan 2015 Task 2 - Stucco at Gym & Stucco and Window R & R Above Roof 1:51:46PM
Table of Contents

CostLink Report Page Number
Level 3 Direct Cost Summary -—--------=-------mm - 1
EstimateDetal @ = - 2

BSD CostLink/AE



22 Jan 2015 Task 4 Stucco Repair and Coating - Window R & R 1:53:10PM

Task 4 Stucco Repair and Coating - Window R & R
Project No.  1409B

Estimated By:
William R. Pittenger/ Stacy White

Preparation Date:  1/21/2015

Effective Date of Pricing:  8/1/2014
Est Construction Time: 120 Days

BSD CostLink/AE - Copyright © 1999-2007

by Building Systems Design, Inc.

BSD CostLink/AE



22 Jan 2015 Task 4 Stucco Repair and Coating - Window R & R 1:53:10PM
Level 3 Direct Cost Summary

Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost
1409B Task 4 Stucco Repair and Coating - Window R & R
1 BUILDING $443,131
SUBTOTAL $443,131
Contractor's Gen Requirements 10.0% $44,313
Contractor's Overhead 5.0% $24,372
Contractor's Profit 10.0% $51,182
SUBTOTAL $562,998
Navajo and State Tax 10.6% $59,678
( Task 4 Stucco Repair and Coating - Window R & R $622,675 )

14098 BSD CostLink/AE Page 1 of 2



22 Jan 2015 Task 4 Stucco Repair and Coating - Window R & R 1:53:10PM
Estimate Detail
T - Quantity " Unit Cost Total Cost
1409B Task 4 Stucco Repair and Coating - Window R & R
1 BUILDING
015423700200 Scaffolding, steel tubular, regular, labor only to 30.00 CSF $248.28 $7,448
erect & dismantle, bldg ext, wall face, 64" x 5'
frames, 6 to 12 stories, excl. planks
015626500100 Temporary Fencing, chain link, 6' high, 11 ga 500.00 LF $5.49 $2,746
024119180500 Selective demolition, disposal only, urban buildings 100.00 CY $20.33 $2,033
with salvage value allowed, wood frame, includes
loading and 5 mile haul to dump
024119230800 Rubbish handling, dumpster, 30 C.Y., 10 ton 8.00 WK $723.79 $5,790
capacity, weekly rental, includes one dump per
week, cost to be added to demolition cost.
024119252000 Selective demolition, saw cutting, stucco , per inch 3,707.00 LF $3.88 $14,389
of depth, w/hand held saw
024210200930 Deconstruction of exterior finishes, plaster, second 4,417.00 SF $1.32 $5,830
floor, up to 2 stories, excludes handling, packaging
or disposal costs
072413100095 Exterior Insulation Finish System, field applied, 1" 4,417.00 SF $7.63 $33,716
EPS insulation
076510109320 Flexible Flashing, steel sheets, galvanized, 20 1,433.00 SF $4.80 $6,885
gauge @ sills
076523108200 Flexible Flashing, rubber, butyl, 1/16" thick @ 3,695.00 SF $4.15 $15,336
window & doors
079210100070 Caulking & Sealants, backer rod, polyethylene, 3/4" 37.00 CLF $112.16 $4,150
dia
080505200620 Window demolition, glass, maximum 70.00 SF $2.65 $185
080505205080 Window demolition, window, remove and reset, 98.00 EA $1,132.00 $110,936
maximum
088130100400 Insulating Glass, double glazed, clear, 1/4" float, 70.00 SF $28.56 $1,999
for 1" thick unit, 30-70 SF
Task00011 Stucco patching and repairs. 3,939.00 SF $2.25 $8,863
Task00041 Dryvit TAFS coating system 41,631.00 SF $5.00 $208,155
Task00042 Remove glass stops, clean and prep area and 4,570.00 LF $2.50 $11,425
reinstall w/ new fasteners and neoprene washers
Task00047 Remove and reset door and frame 772.00 LF $4.20 $3,242
SUBTOTAL BUILDING $443,131
SUBTOTAL $443,131
Contractor's Gen Requirements 10.0% $44,313
Contractor's Overhead 5.0% $24,372
Contractor's Profit 10.0% $51,182
SUBTOTAL $562,998
Navajo and State Tax 10.6% $59,678
[ Task 4 Stucco Repair and Coating - Window R & R $622,675 )

14098

BSD CostLink/AE

Page 2 of 2



22 Jan 2015 Task 4 Stucco Repair and Coating - Window R & R 1:53:10PM
Table of Contents

CostLink Report Page Number
Level 3 Direct Cost Summary  -----------------~“----- 1
Estimate Detal @ = --eeeeseeeeeeoo--ooooooo 2

BSD CostLink/AE



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency

_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Mobile Elementary

BRG Project Number:  070386101-9999-002BRG Maricopa County
Project Description: Replace well

Consultant: Trust

AlE: Wilson Engineers (480-893-8860)

Board Approval Date: 8/6/2014
Supplemental award: 2/4/2015

School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 291,000
Contingency (1) $ 35,000
Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees 3 74,283
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection [3 _
Total Additional Cost: $ 74,283
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 400,283
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 400,283
Total Project Cost: $ 400,283

(@ Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 230
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529

Mobile ESD 002BRG Vertical Sheet.xls




Pat Cruse

From: Johnson, Michael E. [Mike.Johnson@Wilson-engineers.com]
Sent: Friday, January 09, 2015 4:02 PM

To: Pat Cruse

Subject: RE: Mobile Well Site

Pat,

Good day.

| left a message for you earlier this week in response to your voice mail from Monday. Based on your message, | think
there is some confusion as to the costs for the new well. You mentioned $60-$80k to redrill and equip the well. Please
note that per my earlier e-mails, we are projecting $290k to drill a new well and to equip the well. Hopefully, that was
conservative but with drillers as busy as they, there is a lot of pressure on drilling costs and schedules.

For our proposal, obviously we haven't had the chance to discuss your follow up comments, bit | did take the time to
review it. The biggest issue is having to prepare a biddable set of documents to drill a new well and then to equip it with
a new pump/motor (while reusing/relocating other equipment). This set of design docs also has to have sufficient
information to be permitted by the County. That said, some ways to reduce the effort are as follows:

e Does the State select/utilize JOC general contractors based on qualifications or can the School Facilities Board
piggy back a municipal JOC Contract (from Phoenix or the like)? We do lot of JOC work with Phoenix at
treatment plants and remote facilities coordinating with their selected JOC general contractor. The main
benefit is substantial time savings because the official bid phase in eliminated (the construction price is
negotiated) and we can generally produce design sketches for the JOC contractor to follow in lieu of full
biddable contract document sets. We can reduce our proposed effort by at least $5,000 on this project
following the 1OC design sketch approach.

¢ Deleting the topo allowance as you requested (saves $3,150). Using the site plan you forwarded isn’t ideal
(especially if only a pdf is available), but it will have to suffice. Using the pdf with the JOC format above would
be ideal.

e Does the state have a certified lab to do the water quality testing for the new source approval? That will save
$4,000 in testing (and potentially the costs associated with our effort in pulling samples and preparing the
permit application — if the State can do that).

® You can pull the MCESD permit fees out and pay them direct to the County. It doesn’t save you the costs of
the permits, but it does save a 5% markup.

Anyway just some thoughts on reducing the cost. Please give me a call if you want to discuss further. If you electto go a
different direction on the project, | wish you good fortune and | appreciated the opportunity to work with you. Thanks.

Have a great weekend!
Regards,
Mike

Michael E. Johnson, P.E.

Wilson Engineers

9633 South 48th Street, Suite 290
Phoenix, AZ 85044

0O: 480-893-8860



v

N

F: 480-893-8968
C: 602-501-0852

----- Original Message-----

From: Pat Cruse [mailto:pcruse@azsfb.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, December 31, 2014 10:48 AM
To: Johnson, Michael E.

Subject: Mobile Well Site

Hi Mike,

| have reviewed your proposal and have several comments. The well has been performing as necessary and would be
continuing the use of it had it not been the casing and electrical failures. | want to discuss the charges as you have
presented them:

Task 1.0: What is there to design for well equipping, as that has already been completed. We are only confirming the
existing equipment, reusing the current design and ensuring we meet 35 gpm as originally designed and/or 259 Students

and 20-25 staff. The irrigation requirements will be reduced as well.

Task 2.0: We are reusing all above ground equipment, therefore engineering cost appear to be showing full design.
Please reduce.

Task 3.0: If you do your engineering correctly, why are you charging an additional $3,000 for delivery and pickup?
Task 4.0: If Basin Wells is performing for these actions 4.2, 4.3 and 4.5, why are you charging for the same?

| have provided you a recent topo of that site, please review to ensure that meets your needs. Please provide your
comments and thoughts to my thoughts, but it appears that engineering is higher than the potential well to be provided.

Hope you have a Happy New Year. Thanks, Pat.

Your message is ready to be sent with the following file or link attachments:

MobileElem-HTE123501-C2
MobileElem-HTE123501-BMP1
MobileElem-HTE123501-C1

Note: To protect against computer viruses, e-mail programs may prevent sending or receiving certain types of file
attachments. Check your e-mail security settings to determine how attachments are handled.



#{

Pat Cruse

From: Johnson, Michael E. [Mike.Johnson@Wilson-engineers.com]
Sent: Monday, December 22, 2014 10:52 AM

To: Pat Cruse

Cc: Ramsey Craig A.

Subject: RE: Mobile Elementary Well Rehab

Pat,

Good day.

I forwarded a copy of the well video to Basin Wells on Friday. Over the weekend, we coordinated with them to jointly
review the video and the other information you forwarded concerning the well. Some initial observations:

e The well casing is old and in very poor shape. Buck Schmidt (with Basin Wells) stated it is one of the worst he
has have ever seen.

¢ Due to the poor condition of the well casing and the lack of water level within the well (see next bullet point),
rehab options will be few (if they are even feasible) and expensive. One of the biggest concerns will be the risks
of the drilling contractor losing tools down the existing hole which could damage the existing well further.

e According to the video and other information provided, there is only about 13 feet of water in the hole. Iknow
there were certain pumping changes proposed and that the hope was that some water level recovery would occur
within the well based on those pumping changes. However, in discussing this with Basin Wells, they don’t
believe much water level recovery will occur because the levels currently seen in the existing well are generally
consistent with other well water level data in the area (based on information they obtained from ADWR). From
that perspective, the current depth of the existing well will be problematic in re-establishing a permanent
sustainable source of water for the school (i.e. the existing well will need to be deepened as part of any rehab
effort).

Based on the age and poor condition of the well, as well as, the limited available aquifer, we would strongly advocate
designing/installing a new replacement well and abandoning the existing well. This would also include designing a new
well pump, motor, and motor starter based on the new well conditions. Going down that route, we will also need to look

at the current electrical setup to make sure it has sufficient capacity for the new well pump motor (if it changes based on
the new well conditions) and that the current service is up to code (since the existing well is fairly old). If the existing
discharge piping, valves, etc. are in good condition, we can try and reuse it if that is desirable or replace it (if keeping the
existing well operational until the new well is ready is of more value). Also, assuming this well is part of the Mobile
School’s potable water system, any rehab or replacement well effort will also require Maricopa County Environmental
Services permitting approval (both New Source Approval, Approval to Construct, and Approval of Construction). A
drilling card will also need to be procured from ADWR.

Let me know your thoughts on how you want to proceed. If you want to meet or have a conference call to discuss this
further, both us and Basin Wells are available. Thanks.

FYI - I am out later this week starting Wednesday the 24™ through the 26™. I will be back in the office next Monday (the
29"™). If I don’t hear from you before then, have a great Christmas!

Regards,

Mike

Michael E. Johnson, P.E.
Wilson Engineers

9633 South 48" Street, Suite 290
Phoenix, AZ 85044



b
N .

Pat Cruse

From: Johnson, Michael E. [Mike.Johnson@Wilson-engineers.com]
Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2014 11:22 AM

To: Pat Cruse

Cc: Ramsey Craig A.

Subject: Mobile Elementary Well Rehab

Pat,

Good day.

Ileft a voice mail for you yesterday, but wanted to follow up with an email as well. Craig Ramsey forwarded the
information you discussed with him regarding the Mobile Elementary School Well Rehab Project. A couple of important
points:

Scope: Craig mentioned you wanted to rehab/re-case the existing well and that the existing casing is severely corroded
and almost gone. The condition of the existing well casing will dictate what rehab effort can be conducted successfully or
it could just dictate that a new well be ultimately drilled. I will need to get a hydrogeologist involved to review the

condition of the existing well casing to make that determination/recommendation. Craig also mentioned that the well has

already been videoed. Can you forward a copy of the video? Also, do you the ADWR registration number for the well?
The age of the existing well and type of materials used can shed some light on whether rehab is an option.

Schedule: Craig mentioned that you were looking for a mid-January turn around. All-in, that will be difficult. However,
one plan of attack could be to first try a temporary band aid approach on the existing well. This is risky without knowing
much yet (i.e. the video will tell more as to whether this approach is even feasible). If at least feasible, an initial
rehabilitation could consist of cleaning, bush and bail, chemical treatment (Aqua Clear PFD) followed by redevelopment
and testing. The overall rehab effort could probably be completed in a 6-8 week timeframe (dependent on the contractor
availability). Based on the resulting well production capability, we could then try to do a temporary band aid modification
on the existing pump (if possible). We could also try to look into an interim rental pump (though that isn’t likely) . The
risk here is that this is probably a short term fix at best or it may not work at all, but hopefully it could buy some time to
get the well more permanently rehabbed / replaced (if that is what is warranted).

On that note, to more permanently rehab the well (i.e. a new casing) or replacement, we will be at the mercy of the
drilling contractors to do this work. Unfortunately, what we are seeing in the current market is that they are very busy
(i.e. it could easily be 4 to 6 months before a driller will even mobilize).

Equipment: For the equipment side of things, the pump design will be dependent on the resulting production capabilities
of the well. Based on his understanding, Craig relayed that the current static water level is 448-ft and that the bottom of
the well is 460-ft. That isn’t much saturated thickness, which likely means it won’t yield much water. Hopefully,
cleaning would help increase the yield (as well as the reduction in pumping you alluded to). Either way, with limited
information there really isn’t a way to predict the resulting pumping conditions until the cleaning is done and the well
redeveloped and tested. We could try to replace like for like, but that probably 1s asking for failure.,

For a more permanent solution (re-casing the existing well or redrilling), the new equipment would again be design based

on the resulting developing and testing of the well.

When you get a chance, please give me a call to discuss further. Thanks.
Regards,
Michael E. Johnson, P.E.

Wilson Engineers
9633 South 48 Street, Suite 290



WIISON G633 South 48th Street, Suite 290
Phoenix, AZ 85044-5658
- ~ ABD-893-8840 | 480-893-8968 Fox
ENGINEERS o e

Wilson-Lngineais.com

12/30/2014

Mr. Pat Cruse

ARIZONA SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD
1701 West Washington

Phoenix, AZ 85007

Re: Engineering Proposal for Mobile Elementary School Well Replacement

Dear Mr. Cruse:

Wilson Engineers is pleased to submit this proposal to provide engineering services to replace the
existing potable water well at the Mobile Elementary School. The effort will consist of the design,
permitting, and construction administration support for the replacement well casing and equipment.
Our proposed scope of services and the associated fee breakdown are enclosed for your reference. We
will complete the proposed services on a lump sum basis and will invoice you on a monthly frequency
for services rendered.

Please review and let us know if you are any questions. Upon receipt of your authorization, we will

proceed with the initial site visit. Thank you!

WILSON ENGINEERS

A X )

Michael E. Johnson, P.E.
Principal

cc: File

A Limited Liobility Company



ARIZONA SCHOOL FACILIITES BOARD
MOBILE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL POTABLE WELL REPLACEMENT

DESIGN, PERMITTING, AND ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION

SCOPE OF SERVICES

December 30,2014

This project includes the design, permitting though Maricopa County, and limited engineering services during
construction for replacing the Mobile Elementary School’s existing potable water well. For purposes of this
Scope of Services, the Arizona School Facilities Board is herein referred to as OWNER and Wilson Engineers
is herein referred to as ENGINEER.

For this project, the following components are assumed to be included:

Replacement well casing / screen at approximately 50 feet from original well location.

New submersible well pump, pad, and motor. Coordination services with the Project’s
Hydrogeological Consultant will be provided to determine the design points for the well pump.

Reutilize the existing flow meter, valves, and appurtenances to connect the replacement well
pump to the existing storage tank. Provide new equipment pad and pipe supports.

Approximately 50 linear feet of underground supply piping to connect the replacement well to the
existing storage tank.

It is assumed that the existing electrical feed is of sufficient size and can be reutilized to supply
power to the new well pump motor (from the existing MCC). A new motor starter, conduit, and
wire will be designed, but the existing power supply equipment including service entrance and
motor control center shall be re-utilized.

Existing pump controls shall be reutilized.

Specific permitting services included in this Scope are as follows:

Drilling Card from ADWR,

New Source Approval from the Maricopa County Environmental Services (MCESD).
Approval to Construct (ATC) from MCESD.

Approval of Construction (AOC) from MCESD.

Building Permit from Maricopa County.

Specific services not included in this Scope are as follows:

Geotechnical investigation services.
Utility pot-holing services to locate existing buried utilities.

Drainage Report/Design. Depending on the new well location, Maricopa County could require an
updated Drainage Report as part of the Building Permit Application process. For purposes of this
Scope, it is assumed that the County Building Permit can be obtained without providing a new
Drainage Report/Design.

Maricopa County Building Permit Fee is assumed to be paid directly by the OWNER.

+ </ADWR Dirilling Card Fees are assumed to be paid directly by the OWNER.

Landscaping archltectural services for the restoring any dlsturbed landscape areas (if appllcable)

Sampling and lab testing for final Bac-T requirements for well pump, discharge piping, and storage
tank. It is assumed that the CONTRACTOR shall provide these services.

WILSON

FNGINEERS



The engineering services to be provided under this Project are as follows:
TASK 1.0 PRELIMINARY DESIGN

Subtask 1.1 Site Visit, Data Collection, System Design Coordination, and Existing Equipment Inventory.
Collect and review background information for the existing well site and tank(s). Wilson shall visit the
existing well site, compile and review the available information regarding the sites’ existing conditions
including:

e Conduct an existing equipment inventory including: existing above grade well piping, valves, meter,
and accessories; electrical service and motor control center; storage tank; and pump controls.

¢ Topographic surveying services. Provide the topographic survey information (in electronic format
compatible with Autocad). In addition, develop a sealed survey control sheet for this project site.

e The ENGINEER shall coordinate with the OWNER to locate existing buried utilities present in the
Project Area that may be in conflict with the newly proposed construction. This will include
conducting a meeting with the school maintenance staff (if necessary). Blue Stake shall be contacted
prior to drilling operations beginning,

NOTE: A $3,150 allowance has been included for topographic surveying needs. The ENGINEER shall get a
quole from a third party surveyor and provide to the OWNER for approval prior to beginning.

Subtask 1.2 Hydrogeologic Consulting Services. Basin Wells will prepare a detailed well installation
specification and detail for the drilling, casing/screen installation, and testing of one (1) new potable well (to
replace the existing well). After incorporating comments from OWNER, Basin Wells will provide the final
well drilling and casing technical specifications. During the drilling operations, Basin Wells will provide
drilling inspection and well casing installation oversight, geophysical logging, and zonal sample collection
and analyses. Basin Wells shall also produce a final well installation report. See Exhibit B for the scope of
services from Basin Wells regarding the specific hydrogeologic design and testing activities proposed.

Subtask 1.3 Design Basis Report/30% Design. As required by Maricopa County Environmental Services
Department, the ENGINEER shall prepare a design letter report based on the available data, site investigation,
and the County’s design standards. The letter report shall include the conceptual well layout, casing design,
projected static and dynamic water levels identified during the drilling phase (at the proposed design flow
rate), preliminary design criteria and standards for the well pump and motor, pipeline, valves, accessories,
electrical feed requirement, and identification of any other design issues and recommendations (i.e.
summarizing what existing components will be reused). ENGINEER will submit the Detailed Design Basis
Report to the OWNER for review.

TASK 2.0 CONTRACT DOCUMENT PREPARATION

Subtask 2.1 Preparation of 90% Plans and Specifications (Agency Review Set). Prepare preliminary (90%)
construction documents including plans and specifications for the replacement potable well. The plans shall
incorporate the comments received on the Detailed Design Report / 30% submittal and include the following
detailed design areas: ‘

o Civil: Site plan incluﬁfng well, proposed discharge piping locations, and existing storage tank.

e Structural: Concrete pad for the new well and piping.

¢ Mechanical:

o Well pump and buried piping. Above grade piping, valves, meter, and piping appurtenances to
be reused.




¢ Electrical: New power feed (starter/conduit/wire) from the existing MCC to the new well pump
motor. Existing motor control center, service entrance section, and control instrumentation to be
reused.

Three (3) copies of the preliminary, 90 percent, plans and specifications will be submitted for review to
OWNER.

Subtask 2.2 Preparation of 100% Plans and Specifications. The final 100% plans and specifications will be
prepared incorporating OWNER’s and Maricopa County’s comments. Three (3) sets of the approved plans
and specifications will be provided.

TASK 3.0 MARICOPA COUNTY PERMITTING SERVICES

Subtask 3.1 Maricopa County Environmental Services Approval to Construct (ATC). One set of the agency
review plans and specifications will be presented to the Maricopa County Environmental Services Department
for expedited review. One review meeting will be conducted to discuss any comments received from the
County.

NOTE: Per the MCESD ATC Fee Schedule included in Exhibit C, this task includes a $1,350 allowance for
the ATC Permitting Fees.

Subtask 3.2 Maricopa County Environmental Services New Source Approval. The ENGINEER shall
provide New Source Groundwater Sampling, Testing, and Permitting for the New Potable Well. This task
shall include:

e Coordinate with the DRILLING CONTRACTOR to pump the well for four hours prior to sampling.
e  Sampling of the well for the Phase II/V analytical standards required for by MCESD for the New
Source Approval.
e  Coordinating with an Arizona Certified Laboratory to supply the sample containers and then to test
the water samples for the required analytical standards. The samples will be labeled, logged onto a
chain-of-custody form and stored on ice in a cooler for transportation to the approved laboratory.
e The results will be summarized and provided to MCESD as part of the New Source Approval Permit
Application.
NOTE: This task includes an allowance of $4,000 for the Arizona Licensed Laboratory Fees for the Phase
1I/V water quality testing requirements as required by MCESD for the New Source Approval. In addition, this
task includes a $925 allowance for the MCESD New Source Approval Permitting Fees.

Subtask 3.3 Maricopa County Building Permit. The Engineer shall complete the Building Permit
application and related requirements and submit the Agency Review Plans and Specifications to Maricopa
County for approval. The Engineer shall coordinate with the County and provide additional information as
requested. Three (3) sets of plans and specifications will be prepared and submitted to the County for review.
The final original permit set (i.e. Field Copy) will be provided to the CONTRACTOR as required by the
County.

NOTE: The building permit fee is not known at this time. Accordingly, this task does not include an
allowance for the building permit fee. It is assumed that the OWNER will pay for the building permit fee
directly once it is established by Maricopa County.

TASK 4.0 ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION

Subtask 4.1 Bid Services. The ENGINEER will respond to Bidder’s questions during the OWNER’s bid
phase and issue written addenda as necessary.

WILSON

INGINEERS



Subtask 4.2 Perform Site Visits. The ENGINEER’s design staff shall make site visits to observe, as an
experienced and qualified professional, the progress and quality of the executed work of CONTRACTOR and
to determine in general, if such work is proceeding in accordance with the approved construction documents
and that completed work conforms to the Construction Documents as required by the MCESD Approval of
Construction requirements. Up to three (3) site visits will be scheduled at periods appropriate with the
various stages of construction: one to observe the submersible pump installation; and one to observe the
electrical conduit and concrete pad installations, and one to witness all pressure testing activities, disinfection,
and Bac-T sampling of the well, and discharge piping (required for the Approval of Construction).

Subtask 4.3 - Review Shop Drawings, Well Pump O&M Manual, and Test Results. The ENGINEER
shall receive, review, and evaluate shop drawings, well pump operating and maintenance manual, pressure
test results (well discharge pipeline), bac-T results (well pump, discharge pipeline), and other data which
CONTRACTOR is required to submit. For this Scope of Services, it is assumed that the shop drawings will
be received and returned electronically. The ENGINEER’s review shall only be for conformance with the
design concept of the Project and compliance with the information given in the construction documents. Such
review or other action shall not extend to means, methods, sequences, techniques or procedures of
construction selected by CONTRACTOR, or to safety precautions and programs incident thereto. The level
of effort for this task is based upon receiving a total of five (5) shop drawing submittals including: well pump
& motor, concrete and reinforcing steel for well pump pad, discharge piping, and electrical materials (conduit,
wire, etc). The ENGINEER shall compile one hard copy set of shop drawings and one electronic set on CD
(in pdf format) for the OWNER.

The ENGINEER shall also review the Well Pump O&M Manual Submittal for conformance with the
specification requirements. The ENGINEER shall compile one hard copy set of the approved Well
Pump/Motor O&M and one electronic set on CD (in pdf format) for the OWNER.

Task 4.4 - Issue Interpretations and Clarifications. The ENGINEER shall respond to the OWNER and/or
CONTRACTOR to clarify and/or interpret technical design related questions. The ENGINEER shall respond
to issues raised during construction regarding interpretation and clarification of the contractual administrative
and technical requirements of the construction documents.

Task 4.5 - Substantial Completion Inspection / MCESD AOC Coordination. Following notice from the
CONTRACTOR, the ENGINEER shall conduct an inspection to determine if the project is substantially
complete in accordance with the construction documents. If the ENGINEER considers the project to be
Substantially Complete, the ENGINEER shall complete and submit the required Approval of Construction
(AOC) Application and Engineer’s Certificate of Completion to Maricopa County Department of
Environmental Services (including the required/witnessed bacteria and pressuring testing results). The
Engineer shall also conduct a site visit with a representative of the Maricopa County Department of
Environmental Services, if necessary. The intent of this site visit will be to allow the County to review the
facility prior to issuing the Approval of Construction Certificate.

The ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the CONTRACTOR, or subcontractor,
or any of the CONTRACTOR’s or subcontractor’s agents or employees or any other persons (except
ENGINEER's own employees and agents) at the site or otherwise performing any of the CONTRACTOR’s
work.

NOTE: It is assumed that the CONTRACTOR shall coordinate with Maricopa County regarding any
Building Permit related inspections and to acquire the final certificate of occupancy¥use.

END SCOPE OF SERVICES

WILSON

ENGINEERS




EXHIBIT A - OVERALL FEE BREAKDOWN

WILSON

INGINEERS



ARIZONA SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD
MOBILE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
POTABLE WELL REPLACEMENT PROJECT

DESIGN, PERMITTING, AND ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION

12/30/2014
I LABOR SUMMARY
Project Project
Principal Managi Professional Teck Admin.
E-7 E-5 E-4 T4 A4 Total Total
Task Task Description $ 19500} § 150001 S 12500 ] 85.00 | § 7500 Hours Fee
Task 1.0 - Data Collection and Preliminary Devel
1.1 Site Visit, Data Collection, and Equipment Inventory 4 12 16 2,100
12 Hydrogeologic Consulting Services - See Basin Wells below. 0 -
1.3 Design Basis Letter Report / 30% Submittal - Well Equippi 8 20 16 44 5,060
Sut 1 - Data Collection and Preliminary Devel 0 12 32 16 [ 60 7,160
Task 2.0 - Well Equi Contract D Preparation
2.1 |90% Agency Review Construction Document Submittal 24 48 40 16 128 14,200
2.2 100% Final Submittal 4 12 8 8 32 3,380
Subtotal - Well Equi Contract D, Preparation 0 28 50 48 24 160 17,580 |
Task 3.0 - Maricopa County Permitting
Maricopa County Environmental Services Approval to Construct {ATC) 8 8 1,000
Environmental Services New Source Approval 16 16 2,000
Maricopa County Building Permit 2 [ 10 1,300
Subtotal - Permitting 0 2 32 0 0 34 4,300
Task 4.0 - Engineering Services During Bid Phase and Construction
4.1 Bid Services 2 4 6 $ 800
4.2 Perform Sitc Visits (3) 12 12 $ 1,500
. Review Shop Drawings, O&M Manual, & Test Results 4 16 20 $ 2,600
4.4 Issuc Interpretations & Clarifications 2 2 250
4.5 Substantial Completion Inspection / MCESD AQC Coordination 2 8 10 1,300
Subtotal - Engineering Services During Bid Phase and Construction [] 8 42 [} [] 50 6,450
Subtotal - Wilson Labor Summary 0 50 166 64 24 304 IS 35490
II. EXPENSE SUMMARY
Task No.'s I Expense Description Unit Total Units | Cost/ Unit ‘Total
1.2 Basin Wells (Hydrogeologic Consulting Services ~ See Attached)** LumE Sum 1 3 28,574{ § 28,574
13 ]T hic Survey Allowance** Lump Sum 1 3 3,1501 8 3,150
31 IMCESD ATC Permitting Fee Allowance - See Attached MCESD Fee Schedule®* Lump Sum 1 3 13501 § 1,350
4.5 MCESD AOC Permitting Fee Allowance** Lump Sum 1 3 50018 500
ality Testing - Arizona Certified Lab Allowance** Lump Sum 1 3 400018 4,600
Lump Sum 1 3 92518 925
Auded Lump Sum 1 $ - $ -
Mile 500 3 059§ % 295
SUBTOTAL - EXPENSE SUMMARY $ 38,793
**Direct expenses include 5% mark up per sttached misc. charges summary.
III. TOTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
Item I_ Description Amount
L (WILSON LABOR SUMMARY $ 35,490
11 EXPENSE SUMMARY $ 38,793
II. TOTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES S 74,283
o
EA

ot



MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES SUMMARY

a. Subsistence

Subsistence for employees and direct field expenses At Cost plus 5%
b. Transportation (employees' time and subsistence are changed in addition to the following rates)

Company Automobile

Passenger Vehicle $0.59/mile

Commercial Transportation At Cost plus 5%
c. Materials

All materials, other than normal office supplies, which are used in connection

with the rendering of services. At Cost plus 5%
d. Computer-Aided Design Drafting (employees' time is charged in addition to the

following rate): Use of the interactive CADD System, when used in the rendering

of services. $17.00/hour
e. Subcontract Services

Geotechnical, special environmental services, O&M Manuals, and other

subcontracted services. At Cost plus 5%
e. Equipment Rental

Charges Commercial Rates plus 5%
f. Printing, Reproductions, and Photographic Work

Charges Commercial Rates plus 5%
g. Environmental and Chemical Laboratory Work

Charges Commercial Rates plus 5%

May2014 ' ' ‘ WILSON

Page 2 of 2 S T
age 2 0 ENCGINELES




EXHIBIT B - BASIN WELLS



9290 East Kayenta Drive
Tucson, Arizona 85749

Tel: 520.749.8878
Fax:520.760.6027

www.basinwellsassociates.com

Mr. Michael E. Johnson, P.E. December 23, 2014
Wilson Engineers

9633 South 48™ Street, Suite 290

Phoenix, AZ 85044 14-028-bs

Subject:  Proposal to Provide Permitting, Technical Specifications, Bid Support,
Borehole Testing and Analysis, Construction Management, and Testing
Services for a Replacement Mobile Elementary School Water Well, Wilson
Engineers, Mobile, Arizona.

{Transmitted via electronic mail to Mike.Johnson@ Wilson-engineers.com on December 23, 2014

Dear Mr. Johnson,

BasinWells Associates PLLC (BasinWells) is pleased to submit this proposal to Wilson
Engineers to provide permitting, technical specifications, bid support, borehole testing
and analysis, construction management, and testing services for a replacement Mobile
Elementary School Water Well. Yield requirement for the replacement well is 35
gallons per minute (gpm).

SCOPE OF WORK
PHASE 1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT
Project management will include:
e Up-to-date progress reports of well installation activities.

e Pre-construction conference and logistical coordination between Mobile
Elementary School staff and drilling contractor during mobilization and
demobilization of equipment.

e Budget tracking and invoicing.
* Site meeting with Wilson Engineers and school staff, as required.

PHASE 2. PRE-BID WELL DESIGN DEVELOPMENT AND REPLACEMENT WELL
PERMITTING

BasinWells will develop a pre-bid well design based on hydrogeologic conditions.
Available local hydrogeologic and groundwater quality will be compiled and reviewed.

Notice of Intention to Deepen or Modify an Existing Non-Exempt Well or Construct a
Replacement Non-Exempt Well at Approximately the Same 'Location in an Active
‘Management Area (DW-55-41, Revised 3/12) will be filed for the replacement well with
the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR). BasinWells will provide the
permit fees of $150. Proposed well design diagram will be included as required.

http://www.azwater.gov/azdwr/WaterManagement/NOl/documents/documents/55-
41APPNOIdrilldeepApprev3 12.doc e e

c:\basinwells_associates_031711\2014_projects\wilson_engineers\mobile_elementary_school_well\proposal\basinwell
s_wilson_engineers_mobile_elementary_school_well_permit_bid_cm_scope_fee_prop_122314.docx\12/23/2014\bs



Proposal to Provide Permitting, Technical Specifications, Bid Support, Borehole Testing and Analysis,
Construction Management, and Testing Services for a New Mobile Elementary School Water Well, Wilson
Engineers, Mobile, Arizona.

December 23, 2014

Page 2 of 4

New well construction form (55-90) will also be filed as required.
http://www.azwater.gov/azdwr/WaterManagement/NOl/documents/55-90 AP.pdf
PHASE 3. TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

Technical specifications will be developed based on the pre-bid well design, specific requirements of the well
site (i.e. construction water source, etc.) and testing methodologies and procedures required. A bid schedule
will be included for contractor's submittal of costs for bid items utilizing units appropriate to protect owner and
contractor.

PHASE 4. BID SERVICES

Bid services will include addressing bidder questions during the contractor selection process. BasinWells will
provide a recommendation of the lowest, responsive, and responsible bidder for the well installation project.
BasinWells will provide contact information of at least three drilling companies that can effectively execute all
phases of well drilling, installation and testing as described in the technical specifications.

PHASE 5. BOREHOLE ANALYSIS

BasinWells will monitor borehole drilling to assess the local hydrogeologic conditions, facilitate development of
a lithologic log, and analyze the geophysical logging suite. Geophysical logging firm shall be subcontracted by
the selected driller. Drill cuttings sampled every 10-feet from the borehole will be collected in specially designed
plastic “chip tray” containers for archival purposes.

PHASE 6. ZONAL GROUNDWATER SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS

Based on the lithologic and geophysical analyses, BasinWells will select specific zones for the collection of
groundwater samples. Groundwater samples will be submitted to an analytical laboratory for analysis of total
dissolved solids (TDS), nitrate, arsenic, and fluoride. Analytical laboratory will be subcontracted by BasinWells.
A total of three groundwater samples are proposed to be collected to evaluate the various sub-aquifers that will
be encountered. Based on borehole analysis (Phase 5) and zonal groundwater sampling and analysis, BasinWells
will develop a final well design with input and approval of Wilson Engineers.

PHASE 7. WELL CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

Well Installation Inspection. BasinWells will provide inspection of well casing, screen, and annulus material
installation shall assure that the well installation is conducted in compliance with the materials and construction
standards specified. BasinWells will document all construction materials, installation techniques, and well
development techniques via pipe tallies, cement grout records, etc. Samples of the filter pack material and
cement grout shall be collected and submitted for archival purposes. A detailed-record drawing of the well will
be prepared for inclusion in the Final Well Completion Report.

Well Development Inspection. BasinWells will provide inspection of well development to assure the
appropriate equipment is being used and development is being conducted in a manner to maximize yield.

PHASE 8. WELL TESTING PROGRAM AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Pump Test and Analysis. BasinWells will observe and collect water Ievelkand flow data during a 12-hour,
constant-rate aquifer test of the new replacement well to evaluate long-term sustainability of optimum yield.
Cooper-Jacob straight line method of analysis will be applied to water-levél drawdown measurements and Theis
recovery method will be applied to water-level recovery measurements.

c:\basinwells_associates_031711\2014_projects\wilson_engineers\mobile_elementary_school_well\proposal\basinwells_wilson_engineers_mobile_elem
entary_school_well_permit_bid_cm_scope_fee_prop_122314.docx\12/23/2014\bs



Proposal to Provide Permitting, Technical Specifications, Bid Support, Borehole Testing and Analysis,
Construction Management, and Testing Services for a New Mobile Elementary School Water Well, Wilson
Engineers, Mobile, Arizona.

December 23, 2014
Page 3 of 4

Final Acceptance. BasinWells will provide inspection of a video survey and prepare a video survey log to
document the content of the video. The video survey of the well will verify construction and document the
condition of the well at the time of construction.

PHASE 9. WELL COMPLETION REPORT

The Final Well Construction Report will include clear descriptions of the well drilling and installation process, as
well as basic data such as pipe tallies, grout records, the lithologic log, and video log. The report format utilized
by BasinWells will provide comprehensive documentation of the well installation. The report will also include
recommendations of yield rate and pump setting, and detailed-record drawing of the new replacement well.
Aquifer test analyses will also be presented.

ASSUMPTIONS
(1) BasinWells professional services to be provided on a time-and-material basis.

(2) Wilson Engineers will administer all aspects of the well bidding process including advertisement
requirements, etc. except as described in Phase 4.

3) Contract administration for well drilling shall be performed by others.

4) Discharge of groundwater shall be contained on site not requiring an ADEQ DeMinimis Discharge Permit.

(

(

(5) New Source Approval constituents laboratory analyses shall be performed by others.

(6) BasinWells to provide pH/conductivity meter, water level sounder, and turbidity meter, as required.
(

7) Any out-of-scope work conducted at the direction of Wilson Engineers shall be administered and initiated by
the execution of a change order applying professional labor and expense rates shown in Exhibit B.

SCHEDULE
BasinWells Associates can commence performing these services at the direction of Wilson Engineers.
DELIVERABLE ‘

Deliverable will include three copies of well completion report. Up-to-date progress reports will be provided via
electronic mail to Wilson Engineers and Mobile Elementary School personnel as required.

FEE ESTIMATE

BasinWells Associates will perform the proposed scope of work on a time and material basis as tabulated in
Exhibit A. Estimated, not-to-exceed fee is $27,213 and would only be exceeded by written approval of Wilson
Engineers.

c:\basinwells_associates_031711\2014_projects\wilson_engineers\mobile_elementary_school_well\proposal\basinwells_wilson_engineers_mobile_elem
entary_school_well_permit_bid_cm_scope_fee_prop_122314.docx\12/23/2014\bs



Proposal to Provide Permitting, Technical Specifications, Bid Support, Borehole Testing and Analysis,
Construction Management, and Testing Services for a New Mobile Elementary School Water Well, Wilson
Engineers, Mobile, Arizona.

December 23, 2014
Page 4 of 4

Thank you for the opportunity to provide these services. If you have any questions concerning the proposed
scope of work and fee estimate, please contact Buck Schmidt at (520) 749-8878.

Very truly yours,
BASINWELLS ASSOCIATES PLLC

is

EXHIBIT A - Estimated Fess Calculations
EXHIBIT B - Professional Rate and Equipment Fee Schedule

cc: Mike Bostic, R.G., BasinWells Associates PLLC

‘c:\basinwells_associates_031711\2014_projects\wilson_engineers\mobile_elementary_school_well\proposal\basinwells_wilson_engineers_mobile_elem
entary_school_well_permit_bid_cm_scope_fee_prop_122314.docx\12/23/2014\bs



sq\rT0z/Ez/eT\x20p pTECZT doid 9
§78doos™wo pig Huwad T ]am T jooyds” Alejuswaja apigow steauidua uosims|jamuiseq\|esodosd\|jamTjooyas T Alejuawa|a " a]igow\saauiBua” uos)im\s1aa[oid pTOZ\TTLTED SS1RID0SSE S|jamuISeq\:d

$334 408Vl

PT0T ‘€C 49quisdag
"BUOZLIY ‘3[IqOIN ‘S499UIBUT UOS|IAN ‘|19 J91BMN JOOYIS AJRIUDWD|T 3)IGON MBN B 10} SDIIAIDS
Sunsa) pue quawalSeuely uonoNIISUO) ‘sisAjeuy pue Sullsa] joyalog ‘yuoddns pig ‘suoiiediyidads [ea1uyda] ‘SuiliwIDd PINCLd
J7T1d S91BI00SSY S||ajnulseg
$394 pajewilsy

Vv Hqiyx3



. Exhibit B
Professional Rate and Equipment Fee Schedule for Wilson Engineers
BasinWells Associates PLLC
December 23, 2014

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

i:‘él’»‘

c:\basinwells_associates_031711\2014_projects\wilson_engineers\mobile_elementary_school_well\proposal\basinwells_wilson_engineers_mobile
_elementary_school_well_permit_bid_cm_scope_fee_prop_122314.docx\12/23/2014\bs



EXHIBIT C - MCESD APPROVAL TO CONSTRUCT FEE SCHEDULE



Water and Wastewater Treatment Program
Telephone: (602) 372-2861

Environmental Services Department

Water and Waste Management Division
1001 North Central Avenue, Suite 150 Faesimile: (602) 506-6925
Phoenix, AZ 85004 E-mail: WWM_TPP@mail.maricopa.gov

SUBMITTAL PACKAGE INSTRUCTIONS FOR APPROVAL TO CONSTRUCT
WATER OR WASTEWATER TREATMENT, RECLAIMED WATER OR REUSE FACILITIES

Approval certificates will not be issued until all fees are paid in full.

FEE SCHEDULE TABLE— APPROVAL TO CONSTRUCT
PROJECT COMPONENT TYPE AmounTt? PROJECT COMPONENT TYPE Amount ?
Treatment Plant: < 0.1 million gallons/day (mgd) $ 1000.00 | Metering Station (Note 4) $150.00
Treatment Plant: 0.1 to 1 mgd $ 1500.00 | Water Quality Monitoring Station $150.00
Treatment Plant: > 1 1r;gdﬁ B $3000.00 | Blending System $150.00
Reuse Facility/System $ 250.00 Odor Control System $150.00
Recharge/Recovery Facility/System ) $ 250.00 § Disinfection System © $150.00
Point-of-Use Treatment System $1000.00 | Individusl Water Pipeline $:600.00«
Intake/Tumout/Diversion/Outfall Structure $150.00 ]| Individual Sewer Pipeline ’ $ 500.00 ’
Effluent Disposal System $ 1000.00 | Individual Reuse Pi}y;gl‘ingm - $600.00
Individual Drinking Water Source Well (Note 3). $7675.00 | Water Distribution System (Note 4) Note 6
Individual Reclaimed Water Recharge/Recovery Well $ 250.00  Gravity Sewer Collection System (Note 4) Note 7
;gmlraggTank/I{eservmr/gasm (Note 4) 7 5.00 | Force Main Sewer System (Noie 4) B Note 8
* } Booster Pump Station (Note 4) $ 675.00 Experiméﬂal Project (Note 5) $ 300.00
Lift Pump Station (Note 4) $ 600.00 | Other Component (Note 5) $ 150.00
Pressure Reducing Valve Station (Note 4) $ 675.00 T @
Transfer Valve Station (Note 4) $ 675.00 | Base Plan Review Billin g Rate (Note 2) $ 130.00/hr
NOTES:

1) The fecs listed in this table are the base fee (i. e. the initial or flat fee) for a standard review. An expedited review doubles the flat, initial
and maximum fee amounts. A phased review also doubles the flat, initial and maximum fee amounts. A design/build review also
doubles the flat, initial and maximum fee amounts.

2) Many of the fees listed in this table are the initial fee for the review. The project’s total fee may be more than the initial fee if the number
of man hours expended on the project exceeds the initial fee amount. Man hours are billed at the base plan review billing rate modified
by the applicable expedited, phased and design/build multipliers up to a maximum plan review billing rate of $260.00/Hour. An invoice
will be issued for any additional fees as they become due. Please consult the Maricopa County Environmental Health Code to determine
the maximum fee amount that may be billed for a particular component type.

3) This type of project is normally submitted to the MCESD’s Subdivision, Infrastructure and Planning Program for approval unless the
well requites treatment, Please contact the Water and Wastewater Treatment Program before submitting this type of project.

4) This type of project is normally submitted to the MCESD's Subdivision, Infrastructure and Planning Program for approval. Please
contact the Water and Wastewater Treatment Program before submitting this type of project.

5) Please contact the Water and Wastewater Treatment Program before submitting this type of project.

6) Feeamount is $600.00 for 0 — 150 connections plus $600.00 for every 150 additional connections.

7) Pee amount is $500.00 for 0 — 50 connections plus $500.00 for every 250 additional connections.

8) Feeamount is $800.00 for 0 - 50 connections plus $500.00 for every 250 additional connections.

C) APPLICATION FORM INSTRUCTIONS
Each section of the application form should be filled out per the following instructions:

1. [ ] PROJECT INFORMATION:

a) REVIEW TyrL — Check the box indicating if this project requires an Approval To Construct review or if a certificate
renewal (time extension) for an existing project is being requested.

b) REVIEW MODIFIERS —~ Check the box(es) indicating if this project requires an expedited, phased and/or design/build
review.

¢) PROJECT CLASS — Check the appropriate box identifying the applicable project class.

d) PROJECT NAME — The project name must be the same as that appearing on the documentation submitted for the
project review,

Form: ATC Application Packet 2012-R0O1 Page 2 of 5 Approval To Construct Instructions




SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

T T ————— o ]
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Mohave Valley Elementary
BRG Project Number:  080416101-1013-021BRG Mohave County
Project Description: Replace two HVAC units
Engineer: BESP (Sameer Pandey 602-377-2679)
Contractor: TBD
Board approval: 12/10/2014
Supplemental award: 42,039
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 18,900
Contingency (1) $ 4,000
Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ 5,000
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ 2,500
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ 7,500
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 30,400
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 30,400
Total Project Cost;: $ 30,400

(® Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Mohave Valley ESD 021BRG Vertical Sheet xla



BESP, LLC TP

219 S. William Dr. # 137 B““d'ﬂg/(\
Gilbert, AZ 85233 SNW
Tel: {(602) 377-2679 Fax: (480) 629-5645 l
sameerpandey@besp.us Pm der
www.besp.us

January 12, 2015 -

David Berard

Facilities Manager

Mohave Valley Elementary School District
8450 South Olive

Mohave Valley, Arizona 86440

Ref: Proj. # 080416101-1013-021BRG- HVAC system at Mohave Elementary Classroom Bldg # 15 (SFB # 1013)

Dear Mr. Berard,

Please find attached mechanical design drawing and cost estimate to replace HVAC system at Mohave Elementary
Classroom Building # 15. It shall be noted that per our assessment, the classroom building is served by two (2) Marvair wall
mounted units with a cooling capacity of three & half (3.5) tonnage each. The units are fifteen (15) years old, and one of the
units (northern) has completely failed. The other remaining unit is inadequate to satisfy the classroom cooling load, and is
also showing signs of failure.

As indicated in the attached mechanical drawing, our recommendation is to replace existing two (2) wall mounted units with
one (1) 5-Ton packaged heat pump unit. New supply and return duct will feed the unit into the classroom space. We are
recommending to add a door grill at the existing interior door for return air circulation. We have also noted in the drawing
for the contractor to provide missing ceiling diffusers in the classroom.

We estimate $18,900 as an installation cost to replace the HVAC system at Mohave Elementary Classroom Building. Please
refer Page 2 of this document for a detailed estimate.

BESP’s fee to provide construction administration service for this project is $2,500. BESP’s scope includes:

1. Prepare and review bid documents
2. Submittal review
3. Site Visit/Inspection/Close-Out

Please let us know if you have any questions or need clarifications.

Sincerely,

Sameer R Pandey PE (Mech), CEM, LEED

Principal Engineer, BESP

Attachment:

1) Mechanical Drawing- Mohave Elementary Classroom Building

1|Page



O

Bulldmg/\
nergy Soirtiohs
Provider_.__l

COST-ESTIMATE BREAKDOWN

Item Description Material Cost | Labor Hours
Demo two (2) wall mounted Marvair units $500 12
Provide/lnstall one (1) Trane heat pump unit - 5 Ton $3,780 30
Provide/lnstall 4" concrete pad - 5'x6' $350 Included
Provide/Install new supply & return ductwork $2,600 Included
Provide/lnstall new ceiling diffusers $150 6
Provide/lnstall one (1) door grill $220 Included
Connect new heat pump to T-Stat $200 Included
Electrical connections/Disconnect $1,000 Included
Miscellaneous sealing/touch-up $200 4
Meeting & Coordination 8
Sub Total $9,000 60

Labor Cost at $60/hr. $3,600

Sub Total Cost- Material & Labor $12,600

Add 15% & 10% overhead/profit $3,150

Sub Total $15,750

Add 20% contingency $3,150

Grand Total- Cost Estimate $18,900

2|Pagé



-0

ON EIIHS

BN

SIN .
@ dviA NOILYOOT 103rodd @ Nv'id LS "W3T13 ASTIVA SAVHON

SNOISAR

dis 4o popsg

Ny g weyg

as3a g vbseg

Q30N SY  Bf0g

SIOZ-1H-NVF 3ivg

%3
-4

g

L03r0ud
NSRRI

TINVN BT

T MBS

NV 1d TvOINVHOIW 1-W
133HS ¥Y3A0D 10

X3AN!

133HS Y3A0D
ONITNEG AHdVY3IHL TYOISAHd
0¥¥98 VNOZIYY ATTTVA SAVHOW
JOOHOS AYVLINIWITI AFTIVA 2AVHON,

S3AvdOdN OVAH
ONIQ1ING AHAVY3HL TVOISAHd :9doog

EEr 0vP98 YNOZIHY AITIVA IAVHON
HEss a4 MOTIIM 6171
“ _lmwevv TOOHOS >N_<._.ZMS_M|_M>NJ|_<> JdAVHOW




L-IN = o
B0 = A1 THB
. NOLLD3S M3AN TVIOINVHO3N
DN LT3HS wan—)
|" __ I T = = =]
wwon
® @ Lu—
IV m NHOHS 1D WIV/'LND 0L 13S ¥3dMVD MY JQSLNO ONY 'SOUVND TVH 30W0Md 'L
—
e =@ dmv Ty | | s NOLG | INOBOYUAOMY
i N Bup < o5 | gooi-goz | O] 98 (99 oooz | wumooos |  mwar | oM
A
T T s I R B e B A [
o LKA 75 O SO0 — T, | WORIOTE | R | ALDVEVD AN | oy e | avm
; SN YU ¥ Y5 404 T 2 J0M0E
L % = TINGIHOS LINA dANd LV3H QIovHovd
ds538  #g ubag :.EO:@ Oed = 4L TS 200 vs oires(s) 00U
QAON SV #p%5 NVId HO07d TYOINVHOIW M3N O P
SIOT-1-NV® muva) NOILLO3S ONAA TYOINVHOIN @
. .
i ¥ " - N
m m m— \ /|H=u = = = . swdsagphopundseatos v le.ﬂ %«R:Buﬂuh “
e 1] Q1 400 1SR ME ¥ IVONOS 5/0W NRVARITD SNSH0 e
H 3 _ - \—wou %
|8 & % e
: —.IJ 4 BYi=KUN ORI M0 NG HIM XYNGICT G MEEN) »
WH B TV W 5 EIONDAA/ICHSIS STND Y 8 A0 O HUOVEINGD
2 OV I 1 »e ¢ WOUTIHO0 0 10k - 3t | @ ST °
m HM rooKSSYD ea@— s | ©
=20 VA | wa{ W WIS WININ L 18 TITIISN 3 TNV ‘SIVISIRENL 0L Do
m: O m . 3 o | XA K01 UOMLA) WIRITTY) 3 4 CHNGSS T TIIS IS
Q W W ma mu L +vsla) v | o SLYMNOISI OV “HOC 'SIRLS DA VAT SOH TRILIFT TN o
T <~ T : . omano | 10 SIONVARLII ANY HOJ VATV M 530 ARION
W m W:.Aa xm HOU G o | i gdﬂhgggnﬁqﬂnéh-
ol m m..: T vt 100 | aag 00 R 7Y ATV SHVHOVA ALK 01 X0 0 3OS TORATT
=~ i > 31 awE OR0-0895 MDD ~ MO INKD) | © FION WO B
i 2 .Es@ TOREGWoIVHoaN @ e v Y - e o | 4
g NYd Ol I W A0 N 4 TRXIHOS 0N SORLLS IR O VAW N ARTH ®
T T w_.: 5!25@. M WHLIAEIND 20 01 1V 1-RYTI NHONGIOH, NV A0 KIV3
< |NZ 0 54 A A e | - 5,06 1 ROUDED NI 18 STIGAS VLY TS HETEND ©
OI— Avisi A Al ML ML HDR X080 SHIOH QW TINTHOS HOGMOMD) VIGO0
2] Z> 3 B0 HR WEOKH
m VM Q st QN39O WOINVHOIN ) oY STORL ADRD T KR NN BRSSO D ¢
91®2n —p //U —_ SAION NOIIONGA
m mm muﬁs _Mdiu MOVTHISH N3 LLIVISHY SIWA Z M0N0 IR OF HOLIIAD) @
©9 y OGSV D) 4 AUPD QL EUIENS SHAVS)
0 SRAXER, W AVROMOON ONY LIORYY B 35V SIS ANY 40 3i0N DR o
~ & 24 i v B S S T B o
X %Y ‘SIS0 HD (180 SATLASY ASOA
O IVIVG Y IVLI0 0N  FONGA] UL STVIINED WONYHIN o
EERSLTE pLE
1 f | F T Sl (0 N MO 4 01 LR T 40 HOLTON
A L 1000 1510 TS W it A Ty o o (D) Eﬂigidsgiiab”hﬁ-
4] 54 O MUV 1A J-NIS TIROREY SN O A0 ki =
BUN [} - 4] ﬁ._i-u.ﬁgﬂgiﬁ.e?ﬂge ﬂ-ﬂsuanﬁd!nﬂ“m“a—hﬂ“.iﬂﬂhﬂ:ﬁ!ig
BN £ oMsn e . AR Baneoe
X wve & va EEFBEER:-!«?E::E@ i D S SRS (G R S 28 TR BRI O
S!gﬂrg{-«w(mgﬁﬁuﬂw Bgﬁﬂeﬁﬂ—sﬁﬁ“—«ﬂﬂ-
k! & ws = 54l N WS 5Y ORI ¥/4 ¥ ¥/5 acn Tt v Jomosa (1) s 0 e 0 s VS
] m 2 i 3OS0 01 KV T2 TIS QLA QI dvii-d B THS LTI 1300 N HITOR ™
= by o s s KU 000 0 L3 CEDS T Y it DOV R (D
= o — = _|_||\\ _IJM. N — <}~<\m§u§!§:!§h.a=!sﬁ@ g&ﬂﬁﬁ%@né“ﬁnﬁ w
2 ; J——— ST——— R
0 = = — _I. _...ﬂu:.l._r._ Eegﬁiﬁﬁﬂaﬂnﬂﬂ V14 BIN INIRINGS OMLIZD B0 SHYIN ONY HTIVISN D SOORL
2 = g [ ) A LT L ENINE A R D) | | et BB Rt S8
= - o V5 o ~ el TV 0L TIVA L SINBOA0 5960 V/0 T V/S 03 WINWOIN G100 T ATVNA TAVHON HUM KNS Of Xor AN T ©
—4 pd SESIG TIONGH T 0L LA A0 TIK Lvidi 282
) psm A L zo_._.uwmv O] IO WS VRN
mm Do | amamsm on30 338 SALON D NVid S310N_ NOLLONUISNOD
° = NOLLO3S @
sm_ Mv Ezmav Iﬂd@@
mm . .
M v
g

-



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item Vil.c.

Subject: VIi. Building Renewal Grant Requests
c. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
Building Renewal Grant Requests (construction awards)

Benson Unified «

Bullhead City Elementary (2 requests)
Cave Creek Unified

Colorado River Union

Mayer Unified

Saddle Mountain Unified (3 requests)
Scottsdale Unified (2 requests)

Tuba City Unified

Willcox Unified

Background — Benson Unified (Benson HS — replace evaporative coolers with A/C
system)

Benson Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request to replace the evaporative
coolers in the gymnasium Building 1004 at Benson High School.

Benson Unified, located 60 miles southeast of Tucson, has three schools. Benson High School
is comprised of eighteen buildings constructed between 1948 and 2010, totaling 116,105 square
feet. Building 1004 was built in 1990, totaling 26,680 square feet. This school is at an elevation
of 3,600 feet.

SFB staff visited the site and found the gymnasium to be unevenly conditioned throughout, with
a humidity of 78 percent, and equipment unable to maintain the 68-82 degree temperature as
required by R-7-6-213. The walls opposite of the evaporative discharge vents had water
condensing on them. The district states that during the rainy season the gym floor buckles. The
existing evaporative cooling was installed in 1990, has outlived its useful life, and needs to be
replaced.

The district received a proposal from a mechanical engineer to make the required replacements.
The proposal for the design/construction administration is $22,500 and the estimated
construction cost is $140,000.

Criteria for Eligibility

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.



Staff Recommendation - Benson Unified (Benson HS — replace evaporative coolers with A/C
system)

Staff recommends that Benson Unified be awarded $172,500 in Building Renewal Grant funding
to replace the evaporative coolers in the gymnasium Building 1004 at Benson High School. This
includes $10,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Bullhead City Elementary (Bullhead City JHS — roof repairs)
Bullhead City Elementary has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for roof repairs on
Building 1002 at Bullhead Junior High School.

Bullhead City Elementary, located 200 miles northwest of Phoenix along the Colorado River,
has seven schools. Bullhead City Junior High School is comprised of five buildings constructed
between 1972 and 1988, totaling 75,468 square feet. Building 1002 was built in 1984, totaling
9,042 square feet.

Staff visited the school site, inspected the roof and found it in need of repairs. The roof warranty
had expired.

The district received a proposal for construction administration, and structural analysis in the
amount of $2,000 and a construction estimate, inclusive of a ten year warranty, in the amount of
$45,500.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Bullhead City Elementary (Bullhead City JHS — roof repairs)

Staff recommends that Bullhead City Elementary be awarded $52,000 in Building Renewal
Grant funding for roof restoration on Building 1002 at Bullhead City Junior High School. This
includes $4,500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Bullhead City Elementary (Desert Valley ES - roof repairs)
Bullhead City Elementary has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for roof repairs on
classroom Building 1001 at Desert Valley Elementary School.

Bullhead City Elementary, located 200 miles northwest of Phoenix along the Colorado River, is
comprised of seven schools. Desert Valley Elementary School has six buildings constructed

between 1979 and 1985, totaling 74,312 square feet. Building 1001 was built in 1 979, totaling
32,500 square feet.

Staff visited the school site, inspected the roof and found it in need of repairs. The roof warranty
has expired.

The district received a proposal for construction administration, and structural analysis in the

amount of $2,000 and a construction estimate, inclusive of a ten year warranty, in the amount of
$22,500.



Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Bullhead City Elementary (Desert Valley ES — roof repairs)

Staff recommends that Bullhead City Elementary be awarded $28,000 in Building Renewal
Grant funding for roof repairs on Building 1001 at Desert Valley Elementary School. This
includes $3,500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Cave Creek Unified (Desert Arroyo MS — replace fire alarm control panel)
Cave Creek Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the replacement of the
fire alarm control panel at Desert Arroyo Middle School.

Cave Creek Unified, located twenty miles north of downtown Phoenix, has nine schools. Desert
Arroyo Middle School is comprised of nineteen buildings constructed between 1989 and 2000,
totaling 110,260 square feet.

SFB staff visited the site and found the school under fire watch. The district has a record of
many non-resettable issues and recent repairs to the fire system. At present, the panel is dead
and the internal fault does not allow the panel to dial out for test.

The district received a proposal for the replacement of the fire alarm control panel (FACP) in the
amount of $3,467.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Cave Creek Unified (Desert Arroyo MS — replace fire alarm control
panel)

Staff recommends that Cave Creek Unified be awarded $4,467 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for replacement of the fire alarm control panel at Desert Arroyo Middle School. This
includes $1,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Colorado River Union (Mohave HS — replace water heater)
Colorado River Union has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request to replace a failed water
heater and circulating pump in Building 1006 at Mohave High School.

Colorado River Union, located 220 miles northwest of Phoenix along the Colorado River, has
two schools. Mohave High School is comprised of thirteen buildings constructed between 1969

and 2007, totaling 250,103 square feet. Building 1006 was built in 1972, totaling 21,702 square
feet.

The district received a proposal to replace the 50-gallon electric water heater and circulating
pump in the amount of $1,988.



Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Colorado River Union (Mohave HS — replace water heater)

Staff recommends that Colorado River Union be awarded $2,488 in Building Renewal Grant
funding to replace the water heater in Building 1006 at Mohave High School. This includes $500
in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Mayer Unified (Mayer ES — repair HVAC unit)
Mayer Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request to repair a 4-ton HVAC unit on
in Building 1007 at Mayer Elementary School.

Mayer Unified, located 73 miles north of Phoenix, has two schools. Mayer Elementary School is
comprised of six buildings constructed between 1960 and 2005, totaling 64,514 square feet.
Building 1007 was built 1964, totaling 25,118 square feet.

The district received proposals for the repair in the amount of $2,055.
Criteria for Eligibility

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Mayer Unified ( Mayer ES — repair HVAC unit)

Staff recommends that Mayer Unified be awarded $2,555 in Building Renewal Grant funding for
repair of the HVAC unit on the computer classroom in Building 1007 at Mayer Elementary
School. This includes $500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Saddle Mountain Unified (Tonopah HS - replace HVAC condensing unit)
Request 1 of 3

Saddle Mountain Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the repair of a
HVAC unit in Building 1008 at Tonopah High School.

Saddle Mountain Unified, located 52 miles west of downtown Phoenix, has four schools.
Tonopah High School is comprised of nine buildings constructed between 1982 and 20086,
totaling 144,571 square feet. Building 1008 was built in 2008, totaling 35,014 square feet.

The district received a proposal for replacement of the condensing unit in the amount of $3,665.

Criteria for Eligibility

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.



Staff Recommendation — Saddle Mountain Unified (Tonopah HS — replace HVAC condensing
unit)

Staff recommends that Saddle Mountain Unified be awarded $4,165 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for replacement of a HVAC condensing unit in Building 1008 at Tonopah High School.
This includes $500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Saddle Mountain Unified (Tonopah HS — repair HVAC unit) Request 2 of 3
Saddle Mountain Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the repair of a
HVAC unit in Building 1005 at Tonopah High School.

Saddle Mountain Unified, located 52 miles west of downtown Phoenix, has four schools.
Tonopah High School is comprised of nine buildings constructed between 1982 and 2006,
totaling 144,571 square feet. Building 1005 was built in 2008, totaling 25,971 square feet.

- The district received a proposal in the amount of $3,218 for the repair.
Criteria for Eligibility

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Saddle Mountain Unified (Tonopah HS — repair HVAC unit)

Staff recommends that Saddle Mountain Unified be awarded $3,718 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for repair of a HVAC unit in Building 1005 at Tonopah High School. This includes $500
in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Saddle Mountain Unified (Tonopah HS - repair HVAC unit) Request 3 of 3
Saddle Mountain Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request to repair a HVAC unit
on cafeteria Building 1006 at Tonopah High School.

Saddle Mountain Unified, located 52 miles west of downtown Phoenix, has four schools.
Tonopah High School is comprised of nine buildings constructed between 1982 and 2006,
totaling 144,571 square feet. Building 1006 was built in 2006, totaling 40,063 square feet.

The district received a proposal for the repair in the amount of $3,218.
Criteria for Eligibility

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Saddle Mountain Unified (Tonopah HS — repair HVAC unit)

Staff recommends that Saddle Mountain Unified be awarded $3,718 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for repair of a HVAC unit in the cafeteria Building 1006 at Tonopah High School. This
includes $500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Scottsdale Unified (Cocopah MS - replace chiller power supply)
Scottsdale Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the replacement of a low
voltage power supply on the chiller that services all buildings at Cocopah Middle School.




Scottsdale Unified has 36 schools. Cocopah Middle School is comprised of twelve buildings
constructed between 1989 and 2012, totaling 117,604 square feet.

The district installed the chiller approximately 3 years ago and the warranty period has expired.
The district requested proposals for the replacement of the low voltage power supply; the lowest
was $1,596.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Scottsdale Unified (Cocopah MS - replace chiller power supply)

Staff recommends that Scottsdale Unified be awarded $2,000 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for the replacement of the low voltage power supply for the chiller that services all
buildings at Cocopah Middle School. This includes $404 in contingency that will only be used
with SFB staff approval.

Background — Scottsdale Unified (Pueblo ES - replace 70-ton chiller compressor)
Scottsdale Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the replacement of a 17
year old 70-ton chiller compressor on Building 1003 at Pueblo Elementary School.

Scottsdale Unified has 36 schools. Pueblo Elementary is comprised of eight buildings
constructed between 1971 and 2002, totaling 76,261 square feet. Building 1003 was built in
1971, totaling 9,109 square feet.

The district received proposals for two options: repairireplacement of the compressor for
$16,310 or total replacement of the chiller for $71,101. Staff recommends replacement of the
compressor. An additional core charge of $5,600 may be needed if the core is unusable.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Scottsdale Unified (Pueblo ES - replace 70-ton chiller compressor)
Staff recommends that Scottsdale Unified be awarded $23.910 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for the replacement of a 70-ton chiller compressor on Building 1003 at Pueblo

Elementary School. This includes $7,600 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval.

Background — Tuba City Unified (Tuba City HS —roof replacement)
Tuba City Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for replacement of the roof
on Building 1010 at Tuba City High School.

Tuba City Unified, located 220 miles north of Phoenix, has seven schools. Tuba City High
School is comprised of nine buildings constructed between 1973 and 2001, totaling 260,075
square feet. Building 1010 was built in 2001, totaling 75,000 square feet.



SFB staff visited the site and found the single ply roof has failed. The district procured an
architect to assess the roof condition and requested a proposal for the design/construction
administration/construction cost.

The architect provided a proposal for the design/construction administration for $13,810 and an
estimated construction cost of $414,906.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation - Tuba City Unified (Tuba City HS —roof replacement)

Staff recommends that Tuba City Unified be awarded $470,716 in Building Renewal Grant
funding to replace the roof on Building 1010 at Tuba City High School. This includes $42,000 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Willcox Unified (Willcox HS — replace fire alarm system)
Willcox Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the replacement of the
failed fire alarm system at Willcox High School.

Willcox Unified, located 85 miles east of Tucson, has three schools. Willcox High School is

comprised of twenty-one buildings constructed between 1955 and 2013, totaling 134,957
square feet.

SFB staff visited the site and found the school was under a fire watch. The district has a record
of many false alarms, non-resettable trouble indicators, ground faults, and numerous repairs.
The local fire department has the option to bill the district if false alarms continue. The fire
department is requesting a solution.

The district received a proposal for construction administration in the amount of $1,500 and an
estimated construction cost of $45,511.

Criteria for Eligibility

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Willcox Unified (Willcox HS — replace fire alarm system)

Staff recommends that Willcox Unified be awarded $51,511 in Building Renewal Grant funding
for replacement of the fire alarm system at Willcox High School. This includes $4,500 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.




Board Action Requested: [ ]information [X] action / described below

1.

10.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Benson Unified be awarded $172,500
in Building Renewal Grant funding to replace the evaporative coolers in the gymnasium
Building 1004 at Benson High School. This includes $10,000 in contingency that will only
be used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Bullhead City Elementary be awarded
$52,000 in Building Renewal Grant funding for roof restoration on Building 1002 at
Bullhead City Junior High School. This includes $4,500 in contingency that will only be
used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Bullhead City Elementary be awarded
$28,000 in Building Renewal Grant funding for roof repairs on Building 1001 at Desert
Valley Elementary School. This includes $3,500 in contingency that will only be used
with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Cave Creek Unified be awarded
$4,467 in Building Renewal Grant funding for replacement of the fire alarm control panel
at Desert Arroyo Middle School. This includes $1,000 in contingency that will only be
used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Colorado River Union be awarded
$2,488 in Building Renewal Grant funding to replace the water heater in Building 1006 at
Mohave High School. This includes $500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB
staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Mayer Unified be awarded $2,555 in
Building Renewal Grant funding for repair of the HVAC unit on the computer classroom
in Building 1007 at Mayer Elementary School. This includes $500 in contingency that will
only be used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Saddle Mountain Unified be awarded
$4,165 in Building Renewal Grant funding for replacement of a HVAC condensing unit in
Building 1008 at Tonopah High School. This includes $500 in contingency that will only
be used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Saddle Mountain Unified be awarded
$3,718 in Building Renewal Grant funding for repair of a HVAC unit in Building 1005 at
Tonopah High School. This includes $500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB
staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Saddle Mountain Unified be awarded
$3,718 in Building Renewal Grant funding for repair of a HVAC unit in the cafeteria
Building 1006 at Tonopah High School. This includes $500 in contingency that will only
be used with SFB staff approval.

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Scottsdale Unified be awarded $2,000
in Building Renewal Grant funding for the replacement of the low voltage power supply
for the chiller that services all buildings at Cocopah Middle School. This includes $404 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.



11. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Scottsdale Unified be awarded
$23,910 in Building Renewal Grant funding for the replacement of a 70-ton chiller
compressor on Building 1003 at Pueblo Elementary School. This includes $7,600 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

12. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Tuba City Unified be awarded
$470,716 in Building Renewal Grant funding to replace the roof on Building 1010 at

Tuba City High School. This includes $42,000 in contingency that will only be used with
SFB staff approval.

13. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Willcox Unified be awarded $51,511
in Building Renewal Grant funding for replacement of the fire alarm system at Willcox

High School. This includes $4,500 in contingency that will only be used with SFB staff
approval.

Attachments: Yes [ X ] No[ ]



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Benson Unified
Project Number: 020209201-1004-001BRG Cochise County
Project Description: Replace evaporative coolers with A/C system
Architect of Record: Building Energy Solutions Provider (602-377-2679)
Contractor: TBD
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved

Base Cost $ 140,000
Contingency (1) $ 10,000
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ 22,500
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ 22,500
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 172,500
District Share (Local Funds): $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 172,500

Total Project Cost: $ 172,500

(® Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Benson USD 001BRG@G Vertinal Rhaat viev



School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/19/2015 2:40:48 PM Application ID: 1757
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Benson Unified District
Superintendent: Micah Mortensen
Contact Person: Shawn McCartha

Contact Phone Number: 520-720-6739

Contact Email: smccartha@bensonsd.k12.az.us
School Site: Benson High School
Buildings: 1004 New Gym

Application Title: HVAC Upgrade at Benson High New Gymnasium

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

The new gymnasium at Benson High School built in 1990 is approximately 13,000 square feet with an
approximately twenty-five (25) feet high ceiling. The gymnasium space is currently being served by three
(3) Aspen Evaporative Coolers (side discharge) with a cooling capacity of approximately 10,000 cfm each,
and four (4) hanging reznor heaters with a heating capacity of 200 MBH output each. The coolers were
installed in 1990, and are twenty-five (25) years old. The coolers are directly fed into a space without
proper distribution of air through any ductwork/diffusers. The air is relieved through exhaust fan.

The district asked BESP to assess the heating/cooling system at the gymnasium. BESP noted a number of
deficiencies as listed below:

1.The existing cooling system has passed its useful life, and is inadequate to provide optimum to the space.
This can explain the frequent complaint of inadequate cooling/heating by the occupants.

2.The air from the coolers directly feed into the space without properly distributing air into the space.
3.The high humidity produced by the coolers results in cupping of the gymnasium wooden floor.

Based on BESP's evaluation, the district is requesting funds to replace existing coolers with air-conditioning

units to satisfy cooling load, and avoid wooden floor cupping.

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

1/19/2015 2:40:47 PM 1 Application ID: 1757



Building Renewal Grant Application

C Available Funding

I Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature Date

O

O
p ‘;“

1/19/2015 2:40:47 PM 2 Application ID: 1757



BESP, LLC

219 S. William Dr. # 137 V B““digg/\/;?

Gilbert, AZ 85233 nergy

Tel: (602) 377-2679 Fax: (480) 629-5645 vaider I
sameerpandey@besp.us
www.besp.us

January 19, 2015

Mr. Shawn MaCartha
Maintenance/Transportation Director
Benson Unified School District

360 S. Patagonia St.

Benson, AZ 85602

Ref: Assessment of Heating & Cooling System at Benson High School New Gymnasium Bldg. # 1004
Dear Mr. MaCartha,

Per district’s request, BESP assessed a heating/cooling system at Benson High Gymnasium on Monday,
November 10, 2014. It is noted that the new gymnasium built in 1990 is approximately 13,000 square feet with
around twenty-five (25) feet high ceiling. The gymnasium space is currently being served by three (3) Aspen
Evaporative Coolers (side discharge) with a cooling capacity of approximately 10,000 cfm each, and four (4)
hanging reznor heaters with a heating capacity of 200 MBH output each. The coolers were installed in 1990, and
are twenty-five (25) years old. The evaporative coolers are directly fed into a space without proper distribution of
air through any ductwork/diffusers. The air is relieved from the space through an exhaust fan.

As listed below, BESP noted a number of deficiencies in heating & cooling system at the Benson High School
Gymnasium.

1. The existing cooling system has passed its useful life, and is inadequate to provide optimum cooling to
the space. This can explain the frequent complaint of inadequate cooling by the occupants.

2. The air from the coolers directly feed into the gymnasium space without proper distribution.

3. The high humidity produced by the coolers results in cupping of the gymnasium wooden floor.

Per our evaluation, cooling system in the gymnasium needs to be upgraded. In addition to it, a proper air
distribution system needs to be designed and installed to uniformly distribute air throughout the space.

To avoid high humidity and moisture in the gymnasium space, BESP recommends to replace existing coolers
with air-conditioning units. Per our evaluation, the gymnasium has a cooling load of approximately forty-five (45)
tonnage.

A design and installation cost to replace the evaporative coolers at Benson High New Gymnasium is estimated
as following:

‘1’|Page o



Scope: Replace existing evaporative coolers with air-conditioning units; add air distribution system with new
ductwork, diffusers and return grills.

1) Design Services Fee - $22,500

a. Design & Documentation
i. Design/Load calculation/Specifications for new air-conditioning units
ii. Design air distribution system
iii. Perform structural analysis by a certified structural engineer
iv. Produce construction documents
v. Prepare and review bid documents

b. Construction Administration

i. Submittal review

ii. Site visits/meeting

ii. Installation verification

iv. Close-out documentation review

2) Estimated construction/Installation Cost - $140,000

Please let us know if you have any questions or need clarifications,

Sincerely,

Sameer R Pandey PE (Mech), CEM, LEED
Principal Engineer, BESP

Attachment:

1.Existing Layout-Benson High New Gym

zlpwage' I



SIX3J~ | S3IAVYOLN OVAH _. _Ill
1SIX3 v*% G00L-94S WAD 2 ¥001-94S WAD :3doos E h@ﬂ En_

a10z81-Nvr w0 | VNOZIMY - NOSN3g A /\n————w——- ‘

6 # 101M1S1a dsn Zszmm_ 1103P0Yd
WAUISIS DAY

"IN/ LSIXT . | 0-021 | E o
B o iy
N |
VM 0
- >._um__mAu A I |
>.m_mm w4 -Ha _,fm\,

==
oS
Q-

3 Jang =
m o 1503 7
£ : $00LE4S
WAD
1 e WOUIRKOD — N3
— AYddINS ONMED "1SI3
Soa | 41 s
VM @ | : = /
Addeg——
1803 | NY4 ammmmm \
.,
55
4 1 39 (3 : , YALVIH
. svo (3)




SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

L M
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency

_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Bullhead City Elementary
BRG Project Number:  080415130-1002-016BRG Mohave County
Project Description: Roof repairs
Architect of Record: Ludwig Engineering (928-768-1857)
Contractor: Progressive Roofing (520-399-8358)
Board Approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved

Base Cost $ 45,500
Contingency (1) $ 4,500
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ 2,000
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ 2,000
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 52,000
District Share (Local Funds): $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 52,000

Total Project Cost: $ 52,000

@ Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501

FAX: (602) 542-6529 Bullhead Citv F]N N1ARR \Jarinal Oloans im




School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT
SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

O

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 10/23/2014 3:40:01 PM Application ID: 1623
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Bullhead City Elementary District
Superintendent: Riley Frie

Cornitact Persari: John Wawrzynek

Contact Phone Number:  928-444-7529

Contact Email: jwawrzynek@bullheadschools.com
School Site: Bulihead City Jr High School
Buildings: &

Application Title: Roofing Repairs

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

[During the monsoon season we had numerous roof leaks. Repairs or replacement is badly needed. |

Project Category: Roofing

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding ‘
l Amount of Local funds planned for this project - $0.00 |

~ Please outline any associated inSurance coverage.

[N/A

Liaison: B,reuem gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139
| Q/f» G\ {

Superintendent I'Iﬂt Name
/ ¢+

lo [H"l‘c

Superintendent Signature Date

C

10/23/2014 3:40:01 PM 1 ApplicationID: 1623



O

"

California

Arizona

109 E. 3rd St.

Ph. 909-884-8217
Fax 909-889-0153
Toll Free 800-879-1282
www.ludwlgeng.com

INC.

‘ ASSOCIATES,

Civil Engineering  Surveying » Planning

Client:

BULLHEAD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT #15

ATTN JOHN WAWRZYNEK AND DAVID KENNON
1062 HANCOCK, BULLHEAD CITY, AZ 86442

928-758-3961

Phone Fax

Description of Work Ordered With Legal Description of Property:
BULLHEAD CITY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL:

San Bernardino, CA 92410

15252 Seneca Rd.
Victorville, CA 92392
Ph. 760-951-7676
Fax 760-241-0573

58390 Highway 95, Ste. B 2126 McCulloch Blvd,, 5te. 8
Fort Mohave, AZ 86426 Lake Havasu Clty, AZ 86403
Ph. 928-768-1857 Ph. 928-680-6060

Fax 928-768-7086 Fax 92B-854-6530

Engineering Contract & Arizona
Preliminary Twenty-Day Lien Notice

Date Order Recd: 09/26/14
Job No. BU-0306.AZ

1) ASSESS AND COMMUNICATE WITH ROOFING CONTRACTORS TO DETERMINE CORRECTION NEEDED.

Note: The above represents the scope of work to be performed. If any of the information shown herein is not in accordance with your instructions, please advise us
immediately in order to avoid possible errors or misunderstanding. Schedule A — Standard Provisions of Agreement attached is part of this contract.

Property Owner & Address:

BHC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL#15, 1062 HANCOCK ROAD, BULLHEAD CITY, AZ 86442

Lender & Address:

Person/Entity Ordering Work: DAVID KENNON

Charges:  FIXED FEE $2.000.00

CLIENT TO PAY ALL APPLICABLE FEES

Note to Property Owners:

If bills are not paid in full for the labor, professional services, materials,
machinery, fixtures, or tools furnished, or to be furnished, a Mechanic’s Lien
leading to the loss, through court foreclosure proceedings, of all or part of
your property being improved may be placed against the property. You may
wish to protect yourself against this consequence by either:

1. Requiring your contractor to furnish a Conditional Waiver and Release
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1008, Subsection D,
Paragraphs 1 and 3 signed by the person or firm giving you this notice before
you make payment to your contractor.

2. Requiring your contractor to furnish an Unconditional Waiver and .
Release pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1008, Subsection
D, Paragraphs 2 and 4 assigned by the person or firm giving you this notice
after you make payment to your contractor.

3. Using any other method or device that is appropriate under the

circumstances. Within 10 days of the receipt of this Preliminary

Notice the Owner or other interested party is required to furnish all
information necessary to correct any inaccuracies in the Notice pursuant to
Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1003, Subsection 1 or lose as a defense
any inaccuracy of that information. Within ten days of the receipt of this
Preliminary Twenty Day Notice if any payment bond has been recorded in
compliance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1003, the Owner must
provide a copy of the payment bond including the name and address of the
surety company and bonding agent providing the payment bond to the person
who has given the preliminary Twenty Day Notice, in the event that the
owner or other interested party fails to provide the information within that
ten-day period, the claimant shall retain lien rights to the extent precluded or
prejudiced from asserting a claim against the bond as a result of not timely
receiving the bond information.

The above represents the scope of work to be performed. If any of the information shown hereon is not in accordance with your instructions, please advise us immediately in order to avoid

possible errors or misunderstanding.

Signature of Ludwig Engineering Associates, Inc. Representative

Signature of Authorizing Person

MEHDI AZARMI
Printed Name of Ludwig Engineering Associates, Inc. Printed Name of Authoring Person
Representative
\ PROJECT MANAGER 09/26/14
Title Date Signed Title Date Signed
c:\word\accounting\az fixed fee assoc wo 7-31-13.doc Page 10f 3



. TR PRoGRESSIVE ROOFING 5.

Date: January 26, 2015

To: Bullhead City Elementary School District
1004 Hancock Road
Bullhead City, AZ 86442

Location: Bullhead City Junior High - "700" bidg (12,207 sf including walls)
Restore roof and provide 10 NDL (extendable to 15 years)

Budget: $45,500.00

SOW: Clean, prepare and pressure wash roof surface

Repair and detail all cuts, penetrations, curbs and defects with APOC 264
Install a basesheet under HVAC unit prior to coatings being applied
Apply base coat APOC 300 emuision with embedded fabric in waterways
Apply base coat APOC 300 emulsion at rate of 4 gal per 100 sf

Embed polyester fabric in base coat

Apply saturation coat of white APOC 252 at rate of 1.5 gal per 100 sf
Apply weather coat of white APOC 252 at rate of 1.5 gal per 100 sf

Note: Budget amounts include taxes, warranty fees, mileage, bonds and per diem.
The budget does not allow for repair of defects revealed during the work process.
C Budget amounts do not allow for engineering costs if required.
J



Bullhead City Jr. Hi Page 1 of 1

Bullhead City Jr. Hi

Don Russell [Don.Russell@progressiveus.com]
Sent: Monday, January 26, 2015 10:24 AM
To: David Kennon

David,
I went back and calculated the dimensions. Here is the breakdown for the junior high:

Main roof (145’ x 60’) 8,700 sf
Adjacent roofs (total of 161" x 12’) 1,932 sf
Base flashing {walls 838’ x 1.5’} 1,257 sf

Total is 11,889 sf (118.89 sqs)
The curbs for the HVAC, etc make up the 3.77 sqgs difference.
Please check my work to make sure | didn’t miss figure my dimensions. Thanks for the help.

Don

Don Russell
PROGRESSIVE ROOFING

520-399-8358 (direct line)
520-744-3770 (fax)

520-979-2081 (cell)

4222 W Jeremy Pl Tucson, AZ 85741
don.russell@progressiveus.com

This email, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s), and may contain
information that is confidential or legally protected. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure,
copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this information or any attachments is prohibited and may
be unlawful. If you have received this electronic transmission in error, please reply immediately to the
sender by return e-mail that you have received the message in error and delete it along with any
attachments. GAFMC makes no warranty that this e-mail is error or virus free.

https://webmail.azsfb.gov/owa/?ae=Item&t=IPM.Note&id=RgAAAACaSizK7QTBRLTg... 1/26/2015



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

- e ————— e e ]
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Bullhead City Elementary
BRG Project Number:  080415105-1001-017BRG Mohave County
Project Description: Roof repairs
Architect of Record: Ludwig Engineering (928-768-1857)
Contractor: Progressive Roofing (520-399-8358)
Board Approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost $ 22,500
Contingency (1) $ 3,500

Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ 2,000
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ .2,000
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 28,000
District Share (Local Funds): $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 28,000

Total Project Cost: $ 28,000

(® Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Bullhead City ESD 017BRG Vertical Sheat vie




School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 10/23/2014 3:42:23 PM Application ID: 1624
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Bullhead City Elementary District
Superintendent: Riley Frie
Contact Person: John Wawrzynek

Contact Phone Number: 928-444-7529

Contact Email: jwawrzynek@bullheadschools.com
School Site: Desert Valley Elementary
Buildings: 1001 A1000

Application Title: Roofing Repairs

\ Description of Problem
Ci Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

[During the monsoon season we had numerous roof leaks. Repairs or replacement is badly needed. |

Project Category: Roofing

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 l

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

{N/A

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature Date

"
: N
§
;‘;

10/23/2014 3:42:23 PM 1 Application ID: 1624



California

Arizona

109 E. 3rd St.

Ph. 909-884-8217
Fax 909-8895-0153
Toli Free 800-879-1282
www.ludwigeng.com

[\ ASSOCIATES, INC.

Civil Engineering «Surveying « Planning

Client:

BULLHEAD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT #15

ATTN JOHN WAWRZYNEK AND DAVID KENNON
1062 HANCOCK, BULLHEAD CITY, AZ 86442

928-758-3861

Phone Fax

Description of Work Ordered With Legal Description of Property:
BULLHEAD CITY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL:

San Bernardino, CA 92410

15252 Seneca Rd.
Victorvilie, CA 92392
Ph. 760-951-7676
Fax 760-241-0573

5890 Highway 95, Ste. B 2126 McCulloch Blvd., Ste. 8
Fort Mohave, AZ 86426 Lake Havasu City, AZ 86403
Ph. 928-768-1857 Ph. 928-680-6060

Fax 928-768-7086 Fax 928-854-6530

Engineering Contract & Arizona
Preliminary Twentv-Day Lien Notice

Date Order Recd: 09/26/14
Job No. BU-0306.AZ

1) ASSESS AND COMMUNICATE WITH ROOFING CONTRACTORS TO DETERMINE CORRECTION NEEDED.

Note: The above represents the scope of work to be performed. If any of the information shown herein is not in accordance with your instructions, please advise us
immediately in order to avoid possible errors or misunderstanding. Schedule A ~ Standard Provisions of Agreement attached is part of this contract.

Property Owner & Address:

BHC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL#15, 1062 HANCOCK ROAD, BULLHEAD CITY, AZ 86442

Lender & Address:

Person/Entity Ordering Work: DAVID KENNON

CLIENT TO PAY ALL APPLICABLE FEES

Note to Property Owners:

If bills are not paid in full for the labor, professional services, materials,
machinery, fixtures, or tools furnished, or to be furnished, a Mechanic’s Lien
leading to the loss, through court foreclosure proceedings, of all or part of
your property being improved may be placed against the property. You may
wish to protect yourself against this consequence by either:

1. Requiring your contractor to furnish a Conditional Waiver and Release
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1008, Subsection D,
Paragraphs 1 and 3 signed by the person or firm giving you this notice before
you make payment to your contractor.

2. Requiring your contractor to furnish an Unconditional Waiver and
Release pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1008, Subsection
D, Paragraphs 2 and 4 assigned by the person or firm giving you this notice
after you make payment to your contractor.

3. Using any other method or device that is appropriate under the

circumstances. Within 10 days of the receipt of this Preliminary

Notice the Owner or other interested party is required to furnish all
information necessary to correct any inaccuracies in the Notice pursuant to
Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1003, Subsection 1 or lose as a defense
any inaccuracy of that information. Within ten days of the receipt of this
Preliminary Twenty Day Notice if any payment bond has been recorded in
compliance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1003, the Owner must
provide a copy of the payment bond including the name and address of the
surety company and bonding agent providing the payment bond to the person
who has given the preliminary Twenty Day Notice, in the event that the
owner or other interested party fails to provide the information within that
ten-day period, the claimant shall retain lien rights to the extent precluded or
prejudiced from asserting a claim against the bond as a result of not timely
receiving the bond information.

The above represents the scope of work to be performed. If any of the information shown hereon is not in accordance with your instructions, please advise us immediately in order to avoid

passible errors or misunderstanding.

Signature of Ludwig Engineering Associates, Inc. Representative

Signature of Authorizing Person

MEHDI AZARMI
Printed Name of Ludwig Engineering Associates, Inc. Printed Name of Authoring Person
. Representative
PROJECT MANAGER 09/26/14
~ Title Date Signed Title Date Signed

c:\word\accounting\az fixed fee assoc wo 7-31-13.doc

Page 10f 3



. PR PROGRESSIVE ROOFING 5.

Date: January 26, 2015

To: Bullhead City Elementary School District
1004 Hancock Road
Bullhead City, AZ 86442

Location: Desert Valley Elementary - Boiler room (1,162 sf including walls)
Restore roof and provide 10 year NDL (extendable to 15 years)

Budget: $8,000.00

SOW: Clean, prepare and pressure wash roof surface

Repair and detail all cuts, penetrations, curbs and defects with APOC 264
Install a basesheet under HVAC unit prior to coatings being applied
Apply base coat APOC 300 emulsion with embedded fabric in waterways
Apply base coat APOC 300 emulsion at rate of 4 gal per 100 sf

Embed polyester fabric in base coat

Apply saturation coat of white APOC 252 at rate of 1.5 gal per 100 sf
Apply weather coat of white APOC 252 at rate of 1.5 gal per 100 sf

Location: Desert Valley Elementary - Kitchen and leaks over offices (4,400 sf including walls)
Clean, repair and coat
C Budget: $14,500.00
" SOW: Broom clean and remove debris

Power wash area to be coated

Repair and detail abnormalities, curbs, flashings and suspected areas that are
leaking using APOC 264

Set polyester fabric in APOC 300 in any valleys/waterways

Apply base coat of APOC 247 at a rate of 1.25 gal per 100 SF

Apply top coat of APOC 247 at a rate of 1.25 gal per 100 SF

Note: Budget amounts include taxes, warranty fees, mileage, bonds and per diem.
The budget does not allow for repair of defects revealed during the work process.
Budget amounts do not allow for engineering costs if required.



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

m
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Cave Creek Unified
BRG Project Number:  070293103-9999-007BRG Maricopa County
Project Description: Replace fire alarm control panel
Consultant: n/a
Contractor: FSEC (602-564-7770)
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 3,467
Contingency (1) $ 1,000
Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ -
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection 3 -
Total Additional Cost: $ -
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 4,467
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 4,467
Total Project Cost: $ 4,467

(® Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Cave Creek USD 007RR( Vertiral Qhaat vie




C

School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT
SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/22/2015 2:38:17 PM Application ID: 1785
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Cave Creek Unified District
Superintendent: Dr. Debbi Burdick
Contact Person: John Muir

Contact Phone Number: 480.575.2050

Contact Email: jmuir@ccusd93.org
School Site: Desert Arroyo Middle School
Buildings: 9999 School Wide

Application Title: FACP Replacement

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

The Fire Alarm Control Panel ("FACP") located at Desert Arroyo Middle School ("DAMS") has an internal fault
and does not work. The panel is dead and the internal fault does not allow the panel to dial out for test.
The panel is showing green (normal) while troubles appear on the screen. This is indication of an internal
ground which requires FACP replacement. The FACP not working puts the school into an emergency
situation since it threatens the preservation and protection of public property, public health, welfare and
safety.

Project Category: Special Systems

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

[none

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

1/26/2015 10:05:09 AM 1 Application ID: 1785



Fire Security Electronics
& Communications, Inc.

Proposal

2015 W, RuthraufF R, Suite 143 » Tucson, Arizona 85705 « Phone (520) 505-4171- FAX (520) 980043 Y10 ave Contract No. 13A-FIRE-0529

January 14, 2015
{w 17621 North 25th. Avenue * Phoenix, Arizona 85023 » Phone (602) 564-7770 » FAX (602) 564-7776

www.fsec.net  email: sales@fsec.net » ROCH 086767 L-67, 272085 L-16

ES FACP Replacement

Desert Arroyo MS FACP Replacement
Fire Security Electronics & Communications, Inc. proposes to furnish:
lea. FACP Replacement as per the material list on page 2 of this proposal. $3,287.65
Sales Tax (Total Materials times Retail Tax Rate $178.43

Total Purchase Order Price: $3,466.08

The following equipment and installation labor shall be provided by Fire Security Electronics & Communications, Inc
1) Supply, Replacement and Programming of Damaged and Defective FACP head end equipment.
5) All labor to setup and test 10% of the systems for proper operation.

The following items are excluded from this proposal:

1) Any bonds or permit fees, the permit fees listed on this proposal is an estimate only and is not included in the purchase order price

Special Conditions:
1) This proposal is based on information provided by FSEC Service Tech.

2) Upon plan review by the AHJ, any additional equipment required by the AHJ will be quoted separately from this proposal
6 and will be considered a change order.

3) It is assumed that adequate underground pathways exist between buildings. Any repair or new installation of underground
conduit is excluded from this proposal and is the responsibility of the school district.

4) The above pricing is based on the attached Terms & Conditions. Any modifications to those Terms & Conditions
must be in writing, accepted by an Officer of FSEC, and may increase the price accordingly.

Due to changes in the Sales Tax Laws Effective January 1st 2015, the actual sales taxes charged

may be different than quoted above.

1 h1S proposal references MESU Price List; Tire Tull price update U>1414.XISX
SEE ATTACHED TERMS & CONDITIONS

Do not accept without reading all pages.
Bill Thomas

Proposed By: Date: 01/14/2015
SERVICE MANAGER

Accepted By: Date:

FSEC Proposal # ES  FACP Replacement Page 1

C



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

m_
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Colorado River Union
BRG Project Number: 080502001-9999-020BRG Mohave County
Project Description: Replace water heater
Architect of Record: n/a
Contractor: Marco's M.A.M. Plumbing and Repair (928-763-8270)
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved

Base Cost $ 1,988
Contingency (1) $ 500
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) $ -
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ -
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 2,488
District Share (Local Funds): $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 2,488

Total Project Cost: $ 2,488

@® Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Colorado River LIHSN N2NRRI \artical Chant wia




School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/15/2015 5:01:04 PM Application ID: 1754
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Colorado River Union High School District
Superintendent: Riley Frie
Contact Person: John Wawrzynek

Contact Phone Number: 9284447529

Contact Email: jwawrzynek@bullheadschools.com
School Site: Mohave High School
Buildings: 1006 H

Application Title: Water Heater

g

Description of Problem
{/ Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

[Hot Water heater is leaking and recirculating pump shorted out. See attached Quote for repairs. I

Project Category: Plumbing

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

[N/A

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Q Superintendent Signature Date

1/15/2015 5:01:03 PM 1 Application ID: 1754



O

Marco's M.A.M. Plumbing & Repair
4060 Infantry

Fort Mojave, AZ 86426

AZ Registrar of Contractors
#154491 License: K37

Voice: 928-763-8270
Fax: 928-758-6764

Quoted To: =, -5 i0E

Colorado River Union High School #2
PO box 21479
BULLHEAD CITY, AZ 86439

Quote Date:
Page:

193
Jan 8, 2015
1

e CustomerdD- 1 . Good Thru:

Payment Terms.

<, - Job Address-

V Address Above

CRUHS 2/7/15 Net 30 Days
- Quantity’- Descriptio
QUOTE TOINSTALL 50 GALLON ELECTRIC WATER HEATER,;
INCLUDING RECIRCULATING PUMP, VALVES, FLEXES AND
CORRODED FITTINGS AS NEEDED
1.00 | MATERIAL AND LABCR 1,880.00 1,880.00
Subtotal 1,880.00
Sales Tax 107.78
TOTAL ,987.78




SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

O
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Mayer Unified
BRG Project Number:  130243101-1007-007BRG Yavapai County
Project Description: Repair HVAC unit
Architect of Record: n/a
Contractor: Moyer's Heating & Cooling, Inc. (928-772-4348)
Board Approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost $ 2,055
Contingency (1 $ 500

Architecture / Engineering (A&E)

Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc.

Testing & Inspection

Total Additional Cost:

Total SFB Funded Project Cost:

District Share (Local Funds):

SFB Board Approved Amount:

ﬂ R AR @ RPN
N
[$4]
O
3]

Total Project Cost:

(O Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Mayer USD 007BRG Vertical Sheet.xls



School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/12/2015 10:41:36 AM Application ID: 1751
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Mayer Unified District
Superintendent: Dean Slaga
Contact Person: Robert Kennedy

Contact Phone Number: 928-830-3179

Contact Email: Robert.Kennedy@mayerschools.org
School Site: Mayer Elementary School
Buildings: 1007 Gym, Kitchen, Cafeteria,

Application Title: Jr High Computer Classroom

Description of Problem
Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional

studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

Jr High Computer Classroom has no heat. The dassroom unit needs new motors and a new circuit board @
$2,054.29. Mayer USD has selected Moyer's Heating and Cooling for HVAC repairs and complies with
procurement requirements.

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
l Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

The school district has already allocated its M&O and capital funds for other priorities. District grant funds are
restricted by grant requirements. We will check with our insurance but do not expect this loss to be covered.

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

1/12/2015 10:41:35 AM 1 Application ID: 1751




MOYER’S HEATING & COOLING, INC.
8146 Ashley Drive
Prescott Valley, Arizona 86314
(928) 772-4346
ROC# 137374

For: Mayer Schools, ATTN; Robert Kennedy Proposal Date: 01/21/2015
Located at; 12606 E. Main St, Mayer AZ 86333

PH# 928-642-1201 FAX: 928-632-4005

Moyer’s Heating & Cooling Representative: Ragen P. Hamilton

Upon Inspection of Trane Package Heat Pump Model# WSCO48E3R0A050000 Ser# 6331016671, it was discovered that the
Defrost Control Board is shorted, and the Outdoor Fan Motor has open windings, upon supplying control voltage to the
defrost board the board is unresponsive and it is not certain if it is the high or low side of the board that is defective, most
probably both are defective due to a shorted control relay mounted on the board. As noted the outdoor motor also has
open windings. Also noted during the inspection was the Indoor motor has bad bearings, while the motor is running the
bearing noise is excessive, and the motor was pulling 6.4 of 5.0 Amps. It is strongly suggested that indoor motor be
replaced while performing other required repairs. Findings are noted on Moyers Service Ticket # 245472, and a copy is
attached.

Proposed work to be completed during regular business hours: Approximate time to complete Installation is 12 Hours.

Option # 1 Installation Date(s): / Customer Initials

Make: Trane Ton: 4 SEER: Type: 3 Phase HP

Specifics: Repair Blower, Outdoor Motors and Replace Defrost Circuit Board. All Parts Warranty for 1
Year.

$00,000.00 Standard Price $ 2,054.29 Cash Discount Price
$ -000.00 APS Rebates $ -000.00 APS Rebates
$-0,000.00 Carrier Cool Cash $-0,000.00 Carrier Cool Cash
$00,000.00 $ 2,054.29

Deposit: $00,000.00 Deposit: $00,000.00

Balance: $00,000.00 Balance: $2,054.29

Equipment Item# :

Accessory:  MSCR2140045/ / MSCR3360045/ / MSCR1720090
Warranty: 1 year parts

AZ Statute; 32-1155. Filing of complaint; resolution of complaint; service of notice; failure to answer; prohibited citations A. On the
filing of a written complaint with the registrar charging a licensee with the commission, within two years before the date of filing the

complaint, of an act that is cause for suspension or revocation of a license, the registrar after investigation, in its sole discretion, may
issue a citation directing the licensee, within ten days after service of the citation on the licensee, to appear by filing with the registrar
the licensee's written answer to the citation and complaint showing cause, if any, why the licensee’s license should not be suspended or
revoked. Service of citation on the licensee shall be fully effected by personal service or by mailing a true copy thereof, together with a
true copy of the complaint, by registered mail in a sealed envelope with postage prepaid and addressed to the licensee at the licensee's
latest address of record in the registrar's office. Service of the citation and complaint shall be complete at the time of personal service
or five days after deposit in the mail. The two-year period prescribed by this subsection shall commence on the earlier of the close of
escrow or actual occupancy for new home or other new building construction and otherwise shall commence on completion of the
specific project. B. Failure of the licensee to answer within ten days after service shall be deemed an admission by the licensee of the
licensee's commission of the act or acts charged in the complaint, and the registrar may then suspend or revoke the licensee's license.
C. The registrar shall not issue a citation for failure to perform work in a professional and workmanlike manner or in accordance with
any applicable building codes and professwnal industry standards if either: 1. The contractor is not provided an opportunity to inspect
. the work within fifteen days after receiving a written notice from the registrar. 2. The contractor's work has been subject to neglect,

") modification or abnormal use. D. Notwithstanding subsection C of this section, the registrar may investigate the complaint without

"g waiting fifteen days



C 33-981. Lien for labor; professional services or malterials used in construction, alteration or repair of structures;

AZ Statute; 32-1154(A). The Owner has the right to contact the Arizona Registrar of Contractors if they believe that the
Contractor is not compliant to the Statute 32-1154(A)_All ROC offices are open Monday-Friday 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM

A toll free outside Maricopa County (within Arizona only) telephone number is available to connect directly to the
main office in Phoenix.1-877-MY AZROC (1-877-692-9762)

Total Accepted Value of this Contract;

Option(s) Selected:

$ (total of Selected Option)
$ Grand Total of Contract Value
Deposit:
Balance: §

Terms and Conditions:

All work shall be completed in a professional and workman like manner. Moyer’s Heating & Cooling will schedule the
installation once we receive a signed contract for the above stated work. 50% Deposit required to order materials and
complete installation, Balance due upon Completion. Failure to Pay balance at completion of work will resultin a
mechanic’s lien being place on the structure, and late charges being assessed as afforded by AZ Law.

exceptions A. Except as provided in sections 33-1002 and 33-1003, every person who labors or furnishes professional services, materials, machinery,
fixtures or tools in the construction, alteration or repair of any building, or other structure or improvement, shall have a lien on such building,
structure or improvement for the work or labor done or professional services, materials, machinery, fixtures or tools furnished, whether the work was
done or the articles were furnished at the instance of the owner of the building, structure or improvement, ot his agent. B, Every contractor,
subcontractor, architect, builder or other person having charge or control of the construction, alteration or repair, either wholly or in part, of any
building, structure or improvement is the agent of the owner for the purposes of this article, and the owner shall be liable for the reasonable value of
labor or materials furnished to his agent. C. A person who is required to be licensed as a contractor but who does not hold a valid license as such
contractor issued pursuant to title 32, chapter 10 shall not have the lien rights provided for in this section. D. A person required to give preliminary
twenty day notice pursuant to section 33-992.01 is entitled to enforce the lien rights provided for in this section only if he has given such notice and
has made proof of service pursuant to section 33-992.02. E. A person who furnishes professional services but who does not hold a valid certificate of
registration issued pursuant to title 32, chapter 1 shall not have the lien rights provided for in this section. F. A person who furnishes professional
services is entitled to enforce the lien rights provided for in this section only if such person has an agreement with the owner of the property or with
an architect, an engineer or a contractor who has an agreement with the owner of the property.

A late charge of 20% of the outstanding balance owed will be assessed on accounts left unpaid for 15 days of completion of
work.

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED:

/

Owner / Authorized Representative Contract Date

Autir6rized Signatur

turn to the exper

~ *This bid amount is good for 30 days from bid date.

nght of Cancelation by this Date after Signing (3 Business Days)



(

()

y@

DL&DO

US|

3iva X OoN sa) dwiaisAs spp o) patiimsy] — 7 jesodsig

"Ad0D AW 40 1dI303H IDATMONYNOV | ONY GILTTJINOD N3G SYH NYOM QIYIAHO 3A08Y| ~  ONT  soAlpawiepay T UONTT sspcpaphiedl T Ao

E FUNLYNODIS QIZMOKHLNY N A pRInE e A o =

i INVHISHAIH dajqessn
U213y Nd ‘Afeaededas padieyd

adseyy duy *diND3 40 TYAOWIH INOYL ONLLINSIY SIOVIANVG ANY HO4 F19ISNOJSIY 89 [lim Ay ‘sued BAndajap JBLI0 03 aNP AJBSSADEY L0394 Jale| o

dT3H DN LNOHLIM TIVIIILVIA B INIWAINDI JADWIY OL LHDIY IHL suedal i feysul am asoy) ueyy sued Jayjo Aueiend jou op am 1 ag Wl

xejp SYH ¥3T13S '03IHOV SV J0VIN LON §1 INFATTLLES 31 ‘3AVINl N338 SYH 's3ads painjoegnuew sad se pajjueiem sie papiodas se syed jiv [BULION ©

jejol qng JNFWAVE J131dWOD TILNN GIHSINYNL VIYILYIN HO INFNJINDI ANY ALNYUHNYM S1HYd SaY o

mmm..mr_u dsuj OL F1LL NIVAZY THM HIMES KL LYHL G33UDV 1 41HIA0SY QININLN0 *shep Of Jo pouad e soj paajuelend s pajou se paojases Wd o

834 siysouseiqg any Smmng 39 O ¥HOM IA0EY FHL IZIHOHLNY A9343H | awdinba sy} 01 aniejas aiay papiodas se aBieyd soge} ayy W) 0

sasiey) ysey |20y, ALNVHYNID HO8Y1 Hepm o

7 T
‘ON U
<

\ S

U3 .L.

1d/39Y d0LS  L¥VIS NYIDINHIZL

1STVLOL NSYL

ivad

“AToway gvr ND O30 O] OAmAn T
YoloN 0L [Byariof IO AR <% 003 "o ANN
e ASH ;
SVIHQ An VIND ASe39(Q 1591 ol
v 55 u& FA00WN ISoTXT 1 211015 34 ol Walshg againgg
IZNFY] OOUY NG ~ 03 J9 |1 7] 000D Avgqd IV ZoieW BAto\G)
1) Tavd 1o Y aolpn 1 SATTTEIR] SBVIGHE Wit 25ac\
-7 N QL VI gool hOaN Z0WW olovl DA 3% (635
P NQ " FBH Uod Joog 1V WAISRG ABPRAWI(T IMdTiv N
-INOHd LTV 1U013B207 O]
3
‘ANOHd 7«2&5&3&36
LNV }o 3 d
il amm.qmm 's53.1ppy [ @ausy/y Hin jo sy —d B uny Jamolg
vOSMaSw_mw%mw_wnnomE} 10[] wd[J] man[] [cop S AT m M_uTém mm owien 40 den uny W4 P T J— den uny Jossaidwo)
uﬂu_ﬁh |6592-28¢ (826) A2]jen apiap/euopas j0 sduly Jojop 1NpU) "5 o Ty sduly Jamojg "5 ejo Ty T @sduly W)
SS9l en d d
annasos aivo| SYEY 4L (826) saud pend 10 sduwy J0ss3idwion 1Sd PeaH " bisq wopans
$1£98 72V .>w=m> 1102531d . adArgey g/mdoopuiT __dwa) toopuj . duta) looping
*03¥3040 31va

¢LyShe




SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Saddle Mountain Unified
BRG Project Number:  070390002-1008-006BRG Maricopa County
Project Description: Replace HVAC condensing unit
Consultant: n/a
Contractor: A Quality HVAC (623-853-1482)
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or

Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 3,665
Contingency (1) $ 500
Additional Cost:

Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees

Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc.

Testing & Inspection

Total Additional Cost:

“H € [ R|R|R|P
1

Total SFB Funded Project Cost: 4,165
District or Local Funds: -
SFB Board Approved Amount: 4,165

Total Project Cost: $ 4,165

(® Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone; (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Saddle Mountain USD 006BRG Vertical Sheet vie




C
3
J

School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/16/2015 7:05:22 AM Application ID: 1756
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Saddle Mountain Unified District
Superintendent: Dr. Mark Joraanstad
Contact Person: Angel Tellez

Contact Phone Number: 623-474-5600

Contact Email: angel.tellez
School Site: Tonopah Valley High School
Buildings: 1008 Bldg. 400

Application Title: smart lab hvac

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

No heating or cooling in the classroom. the compressor blew up and took out the condensing unit, this is a
split system. Quote to follow.

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding

| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 l

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature Date

1/16/2015 7:05:21 AM 1 Application ID: 1756



Air on_itionin
. & Heating

Tonopah Valley High School
38201 W Indian School
Tonopah AZ 85354
01-14-2015

*Smart Lab unit

The following is a proposal to replace the “Smart Lab” condensing unit.

Our price includes:

¢ 4 ton Condensing unit (Heat Pump)

» R-22 Refrigerant (full system)

* Low Ambient Kit

* Nitrogen, brazing materials

* Crane service (condenser needs to be crane lifted to building)

*  (2) Technicians (Estimated 5-6 hours)

Total Price is $3,664.32 (Three thousand six hundred sixty four dollars & 32/100)

Please contact our office with any questions.

Print name Date:

Signature

*Proposal pricing is good for (30) days of quote
Thank you for this business opportunity

%fwn %ﬂwy ~ A Quality HVAC Services LLC

A Quality HVAC Services LLC ~ 1300 S Litchfield Rd #A480 Goodyear AZ, 85338
ROC ~ 255314 ~ 255315 ~ 255316

www.AQualityHVAC.org
1300 S Litchfield Rd #A480 Goodyear AZ, 85338 Office (623)853-1482
ROC ~ 255314 ~ 255315 ~ 255316 Fax (623)393-0121



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

e I i e —— e ]
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Saddle Mountain Unified
BRG Project Number:  070390002-1005-007BRG Maricopa County
Project Description: Repair HVAC unit
Consultant: n/a
Contractor: A Quality HVAC (623-853-1482)
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 3,218
Contingency (1) $ 500
Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ -
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ -
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 3,718
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 3,718
Total Project Cost: $ 3,718

(O Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Saddle Mountain USD 007BRG Vertical Sheet xis




O

™~
3
t

g

School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/20/2015 12:16:57 PM Application ID: 1762
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Saddle Mountain Unified District
Superintendent: Dr. Mark Joraanstad
Contact Person: Angel Tellez

Contact Phone Number: 623-474-5600

Contact Email: angel.tellez@smusd90.org
School Site: Tonopah Valley High School
Buildings: 1005 Bldg. 100

Application Title: Athletic training room/gym hallway HVAC

Description of Problem
Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional

studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

this unit will not heat or cool. the compressor blew up and needs replaced. this unit cools the athletic
training room and the gym hallway

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 l

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature Date

1/20/2015 12:16:56 PM 1 Application ID: 1762



Air Conditioning
& Heating
: www.AQualityHVAC.org
1300 S Litchfield Rd #A480 Goodyear AZ, 85338 Office (623)853-1482
ROC ~ 255314 ~ 255315 ~ 255316 Fax (623)393-0121

Tonopah Valley High School
38201 W Indian School
Tonopah AZ 85354
01-20-2015

The following is a proposal to replace the bad compressor in the Athletic training room/Gym
hallway. Our price includes:

* Removal and proper disposal of bad compressor as per EPA standards

* New Compressor

* Reversing Valve

*  Drier

¢ Nitrogen, brazing materials

*  (2) Technicians (Estimated 5-6 hours) To remove and replace compressor as well as reversing
valve.

* Total Price is $3,217.51 including all materials labor and taxes

* Less 5% discount ($160.87) for multiple repairs.

Total Price is $3,065.64 (Three thousand sixty five dollars & 64/100)

Please contact our office with any questions.

Print name Date:

Signature

*Proposal pricing is good for (30) days of quote
Thank you for this business opportunity

@ ryan %?wiy ~ A Quality HVAC Services LLC

A Quality HVAC Services LLC ~ 1300 S Litchfield Rd #A480 Goodyear AZ, 85338
ROC ~ 255314 ~ 255315 ~ 255316



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

e St e e
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Saddle Mountain Unified
BRG Project Number: 070390002-1006-008BRG Maricopa County
Project Description: Repair HVAC unit
Consultant: n/a
Contractor: A Quality HVAC (623-853-1482)
Board approval: 2/412015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 3,218
Contingency (1) $ 500
Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ -
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ -
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 3,718
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 3,718
Total Project Cost: $ 3,718

(O Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Saddle Mountain USD 008BRG Vertical Sheet xls




School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 | Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/20/2015 6:33:41 AM Application ID: 1760
Resubmittal Date;

" Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Saddle Mountain Unified District
Superintendent: Dr. Mark Joraanstad
Contact Person: Angel Tellez

Contact Phone Number: 623-4745600

Contact Email: angel.tellez@smusd90.org
School Site: Tonopah Valley High School
Buildings: 1006 Bldg. 200

Application Title: TVHS snack bar HVAC

1 Description of Problem
C Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

[No heating the compressor blew up needs a new one and a new reversing valve. quote to follow in e-mail |

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? |

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature Date

O

1/20/2015 6:33:40 AM 1 Application ID: 1760



Air Conditioning

£ Heating

. www.AQualityHVAC.org
1300 S Litchfield Rd #A480 Goodyear AZ, 85338 Office (623)853-1482
ROC ~ 255314 ~ 255315 ~ 255316 Fax (623)393-0121

Tonopah Valley High School
38201 W Indian School
Tonopah AZ 85354
01-16-2015

The following is a proposal to replace the bad compressor in the unit at the “Snack shop” at the
200 building. Our price includes:

* Removal and proper disposal of bad compressor as per EPA standards

*  New Compressor

* Reversing Valve

*  Drier

* Nitrogen, brazing materials

*  (2) Technicians (Estimated 5-6 hours) To remove and replace compressor as well as reversing
valve.

* Total Price is $3,217.51 including all materials labor and taxes

*  Less 5% discount ($160.87) for multiple repairs.

Total Price is $3,065.64 (Three thousand sixty five dollars & 64/100)

Please contact our office with any questions.

Print name Date:

Signature

*Proposal pricing is good for (30) days of quote
Thank you for this business opportunity

DBryan @ary ~ A Quality HVAC Services LLC

A Quality HVAC Services LLC ~ 1300 S Litchfield Rd #A480 Goodyear AZ, 85338
ROC ~ 255314 ~ 255315 ~ 255316



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

e e
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Scottsdale Unified
BRG Project Number:  070248169-9999-032BRG Maricopa County
Project Description: Replace chiller power supply
Consultant: EMCOR Services (602-314-3186)
Contractor: TBD
Board Approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost (cost estimate provided by architect or contractor) $ 1,596
Contingency (1) $ 404
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ -
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. 3 -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ -
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 2,000
District Share (Local Funds): 3 -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 2,000
Total Project Cost: $ 2,000

@® Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Scottsdale USD 032BRG Vertical Sheet yis



School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/23/2015 9:20:00 AM Application ID: 1783
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Scottsdale Unified District
Superintendent: David Peterson
Contact Person: Carlos Monreal

Contact Phone Number: 4804848519

Contact Email: cmonreal@susd.org
School Site: Cocopah Middle School
Buildings: 9999 School Wide

Application Title: Low Voltage Power Supply

Description of Problem
Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional

studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

Chiller 1 at Cocopah Middle School is 3 year old Multistack 210 ton water cooled chiller, it had a 2 year
warranty from the factory and was installed back in 2012. It has a bad power supply for the low voltage
circuits and chiller cannot run without it. The cost to replace it is $1,596.00.

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Cruse pcruse@azsfb.gov 602-364-1193

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature Date
1/23/2015 4:57:08 PM 1 Application ID: 1783



P
e

e BE J . ‘ EMCOR Services Arizona
= EI'ICOR Services 4125 E Madison

= Arizona Phoenix, AZ 85034
602.314-3186+ Fax: 602.268 9091

Date: January 15, 2015
Quote #:15-60018

Carlos Monreal

SUSD

9301 E. San Salvador
Scottsdale, Arizona 85257

Jobsite Name: Cocopah

Jobsite Address: 6615 E. Cholla

Job Title: Replace bad power supply

Equipment Multistack MSO180FC4L2W2HI-R-134 SERIAL AA10-182
Dear Carlos

EMCOR Services Arizona is pleased to submit our proposal to perform the following scope of work at
the above referenced location.

Lock out and tag out tower Chiller

Remove defective power supply and discard.
Provide and install new OEM part

Power up equipment and check operation.

*New power supply is in town
TOTAL COST (Materials, Labor, & Tax). . . .. s e e v vvivnncnrneracrnnnassansnns $1,596.00
Exclusions: Unforeseen system problems and all electronic components

Warranty: 90 days on labor plus manufacturers warranty on parts.

Should upon performance of the above, it be noted that any additional labor and materials are
required to place the equipment in proper operational order, you will be notified and your approval
obtained prior to proceeding with any additional work

The above referenced price will be held firm for a period of thirty (30 days from the date of this
proposal. If you have any questions or require any additional information, please feel free to contact
me at 602 515-7103 or 602-685-4628

By: By:
Customer

EMCOR Services Arizona

Tom Robins

Account Manager Accepted date




Pat Cruse

From: Carlos Monreal [cmonreal @ susd.org]
Sent: Wednesday, January 21, 2015 10:31 AM
To: Pat Cruse

Subject: Bad power supply on chiller
Attachments: Multi Stack.docm

Pat,

We have a 3 year old chiller at Cocopah Middle School, it had a 2 year warranty from the factory and installed
back in 2012. It has a bad power supply for the low voltage circuits and chiller cannot run without it.
This is the factory rep for Multi Stack chillers:

Mark Cunningham, LEED AP

Sales Engineer | Principal

2340 W. Parkside Ln., Suite H107
Phoenix, AZ 85027

(c) 602.677.8668

(d) 623.760.9203

(f) 623.760.9035
mark.cunningham@dmghvac.com

[ have attached a quote for repairs, Should | submit an emergency BRG request?

Thank You.

Carlos Monreal

Scottsdale Unified School District
E.M.S. Supervisor '
Mobile 480.284.3192

Office 480.484.8519



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

T T 1
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Scottsdale Unified
BRG Project Number:  070248120-1003-033BRG Maricopa County
Project Description: Replace 70-ton chiller compressor
Consultant: EMCOR Services (602-314-3186)
Contractor: TBD
Board Approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost (cost estimate provided by architect or contractor) $ 16,310
Contingency (1) $ 7,600
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ -
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ -
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 23,910
District Share (Local Funds): $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 23,910
Total Project Cost: $ 23,910

(D Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Scottsdale USD 033BRG Vertiral Shaat vie




School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 12/23/2014 4:55:19 PM Application ID: 1745
Resubmittal Date: 1/23/2015 12:14:18 PM

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Scottsdale Unified District
Superintendent: David Peterson
Contact Person: Carlos Monreal

Contact Phone Number: 4804848519

Contact Email: cmonreal@susd.org
School Site: Pueblo Elementary School
Buildings: 1003 B

Application Title: Building B chiller

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

The B building chiller at Pueblo Elementary is a 17 year old York 70 Ton Air Cooled, the chiller has 2 failed
reciprocating R-22 compressors. The electronic chiller controller is being phased out and no retrofit kit will
be made available. The chilled water pump leaks water and needs to be replaced.

Option 1: Replace chiller compressors (2) add R-22 refrigerant and replace chilled water pump the cost is
$31,477.00.

Option 2: Replace chiller 6-8 week delivery the cost $71,101.00.

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 l

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Cruse pcruse@azsfb.gov 602-364-1193

Superintendent Printed Name

1/23/2015 4:38:14 PM 1 Application ID: 1745



BE o ' EMCOR Services Arizona
VICOR SerVICGS 4125 E Madison
Arizona Phoenix, AZ 85034
602.314-3186+ Fax: 602.268 9091

«ﬂmhr

Date: January 21, 2015
Quote #:15-60005

Carlos Monreal

SuUsD

9301 E. San Salvador
Scotisdale, Arizona 85257

Jobsite Name: Pueblo Elementary School

Jobsite Address: 6320 N. 82™ Street

Job Title: Compressor replacement

Equipment York YCAZ-74BB-46A
Dear Carlos

EMCOR Services Arizona is pleased to submit our proposal to perform the following scope of work at
the above referenced location.

Lock out and tag out chiller.

Remove refrigerant from compressor circuit and dispose.
Remove existing TXV

Replace one TXV

Replace all drier cores.

Provide and install 1 Remanufactured York reciprocating compressor (Model # ZB6S1-
D46/50)

Provide and install new compressor contactors.

Leak check chiller and evacuate

Provide and install new R-22

Restart chiller and check operation.

TOTAL COST (Materials, Labor, & Tax). . . ... covincivireirernnnennnnanans $16,310.00
*If compressors cannot be rebuilt add $5,600.00

Exclusions: Condenser coil, condenser motors, York panel, moisture in system, unforeseen system
problems and overtime

Warranty: One year compressor warranty and 90 days on Labor
e  For five year compressor warranty add $1200.00

The above referenced price will be held firm for a period of thirty (30 days from the date of this
proposal. If you have any questions or require any additional information, please feel free to contact
me at 602 515-7103 or 602-685-4628

By: By:

Customer
EMCOR Services Arizona
Tom Robins
Account Manager Accepted date




-
o

_ g

A~

i~ BE C ORs S ' EMCOR Services Arizona
— BIVE ervices 4125 E Madison
= Arizona Phoenix, AZ 85034
602.314-3186° Fax: 602.268 9091

Date: December 22, 2014
Quote #:14-60868

Carlos Monreal

susD

9301 E. San Salvador
Scottsdale, Arizona 85257

Jobsite Name: Pueblo Elementary School

Jobsite Address: 6320 N. 82™ Street

Job Title: Replace York

Equipment York YCAZ-74BB3-46PA
Dear Carlos

EMCOR Services Arizona is pleased to submit our proposal to perform the following scope of work at
the above referenced location.

Lock out and tag out chiller.

Disconnect all piping and electrical.

Using local Crane service remove old chiller and dispose.

Provide and install York chiller in Existing location. (Model YLAAOO70SE46XFB)
Reconnect all electrical to new chiller.

Remove old chilled water pump and install new Taco 5 Hp Pump.

Measure, fabricate and install necessary chilled water piping.

Insulate new piping to match existing.

Provide York factory start up.

TOTAL COST (Materials, Labor, & TaxX). .. . .. ..o i cveieeininncccannnnsnnnns $71,101.00

Terms 25% On mobilization 25% arrival of chiller 50% on completion
Exclusions: Overtime, engineering, and permits.

Warranty: 1 year parts and labor warranty.

The above referenced price will be held firm for a period of thirty (30 days from the date of this
proposal. If you have any questions or require any additional information, please feel free to contact
me at 602 515-7103 or 602-685-4628

By: By:

Customer
EMCOR Services Arizona
Tom Robins '
Account Manager Accepted date




SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

e Y o
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Tuba City Unified

BRG Project Number:  030215240-1010-004BRG Coconino County
Project Description: Roof replacment

Architect of Record: EMC2 (480-830-3838)

Contractor: TBD

Board Approval Date: 2/4/2015

School! Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 414,906
Contingency (1) $ 42,000

Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees

13,810

Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc.

Testing & Inspection

Total SFB Funded Project Cost: 470,716

District or Local Funds:
SFB Board Approved Amount:

$

3

$ N
Total Additional Cost: $ 13,810

$

$

$

470,716
Total Project Cost: $ 470,716

(D Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Tuba City USD 004BRG Vertical Sheet vie



School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT
SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 11/12/2014 1:58:56 PM Application ID: 1650
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Tuba City Unified District
Superintendent: Dr. Harold Bgay
Contact Person: Paul Huber

Contact Phone Number: 9283806138

Contact Email: phuber@tcusd.org
School Site: Tuba City High School
Buildings: 1010 800

Application Title: Architectural fee for drawings and specification to replace roof

C Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

The roof on the Building is about 15 years old and according to the inspection by the Architect should be
replaced. total cost for the design by the architect is estimated $13,810. the roofing assessment will be
forwarded to Gerry

Project Category: Roofing

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 l

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

C? Superintendent Signature Date
11/12/2014 1:58:55 PM 1 Application ID: 1650



ROOFING ASSESSMENT

TUBA CITY HIGH SCHOOL SPORTS PAVILION

WARRIOR DRIVE
TuBaA CITY, AZ 86045

ToTAL ROOF AREA:
SINGLE PLY MEMBRANE ROOF APPROXIMATELY 66,213 Sa. FT.

PREPARED FOR:
MR. PAuL HUBER, OPERATIONAL DIRECTOR
C TUBA CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 15
i P.O. Box 67

67 Fir Street
Tuba City, Az. 86045

E ArchitectsmPlanners,PC

Suite 144
Mesa, AZ 85205

P 480 830 3638
F 480 830 3860
{ 7800 372 6849

www.emc2archifects.com

Learning Places & Growing Spaces

Emc2 GROUP ARCHITECTS PLANNERS, PC
1635 North Greenfield Road



E Architects wPlanners,PC

Learning Places & Growing Spaces

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Emc2 GROUP ARGHITECTS PLANNERS, PC
1635 North Greenfield Road
Suite 144
Mesa, AZ 85205
Name: Tuba City HS Sports Pavilion ﬁ;’g{,’ggﬁ;’ggﬁ
T 800 372 6849
Location: Warrior Drive, Tuba City, AZ 86045 www.emc2architects.com
Roof Size: Single Ply PVC Roof — 66,213 SF
Inspection Date: October 20, 2014
History:

A visual inspection of interior spaces was performed on arrival. Due to the large amount of high
bay, exposed structure ceiling, evidence of leaking was not apparent in the way of rust or
staining at joist or metal deck. Staining was observed in hard ceilings in several areas. District
personnel were not available to assist with identifying previous leak locations. Despite the lack
of interior evidence of leaking the District reports leaking is occurring after every storm and
there is concern of damaging the wood athletic flooring should a storm occur when
maintenance personnel are not on site to mop up standing water. A general visual survey of
the roof was performed without any specific focus on any one area of the roof.

Recommendation:

As a result of our survey, our recommendation is to retrofit a new protection board and a new
single-ply membrane over the existing single-ply roof system. A new 60 mil PVC membrane,
with proper and timely inspections, repair and maintenance, should provide service to the
District for twenty years.

Budget:

Based on preliminary subcontractor pricing based on a twenty year warranty anticipated cost to
replace roof is as follows:

60 mil. TPO Single-Ply over 1/4” HD Recovery Board: S $428,716.00
Additionally, yearly inspection and maintenance to remove blown sand, Pidgeon dander and

sports equipment from drains and roof surfaces should be budgeted and performed along with
proper patching and repairs of any damage to the membrane.



Page 2

CONSTRUCTION:

Visual inspection confirm these roofs to be single-ply membrane consisting of white outer
layer and gray inner layer, thermoplastic laminated to a fabric scrim. Parapet wall and
mechanical curb flashings have been constructed out of the same thermoplastic membrane.
Roofing submittals indicate the roof membrane to be a 50 Mil. Thick, PVC membrane
manufactured by Duro-Last Roofing Inc., Saginaw, Michigan.

Core sampling of the membrane was performed previously by another party. In the interest
of minimizing penetrations additional cores were not performed. Those cores indicated the
insulation was in “fine” condition.

Submittals indicate the roof membrane carried a 15 year warranty from the date of
substantial completion. The actual roof was installed in the fall of 1999; however the
Substantial Completion Certificate was issued in February of 2000, keeping the warranty in
force for another 2 months from the date of this report. An executed copy of the warranty
was not located.

The roof system was mechanically attached to the structural metal deck over two layers of
polyisocyanurate insulation also mechanically attached to the structural metal deck. Duro-
Last Roofing Systems have the lap seams thermally welded in the factory to reduce the
amount of seam welding performed in the field. Seams between prefabricated sheets were
hot air welded in the field.

Parapet walls average 34” to 42” in height at the various roof area perimeters. Membrane is
fully adhered to masonry parapet wall and is wrapped over the top of a wood nailer at the
top of parapets. A metal coping was installed over the membrane and mechanically fastened
to the wood nailers. Where building heights change the membrane has been flashed up the
wall approximately 36” and mechanically attached with a termination bar. A reglet has been
installed above the termination bar and metal counter flashing is installed over the
termination bar.

Roof top packaged air conditioners are arranged in two rows along the main roof area and
scattered randomly at lower roof areas. All RTU’s are placed on factory roof curbs and
flashed with single ply membrane. Penetrations are flashed with adjustable PVC cones that
are welded to the membrane and sealed at the pipe penetration with compression bands and
sealant. Membrane walk pads are provided continuously from the roof access points to all
roof top equipment.

Roof slope is generally 3/8” per foot at lower roofs and along the perimeter. The main roof
over the ball court is double pitched at 1” per foot. Crickets are provided at all equipment
and to direct run-off to internal roof drains along the roof perimeters. Overflow is handled
with scuppers through the face of the parapet walls.



Page 3

OBSERVED CONDITIONS:

The membrane is stained from red dust and sand blown onto roof by the frequent prevailing
wind storms. District Maintenance sweeps the roof routinely but has to lower the dirt by
buckets through the roof scuttle. Significant amounts of dirt can collect on the roof and cause
damage to the membrane if allowed to remain in traffic areas.

Pidgeon netting has been installed on most of the large roof top packaged units and Pidgeon
dander was observed collecting at several drain locations. Netting is ballasted to the roof
using masonry units. Ballast should be properly supported on slip sheets to prevent damage
to the membrane.

Numerous patches and repairs were observed along the perimeter of the roof. This is where
the water collects and stands the longest as it is conveyed to the drains. It is possible there
are as many pinholes in other areas that do not leak due to their locations. None of the
patching was observed to have been performed using hot air welded patches. Patches are
covered with membrane and adhered using various metallic and white colored adhesives.
These materials were not sampled but appear to be standard caulking compounds and
roofing adhesives not specifically formulated for membrane roofs.

There were not any depressions in the insulation typically manifested by mud collecting in the
low spots.

One particular trouble spot was observed where an impact failure occurred. The membrane
was observed to be shattered at the point of impact and membrane debris around the failure
was hard and brittle. Embrittleness is a sign of aging and pending failure of the membrane.
As plastic membranes age due to exposure they typically become brittle and shrink. The
shrinkage is limited by the scrim but can produce tension on seams and attachment points.
Additionally with the loss a elasticity the membrane becomes susceptible to cracking at lower
temperature and shattering when impacted by hail or dropped tools. The ultimate result can
be catastrophic failure in the form of the entire membrane shattering in high winds or hail, or
an intensification in the amount of leaks and maintenance required to keep the membrane
watertight.

Gas piping and condensate drains are supported by wood blocking properly covered with slip
sheets. It was noted the wood blocking has weathered and dried out, resulting in a loss of
dimension. The blocking no longer provides positive support and in some cases is entirely
detached from the piping. Piping itself is in good condition.

Walk pads are adhered around all equipment. Due to the installation of bird netting some of
the walk pads are no longer effective.

Prefinished metal coping is faded but in good condition and can be re-used in a re-roof. The
membrane at walls wraps over the parapet nailer and provides the primary weather proofing
at the coping.



Page 4

PHOTOGRAPHS:

Membrane has shattered at impact point due to loss of pliability. Membrane was
brittle and held together by scrim. Embrittleness is due to age of membrane and
exposure. This indicates membrane is near the end of its useful life and could be

subject to catastrophic failure.

—

Improper repairs of membrane- typical of the patches throughout the roof.




Page 5

Petrified Pidgeon tracks — improper repair method.

Typical mechanical curb, walk pad and pipe support installation. Wood blocks at pipe
stands have shrunk and no longer provide positive support.




Page 6

Internal roof drain with scupper overflow.

3
i

Conduit for low voltage security camera system is not properly supported and is
scuffing membrane. This condition was typical of the security system.




Page 7

Pidgeon netting blocks walk pads in some locations and is improperly ballasted. CMU
blocks should be placed on pads or pans to prevent scuffing.

Numerous repairs occur away from seams but fall in low points on the roof.




Page 8

Copings are installed over membrane wrapped parapet nailers and fastened on the
backside of the parapet.

"
A
H

i

Transition at pitched center roof.




Page 9

RECOMMENDATIONS:

This roof has been in place for 15 years and is currently leaking at seam delaminations and
membrane punctures. The roof is at the end of its warranty period and useful life. Most
concerning is the signs of embrittlement in the membrane that can lead to increased leaking
and at worst case a catastrophic failure. There is not any maintenance solution for a
membrane that has become brittle and the risk for failure in a hail event or high wind will
only increases with colder weather. Due to evidence of embrittlement the only sound
recommendation is to install a new roof system.

The existing insulation is in good condition, slopes are adequate and uniform, and crickets
appear to be unobstructed. Based on the condition of the substrate we recommend an
overlayment of the existing roof assembly with a manufacturer’s approved roof board and a
new Energy Star rated 60 mil. minimum, white, single-ply membrane capable of qualifying for
the 20 year minimum warranty required by the Arizona School Facilities Board.

Emc2 has access to the original design documents and structural calculations. Dead load
appears to be adequate for the additional membrane and recovery board. Loads will be
verified once the final selection is determined for the membrane and recovery board.

The estimated cost of the retrofit is approximately $5.50 per Square Foot for a total cost of
$364,172.

Optional Improvements:

Based on the quantity of debris from blowing sand and birds, along with the vast collection of
sports equipment on the lower roof, Emc2 recommends the installation of a permanently
fixed davit system to assist in raising and lowering of material off of the roof. A simple davit
could be installed for less than $10,000. Based on the multiple roof levels requiring access by
ladders, a portable davit system with multiple fixed bases would allow access to all of the
different roof areas and could be installed for a cost of $15,000.

Cost of Neglect:

Without the recommended roof replacement the leakage will intensify as the existing
membrane continues to age and deteriorate. As leaking increases, consequential damage
will occur to roof insulation and metal decking, resulting in a costlier roof replacement.
Instead of recovering the existing roof a full tear-off may become necessary in order to
inspect the metal decking for damage. Additional risk exists with the athletic wood flooring.
Even small localized leaks if allowed to persist can swell the wood flooring and cause the
entire floor to be refinished or replaced. It is estimated the floor would cost approximately
$11.00/SF to replace making full replacement cost in excess of $100,000. Full tear-offis
estimated to add an additional $3.00/SF to the roof replacement.



Page 10

ESTIMATED COSTS OF REPLACEMENT:

Design Services And Fees:

The architectural scope-of service also includes preparation of roof plans, details and
specifications, construction procurements, permit management and project design
coordination:

Architectural Design & Procurement: S 5,800.00
Structura) Engineering: $500.00
Structural Engineering (Optional Davit Design): $1,500.00
Total Design Fees: $7,800.00

Construction Administration Services And Fees:

The construction administration scope-of-services include office time for RFI's and shop drawing
review, project administration, 4 site observations including travel Tuba City to observe and
record roof replacement:

Architectural CA (4 trips) : $5,160.00
Structural Engineering CA (Optional) $850.00
Total Construction Administration Fees: $6,010.00

Additional Field Observation will be performed at $850 / Trip.

Estimated Cost of Construction:

Clean prep existing roofing system for lay-over. Mechanically fasten %4” HD board through
existing roofing system to deck. Install new 60 mil TPO roofing system using Rhino Bond
fastening system. Fully adhere TPO to existing walls, terminate under existing coping. Standard
language manufacturer’s 20 year warranty. 2 year contractor’s warranty.

New 60 mil. TPO membrane and recovery board overlay: $364,172.00
Sales tax & Bonds: $30,733.00
Mechanical roof davit system: $20,00.00
Total estimated Cost of Construction: $414,906.00
TOTAL ESTIMATED PROIJECT COST: $428,716.00
Sincerely,

Emc2 GROUP Architects Planners, PC

Richard J. Clutter, AIA
President

Cc: David Kennon, SFB
Gerry Breuer, SFB



Page 11

EXHIBIT: ROOF PLAN

,,,,,,,,,

L.

Y




SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

m
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency

_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Willcox Unified
BRG Project Number:  020213201-9999-009BRG Cochise County
Project Description: Replace fire alarm system
Consultant: HDA Architects, LLC (Paul Holland 480-539-8800)
Contractor: Safeguard (480-609-6200)
Board approval: 2/412015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ 45,511
Contingency (1) $ 4,500
Additional Cost: .
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ 1,500
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ 1,500
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 51,511
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 51,511
Total Project Cost: $ 51,511

(® Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 230
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529

Willcox USD 009RR( Vartical Qhaat vie




1012312014 1151 FAY) P.002/002

School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT
SFB BR 900-08 Praject Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Dat
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist In developing required
Information that is not currently available.

District Name:

Superintendent: Richard Rundhaug
Contact Person: Thomas Currin

Contact Phone Number:  520-384-8854

Contact Emall: © tom,currin@wusd13.0rg

School Site:

Bulldings:

Application Titles

Description of Problem
Please include a detalled description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach,

Existing fire alarm system Is glving us multiple problems. It sometimes will not reset, false alarms, fire dept.
is requesting problem flxed,

Project Category: Speclai Systems

Are any of the ahove~described Issues in buildings or part of bulldings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter'school? N -

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project , £0.00 l

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Lialson: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Signature

10/23/2014 10:34:05 AM 1 Application ID: 1618



Proposal for Architectural Services in connection with
SFB Building Renewal Grant Funding

HDA ARCHITECTS, LLC

PRINCIPALS
LICENSES

PERzONA Date: January 20, 2015
CALIFORKIA

PAUL HOLLAND

_ARIZONA District Name: Willcox Unified School District No. 13
NEW MEXICO
NORTH CARDLINA

o Contact Person: Tom Currin

Contact # (520) 384-8854
Contact email tom.currin@wusd13.org

Project Site:  Willcox High School
240 N. Bisbee Avenue
Willcox, AZ 85643

Project Review proposed fire alarm system repair for Willcox High School proposed by
Description: Safeguard. Review final installation of fire alarm repair.

Probable Cost: $45,511

Architectural  Engineering Review of Safeguard's proposal $250.00
Services: Engineering Special Inspection $750
Architectural Coordination $509_
Proposed Architectural Fees ' $1,500
Excluded The following items are specifically not included as services provided:
Services: Asbestos testing
N.E.S.H.A.P.S. Applications
Mold Abatement

Special Structural Inspection
Permit Applications

HDA Architects LLC

Paul D. Holland
Principal ‘ PDH/pdh

459 N. GILBERT ROAD, SUITE C-200, GILBERT, AZ 852344737 / PHONE 480-539-8800 / FAX 480-539-8608 / www.hd-architects.com



Kidemer Consulting Engineers, PLLC ™
spering Wind Dr

J2050 W Whispering
[Suite 158
Phoenix; AZ 85085
PH: 602-285-1669

Frasmer Congulting Engnders, FLLC
Hecharien B Elect rical Engaeers

FAX; 602-284-9450

|PROFESSTONAL SERVICES EEE ESTIMATE

1/19/2015

To: o PadHolnd T

Comnpany N FiDAArchitects "

Address . _459.N. Gilbert Road, Suite C-200 o

City/Stdte/Zip Gilbert, Arizona 85234

Phone e 480-539-8800
lDESCRIPTION Provide review and comment of Flré Alarm defidencies report provided By Safeguéxd. Provide sie inspection

and purnch list of new instafiation.
PHASES FUNCTION MECH ELEC FP TOTALS $
Review repoit / provide comments $250.00

Special Inspections $750.00 |

SUB-TOTALS

B. CONSULTANTS (Attach estimates)

1, CONSULTANT FEE
2, e
TOTAL CONSULTANTS B I E -
C.. OTHER DIRECT COSTS (Attach astunales s nacessary) OUR ) s

1, TRAVEL COSTS )
2. REPRODUCTION COSTS
3, OTHER EXPENSES

TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS C $0.00

". ] TOTAL COST $1,000.00
IPREPARED BY (Signature) Data [APPROVED BY {Signatiire) Date

-
1/19/2015




. 0141512015 08:01 FAX) P.002/003

MOHAVE PROPOSAL

MESC #13A-SAFE-0529 October 21, 2014
8454 N 90th St. Scottsdale, AZ 85258
. maln: 480-609-6200 fax: 480-608-6222

o nE Al AR ] A 0 s SE AL AR
MATERTAL: {50s sttached summaries for detalls) ‘ ) | R
FREIGHT: 3:5% OF MATERIAL COST A A LYt
LABOR:
Basic Installation Rate: Hours{x) |% 70.00|% 1%,845.00
Application / Programming Rate: Hours(x) |$ 95.00] % 4,607.50
Profect Management Rate: Howrs(%) [$ 9500)¢ 760.00
Engineer / Drafting Rate Hours() |§ 7500 & 1,950.00
Servica Rata: Howrs () |4 9000 | & -
LXFT RENTAL! L e ¥ $ - % -
PERMIT FEE:  (» epplcable by Jrisdictions! requirements, and fvoiced at cast to Mambers) At
LODGING, MEIE AND MILEAGE: (cunent state rates, see hitpi//www.a0.82.00v/travel, Effective Date: 11/15/2006)
LODGING: el porniohtp) |$ - | % -
M&IE: ; | per night (x) | 4 - 1% -
Mllaage: permie(x) |$ 0445| & -
Commergial Monitoring: (unlts In Incruments of 12) u i
Fire Alarm Onlys (e sgunitosr mont )] § 26,00 | & -
Basic Security: ; 'u‘:fe;j] unitpermonth ()| § 3195 | § .
Partitioned systems: $ 1000] % -
Additional securlty panels (same site) $ 16001 % -
Sacured Monltaring: UL, Usted Account: $ 45001 % -
Primary Mode, NO Phone Line: $ 25001 % -
Segondary Back-Up to Phone Line: $ 1800 § -
Elevator Monitoring: $ 10.00] % -
800 Service Monitoring: ¢ 3000) $ «
" Subtotal| $ 42,707,22
Bond Rates! ($12.00 per $1,000.00 of contract amount) NO $ 18001 $ -
@ Prograssive Paymants Substation Camplation: SUB TOTAL: 42,70
" TAXs 80
TOTALY} . £45510.95
Replace existing FCT Inltiating devices with New Notifier {Inchides Bldg. U). Reuse exlsting Cable, Notification devices 8 locations, backbexes, pathwey
& Pawer Supplles. Add Loop Contral & Loop Expansion Models to Existing Notifier 3030 FA Panel. Provide & Submit drawings to SFM far Approval, Any
additional Cable & Devices to be replaced not shown on FA "AS BUILTS" are not part of Proposal, Excludes Correction of any existing ground faults
.,
"

WILLCOX HS FA REPLACE FCI WITH NOTIFER Estimale 10.21,19
157 R.0.C.-D95865 Page 2002 10/21/2014



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item VIl.d.

Subject: VIl. Building Renewal Grant Requests
d. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
Building Renewal Grant Requests (design awards)

Duncan Unified

Mesa Unified

Mohave Valley Elementary
Scottsdale Unified

Background — Duncan Unified (Duncan PS - replace heating units and controls)
Duncan Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request to replace the heating units
and controls in the cafetorium Building 1005 at Duncan Primary School.

Duncan Unified, located 205 miles southeast of Phoenix near the border with New Mexico, has
three schools. Duncan Primary School is comprised of four buildings constructed between 1935
and 1999, totaling 34,735 square feet. Building 1005 was built in 1999, totaling 12,980 square
feet.

Staff visited the school site and found the cafetorium had five Reznor-style wet deck/gas
heaters with DDC controls. Only one of the five units on this building was operational.

The district requested the services of a mechanical engineer to provide a proposal for an
assessment of the HVAC and control system to include a preliminary design and construction
cost estimate. The engineer’s proposal is for $5,000.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Duncan Unified (Duncan PS — replace heating units and controls)
Staff recommends that Duncan Unified be awarded $5,000 in Building Renewal Grant funding
for engineering services to assess the HVAC and control system in the cafetorium Building 1005
at Duncan Primary School.

Background — Mesa Unified (Webster ES — exterior reseal)
Mesa Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the exterior reseal of
Multipurpose Building 1021 at Webster Elementary School.

Mesa Unified has eighty-eight schools. Webster Elementary School is comprised of 11
buildings constructed between 1959 and 2002, totaling 75,333 square feet. Building 1021 was
built in 2002, totaling 29,127 square feet.



An evaluation was performed and confirmed by staff that determined the split-faced block on the
exterior of the building is leaking into the interior and compromising envelop of the building. The
district attempted to correct this problem by weatherproofing six years ago

A proposal for design and construction bid documents is $7,400. The district will contribute
$5,000 towards the cost of construction.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Mesa Unified (Webster ES —exterior reseal)

Staff recommends that Mesa Unified be awarded $12,400 in Building Renewal Grant funding for
design and construction bid documents to reseal the exterior of Building 1021 at Webster
Elementary School. This includes $5,000 for hazardous materials testing. The district will
contribute $5,000 towards the cost of construction.

Background — Mohave Valley Elementary (Mohave Valley JHS — repair crack in cinder
block)

Mohave Valley Elementary has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for an engineer to
investigate the cause of cinder block cracking and indoor wall separation in Building 1002 at
Mohave Junior High School.

Mohave Valley Elementary, located 180 miles northwest of Phoenix along the Colorado River,
has four schools. Mohave Valley Junior High School is comprised of three buildings constructed
in 1998, totaling 55,292 square feet. Building 1002 totals 22,995 square feet.

Staff visited the site and observed multiple cracks throughout the cinder block wall at
classrooms 201 and 202 and interior wall separation between these classrooms. The district
received for an engineering assessment in the amount of $8,000.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance work.

Staff Recommendation — Mohave Valley Elementary (Mohave Valley JHS — repair crack in
cinder block)

Staff recommends that Mohave Valley Elementary be awarded $9,000 in Building Renewal
Grant funding for an engineering assessment of cinder block cracking and indoor wall
separation in Building 1002 at Mohave Valley Junior High School. This includes $1,000 in
contingency that will only be used with SFB staff approval.

Background — Scottsdale Unified (Kiva ES - replace 60-ton chiller/tower/pump)
Scottsdale Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the replacement of a 70-
ton chiller and cooling tower on Buildings 1012 and 1013 at Kiva Elementary School.

Scottsdale Unified has 36 schools. Kiva Elementary is comprised of seventeen buildings
constructed between 1957 and 2002, totaling 63,091 square feet. Buildings 1012 and 1013
were both built in 1964, totaling 8,516 and 7,299 square feet respectively.



Currently the 20 plus year old chiller compressor has shorted and needs replacement. The 1992
cooling tower has reached the end of its life and needs replacement as well.

The district received a proposal for engineering to develop bid documents at a cost of $9,975.
Criteria for Eligibility

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Scottsdale Unified (Kiva ES - replace 60-ton chiller/tower/pump)

Staff recommends that Scottsdale Unified be awarded $9,975 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for the replacement of a 60-ton chiller and cooling tower on Buildings 1012 and 1013 at
Kiva Elementary School.

Board Action Requested: [ ] information [ X ] action / described below

1. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Duncan Unified be awarded $5,000 in
Building Renewal Grant funding for engineering services to assess the HVAC and
control system in the cafetorium Building 1005 at Duncan Primary School.

2. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Mesa Unified be awarded $12,400 in
Building Renewal Grant funding for design and construction bid documents to reseal the
exterior of Building 1021 at Webster Elementary School. This includes $5,000 for
hazardous materials testing. The district will contribute $5,000 towards the cost of
construction.

3. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Mohave Valley Elementary be
awarded $9,000 in Building Renewal Grant funding for an engineering assessment of
cinder block cracking and indoor wall separation in Building 1002 at Mohave Valley
Junior High School. This includes $1,000 in contingency that will only be used with SFB
staff approval.

4. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Scottsdale Unified be awarded $9,975
in Building Renewal Grant funding for the replacement of a 60-ton chiller and cooling
tower on Buildings 1012 and 1013 at Kiva Elementary School.

Attachments: Yes [ X ] No[ 1]



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Duncan Unified
Project Number: 060202101-1005-001BRG Greenlee County
Project Description: Replace heating units and controls
Architect of Record: Building Energy Solutions Provider (602-377-2679)
Contractor: TBD
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved

Base Cost $ -
Contingency (1) $ -
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ 5,000
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ 5,000
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 5,000
District Share (Local Funds): $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 5,000

Total Project Cost: $ 5,000

(D Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Duncan USD 001BRG Vertical Sheet.xlsx



School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 12/10/2014 11:17:16 AM Application ID: 1714
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Duncan Unified District
Superintendent: D. Eldon Merrell
Contact Person: D. Eldon Merrell

Contact Phone Number: 9283592472

Contact Email: emerrell@duncanschools.org
School Site: Duncan Primary
Buildings: 1005 K-3 Cafetorium

Application Title: HVAC

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

The gymnasium and kitchen have separate heating/cooling systems. Presently the heating system is not
working and we are unable to get them repaired.

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
[ Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

l

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature Date

1/28/2015 2:24:45 PM 1 Application ID: 1714



BESP, LLC
219 5. William Dr. # 137
Gilbert, AZ 85233

£ f
Tel: (602} 377-2679 Fax: (480) 629-5645 mvider h l

sameerpandey@besp.us

www.besp.us

January 22, 2015

Mr. Eldon Merrell
Superintendent

Duncan Unified School District
108 Stadium Street

Duncan, Arizona 85534

RE: Mechanical, Electrical & Control Assessment at Duncan Elementary School Cafeteria- Duncan USD

Dear Mr. Merrell,

Please find below a general scope and cost to assess mechanical, electrical & control system at Duncan Elementary
School Cafeteria.

Scope: Mechanical, Electrical & Control Assessment; Preliminary Mechanical, Electrical & Control Design; Construction
Cost Estimate

Eee: $5,000
Please let me know if you have any questions or need clarifications.

Sincerely,

Sameer R Pandey PE (Mech), CEM, LEED
Principal Engineer, BESP

1|Page



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Mesa Unified
BRG Project Number:  070204115-1021-005BRG Maricopa County
Project Description: Exterior reseal
Consultant: Brock, Craig and Thacker Architects, LTD. (480-969-3081)
Contractor: TBD
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ -
Contingency (1) $ -

Additional Cost:

Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees 7,400

Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc.

Testing & Inspection 5,000

Total SFB Funded Project Cost: 12,400

District or Local Funds: 5,000

SFB Board Approved Amount: 12,400

$
$
$
Total Additional Cost: $ 12,400
$
$
$
$

Total Project Cost: 17,400

(O Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 230
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Mesa USD 005BRG Vertical Sheet xlsx



School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT
SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: Application ID: 1753
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Mesa Unified District
Superintendent; Dr. Michael Cowan
Contact Person: Todd Poer

Contact Phone Number:  928-595-1400

Contact Email: ftpoer@mpsaz.org bksylvester@mpsaz.org remichal@mpsaz.org
School Site: Webster Elementary School
Buildings: 1021 A21000

Application Title: Waterproofing exterior CMU walls of the gymnasium at Webster Elementary

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates, If additional space is needed, please attach.

The exterior of the gymnasium building to include the classrooms has been constructed with Architectural
Masonry-Scored Face Block that leak profusely allowing water intrusion into this facility . The district has
contracted the painting of this facility in 2009 and has attempted in-house to waterproof this facility and has
been unsuccessful. We have had a building analysis report leak investigation performed and the exterior
CMU has failed a Rilem Tube test. :

Project Category: Surfaces

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $5,000.00 l

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.
[Warranty is over and failure Is not due to theft, vandalism, or wind, therefore, it is not covered by insurance. |

Liaison: Cruse pcruse@azsfb.gov 602-364-1193

Superintendent Printed Name

1/15/2015 2:04:54 PM 1 Application ID: 1753



Building Renewal Grant Application

TMichagt Bl _1/5/iS

Stiperintendent Signdture Daté

1/15/2015 2:04:54 PM 2 Application ID: 1753



January 12, 2015

Mr. Todd Poer

MPS Construction Dept.
555 S. Lewis

Mesa, AZ 85210

Re: Architectural Services for Webster Elementary Gym/Classroom Buidling
Waterproofing

Dear Todd,

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal for architectural services for the
waterproofing of the Webster Elementary Gym/Classroom masonry walls.

Our proposed fee is a lump sum fee of $9,900.00 and would include:

Architectural Services

Contract documents & specifications: $ 6,800.00
Bidding & Construction Observation: $ 2,500.00
Waterproofing Consultant evaluation and recommendations: $ 600.00
Total Fee $ 9,900.00

Printing and city fees are not included in our fee.

We hope this will meet with your approval and we can proceed upon your notification.
Sincerely,

Boyd H Thacker, AlA

BHT/bht

Ce:  Dennis Gearhart
Laura Tennyson

) brock, craig and thacker architects, ltd.

Q daniel w. brock Ill, sia ¢  james e. craig, jr,aia ¢  boyd h. thacker, aia
W 145 o, universlly dr., sulte 3, meea, arfzona 85201 « (480) 968-3081 « fax: (480) 969-8283 . .



Building Analysis Report
Leak Investigation

Webster Elementary School
Mesa Unified School District

Gym / Classroom Building

202 North Sycamore Avenue, Mesa, Arizona 85201-6150

Prepared For:

Todd Poer
Director of Quality Control

Prepared by:
Walt Hitchcock
480-694-3433 Phoenix / 520-240-5690 Tucson

ROOFING & BUILDING MAINTENANGE



Building Analysis Report
Leak Investigation

Summary Leak Investigation:

Roof Field: No

Roof Baseflashings: No

Wall Counter-flashing: Inconclusive
Coping Cap Flashing Detail: No
Interior Parapet Walls: No

Exterior Walls: Yes

Objective:

Todd Poer, Director of Quality Control, requested that | investigate the ongoing leaks in
both the classrooms and the gym building located at Webster Elementary School. Todd explained
that the leaks have been an continuous problem for many years. Todd also told me that district
roofing team had conducted a water test and determined that the exterior walls were the source of
the leaks. Mr. Poer requested that | provide my opinions and recommendations to eliminate the
leaks and help the district establish a “dry learning environment” for students and staff.

The exterior walls appeared to be well sealed and after a visual inspection of the roof,
baseflashings, coping cap metal, and both interior and exterior walls, | was not convinced that the
walls were the source of the leaks.

The objective of the second and third inspections conducted were as follows:
1. Involve a Tremco Technical Representative to inspect and provide additional input
2. |dentify the source of the leak or sources of the leak -

Tasks:

1. Inspect the Tremco Roof both field and baseflashings as the roof is still under warranty

2. Inspect the interior parapet walls and counter-flashings for defects

3. Inspect coping cap metal - remove sections of coping cap and inspect

4, Conduct Rilem Tube Tests on both the interior parapet walls and the exterior building walls




Building Analysis Report
Leak Investigation
Observations:

1. A visual inspection of the roof field
membrane and baseflashings were
conducted by Pat Sova, Technical
Services Supervisor Tremco [ WTI.
We both agree that the roof and the
baseflashings are not the source of
the leaks.

2. Patrict Sova removed sections of
the Coping Cap attached along the
top of the parapet walls. The
purpose was to inspect the
attachment, the lap joints, the water
proofing membrane under the cap,
the wood nailer, and the top of the
block wall were possible.

Sections of Coping Cap Metal were removed in four (4) locations, one section along each of the
four upper walls. There is no felt or waterproofing membrane barrier applied under the coping cap
metal. This is a concern, but upon further investigation, both Patrick and | do not believe that the
coping cap metal is the source of the leaks for the following reasons:

The Wood nailer shows no water stains and is dry as a bone.

There is not water stains along the top of the parapet walls under the coping cap metal.

The seam plates are well sealed and the sealant used is still moist sticky.

Overall the coping cap seam to be well sealed and watertight.

Defects: Two defects were detected: 1. no felt or waterproofing under coping cap. 2.
inadequate number of fasteners per 10" section of metal coping - 3 per 10’ section.

il Sl A

Recommendations:

1. Add additional fasteners to assure coping will not blow off.

2. Remove metal coping and add a self adhering high temperature rated waterproofing barrier
under coping metal and re-install.

3



Building Analysis Report
Leak Investigation

Observations Continued: —

3. Rilem Tube tests were performed on
interior parapet walls. The results
indicated that the interior walls were
not absorbing water and appear to be
well sealed.

4. A visual inspection of the counter
flashing shows little to no water stains.
This is importand and will be
mentioned later in this report.

5. Patrick and | both agree that the
interior parapet walls are not the
source of the leaks.

Multiple tests were conducted on the interior parapet walls. The interior parapet wall appear to
have been coated with Tremco Wall-tite Coating. Tremco Wall-Tite Coating has been re-named and
is labeled as Solargard Hy-build. The interior walls are sealed.

ROOFNG BUIING MAINNCE




Building Analysis Report
Leak Investigation

Observations Continued:

6. Rilem Tube Test were also conducted
on the exterior walls in a number of
locations. To our surprise the exterior
walls absorbed water quickly in almost
all test locations.

7. The block painted red along the top
and middle of the wall absorbed water
at a faster rate than the cream colored
block. Regardless, the exterior walls
absorbed water.

8. In our opinion the exterior walls are a
major source of the buildings leaks.

As we observed on test conducted on the central red block painted area near the upper access
ladder, as the water was absorbed from the tube into the wall, we noticed that water started to drip
out of the mortar joint below the block being tested. At first we thought the seal around the tube
was leaking, but as we continued to investigate, we determined that the block was absorbing water
and leaking out of the block at the mortar joint. There is little doubt that the block is absorbing
water.



Building Analysis Report
Leak investigation

Recommendations and Summary:

1.

2.

The inspections resulted in eliminating the Roof and interior parapet walls likely sources for
the leaks

The coping cap metal although installed without a waterproofing membrane under the sheet
metal is likely not the primary source of the leaks. [f the coping cap metal is leaking, it is likely
a minor contributor.

The Control Joints may also be contributing to the leaks in a few areas, but if the exterior of
the building is sealed, the control joints will also be repaired and sealed as part of the project.
The counter-flashings and roof baseflashings do not appear to be a major contributing factor
to the leaks.

. The primary source of the leaks appear to be the the exterior walls:

1. Rilem Tube test were conducted.

2. The tests confirmed that the block CMU walls are absorbing water.

3. The interior parapet walls have been sealed with a waterproofing coating and are not
absorbing water.

Our recommendation is to coat the entire exterior surface with a quality elastomeric coating

designed specifically to seal CMU block.

The recommended product: Solargard Hy-build.



SECTION 099653 - ELASTOMERIC COATINGS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

A,

SUMMARY

Section includes surface preparation and application of elastomeric coatings to the following exterior
substrates:

Concrete

Concrete unit masonry

Split face concrete unit masonry
Stucco

Ll o v .

SUBMITTALS

Product Data: For each type of product.
1. Indicate VOC content.

MSDS: For each type of product or chemical that will be on site
Warranties; Sample of manufacturers warranty that meets the requirement for the special warranties
MAINTENANCE MATERIAL SUBMITTALS

Fumish extra materials that match products installed and that are packaged with protective covering for
storage and identified with labels describing contents

1. Quantity: Furnish an additional 5-gal bucket of each material, color, and texture applied.
DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

Store materials not in use in tightly covered containers in well-ventilated areas with ambient temperatures
continuously maintained at not less than 45 deg F.

1. Maintain containers in clean condition, free of foreign materials and residue.
2. Remove rags and waste from storage areas daily.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

Applicator’s Qualifications: A qualified firm that is approved, authorized, or licensed by the coating
system manufacturer to apply the manufacturer’s product and that is eligible to receive the
manufacturer’s warranty.

Manufacturer’s Technical Representative Qualifications: An authorized full-time employee representative
of manufacturer experienced in the application and maintenance of the specified coating system and
qualified to determine the installer’s compliance with the requirements of this project.

Source Limitations: Obtain components for coating system from or approved in writing by coating
system manufacture.

ELASTOMERIC COATINGS 099653 - 1

WHH



1.6

1.7

FIELD CONDITIONS

Apply coatings only when temperature of surfaces to be coated and ambient air temperatures are between
50 and 90 deg F unless otherwise permitted by manufacturer's written instructions.

Do not apply coatings in snow, rain, fog, or mist; when relative humidity exceeds 85 percent; at
temperatures less than 5 deg F above the dew point; or to damp or wet surfaces.

Allow wet surfaces to dry thoroughly and attain temperature and conditions specified before starting or
continuing coating operation.

WARRANTY
Special warranties: Coating Manufacturer’'s Warranty Agreement in which the coating manufacturer

agrees to repair or recoat wall components that fail in material or workmanship within the specified
warranty period.

1. Special warranty shall include the following:
a. Coated wall surfaces shall remain free from leaks during the term of the warranty period.
b. Should leaks occur in during the warranty period, the coating manufacturer will furnish
labor and materials to correct the affected areas (s).
2. Manufacturers Warranty Period: 10 years

Coating Contractor Warranty: Submit Coating Applicators warranty, signed by Contractor, covering
workmanship, including all components of the coating application, such as caulking, wall repairs, control
joints, sheet metal, etc. for the following watranty period:

1. Warranty period: Two years from date of substantial Completion

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 MANUFACTURERS

A.  Basis-of-design Coating System Manufacturer/Product: The Coating systems specified in this section is
based upon Republic Restoration System by Tremco products named in other Part 2 articles. Subject to
compliance with requirements, provide the named product or an approved comparable product by one of
the following:
1. Tremco Roofing and Building Maintenance, Beachwood, OH.
2. Prior Approved Equal

B. Elastomeric Wall Coating: Basis of Design Product: Tremco, Solargard Hy-Build Elastomeric Roof
and Wall Coating. A Single-component, fluid-applied, water-based, fibrated, pigmented acrylic
elastomer Coating with the following properties:
1. Weight per Gallon, ASTM D 1475, 11.1 +/- 0.2]bs
2. Specific Gravity, ASTM D-1475, 1.33 +/- 0.02
3. Solids by Weigh, ASTM D-1353, 63% +/- 1%
4. Solids by Volume, 51% +/- 1%
5. Elongation @ 77 degree F, ASTM D-2370, 150% -+/- 25%
6. - - Flexibility-@ 0-degree F, ASTM-D~1737;Passes -1/8-inch mandrel - s
7. Tensile Strength @ 77 degree F, ASTM D-2370, 450 +/- 50psi
8. Shore “A” Hardness, ASTM D-2240, 70 +/- 10
9. Dry Time, ASTM D-1640, 1 hour
10.  Flash Point, ASTM D-3278, None
11. VOC Content: 50g/L or less
12.  Clean-up, Water
13.  Color: [As scheduled] [Match Architect's custom color] for number of colors indicated on

Drawings.
ELASTOMERIC COATINGS 099653 -2

WHH



2.2

Masonry Primer: Basis of Design Product, Tremco, Solargard Masonry Primer, an acrylic primer
formulated from 100% acrylic resins with the following properties:

Weight per Gallon, ASTM D-1475, 12.1 +/- 0.2 Ibs.

Solids by Volume, 41% +/- 1%

Solids by Weight, 59% -+/- 1%

Viscosity @ 77 degrees F, ASTM D-562, 75 Ku=/- 1 KU

Abrasion resistance, Excellent

Flexibility, ASTM D-1737

Dry Time, 1 hour to dust Free, 2 hours to tack free, Overnight to hard
Flashpoint, ASTM D-3278, None

VOC 62 g/l

el e ol e

Repair Material: Basis of Design Product, Tremco, Solargard Acrylic Sealer, a high solids acrylic
clastomeric sealer with the properties:

Weight per Gallon, 11.3 +/- 0.2 lbs

Total Solids, 68% +/- 2%

Viscosity 70,000cps

Flashpoint, None

Dry Tensile Strength, 500 psi +/- 50

Dry Elongation, 315% +/- 50%

Hardness, 45 Shore A

Impact Resistance, Exceeds 160 in./Ib,

LN RN

Mortar Mix: The following Mortar Mix is recommended:

1. 1 part by volume gray or white non-staining Portland cement, ASTM C-150, Type I or IL.
2. 1 part by volume of hydrated lime, ASTM C-207, type S.

3. 6 parts by volume, clean, fine sharp sand, ASTM C-144

Polyurethane Sealant: Basis of Design Product, Tremco, TremSEAL D, One component Polyurethane
Sealant Caulking

ACCESSORY MATERIALS

Crack Fillers: Elastomeric coating manufacturer's recommended, factory-formulated crack fillers or
sealants, including crack filler primers, compatible with substrate and other materials indicated.

Concrete Unit Masonry Block Filler: Elastomeric coating manufacturer's recommended, factory-
formulated, high-performance latex block filler compatible with substrate and other materials indicated.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 CLEANING & REPAIRS
A Clean all surfaces prior to application of primer or coating.
1. Surface must be free of loose mortar, dirt, grease, oil, loose paint, and other foreign matter, which
could prevent proper adhesion.
2. Previously painted surfaces shall be thoroughly cleaned with a high-pressure waterblast to remove
loose paint or excessive chalking. '
3. All mold and mildew must be removed from surface and pores of areas being coated.
B. Surface Repairs: All damaged areas must be repaired prior to application of primer and coating.
C. Large Cracks: Cracks 30 mils or thicker must be repaired using manufacturers recommended repair
material.
1. Fill cracks according to manufacturers written instructions before coating surfaces.

ELASTOMERIC COATINGS 099653 -3

WHH



32

3.3

2. Fill with Acrylic Sealer

Spelled or deteriorated Concrete: Repair using concrete patching and resurfacing compound

Block Fillers: Apply at a rate to ensure complete coverage with pores filled

Mold or Mildew: All Mold or Mildew must be removed.

1. All surfaces including Mortar joints must be free of Mold or Mildew prior to application of primer
or coating materials.

Repointing/tuckpointing Mortar Joints

1. Deteriorated mortar must be removed either mechanically or by hand.

2. Removal should extend at least 2” to §” into surrounding sound joints

All control Joints must be inspected and repaired as needed to a watertight condition

EXAMINATION

Verify suitability of substrates, including surface conditions and compatibility with existing finishes and
primers.

Begin coating application only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected and surfaces are dry.
APPLICATION

Apply elastomeric coatings according to manufacturers written instructions.

1. Use equipment and techniques best suited for substrate and type of material being applied.
2. Coat surfaces behind movable items the same as similar exposed surfaces.
3. Apply each coat separately according to manufacturers written instructions.

Primers: Apply specified primer by brush, roller, or spray equipment.

I. All surfaces shall be primed prior to application of wall coating.

2. Application Rate Previously painted surfaces: 200 sq. ft./gal or 8 wet mils

3. Application Rate over porous (non painted or sealed) surfaces: 100 sq. ft./gall or 16 wet mils
4 Primer should be applied in a one coat application

Finish Coat Application: Apply Coating to manufacturers written guidelines,
1. Coating may be applied by Brush, Long nap rolicr, or spray equipment

2. Coverage Rate: minimum of 24 wet mils or 1-% gallons per 100 sq. ft.

3. Split Block surfaces or porous surfaces may take more coating to achieve a uniform wet mil
thickness.

4. Coating may be applied in one or more coats. Specified Coating can be applied up to 40 wet mils
without sag. Recommended coverage rate per application is approx. 24 to 32 wet mils,

5. Apply additional coats as needed to meet the minimum coverage rate to achieve the specified
manufacturers warranty. ; , ,
a. Apply coating as needed so that raised surfaces on split face block achieve minimum

coverage rate.

6. Apply coatings to produce surface films without cloudiness, spotting, holidays, laps, brush marks,
roller tracking, runs, sags, ropiness, or other surface imperfections. Cut in sharp lines and color
breaks.

Apply coatings to prepared surfaces as soon as practicable after preparation and before subsequent
surface soiling or deterioration.

ELASTOMERIC COATINGS 099653 - 4

WHH



1L Coating must be applied within 72 hours of primer coat application.
2. If primer coat is left exposed longer than 72 hours, primer must be reapplied prior to coating top
coat application.

E. Spray Application: Use spray equipment for application only when permitted by authorities having
jurisdiction, Wherever spray application is used, do not double back with spray equipment to build up
film thickness of two coats in one pass.

3.4 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

A. Testing Agency: Architect may engage a qualified independent testing inspecting agency to perform tests
and inspections and prepare test reports.

B. Coating Contractor shall arrange for Coating Manufacturer to conduct bi-weekly inspection each week
for the duration of the project.

1. Coating Manufacturer shall provide a representative to conduct job site inspections a minimum of
2 times per week during construction.

2. Manufacturers representative shall provide a written report to the contractor, architect and owner
after each inspection.

3. Defects observed or repairs or adjustments needed shall be noted in the report.

C. Final Wall Coating Inspection: Coating Contractor shall arrange for Coating System Manufacturer’s
Technical personnel to inspect the coating application on completion and submit report to architect.

L. Notify Architect 48 hours in advance of date and time of inspection

D. Repair or remove and replace components of the coating system where test results or inspections indicate
that they do not comply with the specified requirements.

E. Additional testing and inspecting, at contractor’s expense, will be performed to determine compliance of
replaced or additional work with specified requirements.

35 CLEANING AND PROTECTION

A. At end of each workday, remove rubbish, empty cans, rags, and other discarded materials from Project
site.

B. After completing coating application, clean spattered surfaces. Remove spattered coatings by washing,
scraping, or other methods. Do not scratch or damage adjacent finished surfaces.

C. Protect work of other trades against damage from coating application. Correct damage to work of other
trades by cleaning, repairing, replacing, and refinishing, as approved by Architect, and leave in an
undamaged condition.

D. At completion of construction activities, touch up and restore damaged or defaced coated surfaces.

END OF SECTION 099653
ELASTOMERIC COATINGS 099653 - 5

WHH



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Detail of Additional Cost and C-Zontingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Mohave Valley Elementary
BRG Project Number:  080416103-1002-022BRG Mohave County
Project Description: Repair crack in cinder block
Engineer: Ludwig Engineering (928-768-1857)
Contractor: TBD
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ -
Contingency (1) $ 1,000
Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ 8,000
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ 8,000
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 9,000
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 9,000
Total Project Cost: $ 9,000

(D Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007

Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Mohave Valley ESD 022BRG Vertical Sheet.xls



School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT
SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 9/22/2014 2:22:58 PM Application ID: 1550
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Mohave Valley Elementary District
Superintendent: Mr. Whitney Crow
Contact Person: Mr. David E. Berard

Contact Phone Number: 928 768 8700

Contact Email: berardd@mvdistrict.net
School Site: Mohave Valley Junior High School
Buildings: 1001 Building A

Application Title: Cider Bolck Cracking

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

During an inspection with Dave Kennon this morning it was discovered there were numerous cider blocks,
from the top to the bottom of the south west side of the building.

Project Category: Surfaces

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding

| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 ]

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature Date

1/28/2015 3:22:30 PM 1 Application ID: 1550



O

Ph. 909-884-8217
Fax 909-889-0153
Toll Free 800-879-1282
www.ludwigeng.com

ASSOCIATES, INC.

Civil Engineering «Surveying « Planning

Client:

MOHAVE VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT #16
ATTN DAVID BERARD AND DAVID KENNON

8450 OLIVE, MOHAVE VALLEY, AZ 86440

928-768-8700

Phone Fax

Description of Work Ordered With Legal Description of Property:
MOHAVE VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL -

California Arizona
109 E. 3rd St. 15252 Seneca Rd. 5890 Highway 95, Ste. B 2126 McCulloch Blvd., Ste. 8
San Bernardino, CA 92410 Victorville, CA92392  Fort Mohave, AZ 86426 Lake Havasu City, AZ 86403

Ph. 760-951-7676
Fax 760-241-0573

Ph. 928-768-1857
Fax 928-768-7086

Ph. 928-680-6060
Fax 928-854-6530

Engineering Contract & Arizona
Preliminary Twenty-Day Lien Notice

Date Order Recd: g9/26/14
Job No. MO-0472.AZ

1) ASSESS AND ANALYSIS OF SQUTH WALL FOR STRUCTURAL STABILITY

Note: The above represents the scope of work to be performed. If any of the information shown herein is not in accordance with your instructions, please advise us
immediately in order to avoid possible errors or misunderstanding. Schedule A — Standard Provisions of Agreement attached is part of this contract.

Property Owner & Address:

MVESD #16, P.0. BOX 5070 MOHAVE VALLEY, AZ 86446

Lender & Address:

Person/Entity Ordering Work: DAVID KENNON

Charges: FIXED FEE $8.000.00

CLIENT TO PAY ALL APPLICABLE FEES

Note to Property Owners:

If bills are not paid in full for the labor, professional services, materials,
machinery, fixtures, or tools furnished, or to be furnished, a Mechanic’s Lien
leading to the loss, through court foreclosure proceedings, of all or part of
your property being improved may be placed against the property. You may
wish to protect yourself against this consequence by either:

1. Requiring your contractor to furnish a Conditional Waiver and Release
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1008, Subsection D,
Paragraphs 1 and 3 signed by the person or firm giving you this notice before
you make payment to your contractor.

2. Requiring your contractor to furnish an Unconditional Waiver and
Release pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1008, Subsection
D, Paragraphs 2 and 4 assigned by the person or firm giving you this notice
after you make payment to your contractor.

3. Using any other method or device that is appropriate under the

circumstances. Within 10 days of the receipt of this Preliminary

Notice the Owner or other interested party is required to furnish all
information necessary to correct any inaccuracies in the Notice pursuant to
Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1003, Subsection 1 or lose as a defense
any inaccuracy of that information. Within ten days of the receipt of this
Preliminary Twenty Day Notice if any payment bond has been recorded in
compliance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 33-1003, the Owner must
provide a copy of the payment bond including the name and address of the
surety company and bonding agent providing the payment bond to the person
who has given the preliminary Twenty Day Notice, in the event that the
owner or other interested party fails to provide the information within that
ten-day period, the claimant shall retain lien rights to the extent precluded or
prejudiced from asserting a claim against the bond as a result of not timely
receiving the bond information.

The above represents the scope of work to be performed. If any of the information shown hereon is not in accordance with your instructions, please advise us immediately in order to aveid

possible errors or misunderstanding.

Signature of Ludwig Engineering Associates, Inc. Representative

Signature of Authorizing Person

MEHDI AZARMI
Printed Name of Ludwig Engineering Associates, Inc. Printed Name of Authoring Person
Representative
(/ PROJECT MANAGER 09/26/14
" Title Date Signed Title Date Signed

c:\word\accounting\az fixed fee assoc wo 7-31-13.doc

Page 10of 3



O

10.

11.

12.
13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

California Arizona

109 E. 3rd St. 15252 Seneca Rd. 5890 Highway 95, Ste. B 2126 McCulloch Bivd., Ste. 8
San Bernardino, CA 92410 Victorville, CA92392  Fort Mohave, AZ 86426 Lake Havasu City, AZ 86403
Ph. 909-884-8217 Ph. 760-951-7576 Ph. 928-768-1857 Ph. 928-680-6060

Fax 909-889-0153 fax 760-241-0573 Fax 928-768-7086 Fax 928-854-6530

Toll Free 800-879-1282
www.ludwigeng.com

Schedule “A”
Standard Provisions of Agreement

The Client binds himself, his partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the Engineer to this agreement in respect to all
of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Neither the Client nor Engineer shall assign his interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other.

No conditions or representations altering, detracting from, nor adding to, the terms hereof shall be valid unless printed or written hereon or
evidenced in writing by either party to Agreement and accepted in writing by the other.

One or more waivers of any term, condition or covenant by the Engineer shall not be construed by the Client as a waiver of a subsequent
breach of the same or any other term, condition or covenant.

In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid and unenforceable, the other provision of this Agreement shall be
valid and binding on the parties hereto.

The Engineer is not responsible for delay, nor shall Engineer be responsible for damages or be in default or deemed to be in default of
reason of strikes, lockouts, accidents, or acts of God; or failure of Client to furnish timely information or to approve or disapprove Engineer's
work promptly; or delay or faulty performance by the Client, other contractors, or governmental agencies; or any other delays beyond
Engineer’s reasonable control.

Engineer shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions or inactions of governmental agencies including, but not limited to,
permit processing, environmental impact reports, dedications, general plans and amendments thereto, zoning matters, annexations or
consolidations, use or conditional use permits, and building permits and Engineer shall only act as an advisor in all governmental relations.

in the event of litigation on this agreement, the laws of the state in which the work was contracted shall govern the interpretation thereof,
and all disputes or controversies arising hereunder. In the event that Client institutes a suit against Engineer because of any failure or
alleged failure to perform, error, omission, or negligence, and if such suit is not successfully prosecuted, or it is dismissed, or if verdict is
rendered for Engineer, Client agrees to pay Engineer any and all costs of defense, including attorney’s fees, expert witnesses’ fees, and
court costs and any and all other expenses of defense which may be needful, immediately following dismissal of the case or immediately
upon judgment being rendered in behalf of Engineer.

In the event that litigation be instituted under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the same is to be brought and tried in judicial
jurisdiction of the court of the county in which the Engineer's place of business is located and Client waives the right to have the suit
brought, or tried in, or removed to any other county or judicial jurisdiction.

Should litigation be necessary to enforce any term or provision of this Agreement, or to collect any portion of the amount payable under
this Agreement, then all litigations and collection expenses, witness fees and court costs, and attorney’s fees shall be paid to the prevailing

party.
There are not understandings or agreements except as herein expressly stated.

All original papers and documents, and copies thereof, produced as a result of this contract, except documents that are required to be filed
with public agencies, shall remain the property of the Engineer and may be used by the Engineer without the consent of the Client.

Services provided within this Agreement are for the exclusive use of the Client for the project only.
Client and Engineer agree to cooperate with each other in any and every way or manner on the project.

Upon written request, each of the parties hereto shall execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, such additional
instruments and documents, which may be necessary and proper to carry out the terms of this Agreement.

The terms and provisions of this agreement shall not be construed to alter, waive, or affect any lien or stop notice rights, which the
Engineer may have for the performance of services under this agreement.

The Engineer makes no representation concerning the estimated quantities and cost figures made in connection with maps, plans,
specifications, or drawings other than that as such figures are estimated only and the Engineer shall not be responsible for fluctuations in
cost factors.

Engineer makes no warranty, either express or implied, as to his findings, recommendations, specifications, or personal advice except that
the work was performed pursuant to generally accepted standards of practice in effect at the time of performance.

Engineer makes no representation concerning soil conditions unless specifically included in writing in this agreement, and he is not
responsible for any liability that may arise out of the making or failure to make soil surveys, or subsurface soil tests, or general soil testing.

Estimate of areas provided under this agreement are not-to be considered precise unless Engineer specifically agrees to provide the precise
determination of such areas.

c:\word\accounting\az fixed fee assoc wo 7-31-13.doc . Page 2 of 3



w20,
. jj}
21.

22,

23.
24,

25.
26.
27.
28.

20.
30.

31.

32.

33.

34.
35.

In the event that any changes are made in the plans and specifications by the client or persons other than the Engineer, which affects the
Engineer’s work, any and all liability arising out of such changes is waived as against the Engineer and the client assumes full responsibility
for such changes unless client has given Engineer prior notice and has received from the Engineer written consent for such changes.

The Engineer is not responsible, and liability is waived by client as against Engineer, for use by client or any other person of any plans or
drawings not assigned by the Engineer.

Engineer has a right to complete all services agreed to be rendered pursuant to this contract. In the event this agreement is terminated
before the completion of all services, unless Engineer is responsible for such early termination, client agrees to release Engineer from all
liability for work performed.

Client agrees that Engineer will not perform on-site construction review for this project unless specifically provided for in this agreement,
that such services will be performed by others, and that the client will defend, indemnify, and hold Engineer harmless from any and all
liability arising from or resulting from the performance of construction review by other persons. In the event of any job site visits by
Engineer, job visits shall not be deemed as an assumption of construction review responsibilities by the Engineer. Such responsibilities shall
remain with others.

The client agrees that in accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the construction contractor will be required to assume
sole and complete responsibility for job site conditions during the course of construction of the project, including safety of all persons and
property; that this requirement shall be made to apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours; and the client further
agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold Engineer harmless from any and all liability, real or alleged, in connection with the performance of
work on this project, excepting liability arising from the sole negligence of the Engineer.

The client agrees to limit the Engineer's liability to the client and to all contractors and subcontractors on the project, due to professional
negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the Engineer to the sum of the Engineer’s fees. :

All fees and other charges will be billed as agreed and shall be due at the time of billing unless otherwise specified in this agreement.

Client hereby agrees that the balance as stated on the billing from the Engineer to the client is correct, conclusive and binding on the client
unless client within (10) ten days from the date of the making of the billing notifies Engineer in writing of the particular item that is alleged
to be incorrect.

A late payment FINANCE CHARGE will be computed at the periodic rate of 1.5% per month, which is an ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE of 18%,
and will be applied to any unpaid balance commencing 14 days after the date of the original invoice.

In the event that the plans, specifications, and/or field work covered by this contract are those required by various governmental agencies
and in the event that due to change of policy of said agencies after the date of this agreement, additional office or field work is required,
the said additional work shall be paid for by client as extra work.

In the event of any increase of costs due to the granting of wage increases and/or other employee benefits to field or office employees due
to the terms of any labor agreement, or rise in the cost of living, during the lifetime of this agreement, such percentage increase shall be
applied to all remaining compensation.

In the event that an act of God or parties other than Engineer destroy any staking, the cost of re-staking shall be paid for by client as extra
work.

The client shall pay the costs of checking and inspection fees, zoning and annexation application fees, assessment fees, soils engineering
fees, soils testing fees, aerial topography fees, and all other fees, permits, bond premiums, title company charges, blueprints and
reproductions, and all other charges not specifically covered by the terms of this agreement.

In the event all or portion of the work prepared or partially prepared by the Engineer be suspended, abandoned, or terminated, the client
shall pay the Engineer for all fees, charges, and services provided for the project, not to exceed any contract limit specified herein.

In the event of any litigation, client agrees to pay to Engineer interest on all past due balances at the rate of ten per cent per annum.

In the event client fails to pay Engineer within ten (10} days after invoices are rendered, client agrees that the Engineer shall have the right
to consider said default a total breech of this agreement and, upon written notice, the duties, obligations and responsibilities of the
Engineer under this agreement are terminated. In such event, client shall then promptly pay Engineer for all of those fees, charges, and

services provided by Engineer. e

c:\word\accounting\az fixed fee assoc wo 7-31-13.doc Page 30f 3



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

W
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Scottsdale Unified
BRG Project Number:  070248107-9999-034BRG Maricopa County
Project Description: Replace 60-ton chiller/tower/pump
Consultant: ADM Group (480-285-3800)
Contractor: TBD
Board Approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost (cost estimate provided by architect or contractor) $ -
Contingency (1) $ -

Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees 3 9,975
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. 3 -
Testing & Inspection 3 -

Total Additional Cost: $ 9,975

Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 9,975

District Share (Local Funds): $ -

SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 9,975

Total Project Cost: $ 9,975

(O Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Scottsdale USD 034BRG Vertical Sheat vle




School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 12/23/2014 5:24:30 PM Application ID: 1746
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Scottsdale Unified District
Superintendent: David Peterson
Contact Person: Carlos Monreal

Contact Phone Number: 4804848519

Contact Email: cmonreal@susd.org
School Site: Kiva Elementary School
Buildings: 1012 L

1013 MN

Application Title: Building L,M, and N water cooled chiller

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

The 20+ year air cooled chiller has a shorted out reciprocating compressor (1 of 2), the baffles on water
side of existing DX evaporator may be compromised. The 20 year old cooling tower structure is
compromised due to rust in critical areas of its support members. At this time we request for professional
Mechanical Engineering services to determine the full extent of all the deficiencies recently discovered. The
Mechanical Engineer services cost is $ 11,055.00.

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Cruse pcruse@azsfb.gov 602-364-1193

Superintendent Printed Name
1/23/2015 4:13:25 PM 1 Application ID: 1746



2100 West 165th Street
Tempe, Arizona B5281-6942

©. 480.285.3800
f. 480.285.3801
www.admgroupinge.com

Via: [e-mail] cmonreal@susd.org

January 23, 2015

Carlos Monreal

EMS Supervisor

Scottsdale Unified School District
3811 N. 44th Street ‘
Phoenix, AZ 85018-5420

Re: Kiva Elementary School
Mechanical System Replacement (60 Ton Chiller System)
Performance Specifications

Subj: Proposal for Services
Dear Mr. Monreal:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal for services for the scope of
work at Kiva Elementary School. We will work with Johnston Engineering
Company to coordinate the following services.

SCOPE OF WORK:

The scope of services is for performance specifications to replace a water cooled
chiller and cooling tower at Kiva Elementary School and includes the following:

1) site visit by the mechanical engineer

2) construction performance specifications

3) limited construction administration during construction

The performance specifications will be passed onto three contractors for price
quotes.

FEE PROPOSAL

ADM Group proposes to provide the scope of work identified above for a lump
sum fee of Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy Five and 00/100 Dollars
($9,975.00) plus reimbursable expenses as described below. The fee
breakdown is as follows:

Mechanical Engineering Services $7,075
Electrical Engineering Services (allowance) $2,900
Total v ‘ $9,975

M:\6000\Letters\itr012315SUSD_Chillers with JEC.docx



Carlos Monreal
January 23, 2015
Page 2

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and
Additional Services and include expenses incurred by ADM Group and ADM
Group's employees and consultants in the interest of the Project, as identified in
the following clauses. Payments for reimbursable expenses shall be billed at
cost times a factor of 1.15 for administration and handling unless noted
otherwise.

Fees and reimbursables paid to specialty consultants above and beyond the
normal structural, mechanical, plumbing and electrical, civil, landscape, and
food service authorized by the Owner.

Expenses, mileage, and time charges in connection with authorized local or
out-of-town travel.

Project related long distance communications.

Fees paid for securing approval of governmental authorities having
jurisdiction over the Project.

Expense of reproductions, postage and handling, and delivery of Drawings,
Specifications, and other documents.

Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, as requested in
writing by the Owner.

Expense of additional insurance coverage or limits, including professional
liability insurance, requested by the Owner in excess of that normally carried
by ADM Group and ADM Group's consultants.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Services requested by the Owner not specifically outlined above will be
considered Additional and subject to the rates provided in the attached Standard
Hourly Rate Schedule.

If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign your acceptance in the
space provided below.

Sincerely,

ADM Group, Inc.

%@Wb}« Wa Xaburng™

Jenifer Weskalnies
Director of Architecture

M:\6000\Letters\tr012315SUSD_Chillers with JEC.docx



Carlos Monreal
January 23, 2015
Page 4

ADM GROUP INC.
STANDARD HOURLY
RATE SCHEDULE

The following Hourly Rate Schedule encompasses the range of expertise
available for the project. The exact level of expertise assigned to the project
team will be indicative of the individual responsibilities, skills and tasks required
to perform the project in a professional manner.

Principal $200.00/hour
Director $175.00/hour
Project Architect $130.00/hour
Project Designer $110.00/hour
Senior Designer $ 95.00/hour
Designer/Technical Support $ 85.00/hour
Clerical $ 55.00/hour
Reimbursable Expenses Cost + 15%*
Transportation Reimbursement rate based
on current IRS Standard
Mileage Rate
NMS:drs
08/22/13

M:\6000\Letters\tr012315SUSD_Chillers with JEC.docx



JOHNSTON
ﬁa ENGINEERING
danm,

COMPANY
HEATING, VENTILATION, AIR CONDITIONING, PLUMBING
DATE OF
AGREEMENT January 22, 2015
CLIENT Scottsdale Unified School District

Attention: Carlos Monreal
9288 East San Salvador Drive
Scottsdale, AZ 85258

CONSULTANT Johnston Engineering Company

9777 North 91st Street, Suite 100
Scottsdale, Arizona 85258

PROJECT Kiva Elementary School P-5007Rev

Mechanical System Replacement (60 Ton Chiller System)
Performance Specifications

CLIENT AND CONSULTANT AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING:

A.

The terms and conditions the Standard form of Agreement Between Architect/ Engineer and
Owner, Scottsdale Unified School District.

The scope of services of the Consultant are for performance specifications to replace a water
cooled chiller and cooling tower at Kiva Elementary School. The scope includes
performance specifications for: (1) site visit; (2) construction performance specifications; and
(3) limited construction administration during construction. Performance specifications will
be passed on to three contractors for price quotes.

No claims for additional service compensation will be allowed by Client unless Consultant
provides Client with a written proposal for such services and said proposal is signed by an
authorized representative of Client prior to any such work being commenced.

Direct costs mileage, deliveries, etc., shall be part of the basic contract and shall be billed in
addition to labor costs at cost.

Consultant shall invoice Client at the completion of each phase of project, or monthly which
ever comes first. Payment shall be 30 days net.

9777 North 91st Street, Suite 100 - Scottsdale, AZ 85258
Phone (480) 443-8773 + Fax (480) 443-4591



Scottsdale Unified School District P-5007Rev
Kiva Elementary School (60 Ton Chiller System)

Performance Specifications

F.

Page 2

Compensation for the services provided by Johnston Engineering shall be on a fixed fee basis

as follows.
TABLE 1.
PERFORMANCE SPECIFICATION SERVICES
KIVA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
Principal Project Mech. $
Activity Task Description Engineer Manager | Designer Fixed Fee
Pre-Design Field Investigation - 4 - $420.00
Load Calculations - 2 - $210.00
Performance Cover Sheet - 2 - $210.00
Specifications
MO0.1 Symbols, Abbrev. - 1 - $105.00
MO0.2 General Notes - 1 - $105.00
MO0.3 Schedules + Details 1 4 - $570.00
MO0.4 Diagrams & 1/0 1 6 - $780.00
Summaries
M1.1 Mech Demo Plan 1 6 - $780.00
M2.1 Mech Floor Plan 2 8 - $1,140.00
Specifications 1 4 - $570.00
IECC - 1 - $105.00
Electrical Engineering - - - -
(Allowance see below)
Construction (2) Site Visits During - 8 - $840.00
Administration Construction
(Limited)
Office Engineering 1 8 - $990.00
During Construction
Electrical Shop Drawings - - - -
(Allowance see below)
Direct Costs - - - $250.00
TOTAL FEE 7 55 0 707500 |

The basic service is for $7,075.00 for mechanical engineering. An allowance of $2,900.00
should be planned for electrical engineering. Additional services, such as additional trips or

construction management, can be performed at the following hourly rates:

Principal Engineer
Project Manager
Mechanical Designer

I

$150/HR
$105/HR

$75/HR

Phone (480) 443-8773 + Fax (480) 443-4591

9777 North 91st Street, Suite klOO - Scottsdale, AZ 85258



Scottsdale Unified School District P-5007Rev Page 3
Kiva Elementary School (60 Ton Chiller System)
Performance Specifications

G. The Consultant agrees to maintain professional liability insurance with minimum limits of
$1,000,000 each claim and annual aggregate; maximum $5,000 deductible each claim.

H. The Consultant agrees to complete all work in accordance with a schedule mutually agreed
upon between Consultant and Client at the time this agreement is signed.

L This proposal is based on the following assumptions:

General

L. Scottsdale Unified School District will make available the as built existing drawings
for the project.

2. Work will be completed by mutually agreeable schedule.

3. Name of project related contact persons responsible for mechanical, and controls
systems related to this scope of work. (Carlos Monreal (480) 284-3192)

4., Engineer will coordinate with the District to manage the design activities.

5. Engineer will prepare performance specifications in drawings and specifications for
purposes of this project.

6. Construction administration is limited, see Table 1.

7. Engineer will specify phase protection on all equipment.

8. Engineer will specify equipment considering low sound levels.

0. Engineer will research and recommend chiller and cooling tower modifications.

10.  Electrical engineering is not included in the basic fee. An allowance has been

included at $2,900.00.

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above. Johnston Engineering shall
begin work after one originally signed copy of this agreement is received.

JOHNSTON ENGINEERING COMPANY SCOTTSDALE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

s wp

Thomas W. Johnston, P.E. Signature
President
Printed Name
Title
Date

9777 North 91st Street, Suite 100 - Scottsdale, AZ 85258
Phone (480) 443-8773 + Fax (480) 443-4591



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item Vil.e.

Subject: VIl. Building Renewal Grant Requests
e. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
Building Renewal Grant Requests (design awards)

Round Valley Unified

Background — Round Valley Unified (Round Valley MS — exterior reseal)
Round Valley Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the reseal/repaint of
the gymnasium Building 1002 at Round Valley Middle School.

Round Valley Unified, located 225 miles northeast of Phoenix in Springerville, has four schools.
Round Valley Middle School is comprised of two buildings constructed in 1979 and 1983,
totaling 86,168 square feet. Building 1002 was built in 1979, totaling 26,793 square feet.

Staff has visited the site and agrees with the need to repaint/reseal the exterior of the building
due to the results of Rilem Tube testing. The district has received a proposal to provide a
performance specification to reseal the entire gymnasium building at a cost of $2,960.
Additionally, an estimate of $5,000 for an asbestos survey of the exterior paint on all surfaces
has been provided.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Round Valley Unified (Round Valley MS — exterior reseal)

Staff recommends that Round Valley Unified be awarded $7,960 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for a performance specification and asbestos survey for the reseal/repaint of the
gymnasium Building 1002 at Round Valley Middle School.

Board Action Requested: [ ]information [ X] action / described below
Board approval of the staff recommendation that Round Valley Unified be awarded $7,960 in

Building Renewal Grant funding for a performance specification and asbestos survey for the
reseal/repaint of the gymnasium Building 1002 at Round Valley Middle School.

Attachments: Yes [ X ] No[ ]



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Round Valley Unified
BRG Project Number:  010210103-1002-005BRG Apache County
Project Description: Exterior reseal
Consultant: Red Tree Consulting Group (602-989-2433)
Contractor: TBD
Board Approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: $ -
Contingency (1) $ -
Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees $ 7,960
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection 3 -
Total Additional Cost: $ 7,960
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 7,960
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 7,960
Total Project Cost: $ 7,960

(D Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 104
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Round Vallev USD 005BRG Vertical Sheat vie



School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT
SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 9/24/2014 11:32:07 AM Application ID: 1554
Resubmittal Date: 11/4/2014 12:17:25 PM

Please provide as much of the requested Information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Round Valley Unified Dlstrict
Superintendent: Travis Udall )
Contact Person: Voigt LeSueur

Contact Phone Number:  928-333-6780

Contact Email: vlesueur@elks.net
School Site: Round Valley Middle School
Buildings: 1002 Gymn

Application Title: Painting Old Gym

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

As per a test conducted by Pat Cruise on the gym block wall it was determined that the wall is no longer
water proof. The block is showing damage inside the building. Mr Crulse also has pictures and test results
as attachments,We would like to paint to weather proof again

Project Category: General Renovations

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
r Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 J

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

I i

Liaison: Cruse pcruse@azsfb.gov 602-364-1193

 TrAa< Ubric

Superintepdent Printed Name
/4/%/\—* /fe~ C/

Supérfnt’endent Signature Date
11/4/2014 12:17:25 PM 1 Application ID: 1554




Redlree

CONSULTING GROUP
July 3, 2014

Mr. Voigt LeSueur

Transportation & Maintenance Director
Round Valley School District # 10

PO Box 610

Springerville, AZ 85938

RE: Round Valley Middle School Gymnasium
Exterior Fagade Evaluation / Paint Performance Specification

Mr. LeSueur,

Below are the proposed consulting fees for the Gymnasium exterior fagade evaluation and paint
performance specification at the Round Valley Middie School Gymnasium.

DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED
FEE

Licensed Architect Site Visit; survey school structure to include but not limited to, $ 2,960.00
metal flashings, sealants, exterior surfaces and surrounding conditions in preparation
of drafting an exterior paint perfformance specification. Draft a paint performance
specification, including repairs if any, for the repainting of the Gymnasium for
contractor bid solicitation (Mileage and travel time included if Gymnasium initial
exterior fagade evaluation is conducted in conjunction with emergency lighting
project).

Reimbursable expenses for reprographic work, etc are at cost plus 10%. Mileage is reimbursed at current
IRS miteage rate at the time of work. Additional work is at standard hourly rates and will be defined and
approved in writing by Owner prior to commencement of work.

Thank you for allowing Red Tree Consulting Group the opportunity to provide these services to you. We
look forward to providing you a comprehensive solution. Red Tree will confirm any change to the above
scope of work prior to executing any additional services. If you have any questions regarding this
estimated fee proposal, please feel free to contact me at your convenience.

Thank you,

W///—-
Michael L. Crow
Director of Field Operations, Partner

602.989.2433
mcrow@redtreeco.com

2942 N. 24" Street Suite 114-436, Phoenix, Arizona — www.redtreeco.com



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD
Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item VII.f.
Subject: Vil. Building Renewal Grant Requests

f. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
Building Renewal Grant Requests (denial)

Florence Unified
Show Low Unified

Background — Florence Unified (Poston Butte HS — add HVAC to weight room)
Florence Unified has submitted a Building Renewal Grant request for the design and installation
of a new air conditioning unit in the weight room Building 1001 at Poston Butte High School.

The weight room never had an air conditioning unit as it was originally designed as a storage
room. At some point, the district converted the storage room into a weight room.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district’s request does not qualify as a primary building renewal project.

Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032:

"Primary building renewal projects" means projects that are necessary for buildings owned by
school districts that are required to meet the minimum adequacy standards for student capacity
and that fall below the minimum school facility adequacy guidelines, as adopted by the school
facilities board pursuant to section 15-2011, for school districts that have provided routine
preventative maintenance to the school facility.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends that Florence Unified’s request for Building Renewal Grant funding for the
design and installation of a new air conditioning unit in the weight room Building 1001 at Poston
Butte High School be denied because the costs associated with the reconfiguration of storage
room space into classroom space should be assumed by the district since the district elected to
reconfigure the space.

Background — Show Low Unified (Linden ES - add nitrogen reduction plant)

On June 11, 2014, the Board awarded Show Low Unified $10,705 in Building Renewal Grant
funding for an analysis and recommendation to repair of the sewer treatment system at Linden
Elementary School (project number 090210116-9999-001 BRG).

Show Low Unified, located 178 miles northeast of Phoenix in the White Mountains, has eight

schools. Linden Elementary School is comprised of five buildings constructed between 1983
and 2000, totaling 27,320 square feet.

Linden Elementary School has a capacity of 298 students. The leach field, prior to 2007, was
designed for 298 students plus 25 staff. Due to a problem with surfacing effluent water in 2007,
the district enlarged the leach field to accommodate 350 students. Due to the retrofit of the



leach field, ADEQ required the district to install a nitrogen reduction plant to bring the water
treatment into compliance with the ADEQ standards at that time, thus precipitating the Building
Renewal Grant request.

The current septic system will support 203 students plus 20 staff and meets the ADEQ nitrogen
standards. SFB records indicate the ADM was 186 students in 2013 and 160 students in 2014.

A proposal was submitted for the design/build of a nitrogen reduction plant at a cost of
$565,885.

Criteria for Eligibility
Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-2032, Building Renewal Grant Funds are only available to correct
primary building renewal projects.

The district meets this criteria including doing preventative maintenance.

Staff Recommendation — Show Low Unified (Linden ES — add nitrogen reduction plant)

Staff recommends that Show Low Unified’s request for Building Renewal Grant funding to install
a sewer nitrogen reduction plant at Linden Elementary School be denied at this time and until
the student count exceeds the capacity of the current septic design of 203 students. Project
number 090210116-9999-001BRG requires no additional funding at this time.

Board Action Requested: [ ]information [ X ] action/ described below

1. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Florence Unified’s request for Building
Renewal Grant funding for the design and installation of a new air conditioning unit in the
weight room Building 1001 at Poston Butte High School be denied because the costs
associated with the reconfiguration of storage room space into classroom space should
be assumed by the district since the district elected to reconfigure the space.

2. Board approval of the staff recommendation that Show Low Unified's request for
Building Renewal Grant funding to install a sewer nitrogen reduction plant at Linden
Elementary School be denied at this time and until the student count exceeds the
capacity of the current septic design of 203 students. Project number 090210116-9999-
001BRG requires no additional funding at this time.

Attachments: Yes [ X ] No[ ]



School Facilities Board BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

SFB BR 900-08 Project Application Form

Building Renewal Grant Application

Initial Submission Date: 7/29/2014 2:36:57 PM Application ID: 1398
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Florence Unified School District
Superintendent: Dr. Amy Fuller
Contact Person: Rich DeVries

~ Contact Phone Number:. . (520) 251-1877 . . i e

Contact Email: rdevries@fusdaz.org
School Site: Poston Butte High School
Buildings: 1001 Main Building

Application Title: Renovate Existing Weight Room

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

The weight room at Poston Butte High School has no HVAC System. This request includes a HVAC System
and an insulated door to maintain a safe environment for our students. The HVAC System was never
installed in this room during original construction. The facility is presently being cooled with portable
evaporative coolers. Cooling taps are available to expand the existing system. Installation of a HVAC
System will require replacement of existing non-insulated roll-up, with an insulated door.

Project Category: HVAC

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding
| Amount of Local funds planned for this project $0.00 |

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

Liaison: Demland ddemland@azsfb.gov 602-542-6567

De. Ay Fuiler

Superintendent Printed Name

7/29/2014 2:36:56 PM i Application ID: 1398



Building Renewal Grant Application

Sl /s /1y

SuperinteQdent Signature Date

7/29/2014 2:36:56 PM 2 Application ID: 1398



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD BUILDING RENEWAL GRANT

Detail of Additional Cost and Eontingency
_X_ Building Renewal Grant Fund

District: Show Low Unified
BRG Project Number: 090210116-9999-001BRG Navajo County
Project Description: Repair sewer treatment system
Consultant: Fluid Solutions (Norm Fain 602-707-7777)
Contractor: TBD
Board Approval: 6/11/2014
Denial of additional funding: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Base Cost: (cost estimate provided by architect or contractor) $ -
Contingency (1) $ -
Additional Cost:
Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees 3 10,705
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. $ -
Testing & Inspection 3 -
Total Additional Cost: $ 10,705
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 10,705
District or Local Funds: $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 10,705
Total Project Cost: $ 10,705

(@ Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 230
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Show Low USD 001BRG Vertical Sheet.xls




@ Fluid Solutions

Water « Wastewater « Engineering = Enviranmental Services

MEMORANDUM

To: Kevin Brackney, Superintendent, Show Low USD #10

From: David Heighway, PE

Date: November 13, 2014

Subject: Linden Elementary School septic system total nitrogen load

Cc: Pat Cruse, School Liaison, Arizona School Facilities Board

Expires 6/30/2016

AN
&
The Linden Elementary Schoo! septic system has been hydraulically designed to accommodate

flows typically expected from 350 students. However, Arizona School Facilities Board indicates
that the existing student capacity of the campusis 296 students. Assuming a student-to-staff ratio
of 14:1, the 296 students indicates staff of about 22. Based on recommended flow rates for
schools found in AAC R18-9-E323, Table 1, these values produce an estimated average daily
wastewater flow as shown below:

296 students x 18 gpced = 5,328 gpd
22 staff x 20 gpcd =__440gpd

TOTAL 5,768 gpd
NOTE: Student flow rate includes 3 gpd/student for cafeteria/gym in addition to the base 15 gpd/student.

This flow will be seen for 180 days each year when school is in session. The annual flow
through the septic system will be:

5,768 gpd x 180 days = 1,038,240 gallons

ADEQ requires evaluation of the flow to meet nitrogen reduction requirements per Arizona
Administrative Code (AAC) Title 18 (Environmental Quality), Chapter 9 (Department of
Environmental Quality, Water Pollution Control), Article 3 (Aquifer Protection Permits — General
Permits), Part E (Type 4 - Genera! Permits), Section R18-9-E323 (4.23 General Permit, 3000 to less
than 24,000 Gallon Per Day Design Flow). The Code requires that the maximum nitrogen
discharge from the site be equal to or less than 39.9 grams of nitrogen per acre per day (g/ac/day)
[0.088 pounds per acre per day (Ib/ac/day)]. ADEQ has agreed that the average daily loading can
properly be calculated from the Code’s “typical” value of 15 grams of total nitrogen per day per
person (g/day/person) [0.033 Ib/day/person]. This value is based on residential flows so must be

adjusted for application to this situation. Values that change from the “standard” residential flow
include:

Pagelof4



@ Fluid Solutions

Water « Wastewater « Engineering « Environmental Services

Number of days
per year that flow 365 180 0.4932
occurs {days)

Average Daily Flow

per person/student 80 18 0.2250
(gpd)

Average Daily Flow

per person/staff 80 20 0.2500
(gpd)

Using these modifiers, the average daily total nitrogen from the identified maximum occupancy
of the campus (provided by Arizona School Facilities Board) at 296 students and 21 staff (14:1
student-to-staff ratio) can be calculated as:

Student component:

296 students x 15 g/person/day x 0.4932 x 0.2250 = 492.71 g/day
Staff component:

21 staff x 15 g/person/day x 0.4932 x 0.2500 = 38.84 g/day
TOTAL:

492.71 +38.84 = 531.55 g/day

Per Navajo County Assessor’s records, Show Low School District owns two parcels at the Linden
Elementary School site. The combined acreage of these parcels is 8.39 acres. AAC R18-9-
E323(A)(4)(i) allows the inclusion of “streets, common areas, and other non-contributing areas”
in the area calculation for compliance with the total nitrogen standard. The platted property
includes half of the right-of-way of School House Lane on the west of the property. However, the
south side of the property abuts Arizona Highway 260. Therefore, an additional 50 feet along the
660 feet of south property lines can be included in the calculation. The acreage calculation is:

Platted Acreage: 8.39 acres

Adjacent Highway 260 acreage: 50 ft x 660 ft + 43,560 ft?/acre = 0.76 acres

Total Acreage for calculation: 8.39 +0.76 = 9.15 acres

The existing design conditions result in a total nitrogen loading of:

531.55 g/day + 9.15 acres = 58.09 g/ac/day, which exceeds the standard of 39.9 g/ac/day.

Page 2 of 4



@ Fluid Selutions

Water « Wastewater « Engineering » Environmental Services
CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

No Change

If no change is made to the septic system’s rated capacity at the Linden Elementary School site,
the resulting condition is non-compliance with Arizona Aquifer Protection Permit Standards for
the 4.23 General Permit. In this condition, ADEQ may attempt to shut down the school and/or
fine the school district for non-compliance with the total nitrogen standard. Fines are the likely
first attempt to obtain compliance followed by cease and desist orders if fines are ineffective.
Fluid Solutions does not recommend this approach.

Reduce School Maximum Students

Reducing the number of students and staff at the campus will result in a smaller total nitrogen
load to the environment. To achieve an adequate reduction in total nitrogen produced, the
maximum campus capacity would have to be reduced to 203 students with 14.5 staff.

[(203 x 15 x 0.2250 x 0.4932) + (14.5 x 15 x 0.2500 x 0.4932)] + 9.15 = 39.86 g/ac/day

Current enrollment of 189 students does not exceed this limitation. However, two years ago the
student population was 221, which exceeds this maximum allowable population. The costs
associated with this approach are the future relocation of excess students and staff that would
normally attend this campus to another school within the district assuming space is available. If
no space is available, to use the existing classroom capacity, treatment or additional contiguous
land area will be required. . Because these conditions create many undefined costs associated
with relocating classroom space or capital costs for building, this solution requires extensive
internal assessment outside the scope of this evaluation prior to any serious consideration.

Add Acreage

The total acreage needed to reduce the total nitrogen level to the limit is 13.32 acres. The addition
of 4.17 adjacent acres would allow the campus to meet the requirements of R18-9-E323.

531.55 g/day + 39.9 g/ac/day = 13.32 acres
Additional acreage needed is: 13.32 — 9.15 = 4.17 acres

Costs for this additional acreage are estimated to be in the range of $200,000 to $250,000 for just
enough land to meet the requirements. Because platted lot sizes are larger than 4.17 acres, this
cost may go even higher. Availability of land adjacent to the school site is also a concern. The
School District has stated that they do not believe that this is a viable option.

Install Nitrogen Reduction Treatment

The final option for meeting the nitrogen limit is to reduce the level of total nitrogen in the septic
tank effluent to a level that would meet the Code. The reduction of the total nitrogen required is

Page 3 of4



)

@ Huid Solutions

Water » Wastewater » Engineering « Environmenta! Services

31.32% [1.00-(365.08 g/day + 531.55 g/day)]. For design purposes, the selected technology will
need to reduce the effluent total nitrogen concentration to the leach fields to 34 mg/I.

Estimated costs for design and construction of a system to reduce the nitrogen loading are
estimated in the table below.

R
| Engineering
Construction | &
. Cost | Construction . 1
. | [Estimate | Observation | Contingency |  Total
Improvement | High/low |  Costs_ _High/Low | High/Low _
Additional $29,500 $4,420 $44,830
Preliminary $9,000
Treatment $40,200 $6,025 52,600 $57,825
Nitrogen $225,000 $33,100 $14,260 $339,560
Treatment $67,200
Package $301,000 $45,100 $19,440 $432,740
Existing $17,250 $3,140 $1,355 $28,145
System $6,400
Modifications $28,600 54,275 $1,845 $41,120
$271,750 $40,660 $17,525 $412,535
| ,
Tota $369,800 582,600 $55,400 $23,385 $531,685
All estimated costs are in 2014 dollars
SUMMARY
Alternative Estimated Cost Range = Comment
Continuing regulatory non-
No Change Undefined Regulatory Fines | compliance that in thfa
and fees. extreme could result in
judicial action.
Reduce Students Undefined Operational Costs | Short term solution.
Add Acreage $200,000 to $250,000 Must have willing seller.
Add Treatment $412,000 to $532,000 Allow..s existing classroom
capacity to be used.

Page 4 of 4



Show Low Unified School District #10
Kevin M. Brackney Greg Schubert

Superintendent Business Manager

928-537-6000 ----- Fax 928-537-6009 ----- 928-537-6010

November 20, 2014

Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
1110 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

Re: Linden Elementary School
File # 20070741 and LTF# 45791

Dear Mr. Burchard,

Attached is a document from Fluid Solutions representative David Heighway PE, regarding the Linden
Elementary School Septic System. In that letter, Mr. Heighway states that the current system at Linden
is adequate for 203 students and 14 staff members. At the present time our Average Daily Membership
(ADM) is at 176.89 students. Show Low Unified School District has every intention of abiding by the
laws and rules of Arizona and ADEQ.

Below is a chart with our ADM figures beginning with the Fiscal Year 2003 to 2014:

Linden Elementary School

ADM History Report . .
Linden Elementary ADM History
Year FY ADM . 300
2003-2004 2004 21097
250 e

2004-2005 2005 237.69
2005-2006 2006 259.23 200 ®
2006-2007 2007 241.24
2007-2008 2008 222.39 150 -
2008-2009 2009 221.68

100
2009-2010 2010 218.25
2010-2011 Coee e 2011 213.41 50
2011-2012 S 2012 189.66
2012-2013 2013 191.91 : L) e e L
0132014 i~y 150.83 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

& &
500 West Old Linden Road L Show Low, AZ 85901 | http://www.show-low.k12.az.us



At this time we are actively working with Pat Cruse of School Facilities Board (SFB) defining solutions
for the future should the number of students grow to more than 203.

If you have any questions regarding our progress, please do not hesitate to call. We are here to help and
assist ADEQ in any way possible.

Sincerely,

Mr. Brackney
Superintendent, SLUSD

& &
500 West Old Linden Road ¥ Show Low, AZ 85901 @ http://www.show-low.k12.az.us



Water  Wasiewater o Engineering « Environmental Services

December 4, 2014

Mr. Kevin Brackney, Superintendent
Show Low Unified School District #10
1350 North Central Drive

Show Low, Arizona 85901

RE: Linden Elementary School, Septic System Nitrogen Reduction Project

Dear Mr. Brackney:

Fluid Solutions is pleased to provide this proposal to for professional services to the Show Low Unified
School District for engineering design and construction of facilities to address the deficiencies in the septic
system af the Linden Elementary School, 500 West Old Linden Road, Show Low, Arizona 85901.

Scope of Work

Fluid Solutions proposes to develop construction documents and construct facilities to address the Notice
of Violation issued by the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) regarding the excessive
nitrogen discharge for the Linden Elementary School septic system. Anticipated components include, but
are not limited to: additional septic tank volume, Orenco Ad-Max treatment system, connecting piping
and permanent fencing around the system components.

A concern with the electrical power supply has been voiced since completion of the summary report by
Fluid Solutions. Costs for recording and analysis of the electrical supply to the Linden Elementary School
has been added to this scope. If only a cursory review of the electrical service is needed, these costs
would be unnheeded. A construction budget for resolving potential electrical service problems (assuming
surge protection and improved electrical grounding are needed) is also included in this scope.

Proposed Fees

Fluid Solutions proposes to complete this effort on a lump sum basis. The various components of this
project and project total are summarized as follows:

; Component , ' Fee Amount ‘
Construction Document Production $82,600.00
Electrical System Protection Investigation $9,200.00
Electrical System Surge Protection Construction $25,000.00
Construction of Nitrogen Reduction Facilities $449,085.00
Total $565,885.00

9727 MNorth Third Sireet e Suite 300 e Phoenix, Arizona 85004 e {602} 707-7777 e FAX (602) 707-7778



Mr. Kevin Brackney, Superintendent
Show Low Unified School District #10
December 4, 2014

Page 2 of 2

Terms and Conditions

Attached to this proposal are Fluid Solutions’ “Standard Terms and Conditions for Service” and “Standard
Schedule of Charges”, which are made a part of this proposal and agreement. Fluid Solutions is ready to
begin working to resolve the issues that the Linden Elementary School septic system has.

Return of one copy of this proposal signed by an authorized agent of Show Low Unified School District or
issuance of a Purchase Order referencing this proposal will be considered the “Notice to Proceed” for this
project.

Sincerely, Acceptance:
Fluid Solutions Show Low Unified School District #10

o7

Norm Fain, PE
Member/Principal Engineer

Authorized Signature

Printed Name and Title

Date

Cc: Pat Cruse, Arizona School Facilities Board

& /id Solutions



1.0

20

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

& Awid Solutions

Water « Wostewnte: « Engincedng « Environmentol Services

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR SERVICES

CLIENT

As used herein, Client is the entity who authorized performance of services by Fluid
Solutions and, therefore, accepts responsibility for payment under conditions governed by
this document and the proposal or scope of work.

CONSULTANT

As used herein, Consultant refers to Engineering & Geologic Water & Wastewater Services,
L.L.C., dba Fluid Solutions, the entity authorized by the Client to perform the services as
described in the proposal or scope of work.

CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1 Client will furnish Consultant with access to the site necessary to perform the
agreed upon services, unless otherwise stated in the scope of work.

3.2 Client will provide Consultant with all information within Client's possession or

knowledge related to the possible presence of hazardous or toxic materials at the
site. If unanticipated hazardous or toxic materials are encountered during
Consultant's field work, Consultant reserves the right to demobilize its field
operations at the Client's expense. Consultant will proceed with field operations
following consultation with Consultant's Health and Safety Officer and Client's
acceptance of proposed safety measures and any necessary adjustments in scope
and fee.

CONSULTANT RESPONSIBILITES

41 Reasonable precautions will be taken by Consultant to avoid damage to
underground pipelines, structures, and utilities. Client agrees to hold Consultant
and its members, agents, employees, and subcontractors harmless for any
damages to such structures, pipelines, and utilities which are not called to
Consultant's attention, which are incorrectly shown on plans furnished, or which are
inaccurately located in the field by the Client, utility companies, and/or utility locating
services.

4.2 In the performance of its professional services, Consultant will provide the current
standard of care and skill ordinarily exercised in the consulting profession under
similar conditions in similar localities. No other warranties, expressed or implied,
are made or intended in any of Consultant's proposal, contracts or reports.

43 The data presented by Consultant represents conditions only at the specified
locations and at the time designated. Client acknowledges that this data may not
represent conditions at other locations or times. Consultant will be responsible for
its data, interpretations, and recommendations, but shall not be responsible for the
interpretation by others.

INSURANCE

Consultant is protected against most risks of liability exposure by Workmen's Compensation
Insurance, Commercial General Liability Insurance, and Professional Liability Insurance with
respect to liabilities arising from its negligent errors and omissions. Certificates of coverage
will be supplied upon request.

INDEMNIFICATION

Each party agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the other from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, expenses and
liability, real or alleged, in connection with the performance of work on this Project, excepting
only those damages, liabilities or costs attributable to the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of either Fluid Solutions or Client. Each party shall be responsible for their
own sole negligence or willful misconduct.



7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

Juid Solutions

Water » Wastewnter « Enginesting = Environmente] Services

?

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both the Client
and Fluid Solutions, the risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees to the
fullest extent permitted by law, Fluid Solutions total liability to the Client for any and all
injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claim expenses arising out of this
agreement from any cause or causes, shall not exceed our fee. Such causes include, but
are not limited to, Fluid Solutions’ negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of
contract or breach of warranty.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Disputes between the Client and Fluid Solutions may be submitted to non-binding
mediation.

TERMINATION OF SERVICES

Agreements for service may be terminated by the Client or Fluid Solutions should the
other fail to perform its obligations hereunder. In the event of termination, the Client shall
pay Fluid Solutions for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable
expenses, and reimbursable termination expenses to the extent applicable.

INVOICES AND PAYMENT

10.1 Invoices for services rendered will be submitted, at Fluid Solutions’ option, either
upon completion of such services or on a monthly basis every month. Payment is
due upon presentation of Consultant's invoice and is past due thirty (30) days from
invoice date.

10.2  Client agrees to pay a finance charge of 1.5 percent per month to any balance
unpaid after 60 days, retroactive to the date of the original invoice. Any attorney's
fees or other costs incurred in collecting any delinquent amount shall be paid by the
Client.

10.3  Retainers received by Fluid Solutions shall be applied to balances due at the
conclusion of the project. For example, if Fluid Solutions were to receive a retainer
equivalent to 25 percent of the cost for a project, the retainer would be applied
following billings and payments of first 75 percent of the project costs. Any unused
retainage shall be refunded to Client within 30 days following (1) completion of
services to which the retainer was applicable and (2) Client being current on all
billings to Fluid Solutions.

PROJECT FILLES AND RECORDS

Products produced by Fluid Solutions under this agreement shall be the property of the
Client. All pertinent records will be retained for 2 years after report issuance. After such
time, Consultant may elect to notify Client of Consultant’s desire to dispose of project related
records. Should Client elect, Consultant shall make Client files available for pick-up at
Consultant's place of business. Should Client not elect to take possession of its records,
Consultant shall have the right to appropriately dispose of Client's records at any time
following the 30t day after the initial notification to Client.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Consultant agrees to hold all project materials and findings in confidence, will not publish
information regarding this Project, and shall make no release of documents or information to
any person other than Client before or after completion of the study, without prior written
approval of Client.



Juid Solutions

Water « Wastewoter » Engineering « Environmentol Services

@

STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

The standard compensation to Fluid Solutions for professional services is detailed below:

Professional Services

Our current standard hourly charges for services are as follows:

Principal Engineer $190
Principal Hydrogeologist $160
Senior Project Engineer $135
Senior Hydrogeologist $120
Senior Engineer $120
Project Scientist/Geologist $115
Staff Engineer $100
Project Hydrologist/Water Resource Specialist $100
Staff Scientist $ 80
Project Coordinator $ 80
Designer $ 80
Senior Technician $ 80
Staff Hydrologist/Geologist $ 80
Staff Engineer $75
Technician $ 65
Field Representative $ 80
Intern $ 55
Administrator $ 80
Clerical $ 50

Expert Witness charges at 1.5 times Consultant's hourly charge. Includes all time for preparation and
participation in depositions and/or testifying to courts, commissions, and legislature.

Equipment.
A Mileage, per mile: IRS Standard Mileage Rate
B. Field Equipment: Because of the varied nature of equipment, location and

use, these rates will be quoted as required.

Other Services and Supplies.

Charges for services, equipment and facilities not furnished directly by Consultant, and any
unusual items of expense not customarily incurred in our normal operations, are computed
as follows:

A Cost plus 15% includes shipping charges, subsistence,
transportation, printing and reproduction, miscellaneous supplies
and rentals.

B. Cost plus 15% includes sub-consultant services, equipment rental

and lease, testing laboratories, aircraft and watercraft operation
and contract labor.



Emergency Deficiency Fund Balance
January 30, 2015

Revenues
Transfers From the New School Facilities Fund  $16,088,364
Transfers from Deficiency Corrections Fund $700,434
Total Revenues $16,788,797
Obligations to Date ($16,224,568)
Balance $564,229
February 4, 2015 Awards {$80,595)
Balance $483,634

The Board has awarded 75 projects.
4 projects are in construction
71 projects are complete



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item Vlil.a.

Subject: VIil. Emergency Deficiencies Correction Requests
a. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
Emergency Deficiencies Correction Requests (construction
award)

Bullhead City Elementary

Background — Bullhead City Elementary (District Office — repair backflow preventer)
Bullhead City Elementary has submitted an Emergency Deficiencies Correction request for the
repair of the backflow preventer on Building 1004 at the District Office.

Bullhead City Elementary, located 200 miles northwest of Phoenix along the Colorado River,
has seven schools. The District Office is comprised of four buildings constructed between 1976
and 2008, totaling 17,724 square feet. Building 1004 was built in 2008, totaling 8,000 square
feet.

The district received a proposal for the repair in the amount of $595.

Criteria for Eligibility

A.R.S. §15-2022, paragraph E.: For the purpose of this section, “emergency” means a serious
need for materials, services or construction or expenses in excess of the district's adopted
budget for the current fiscal year that seriously threatens the functioning of the school district,
the preservation or protection of the property or public health, welfare or safety.

Staff Recommendation — Bullhead City Elementary (District Office — repair backflow preventer)
Staff recommends that Bullhead City Elementary be awarded $595 in Emergency Deficiencies
Correction funding for the repair of the backflow preventer on Building 1004 at the District
Office.

Board Action Requested: [ ]information [ X ] action / described below

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Bullhead City Elementary be awarded $595
in Emergency Deficiencies Correction funding for the repair of the backflow preventer on
Building 1004 at the District Office.

Attachments: Yes [ X ] No[ ]



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD EMERGENCY DEFICIENCIES CORRECTIONS

S ST S~ e ——
Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_Emergency Deficiencies Corrections Fund

District: Bullhead City Elementary
EP Project Number: 08041500S-1004-002EP Mohave County
Project Description: Repair backflow preventer
Consultant: n/a
Contractor: Sun Devil Fire (623-245-0636)
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Emergency Deficiencies Base Cost $ 595
Contingency (1) $ -

Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees

Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc.

Testing & Inspection

Total Additional Cost:

A @A © | AR
1

Total SFB Funded Project Cost: 595
District Share (Local Funds): -
SFB Board Approved Amount: 595

Total Project Cost: 595

(@ Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 230
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 Bullhead City ESD 002EP Vertical Sheet vie



C

School Facilities Board EMERGENCY DEFICIENCY CORRECTION

SFB EP 110-08 Project Application Form

Emergency Deficiencies Correction Funding Application

Initial Submission Date: 1/23/2015 4:29:39 PM Application ID: 1784
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Bullhead City Elementary District
Superintendent: Riley Frie
Contact Person: John Wawrzynek

Contact Phone Number: 9284447529

Contact Email: jwawrzynek@bullheadschools.com
School Site: District Office
Buildings: 1004 District Office Suite 100

Application Title: Back Flow Preventer

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

[back flow preventer has failed inspection. |

Project Category: Plumbing

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding Was money to address this issue included in your adopted budget for this fiscal year? N
Current fiscal year building renewal expenditures: $0.00
Current balance of unrestricted capital: $0.00

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

[N/A

Liaison: Breuer gbreuer@azsfb.gov 602-542-6139

Superintendent Printed Name

Superintendent Signature Date

1/23/2015 4:29:38 PM 1 Application ID: 1784



Sun Devil ; dcat F | |
Phoenix TU cson Report/h?UOtatlon
623-245-0636 520-792-9911 -
Statewide: 1-800-536-3845 07423
AZ CONTR LIC.: #L—1 6 091362 #L'57 090913 # -05 095653

’FIRE PHOTEC'"ON DEFICIENCY AREPORT / QUOTATION
Date: _)/22]15

Company: _3 Hc¢ piSteieT O FEICe Account Number:
Address: (ool HAMCack RO , , : .
City: _ButLHcael Sate: Az Zip_f6yyz
Contact: _,I__H- VIRV ‘ , Phone #: ‘ | __ Faxi:
Qty Partleescription ; LocatiofdArea w UnitPrice | Extended Price
1 || wew wikrrs 275 Lawd 2 1Ya i..!ﬂLa_eo___
2] (-5 ' : $ i20.00|% 12000
3| s Is
4 $ $
5 $ $
L E $
7 $ $
8 $ L
Sub-Total: [$ 560 -co
Tec |s 34y
Total:

Comments Ex: S-H

_KuMﬂzvo vew ﬁS_S_anIy

The abave mentioned item(s) are respectfully submitted to improve your company s ﬁre/hfe safety protection and
to keep your facility in compliance with OSHA, NFPA and local fire codes. Please call to speak with a Service
Manager to rectify the deficiencies or fax your approval to the number above, Afin: Service Department.

Authorization/Purchase Order Number:

- 3
— : — . O 3ot9yg
Customer's Acknowledgment Signature Techmcnan Slgnature and No.

LET OUR #1 TEAM PROTECT YOUR #1 TEAM

Copyright 2004 + Sun Devil Fire Equipment « 8/04




STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD
Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item Viil.b.
Subject: VIIl. Emergency Deficiencies Correction Requests

b. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
Emergency Deficiencies Correction Requests (design award)

St Johns Unified

Background — St Johns Unified (District Office — roof structure/roof replacement)

St. Johns Unified has submitted an Emergency Deficiencies Correction request for the roof
structure, roof replacement and correction of interior finished due to major roof leaks on Building
1001 at the District Office.

St. Johns Unified, located 217 miles northeast of Phoenix, has four schools. The District Office
is one building constructed in 1982, totaling 5,100 square feet.

The Arizona Risk Retention Trust (the Trust) was contacted at the request of the SFB to
determine if there was insurance coverage for any of the potential issues. The Trust's structural
engineer's report indicated the building structure was unsafe and shoring was installed
immediately.

It was also noted in the engineer's report that the district had contracted with a structural
engineer in 2006 to evaluate the deflections in the roof structure. That initial investigation report
provided multiple recommendations. The report outlined intended solutions to reduce the roof
load; however, not all recommendations were executed. The original design (1981-82) was
provided and stamped by a registered architect; however, it did not meet Apache County
permitting requirements per the evaluation report and the original construction did not comply
with the drawings. This was noted in the 2006 investigation report.

The 2006 investigation report also noted that the existing roof-mounted HVAC units appear to
have replaced the originally specified evaporative coolers. The HVAC units were significantly
heavier than the coolers would have been. The district removed and relocated the HVAC units
to the ground at some point. The district installed interior glulam beams to support the roof
structure without direction of a structural engineer. The building structure currently does not
meet the required dead load per the report provided by Gervasio Engineering dated December
10, 2014. In the original design, surrounding the HVAC units on the roof was a steel screen wall
to hide the HVAC units from ground view.

Because of the complexity of the needed repairs, SFB staff is requesting $80,000 for the design

of roof structure corrections, hvac/electrical supporting systems and restoration/replacement of
the roof.

Criteria for Eligibility
A.R.S. §15-2022, paragraph E.: For the purpose of this section, “‘emergency” means a serious
need for materials, services or construction or expenses in excess of the district’s adopted




budget for the current fiscal year that seriously threatens the functioning of the school district,
the preservation or protection of the property or public health, welfare or safety.

Staff Recommendation — St Johns Unified (District Office — roof structure/roof replacement)
Staff recommends that St Johns Unified be awarded $80,000 in Emergency Deficiencies
Correction funding for the professional services to develop construction bid documents to
correct the structural repairs, HVAC corrections and roof replacement on Building 1001 at the
District Office.

Board Action Requested: [ ]information [ X ] action / described below

Board approval of the staff recommendation that St Johns Unified be awarded $80,000 in
Emergency Deficiencies Correction funding for the professional services to develop construction
bid documents to correct the structural repairs, HVAC corrections and roof replacement on
Building 1001 at the District Office.

Attachments: Yes [ X ] No[ ]



SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD EMERGENCY DEFICIENCIES CORRECTIONS

Detail of Additional Cost and Contingency
_X_Emergency Deficiencies Corrections Fund

District: St Johns Unified
EP Project Number: 01020101D-1001-001EP Apache County
Project Description: Roof structure/roof replacement
Consultant: Gervasio & Assoc. Inc. (602-285-1720)
Contractor: 8D
Board approval: 2/4/2015
School Facilities Board Action Staff Rec. or
Approved as recommended by Staff Approved
Emergency Deficiencies Base Cost $ -
Contingency (1) $ -

Architecture / Engineering (A&E) Fees 3 80,000
Survey & Required Reports, Printing, Permits, Advertising, Etc. 3 -
Testing & Inspection $ -
Total Additional Cost: $ 80,000
Total SFB Funded Project Cost: $ 80,000
District Share (Local Funds): $ -
SFB Board Approved Amount: $ 80,000

Total Project Cost: $ 80,000

(O Contingency shall only be used with SFB staff approval.

School Facilities Board
1700 W. Washington, Suite 230
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501
FAX: (602) 542-6529 St Johns USD Q01EP Vertical Sheet xis




School Facilities Board EMERGENCY DEFICIENCY CORRECTION

SFB EP 110-08 Project Application Form

Emergency Deficiencies Correction Funding Application

Initial Submission Date: 11/24/2014 1:28:08 PM . Application ID: 1670
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: St Johns Unified District
Superintendent: Ed Burgoyne
Contact Person: Catherine Patterson

Contact Phone Number: 928-337-2255

Contact Email: cpatterson@sjusd.net
School Site: District Office
Buildings: 1001 District Administrative Office

Application Title: Repair of District Office Roof

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

The District Office roof leaks like sieve with each rain. We have trash cans strategically placed throughout
the building. The interior ceilings are damaged and the tape and drywall is coming loose. We had two
quotes see attached file from Progressive Roofing one for $50,813 which attach is a 1/4" Invinsaboard and
installation of 60 MIL TPO. The other for $60,093 is Mechanically attached 1/2" Fiber board and the
installation of 4 PLY built-up roof. We feel the later quote is the better option. These fees don't include the
engineers or other needed professional studies. I am applying for a an estimated $100,000 Emergency
Grant to cover costs both professional and structural.

Project Category: Roofing

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? |

Available Funding Was money to address this issue included in your adopted budget for this fiscal year? N
Current fiscal year building renewal expenditures: $0.00
Current balance of unrestricted capital: $226,000.00

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.

The district does not have sufficient insurance to remedy this problem. I contacted The Trust they are willing
to look at the interior damage, but will not contribute to the roof. There is $15,000 remaining balance in the
building renewal fund. We have a District Capital Needs list that totals approx. $600,000 with $146,000 as
immediate attention.

1/27/2015 11:44:11 AM 1 Application ID: 1670



GERVASIO & ASSOC., INGp {ifffs

f 1'

CONSULTING ENGINEERS COMMUNICATIONS RECORD
(602) 285-1720 » 77 East Thomas Road, Suite 120
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

PROJECT: St. Johns Unified School District SwWes: 8-30-201 JOB# 4141F

WITH: Otis Connolly DATE: Dec. 10,2014

OF:  St. Johns School District TITLE  Maintenance Supervisior

PHONE #:  928.245.4660 FAX 0  oconnolly@sjusd.net

BY: Fred M. Nelson , By Phone O  In Person O

I give Otis the following information:
St. Johns Middle School, Gymnasium Building:

I inspected the east bearing condition critical TIL truss under the Girl’s HVAC eqqi_g;;‘l'lent‘during my November
24, 2014 site visit. I found no evidence of damage to this truss...THEREFORE, ITIS ACCEPTABLE TO
INSTALL THE PROPOSED ELEVATED CURBS at all skylights in this building.

St. Johns High School, Room 19:

1 inspected the TIL trusses in Room 19 during my November 24, 2014 site visit, and determined that the roof
framing members are 14 inch deep TIL’s, spanning 30 ft., spaced at 24 inches o.c. We performed structural
calculations to evaluate the addition of a 300 Ib. swing in this room and determined that there is a slight overstress
of 6%, which is acceptable... THEREFORE, IT IS ACCEPTABLE TO INSTALL THE SWING in this room as
planned, and we will subsequently provide simple details for this installation.

St. Johns Administration Building:

I inspected the attic framing during my November 24, 2014 site visit, and measured the two glulam beams
that were installed several years ago by school personnel, and a typical roof truss plus the truss spacing.
We prepared structural calculations to evaluate both components for “dead loads” plus the Code mandated
20 psf snow load. We determined that (1) the long glulam beam is overstressed by approximately 100%
and the short glulam beam is acceptable; (2) the typical trusses spaced at 16 in. o.c. are overstressed 78%
at the top chord and 31% at the bottom chord, and much more where the spacing is 24 inches; and (3) the
trusses are acceptable with the center support provided by the glulam beam.

THEREFORE, the roof framing components of the Administration Building are sufficiently overstressed
under snow load conditions to render the building as unsafe, and WE RECOMMEND shoring the
vulnerable components. The glulam beam should be shored with a 6x6 wood post bearing on a 4x12x2 ft.
wood sleeper to spread the load. The other full spanning trusses should be shored at the middle panel
point. In the south hallway and north storage room, a post and beam shoring system should be
implemented; and in the middle hallway, the existing masonry wall can be used for shoring. I requested,
we will design the post and beam shoring systems. Also, if there is a heavy snow storm prior to
implementing the shoring, the building should be evacuated until the snow is removed. We will also
design permanent repairs for these conditions, following additional verbal discussion/guidance with you.

Copy to: 8/02-1F




GERVASIO & ASSOC., INC.

CONSULTING ENGINEERS : COMMUNICATIONS RECORD
(602) 285-1720 - 77 East Thomas Road, Suite 120
“Phoenix, Arizona 85012

PROJECT: St. Johns Unified School District JOB#: 4141F

WITH: Otis Connolly DATE: Dec. 11,2014
OF:  St. Johns School District TII‘LE Maintenance Supervisior
PHONE #: 928.245.4660 FAX 0 oconnolly@sjusd.net

BY: Fred M. Nelson ' By Phone O In Person O

The following isa followup from our discussion/communications record of December 10, 2014:
St. Johns High Scheol, Room 19:
We (G&A) will submit details for the swing attachment within the next week.

St. Johns Administration Building:

1. The District needs to obtain bids for the emergency shoring. Therefore, we (G&A) will prepare
conceptual sketches of the proposed shoring, and will “refine” the shoring details/drawings after
the shoring contractor is selected so that the shoring will be consistent with our the design loads
and the shoring contractor’s available materials. '

2. Fred M. Nelson will be present at the initial shoring operations to answer questions and to verify
that the shoring contractor’s work is consistent with the intent of our shoring design.

Copy to: ' 8/02-1F




GERVASIO & ASSOC., INC. ARRVAL () oL
Consulting Engineers REPORT NO. ’ DEPARTURE 1] 2 25
it == afso oy | YL
(602) 285-1720 PROJE — —
FAX (602) 285-1530 g 'jﬂmi Adm syl LDINC
TO {U\B— Ztﬁfﬁb I é‘ﬁ'\[ﬂ’ﬁ A%’ \4@0 \/\)
Ax Soave b ler 72@7” ors
WEATHER TEMP ,° . at 8 A
CJ{JLF : Lf Z> )Q ° 0 PM
THE FOLLOWING WAS NOTED: %D N Bu Dy\)}l u'\) FKM
> | 1 ons Gonmoly

G) ’V\)ﬁ,&\ﬁmcj aw-ew\wmhw §/(ar:l/ténfmw;\/mﬁ Z

deto|( of how) /ZMW//&QJ o Dol

& CRS b begin s [t 4 F/MNWL Do_ipsf6cts pn

o ;/é/%/t/ fo ° M

() Thog< wrall Smaﬁv&r/ s/éf%m/c Wlomm Thue

~ e s wil] e Pl ad bl

- O hwmy@l ﬁwm\u wf Lot B Brom ufln mt//

VALY shet G wcH N

o Pon P Ohs émm//M Doty L

SUPERINTENDENT Ron R skeq | | SES;‘ W %’D@Rf}f

]l

rovx,ﬂ shey € ¢f $-in Foes, com



4ory
it B
ooy: g
TR SY
522§
il oL s
Y7/ av 30w 'smym  anows <n-txog |
- L St R
H.un. ‘sgaly aTMNG O tisor o) 81 b
918" .na_E:ﬁE_m!h ‘Sav1 aisor S i R
TVII0 ¢ -t 0L Q1 kvl snoned XU L
o o= WL 2 QL BISOr 0BT 24
THLLOMILS ks ol g O o1
o0 o Vi oL of IS0r PR
A N3 o
4 H ;

fa38aad
5
et

52105 P20 WO POOM Y 0 8 LA ¥ O D
e 39 40 032 'wondts A 1eBoey Tl penaide

o

L S

i

s
= o T e

; s o g S
P stvoe ok = 171 EWJ A «%.EEE!.}!SS ?
v X E Bomes 35 TET e v
£ oy 9
4| e U
W ———C R e A O i s
T \ A e e ok g ) S v U R AT
SIN3 O T T o s 2 I} SN RTINS S0 Y
23 2 e g v aiﬁ:ﬁhﬁag €
55 =2 S o ssod 9 x 8 vt s o A sefvon e XS T
(m_;n =] 3OS ATIIN 3] TS
0 NNIEHS TIVN ORISKd 3 0, Ut “uopyepsia 1 B U
HE L] _ R Bpas A DO I 0 20 ANG-S, 0 RIYY RO 30K T3 Y
me B _n.u it} il j/;ﬁ?-&g —a6OM
A 1) -
m m b | oa o ol e sy wspoyid
m = 13 ‘e SERUIAI Y DY 10 MO K] 4401 J0 Lrkagemn § @ Doz ey
228z | e¥D 1500 B2V MOSYS o 0L ‘S WALION T
% W% > 30 000K 5 g0t = ) pSAS LN g iphuasie
m. o XY angroudu wreepon 1 0061 7 WAL ‘N PRI I 0K SRINRD KOO T
mmm A . —RROSVH
IS0 NS
1 m W. i it .
m n U 4 °
°Q
(@]
.
(@]
h

H_n_mcﬁm.‘s_ ) ..TE
T
il

Ag{ SNOISIASY




N

“3009 OHITHNG TYROUYNISING 2102 L
20 eT0L THYL ‘INONES oNetlsvd
QL W3CR 110 GFYIYD ION DHOIH NOJ

-+ 30w ‘sad ¥ oo di-daa By |0
ST OIS UINE0D dN-INng L)
oo WAEOL UV O UM 91

TUIN30E 2V OF BISIOH DROEBD TH

saed pIS bl
ot 3
Y 20 00aL “Uosding AG KTumy J90f panaide <
e B UL 207} LI PR
19970 pores Ayeovpsads Jou Supets s TIRT 45190 orpoups Bel 395 3
L b DR

ot

ey ,
SIS SRR ) 947 10 SO K 1481 J0 traupessa ¥ 8 0002 i

21058 YNOZIY “XINGOH
i

0E5L-G8T Xv4 02L1—S82 (209)

(SONIMYI NO FEUAIHLO CLON SSTIHN Adev)
SALON TVUAIONWIS

is}!guit;ﬁ&uﬂaﬁa .
*IDRAUD K 10 AN
‘)

< "ONI "D0SSV_% OISVA¥AD

: raYics 0008 NoSeS 72H MisamS [ evi-zus ohisit 1) phese: Sk
pio Boysus "o %

oty d

iﬂi%tggggiag\i "
proviied

gxzfigiiiggg
5o 00 PP 2000 5189108 100 DI UENOAR S350 BLISDR ROOR) oy
—vw T \m&ﬁ:« = HOHONY b L Sornyg

|
L.
i
i
;
Bk

Qmacud o 8 Y WA P
- s

yhored T

] ¥ 4] d = < P o e TORURERONG 0 SHRUSLNY e

[£ ’ - ; »
L] o -t 4

SALON TvaaNID BRIHONS

Buptani) sen0 003 By Jo Bujoys Aol P uaR |

T VHANa0) HHG VANLITELS 40 S9005

“SuaLvy BTN GL ison oNnad gl |
SHOULLMYG HIAD Sov1 'BiS0f SO vl |G
VHIOL ‘OIS O SNONHILNGY &L 'y

TR e G

T T




4
_m

E-ﬁgm uawnﬁg_sg
overas ima Ly T coeisicd 0,90

o) 0 reH T lgd 59))

cowrpb ¥ @ YIS Ak

EL]

svapst A

pe———
PRy sorpnpatas 40

PRI 20 Yt doas

TH TCESY ¥ DSWNGD 4

Lot wp ® Y S g
g 1 o Smom o,

B yRuRdag
i A panpcs Vit 5 3 SO ] popua 4 m 3 Lol ppails

/ HOLLD3ASNI 1V193dS

"ONI "DOSSY %® OISVAYED

SNJSIASY

@ Yoo n mavem ey 3
') 30 AL uosduig & srduey isp] paaudde a

e i 3t ‘SR B
et sy TERT wesag e 995t
w9

“opery BUpEDg [UOKeURT 2I0C Y
4903

{SONTMYI HO BSIWEAHLD CRLLON SSTIHD Aladv)

BAION IVINIDNIS

“FuanHY U] PRRISB31 SN UV JG Saneutys pioe jeas
wipsp Ay 2
R i 0 Agarsuodsas
L) [
G0 Uk SUOREXX ol “spoot Buuss
. » Bugolss
PR 0] VA S0 20 Bl Tupons o L]
“SuopgneD SORSTA I O [SOVEaL JO/DUR (RADYI 3 G WOM A AL
s s SAp0 % S R Bugoo! ‘i) G o stewep fuy
A sguind PRIy
A, L G 0 LHOL UL 00 93 8
L 0 e 0% UOREIORS SILL PRIRDAL §Y FNPUOD RO AR
e S DU S0 *SIOPRUIGS 908 T BRI Sanen Be SHOOR EIGY
pue Buwping SuonEse
TPURIO% g KPRV GRLL “SIHULCS (8 AGIN AR SRR B pur SuTd
L3 Rgn €

W X ¥ RIS SARE
CanuRRTNA 25 PRURdGSE AUR
12 S0 a4 AOH “HIO BUIRIE 0 o1 SUORBUST PUY SR 12 BATA T
ot 4 AA73s PUT SUORIURD BURSTRS
g R S0 ‘i BB A BRI 0t Bt vk pases R By S

FALON VHTNIS BNIROHS

Sty 11 4000 Dumao 0 Bupous Ariodury pug wouswRd 1
oM 15 039




Nevertheless, the addition of a higher curb for the skylights in this area will have little, if any, effect on the
supporting TrusJoists; therefore, the installation of the higher curb at these locations IS ACCEPTABLE, as
increase in dead load is trivial. |

HOWEVER, WE RECOMMEND that bearing area of the middle TJL under the HVAC unit at the Girls
Locker Room be examined by school personnel (which will likely require removal and replacement of ceiling
components in this area). This examination should include observation of the “pin-connected joints’ at the
top and bottom chords of the TrusJoist to observe whether there is any distress or cracking in the wood chords,
particularly in the immediate area of its bearing on the wood ledger that supports it.

St. Johns Administration Building - Roof Leaks:

We identified six separate leaks on the reflected ceiling plan. These leaks were manifest by ceiling stains (1) near
the middle of the Board Room west wall; (2) within the Vestibule located north of the Assistant Superintendent’s
office; (3) near the southeast corner of the Lounge;. (4) near the northwest corner of the Lounge; (5) near the
northwest corner of the Computer room; and (6) near the northwest corner of the large Storage Room.

Our roof inspection revealed that these leaks were likely caused as follows: (1) Board Room leak by
malfunctioning screen wall lag screw connection(s); (2 & 3) Assistant Superintendent’s Vestibule and southeast
Lounge leaks by long diagonal tear in roof membrane; (4 & 5) northwest Lounge and Computer Room leaks by
malfunctioning screen wall lag screw connection(s) or duct screw connection(s) or possibly the reported wind

damage; and (6) Storage Room leak by improper flashing/counter flashing at the end of the northwest partial parapet
wall.

St. Johns Administration Building - Existing Roof Truss Support Beam Repairs:

School personnel emphasized that the installed roof trusses are different than the TJ/50 trusses specified on the
drawings. We note that they are spaced at 2 ft. o.c. and not at 1 ft. 4 in. o. c. as specified for the TJ/50 trusses.
Circa 2006, excessive sagging was observed in the Lounge area, which was evaluated by a Northern Structural
engineer, who recommended the installation of glulam beams under the sagging trusses. Circa 2008, school
personnel installed two new glulam beams under these trusses in the Attic plenum. A handwritten note on a
Northern Structural floor plan describes the main beam as a “6x26 Lamin beam” and the cross beam as a “4x16
lamin beam”. Because these are not standard glulam beam sizes, we assume that the beams are 5-1/8 x 25-1/2 inch
and a 3-1/8 x 15 inch glulam beams, respectively. We also verified during our site visit that the main beam is
located unfier a “panel point” near the ridge, which is the correct location. It spans approximately 28.7 ft. and its
nort!l bearing is reportedly supported by a wood column (in a furred out interior wall) that bears over an interior
footing. The supporting cross beam is reportedly supported by existing walls and spans 7 ft.

ersprepa}red structura] calculations to evaluate the load capacity these beams. We determined that the main 5-1/8
X -1/2 inch glulam beam is adequate to support the tributary load. We also determined that the cross 3-1/8 x 15

mc¥1 glulam beam is also adequate. The reactions of these beams are approximately 15,500 Ibs. at the ends of the
main beam and 7750 Ibs. at ends of the cross beam.

We did not analyze the roof trusses for the changed configuration with the center support, nor did we closely

examyi i i
Outs.dne these trusses to Qetermme the damage that caused them to sag an excessive amount, as these tasks were
1de the scope of our limited site visit work.,



St. Johns Administration Building - Northern Structural “Site Observation Report™:

The Northern Structural (NS) report was authored by Kirk A. Uchytil, S.E. It was written to address “structural
concerns of excessive ceiling deflection, roof truss deflection and drywall cracks that have occuired in some areas

of the building.”

We have reviewed this report and have the following comments:

1. NS found missing ledgers at an interior (east/west) masonry wall, where there was “excessive deflection.” NS
recommended installing ledgers at these locations. WE ASSUME that this work was done.

NS noted that the discovery of excessive truss deflection “coincides with the major snow storm that St. Johns
experienced on March 12, 2006.” WE NOTE that Climatological Data Arizona reported 0.95 inches of
precipitation and 14 inches of ground snow for March 11, 2006, which is equivalent to approximately 5 psf
of snow load.

NS found “some areas of concern” in its examination of the trusses, including a crack in a web member and
amissing truss plate, WE WILL examine these and other conditions during our proposed detailed examination
of the truss system. ,

NS performed structural calculations and determined that “with a dead load of 10 psf” and the self weight of
the truss, “the calculated dead load deflection is 2.48 inches at the middle of the span...when adding a snow
load of 20 pounds per square foot, the deflection is increased to 6.1 inches.” These deflections are very large,
and WE WILL PERFORM AN INDEPENDENT analysis of the trusses following our detailed examination
of the truss system.

NS noted the presence of heavy HV AC units on the roof, and commented that its calculations did not consider
these added loads. WE NOTE that the HVAC units were removed and ground mounted units were
subsequently installed.

NS noted that two intersecting masonry walls extend above the ceiling without lateral support. WE WILL
examine this condition during our proposed detailed examination of the truss system.

NS noted the presence of “several cracks in walls and ceilings” and essentially explained that the expansive

soils that exist in the St. Johns area are vulnerable to expansion when “moisture reaches the soil that supports
the foundation.”

N{S proposed several recommendations, including placing a support beam “below the bottom truss and aligned
with the truss peak.” Its drawing shows one truss in the “Reception” area and another in the large Storage

Room. WE NOTE that glulam beams were subsequently installed by District personnel in the Reception area,
but not in the Storage Room.



P.O. Box 2874 - St Johns, AZ 85936
Phone: (928) 337-3059 Fax: (928) 337-3059
Site Observation Report
Date of Inspection: May 6 & May 8, 2006
Building Description: Exterior walls & some interior walls of slump block, wood trusses,
‘ and concrete floors.
Building Location: 450 S. 13" St. West, St Johns, Arizona 85936
Client: St Johns School District

The following report contains the results of an on-site inspection performed at the site listed
above. The report addresses structural concerns of excessive ceiling deflection, roof truss
deflection, and drywall cracks that have occurred in some areas of the building. For orientation
purposes, the East side of the building is considered the front of the building where the main
entrance is located. Accompanying this report is a plan view drawing showing approximate
locations of each of the photos included in the report.

Observation Findings:

Just inside the main entry, there are areas were the edges of the ceiling adjacent to interior
walls are visibly deflecting (sagging). Temporary support has been installed along two of
these walls. Photo #1 shows the ceiling deflecting along an interior masonry wall to the
north. Photo #2 indicates that a ledger was not installed into the masonry wall to support
the edge of the drywall. This masonry wall is parallel to the roof trusses.

Photo #1: Sagging ceiling adjacent to wall. Photo #2: No ledger to supp(;rt ceiling edge.

Photo #3 again shows that a ledger was not installed along another interior masonry wall.
This wall is also parallel to the roof trusses. Photo #4 shows a ledger along the masonry
wall perpendicular to the trusses. This is the same area that received additional temporary
support from below the ceiling due to the ceiling showing excessive deflection wrchm the
last 2 to3 months according to Terry Maher.

IR 06-1191 May 19, 2006 Page | of 6




 NORTHERN STRUCTURAL

P.O. Box 2874 St Johns, AZ 85936
i Phone: (928) 337-3059 Fax: (928) 337-3059

This time frame of 2 to 3 months coincides with the major snow storm that St Johns
experienced on March 12, 2006. During this storm, it appears that the significant load due
to the snow caused the trusses to deflect excessively (relative to “normal” deflection
without the snow). When this occurred, the part of the ledger fastened to the masonry wall
resisted any vertical movement while the extended part of the ledger being supported by
trusses deflected downward along with the trusses. This introduced excessive force in the
fastener closest to the corner and caused it to fail. This was likely followed by failure of
other adjacent fasteners.

Ledger extension _ Failed Fastener

Photo #3: Wall corner with missing ledger Photo #4: Ledger with failed fastener

Along the south side of the recessed ceiling above the reception area, the light soffit has
visible deflection. During the inspection in the attic space, it appeared that the truss
directly above this area had excessive deflection in relation to an adjacent truss. Using
added access holes provided in the ceiling of this area, it was found that the north truss is
nearly 1 inch lower than the adjacent truss to the south (measured from the bottom chord of
the two trusses). Following the discovery of this excessive deflection, certain members of
this truss were inspected to determine the reason for the large deflection.

The following photos are some items of concern. Photo #5 shows a crack in the web
member that penetrates nearly the full thickness of the 2x4 web. Note that this crack has
not spread apart which indicates that total failure of the web member has not occurred.
Photo #6 shows a missing connector plate at the bottom chord of the truss. Thereisa
connector plate on the opposite side of the truss and it appears to be in satisfactory
condition or no evidence of shear failure.

Although the structural concerns indicated from photos 5 and 6 are noteworthy, they do not

appear to contribute significantly to the excessive deflection of the truss. It appears that
other items might be contributing to the truss deflection but are not visible.

IR 06-1191 May 19, 2006 ‘ Page 2 of 6




= NORTHERN STRUCTURAL

P.O. Box 2874 St Johns, AZ 85936
Phone: (928) 337-3059 Fax: (928) 337-3059

Photo #5: Roof truss web member cracked Photo #6: Same truss with missing connector plate

This same truss provides support for the light soffit with excessive deflection. Photo #7
shows one type of soffit support which typically occurs in two places along the soffit. At
the end of the soffit, the two soffits that join at the corner are supported with a heavy gage
wire as seen in photo #8. This type of support can allow for vertical downward movement
due to the crushing of the top corners of the truss bottom chord. The actual crushing may
only contribute a small amount to the vertical movement and likely took place during
original construction.

\,All-thread support

Photo #7: Light soffit support at recessed ceiling Photo #8: Light soffit support at corners

The existing roof trusses have a surprisingly shallow depth (43 inches at the peak) for the
length of span (58 feet) they support. Roof trusses of this type can experience
nonrecoverable slip in the plated connectors, if the stresses are high enough in the truss.
Therefore, calculations were performed to estimate the amount of stress the trusses are
experiencing. Using a dead load of 10 pounds per square foot (psf) plus the self weight of
the truss, the calculation results indicated that only the two top and bottom chord truss

IR 06-1191 May 19, 2006 Page 3 of 6




= NORTHERN STRUCTURAL

P.O. Box 2874 St Johns, AZ 85936
== Phone: (928) 337-3059 Fax: (928) 337-3059

members at each end were slightly overstressed. When adding a snow load of 20 psf
(approximate minimum snow load required by local building official for St Johns), the
results indicated that nearly all the truss members become overstressed. Although plate
slippage was not visibly evident, the presence of high stresses from the snow load could
have been significant enough to cause plate slippage.

The truss calculations performed also provided results on the estimated truss deflection.
The following deflection calculations did not include any value for plate slippage. Again
using a dead load of 10 pounds per square foot (psf) plus the self weight of the truss, the
calculated dead load deflection is 2.48 inches at the middle of the span. When adding a
snow load of 20 pound per square foot, the deflection increased to 6.1 inches. These
calculations were performed using a computer program for general structural engineering
and may not be as accurate as a computer program specifically written for truss design but
are considered usable for estimating purposes.

The truss deflection calculations did not include the loads from these 3 AC units shown in
photo #9. The ‘Roof Plan’ shown on sheet 2 of the original construction drawings
specified evaporative coolers. It looks as if the AC units were installed instead, and these
AC units are significantly heavier than the coolers would have been.

Photo #9: AC Units add to roof load Photo #10: Trusses in vicinity of one AC unit

The original building plans show a closet created by two masonry walls that meet to create
a corner. Photo #11 shows one masonry wall with the lower part of the wall removed and
cracking in the lowest bed joint. Photo #12 shows the top of both masonry walls that still
remain above the ceiling. This type of modification creates a safety concern due to no
sound vertical support for the remaining wall.

IR 06-1191 May 19, 2006 Page 4 of 6




NORTHERN STRUCTURAL

P.O. Box 2874 St Johns, AZ 85936
i Phone: (928) 337-3059 Fax: (928) 337-3059

Photo #11: Crack in remaining masonry wall Photo #12: Top of same masonry wall in photo 9

Several cracks in walls and ceilings were visible throughout the building. The crack shown
in photo #13 has a gap of approximately 3/8 inch. Photo #14 shows the same crack from
the other side of the wall. According to Terry Maher, these cracks have existed for several
years and were likely caused from a plumbing leak that had occurred. Considering the
expansive soils that are so prevalent in the St Johns area, foundation movement and
resulting cracks are common occurrences when moisture reaches the soil that supports the
foundation. Soil stabilization can be achieved by keeping the moisture content of the soil
constant.

Photo #13: Crack in masonry wall Photo #14: Same crack from opposite side of wall

IR 06-1191 May 19, 2006 ‘ Page 5 of 6




rerd kL - - P . oy et s PR . . - .
< A RSt et T EE 2l oo N N 1 K _.?r';.:} b i A E J ey T~ [ N p
d /,w- R S By MR S N H‘»’\/r‘"f ; ”\"‘xl i H"i(’f
: PN N M t >, . .’i % Ve 5 1%, 5 - | i, 1

% b k././i%ui PENA

.

1 P.O. Box 2874 St Johns, AZ 85936
=5 Phone: (928) 337-3059 Fax: (928) 337-3059

Conclusions & Recommendations:

Poor construction methods and “cutting corners” appear to be the main reason for the
structural problems being experienced. Ledgers not being installed in many areas of the
building are examples of poor construction. It is the opinion of the writer that if the
building code at the time of construction had been enforced, the existing roof trusses would
have been considered insufficient and would not have been used.

Following original construction, it appears later modifications were also performed using
poor construction methods. The remaining masonry walls shown in photos 11 & 12 are a
safety concern and should have been removed along with the other part of the wall.

The following is a list of recommendations to help resolve the structural concerns
previously mentioned:

1.

If there are questions concerning this report, please feel free to call.

Kirk A. Uchytil, S.E.

It is recommended that ledgers be installed that will provide sufficient support for the
ceiling edges. This should take place along interior walls both parallel and
perpendicular to the trusses.

It is strongly recommended that a support beam be placed directly below the bottom
truss and vertically aligned with the truss peak. This will reduce the span length by
half and eliminate the excessive deflection problems. This will involve added vertical
columns along the main walkway going north and south along with foundation
modifications. If this middle support is not installed, the current roof truss system
may eventually fail. The only other option apparent to the writer is to replace the
trusses although this option might not be feasible.

Remove the remaining masonry walls shown in photos 11 and 12 and revise the
ceiling support accordingly.

The cracked web in photo #5 must be repaired. This can typically be done by
fastening added 2x4’s into the existing member in a certain way to reinforce the
member. '

The cracks that have developed due to expansive soils seem to have stabilized
(according to Terry Maher) and are not considered a concern at this time.

IR 06-119.doc May 19, 2006 Page 6 of 6




ANON FVI5

401440 NOILYALSININAY Lo1¥1LsId SNHOM LS

LT ]

650¢-2€¢€ (826) xw ¥ SuoKd
00659 BUOZY ‘SULOL IS
¥l xog '0'd
Bueaujiug winjonig
__lsijuepisoy ¢ jsjosewwoy

ONILTNSNOD B, B
WANLOMNALG W —
NJFHLAON

L] = ] 0
JONVEINT
z_<§
e
al R >
2 72\ A
1304dNSG Wy3d 13044Ns Wy3ad
_ GAANINANODTNY A3aNTNNOITS
40 NOLLY201 " 40 NOILVY201
é ] NOIL4303d
— MAIA
OLOH4 40 NOILOFEIA q _
SOLOH4 40
NOILY201 X0dddY AQ g
RNEPER I




INON 3VIS

91440 NOILYIIGINIAAY 1O1¥1SId SNHOMM LS

AONYHLNG
NIV
. '/ 6g0e-Le¢ (826) X8 g suoUd
9E650 BUOZUY 'SUYOF 1S
¥i82 X8 '0'd
opapiany 3 19Ioeues
ONILTNSNOD
J VANLOMILG W
NJIHLAON
i N,w« AQLW. L _ séwm,ﬁL :
NAL Miw 1
.................. L kERLuad  Deanek
13044NS Wy3d HE e 2 @, w_
AZANIANWOOTA A3ANIWW0OTA b
| 10 NOWLY20'T 40 NOLLY201 @w& 0
\@_ _y NOIWL4Z03A
MAIA
_.J 0LOH4 40 NOILOFAIA q o f——
SOLOHd 0
NOILYOOT X0dddV Q g
ZN\EBER 15




STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD
Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item Viil.c.
Subject: VIil. Emergency Deficiencies Correction Requests

c. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
Emergency Deficiencies Correction Requests (denial)

Toltec Elementary
Background — Toltec Elementary (Arizona City ES — repair ceiling)

Toltec Elementary has submitted an Emergency Deficiencies Correction request for the repair of
the ceiling in the music classroom in Building 1002 at Arizona City Elementary School.

Toltec Elementary, located 57 miles southeast of Phoenix, has two schools. Arizona City
Elementary School is comprised of two buildings constructed between 2002 and 2013, totaling
89,399 square feet. These buildings are currently housing a District Sponsored Charter School.

The music classroom ceiling has been over stressed due to the “cloud” and lights that have
been attached to it causing a partial collapse. The attachment of the “cloud” and lights must be
redesigned to correct current collapse and prevent furtherffuture collapse. The district has
installed supports to keep the lighting and ceiling covering in place and safe.

Criteria for Eligibility

A.R.S. §15-2022, paragraph E.: For the purposes of this section, “emergency” means a serious
need for materials, services or construction or expenses in excess of the district's adopted
budget for the current fiscal year that seriously threatens the functioning of the school district,
the preservation or protection of property or public health, welfare or safety.

Staff Recommendation - Toltec Elementary (Arizona City ES — repair ceiling)

Staff recommends that Toltec Elementary’s request for Emergency Deficiencies Correction
funding to repair the ceiling in the music classroom at Arizona City Elementary School be
denied. This school does not qualify for SFB funding because it is a charter school,

Board Action Requested: [ ]information [ X ] action / described below

Board approval of the staff recommendation that Toltec Elementary’s request for Emergency
Deficiencies Correction funding to repair the ceiling in the music classroom at Arizona City

Elementary School be denied. This school does not qualify for SFB funding because it is a
charter school.

Attachments: Yes [ X ] No[ ]



School Facilities Board EMERGENCY DEFICIENCY CORRECTION

SFB EP 110-08 Project Application Form

Emergency Deficiencies Correction Funding Application

Initial Submission Date: 12/8/2014 8:25:13 AM Application ID: 1706
Resubmittal Date:

Please provide as much of the requested information as possible. SFB staff will assist in developing required
information that is not currently available.

District Name: Toltec School District
Superintendent: Bryan McCleney
Contact Person: ' Hector Longoria

Contact Phone Number: 520-709-8763

Contact Email: hlogoria@toltecsd.org
School Site: Arizona City Elementary (formerly Toltec Elementary School)
Buildings: 1001 Elementary

Application Title: Music room ceiling

Description of Problem

Please include a detailed description of the issues, as well as a description of and a copy of any professional
studies, citations or reports from government entities, recommended solutions, and any cost information or
estimates. If additional space is needed, please attach.

The music room ceiling has begun to fall apart and has started coming down. Appears the weight is to
great for the supports.

Project Category: Surfaces

Are any of the above-described issues in buildings or part of buildings that are leased to another
entity, including a district sponsored charter school? N

Available Funding Was money to address this issue included in your adopted budget for this fiscal year? N
Current fiscal year building renewal expenditures: $0.00
Current balance of unrestricted capital: $0.00

Please outline any associated insurance coverage.
|There was no event that would cause insurance coverage ]

Liaison: Demland ddemland@azsfb.gov 602-542-6567
K’fCZ’W M (E("é"oew/

Superintendent Printed Name 7

2, Wbty / 'z:7/ ol

\"4 rd

Superintendent Signature & Date
12/8/2014 1:43;38 PM 1 Application ID: 1706



January 26, 2015

To:  Hector Longoria
Toltec School District
hlongoria@toltecsd.org

Re: Design Services for Lighting Grid Support
Arizona City Elementary School

Hector,

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to submit a proposal for design services for
this project. Our understanding of the scope of work is as follows:

Scope of Project

e There are two classrooms in which an indirect lighting system was installed,
suspended from the gypsum board ceiling. Also installed to the underside of the
ceiling were sound deadening boards held in place with wood batten strips.

e The light fixtures were fastened to the wood batten strips, which in turn are
fastened to the gypsum board, not to any structural element. The weight of the
light fixtures are pulling down the batten strips and putting stress on the wiring at
the electrical junction boxes.

* Facilities have had to install temporary posts to support the battens and lights. The
rooms are currently unusable.

Scope of Services

e Verify existing conditions as they pertain to the lights and battens.
¢ Provide details as necessary to reattach the sound board and batten system as
well as to secure the light fixtures and wiring.
We will provide an estimated cost for the construction work.
A structural evaluation of the building is not included.
Construction Administration services are not included.

Fee

The fee for architectural services, as described above, including on-site inspection and
estimated cost would be $1,500. The fee includes travel expenses.

Not included are: state, city or county permits if required, plan reviews and building
permit fees if required, asbestos or mold testing, destructive testing.

Page 1 of 2 ROBERT POLCAR ARCHITECTS, INC
T:/AZSFB/Toltec_Lighting ARCHITECTURE « PLANNING « INTERIORS ¥ ;

4226 N. 84'" Place, Scottsdale, Arizona 85251

p| 480.675.9760 c¢| 602.363.4096



Additional services include extra on-site inspections, construction bidding or
construction administration services. Additional engineering beyond the scope, etc. if
requested, would be $75/hr. for an architect, $110/hr. for electrical and mechanical
engineer and $125/hr. for civil and structural engineer. If required as part of the
additional services mileage would be billed at the current state rate, printing and
delivery billed at cost.

We are listed as a vendor in Procure AZ as well as 1GPA (#13-103). We are in
compliance with all current State of Arizona insurance requirements.

Again, thanks for the opportunity; we look forward to working with you on this project.

Sincerely,

Gy Y

Bob Polcar, RA
Robert Polcar Architects, Inc.

.cc Dan Demland

4226 N. 84'" Place, Scottsdale, Arizona 85251

Page 2 of 2 ROBERT POLCAR ARCHITECTS, INC
T/AZSEB/Toltec_Lighting ARCHITECTURE * PLANNING ¢ INTERIORS ¢ B
p| 480.675.9760 c| 602.363.4096



STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item IX.a.

Subject: IX. Preventative Maintenance Inspections
a. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
Preventative Maintenance Inspection Reports

Skull Valley Elementary

A.R.S. 815-2002 (A)(3) requires the SFB to perform preventative maintenance inspections
on 20 school districts every 30 months. The inspection process is as follows:

Selection

Physical Inspection
Written Report

District Response
Board Review/Approval

arwNE

Table 1 below shows the inspection status of the selected districts. The report for the district
listed above is being recommended for approval today. Please note that SFB staff sent a

draft copy of the report to the district and asked for a response within 30 days.
responses, if any, are included with this write-up.

published on the SFB website.

District
Once the report is approved, it is

Table 1
30 Day
District Presented
Date of Review End to the

District Physical Inspection Final Report Date Board
Ash Fork Unified Complete 10/31/2013 12/2/2013 12/5/2013
Bagdad USD
Bicentennial UHSD
Blue Ridge USD Complete 2/18/2010 3/20/2010 4/7/2010
Bonita Elementary
Catalina Foothills USD Complete 6/21/2012 7/21/2012 8/8/2012
Chino Valley USD Complete 6/3/2010 7/3/2010 8/11/2010
Clifton USD Complete 8/26/2013 9/26/2013 10/9/2013
Colorado River UHSD
Continental ESD Complete 3/17/2011 4/17/2011 5/4/2011
Cottonwood-Oak Creek ESD | Complete 5/16/2013 6/16/2013 6/26/2013
Fountain Hills USD
Glendale ESD
Greenlee Alternative
Hayden-Winkelman USD Complete 3/25/2013 4/25/2013 5/1/2013
Heber-Overgaard USD Complete 3/17/2010 4/17/2010 5/12/2010




Isaac ESD Complete 6/21/2012 7/21/2012 8/8/2012
Littleton ESD Complete 6/30/2010 7/30/2010 8/11/2010
Mayer USD Complete 5/16/2013 6/16/2013 6/26/2013
McNary ESD

Miami USD

Mohave Valley ESD

Murphy ESD Complete 1/8/2010 2/7/2010 3/3/2010
Naco ESD Complete 2/18/2010 3/20/2010 4/7/2010
Nadaburg USD Complete 6/14/2012 7/14/2012 8/8/2012
Osborn ESD Complete 3/30/2012 4/30/2012 6/6/2012
Paloma ESD Complete 3/17/2011 4/17/2011 5/4/2011
Parker USD

Pine-Strawberry ESD

Queen Creek USD Complete 6/21/2012 7/21/2012 8/8/2012
Ray Unified

Red Mesa USD

Riverside ESD Complete 4/8/2010 5/8/2010 5/12/2010
Sahuarita USD

San Simon USD Complete 8/19/2009 9/19/2009 10/7/2009
Santa Cruz Valley UHSD Complete 12/3/2009 1/3/2010 1/20/2010
Skull Valley ESD Complete 11/18/2014 12/18/2014 2/4/2015
Tempe UHSD Complete 3/11/2011 4/11/2011 5/4/2011
Tolleson UHSD Complete 4/17/2014 5/17/2014 6/11/2014
Tombstone USD Complete 2/2/2010 3/4/2010 4/7/2010
Topock ESD Complete 5/7/2014 6/7/2014 6/11/2014
Tuba City USD Complete 5/16/2013 6/16/2013 6/26/2013
Union ESD In process

Valentine ESD

Valley UHSD

Washington ESD

Wilson ESD Complete 6/21/2012 7/21/2012 8/8/2012

Board Action Requested: [ ] information [ X] action / described below

Board approval of the Preventative Maintenance Inspection Reports for Skull Valley

Elementary.

Attachments: Yes [ X]

No [ ]




STATE OF ARIZONA
ScHooL FACILITIES BOARD

Governor of Arizona Executive Director
Janice K. Brewer Dean T. Gray

November 18, 2014

Vicki Hilliker, Superintendent via email: admin@skullvalleyschool.org
Skull Valley Elementary School District

P.O. Box 127

100 Main Street

Skull Valley, AZ 86338

Re: Preventative Maintenance Inspection Report

Dear Superintendent:

The Arizona School Facilities Board (SFB) performed a Preventative Maintenance Inspection of your
district. A.R.S. §15-2002 requires the SFB to inspect the preventative maintenance programs of twenty
randomly selected districts every thirty months.

The purpose of the inspection was two-fold; to verify the performance of the Preventative Maintenance
Plan (A.R.S. §15-2002, (A3) and (K)) filed with the SFB by the district, and to determine if the district
has the administrative structure in place for consistent preventative maintenance. During the inspection,
we also evaluated the performance of the preventative maintenance program based on the condition of the
buildings and the building systems.

The results of the inspection are attached for your review. Please respond with any questions or
comments within 30 calendar days. Please direct your questions or comments via email to
kcampbell@azsfb.gov .

When the review period has concluded, the report with your comments will be presented to the School
Facilities Board at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.

Sincerely,

<z

Dean T. Gray

cc: Laura Briggs — Governing Board President via email: spirittipis@gmail.com

1700 WEST WASHINGTON, SUITE 104, PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501 e Fax: (602) 542-6529 e https://sfh.az.gov


https://sfb.az.gov/
mailto:admin@skullvalleyschool.org
file://10.152.0.19/sfb_common/Preventive%20Maintenance%20Program/PM%20Inspections/Master%20Forms/kcampbell@azsfb.gov
mailto:spirittipis@gmail.com

REPORT
HIGHLIGHTS

Conclusion:

Skull Valley Elementary School
District has the required
Preventative Maintenance Plan
filed with the SFB pursuant to
A.R.S. §15-2002.

The district has a proactive
maintenance program.

Recommendations:

While the district’s facilities appear
to be well maintained, the district
should continue to improve their
PM Program by implement the
goals and recommendations
established and agreed to during
the PM Workshop.

Follow-up:

The SFB contacted the district to
review the status of the
implementation of the goals and
recommendations outlined on page
3 of this report.

ARIZONA SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD
PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE INSPECTION

OF
SKULL VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Preventative Maintenance Inspection Process

In August of 2014, the School Facilities Board completed Preventative
Maintenance Inspections and follow-up review of Skull Valley Elementary in
accordance with A.R.S. §15-2002.

Inspection process:

1. Discuss with district personnel the current status of the district's
preventative maintenance program and demonstrate the required
procedures, reports and goals of the School Facilities Board.

2. Perform afield inspection of all school facilities, and

3. Conduct a demonstration workshop with district administrators and
maintenance personnel on the requirements and benefits of a
compliant Preventative Maintenance Program.

Findings

Following are the findings of the Preventative Maintenance Inspection:

1. The district conducts regularly scheduled inspections of equipment
and buildings.

2. The district keeps detailed records of performing preventative
maintenance on equipment and buildings.

3. The district performs regularly scheduled preventative maintenance
on equipment and buildings.

4. The district uses their preventative maintenance program to identify

and plan future projects.

Preventative Maintenance Planonfile_ YES
Annual PM Reporting Statementonfile_ NO
District Self-Evaluation Score 69

(see sidebar on Page 2)

1700 WEST WASHINGTON, SUITE 104, PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501 e Fax: (602) 542-6529 e https://sfb.az.gov


https://sfb.az.gov/

Field Inspection Summary

Listed below are some of the preventative maintenance findings identified
during the field inspection:

HVAC ROOFING
Well maintained Inspected on regular basis

ELECTRICAL
Very well maintained

PLUMBING
Issues well documented

Skull Valley Elementary

SURFACES
Water intrusion issues documented
Working with SFB to resolve

SPECIAL EQUIPMENT
Very well maintained

District Overview SPECIAL SYSTEMS

Yavapai County, Very well maintained

Skull Valley, Arizona

Schools
Buildings
Square Footage
Students

SFB Evaluation of PM Tasks Performed

M Required

District Self-Evaluation Scoring: 69

Score  Evaluation

26 — 42 Excelling PM program
43 - 56 Adequate PM program 10
57 — 69 Minimal PM program
70 -85 Need PM program

M Performed

HVAC Plumbing Surfaces Special Sys

SFB Evaluation (on scale of 1 to 10) of PM Tasks performed as shown in chart above:

Page 2 of 4

HVAC | Roofing Plumbing Electrical Surfaces Spegal Special
Equipment Systems
Required 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Performed | 10 8 10 10 8 9 8

1700 WEST WASHINGTON, SUITE 104, PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501 e Fax: (602) 542-6529 e https://sfb.az.gov



https://sfb.az.gov/

Workshop Attendees

Vicki Hilliker and Brandi Vastine

Page 3 of 4

Workshop

A Preventative Maintenance Workshop was held for the district's
administrative maintenance personnel, which included discussion on the
district’s current preventative maintenance program and the improvements
they need to implement, including use of the SFB Preventative Maintenance
Program.

A walk-through inspection of the school’s facilities was conducted, during
which maintenance personnel took a critical look at the equipment and
buildings and listed each maintenance issue that was found. Maintenance
personnel were aware of many of these issues. Demonstration, discussion
and collaboration concluded that the issues found during the walk-through
inspection should be addressed through use of the SFB Preventative
Maintenance Program.

Recommendations

During the Workshop, SFB staff and district personnel established the
following preventative maintenance goals and recommendations:

1. To develop a work order system that seeks input from maintenance
personnel, tracks and prioritizes preventative maintenance issues
and tasks completed, as well as trends and key data to assist in
decision-making.

2. To develop a preventative maintenance program with documentation
and written procedures that would allow for a smooth transition to
new personnel in the event current administrative or maintenance
personnel retire or leave the district.

3. To develop maps and spreadsheets that contains the location and
essential information (manufacturer, age, capacity, etc.) of each
piece of equipment, roof, etc.

4. To develop maps of underground utilities and emergency shut-offs
and provide training for administrative and maintenance personnel
on their location (well marked and easy to identify) and function.

5. To improve communications between school administrators and the
SFB regarding fire code and health department compliance issues
such as high storage, open food containers, etc.

1700 WEST WASHINGTON, SUITE 104, PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501 e Fax: (602) 542-6529 e https://sfb.az.gov


https://sfb.az.gov/

Benefits

Proper use of the SFB Preventative Maintenance Program in conjunction
with the Building Renewal Program has proven to provide the following
benefits:

1. Improved educational achievement.
2. Projects are developed and prioritized based on real need.
3. Reduced costs and improved routine maintenance.

4.  Facilities maintain code requirements for fire, health and safety.

To view the backup
documentation for this report 5. Maximize use of BUIIdIng Renewal funds.

please visit the SFB website:

6. Equipment replacement based on life-cycle.

7. Reduced energy costs.

Page 4 0of 4 1700 WEST WASHINGTON, SUITE 104, PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007
Phone: (602) 542-6501 e Fax: (602) 542-6529 e https://sfb.az.gov



https://sfb.az.gov/
http://www.azsfb.gov/sfb/Preventive%20Maintenance/PM%20Inspection%20Forms/Skull%20Valley%20ESD%20PM%20Inspection%20Forms.pdf

STATE OF ARIZONA
SCHOOL FACILITIES BOARD

Meeting Date: February 4, 2015 Agenda Item IX.b.

Subject: IX. Preventative Maintenance Inspections
b. Consideration and possible vote to accept, reject or modify
the random selection of districts for a Preventative
Maintenance Inspection

Deer Valley Unified

A.R.S. 8 15-2002(A)(3) requires the SFB to perform preventative maintenance
inspections on 20 school districts every 30 months. At the September 2008 Board
meeting, the Board randomly selected 20 school districts for inspection. Further, the
Policy requires that the Board select new districts for inspection if any districts have
been completed. The inspection process is as follows:

Selection

Physical Inspection
Written Report

District Response
Board Review/Approval

ardPE

Provided the Board acted to approve the Preventative Maintenance Inspection Report
presented in the previous agenda item, the next randomly selected district for a
Preventative Maintenance Inspection is Deer Valley Unified.

Board Action Requested: [ ] information [ X] action / described below

Board selection of Deer Valley Unified for Preventative Maintenance Inspection.

Attachments: Yes [] No [ X]




	Public Meeting Notice
	Agenda
	III. Minutes of 1/7/2015
	IV. Director's Report
	a. Paperless Board Packets
	b. Policy Review
	c. Legislative/Budget Update

	V. New School Construction
	Agua Fria UHSD
	Casa Grande ESD
	Chandler USD
	Florence USD
	Higley USD
	Kirkland ESD
	Liberty ESD
	Litchfield ESD
	Queen Creek USD
	Sahuarita USD
	Vail USD

	VI. Reduction of Square Footage
	VII. Building Renewal Grants
	a. Executive Authority $50K
	Clarkdale-Jerome ESD
	Safford USD
	Valley UHSD

	b. Supplemental awards
	Blue Ridge USD
	Ganado USD 005BRG
	Ganado USD 006BRG
	Mobile ESD
	Mohave Valley ESD

	c. Construction awards
	Benson USD
	Bullhead City ESD 016
	Bullhead City ESD 017
	Cave Creek USD
	Colorado River UHSD
	Mayer USD
	Saddle Mountain USD 006
	Saddle Mountain USD 007
	Saddle Mountain USD 008
	Scottsdale USD 032
	Scottsdale USD 033
	Tuba City USD
	Willcox USD

	d. Design awards
	Duncan USD
	Mesa USD
	Mohave Valley ESD
	Scottdale USD 034

	e. Design awards 2
	Round Valley USD

	f. Denial
	Florence USD
	Show Low USD


	VIII. Emergency Deficiencies Correction Requests
	a. Construction awards
	Bullhead City ESD

	b. Design awards
	St Johns USD

	c. Denial
	Toltec ESD


	IX. PM Inspections
	a. PM Inspection Reports
	Skull Valley ESD

	b. Random Selection for Inspection


